
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Jonathon Partridge 

direct line 0300 300 4634 

date 13 February 2014 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 

Thursday, 27 February 2014 10.00 a.m. 
 

Venue at 

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 

 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs D McVicar (Chairman), A R Bastable (Vice-Chairman), Cllr K M Collins, 
Ms A M W Graham, R W Johnstone, K C Matthews, T Nicols, B Saunders and 
P Williams 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
R D Berry, D Bowater, Mrs C F Chapman MBE, D Jones, A Shadbolt and 
M A Smith] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 

MEETING 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members. 
 

2. Members' Interests 
  

To receive from Members any declarations of interest and of any political whip 
in relation to any agenda item. 
 

3. Chairman's Announcements and Communications 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

4. Minutes 
  

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of both the Special meeting on 14 
January 2014 and the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 22 January 2014 and to note actions taken since 
those meetings.  
 

5. Petitions 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. Questions, Statements or Deputations 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. Call-In 
  

To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for 
review in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2.   
 

8. Requested Items 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 
 
 
 



 
REPORTS 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

9 Executive Member Update 
 
To receive a verbal update from the Executive Member(s) 
on matters pertaining to their portfolio(s). 
 

*   

10 Central Bedfordshire Design Guide 
 
To consider and comment on the draft Central 
Bedfordshire Design Guide prior to its consideration by 
Executive for adoption as technical guidance for 
Development Management purposes. 
 

*  25 - 96 

11 Arlesey Masterplan 
 
To consider and comment on the proposals contained 
within the Draft Masterplan for Arlesey Cross in light of a 
public consultation prior to its consideration by Executive 
for adoption as technical guidance for Development 
Management purposes. 
 

*  97 - 160 

12 Planning Guidance on Sustainable Drainage 
 
To consider and comment on the draft report formal 
planning guidance regarding Sustainable Drainage in 
Central Bedfordshire, prior to consideration and 
recommendation for adoption by Executive. 
 

*  161 - 170 

13 Local Area Transport Plans Programme 2014/15 
 
To consider and comment on the Local Transport Plan 
capital funding split for 2014/15 together with details of 
several Local Area Transport Schemes.  
 

*  171 - 182 

14 Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan 
 
To consider the currently drafted Committee work 
programme and Executive Forward Plan.  
 

*  183 - 186 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������	�
���
�������������
�

��� �� ������	� 
�� ���� ������	��� ����������� ��������� �� ��������
���������� ���� ��� �
����� ��������� ���
��� �
����� �
��������� �����
��� 
��
������������ �������!"��#�

�
�������

�
���$���%�����&��������'�

�����(�)�������&%���*��������'�
�

�
���� ���+����
����

���������,������
+���������-��
�

���� ��.��
��
)����������
���������
�

�

�/

	�����
���������0� ���� (��� 
����
���
�

�

�����������0� ���� �������
��&1��/����
��(��� 
����
��'�
�

�

���������������������0� ���� ��.������ �
� � ������)������ ���������
���������2��

���3�����43��3��-�����
����������
��������

� � ����)���� ���������
��������
� � ����,������� �
� � ����$������� ���������
���
�/
�����

(��
������43��3��-�5�
����������
��������

� � ����$�)�,������ �
� � ����	��� 67�����3����������
��

�
����������������5�
�
����	�

� �  �,� �����
�� 8������
�������
�����
�������������
������
67�����3��

� � $� 
���� �
� � ���� �,�8�-������ �
� � $� �8�-������ �
� � 1�����	��� �
� � )� ��/���� 67�����3����������
��

�����������
�
����������*����3�����

� � ������6���������)6� 67�����3����������
��
����������/��

� � ����,�%�����
�� 67�����3����������
��
�������2�����3�����

� � )������ $�/����67�����3��
��������
�������������
�
����������*����3�����

� �  �.�9
��	� 67�����3����������
��
�����������

Agenda Item 4
Page 5



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��!� �

�

�

�
����������*�������	���
������	�����6�
�
����
$�3�
/�����

� � ��:����� �
�

4���������������������0� ���(�;
7� <� �����
��$�3�
/�����������	�
�����
����	�������	��

� ��� ��������	�� <� ����������
������3�����
� �������������� <� ����������$�����
���������	�
� ��� ����
�� <� �
����	�4�������

�
��4��=�>=??�

��
��������������������

.
��#�
�

��4��=�>=?@�
��

�� !�� �������"#�$������� �%��"��#�!$ �!"����

������������������������������
�������
��������-�
�-������
���������

��$�3�
/���������	������
��������/
�������
���
��/��A������	�����
��������
���������������������/����������������������
��������
�������#������
�����������
��������������
�����������������
��������/
�������
��
�
�������	�����������	������-���-��������������������������
����

��/�������
�����3��
���������-�������	�
�/�������������������	�����-������/�����#�

�
��4��=�>=@"�

��
���!�!"����

.
��#�
�

��4��=�>=@��
��

&#���!"��'�� ��������"��
�(#� �!"����

����������������
����������
���������������3������������
������/���������
��	���������
��/����
������,�/����������3����8
������#��������-
������
��3����
//
�����������
��/�������
�	�
�������������	���������
�����B������	�
�
��/����-
��������3������
��
��
�����������3��������#��

�
��4��=�>=@!�

��
)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����"$ ,��, ���

���9
��	�����
����������/
������������
�������������	��
������,�/�������
���3�������
��
����
�������������&,���'���������
����������/�
/
����
����	����
�����������,�/����������3����8
�������&,�8�'�����	���
������
���/
����������3��������	�/������
�������
�#��
�
1��������
������9
��	�
���������������	�
�����
�����,�8���������	������	��

��	���
���
���3�
/���,�8��������-������
/�����-
����
���/����
������
������
�����3�
/�����/����
���������)���
�������#�����9
��	���
����
�����
�����
��������
����/��3�
���1��/���
�C��(�/
���&1('���	�����	������
����C��
��������
�	�����/�����	�/�������
���
��	�/����������3����/�������������������
(
��#�����9
��	�/
������
������������1(�����	�3������/
������
�������
���
���
/��������-�����-�����������,�����)�������������
���		���������������
�
����C��/��3�
���,����-����
���
��������������
����������
�����
��������
��>D��
�/
����	�
-�����������������
����������
����
��E��������
����
��C#�

Agenda Item 4
Page 6



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��>� �

�

�

���9
��	�/
������
������������1(�-�������	������	�����������
����������	�
!"��#�
�
���9
��	����
����������
��������������

-��	�������/��3�
���������	�����
!"�>���������3�����,������������������������������������������������������
��	���������-
���������������
��-������	����������//�
/�������
�/
����	�
-���
������������
������/�
/
���#��1�����9
��	C��
/���
��������-����
��3�������
�
�����
�/
����	�
-��������
��!#F�*�>D�����/����/�����	����/���
���������	�

������������������>D�	�
-��������-����//�
/�����#���������	�����
�����,�����
���9
��	��/�������������������
���������������
������������	�������������
,�/�������3����
������������������
�����3����	�������
���/�����������������
)���
������������	���
������/��3�
�������������������������/�
3����#��1���	���

��
����3�����������9
��	��
�����������������
�/
����	�
-��������
��!D�
-����//�
/�������
���������)���
�������#�����9
��	���
���3���������
�
��������
���-
����
����
�����������������/
��G�
�
�#� �����!0������
����������
��/����������!#FD�	�
-��������/�����������������

!���
��������E�HFC��
��E�FHC#��������������������
�������
����������
�����
�����#�

!#� �����>0�����	�
-���������������
��������E�#FDC������������
�E/
��C��������
�����E/������C#��

�
���������������3������-
���������
������/������
��/����-������	��������
,��������������������
�����
��������/������#��1����������������

-��	�
�������-����������������
����/������0*�

•� ����,���������
��/�
3������������������3��
���3�������
��-������
������
������������
��/������������-�������
���������/��
�!">�#��.���
���
�3���������//
��������
�/
����	�
-��������
���#FD�*�!#FD���
����-����
��
�����-��������
�����-
������
��������>D��
�/
����	�
-�������#��

•� ����	�
-����������
������������������,����-����������������������
�7/����
��	�
-����������������
��������	�	����
���3����
�������//�
/������
�������
��/���������B�����#��

•� �����
����������
�����������������E�7��/��
����������������C����-���������
����
��,�����)����
��	�/����������3����/�������-����//�
/�����#��

•� �����
�������
���
��������
������������,�8�������
�������������
��

-�
�������
�������/�	���-�����B�����#��

�
1�����/
��������9
��	��
��������
���3�������
����	�
-��������
��"#FD����
,�/������������3���������������)���
������������
�	����������
��������-���
�
�����
��#!FD#�����9
��	�����������-����
��3��������
����	�
-��������
��>D�
����������)���
�������#��1��-�����/
�������
�������
������
������������
/���������	�
-���������
�����,�8���
�������������
�-���#��1��-�����������������
�����
�/��3�
���/�����	�������
���������-�������������������,�8��-
������
�������E���
���C�
������������
����!D�	�
-�������������������������-���
�
�/���	��3��������
���		�����������	����-��������
����//�
/�����#�����
9
��	���
����/
���������������
������
����
�����,�����)����
�/�
3�����
��
��-�/����������
�	������,�8��������������������
�������������������-�����
�	����B����������
�/�
3�������������
������
�/��3����������
������
�����/�����#�
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 7



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	���� �

�

�

�������	����
������������������
����������
�����������������E�7��/��
���
�������������C��
�������
����
��
��������-����������,�����)��#�����3�
���
������
��
������������	�1��/���
�����-����������
�������
����C��������
��
��
,�����)����������������������,�8�#��1���	���
����
���������
����������	�������
���������/
���������
����3�
/��	���������
����	�������
���������������������,�8��
���������
3��

���#���������	�����
����������
���������������

�

/�����������������
���
��������3���������
���
���������-����������/�
/
����
��������#��1�����/
��������9
��	��
��������������������
�������
������
���
�	������,�8���������,�����)�������7��/��
�����������������-�����������
-�����������������������
�������#�������
����
��
���
���/�������-����������
,�����)���-���/����������
���3���������������������	�
�������������,�����
)��#��
�
���.��
���
��������������������
����������
�����3�������/�
3�����-����
�
���������
��
����������������������������/
����������
�������/�/�������
��3�����
������������	#��1��������
����������������������������//�
�����	�����
������
������	�
���
������
������������
���
�������
�������-�
�����
����
������/�
3�����,�/����������3����/�������-��������	�������
���
�
�
��������
�/�
3����/��������������������#����������������-����
��������
��	�����	������������
��/�������������
�����3��������
����������������
)���
�����������F"�����������#��1��-�����
���		�����������
�������
�������
&����
���'���������
�����������������������,�/����������3�����
�����������

������
���3�
/��//�
/������,�8��#�����.��
����
��
��������
�����������
�
�����������������������������
��������������
��,�/������������3������������	�
����������)���
�������#�����.��
���
��������������
���
�������3�������
�
���������������,����-���������
�����3����
�������������
�������������
�
������������
�������	�/����/��
��������
�A�����������3��������/�

���
������
�3��
������#��1�����/
��������9
��	��������������������3������������������
,����/�
3���������3��-��
������,�/����������3�����
������������-���
���
/����
�������3�������������������
���������,���C���
�����
���
��/���������#���
�
���������-��/�
/
��������������
����������
������
��������!D�	�
-���
��������/����������������������
���
��	��
������
������3���������������9
��	�
�
���/�
������
���������	��������	��//�
/������
���#������������B�����������
�����

��
����,�8���������
����!D�	�
-�������������	��
���������E�
���C����
�����-������
����������������
������������-������������
�����-
������

/����
�������
�����������/�������������,�8��-����
�����
�������
���#�����
9
��	������������������������3���������-�����
�/���	�����
��������!D�-���
�����//�
/�������
�/
����	�
-�����	���#��
�
���9
��	���
��
������������������//�
/������	�
-���������
�����3���	�
��
-/�
/��/
���-����
����������
�����#FD#�����9
��	��������������
/��	�������
���
��������������������,�����
��
-��
����3����
����
���
����
�����-����
���//�
/����������������������-����
����������3��������
����3���
������������
��/
����/��������������
�����
��������������3���
����3����
���
���������������3����
����������#����������������9
��	�-�������
�����������
�������
��/
������������������/�����
����3����
������#��������
������-���
���
�����������������,����������
��������A�����
����
�������	�����
������������

-�0*��

•� �>��,�/����������3����/��������/��
�!">�G������

•� !"��7����/
����
�����3���	���
-/�
/���/��
�!">�#��
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 8



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��F� �

�

�

4������������������
��������������
�����	������
����
��������,������������
�
����������
��/��������
���
����
���������,�8���/��
�!">�#��
�
��3��	����
���������,����������
����3����������
��������
�����������������
����/�
/
��������	����
�����������,�8�������-�����
������������//����7�$�
��
������/
��#��1��������
�����9
��	��
������������������
����������������
���

�������
������������3��������	������
�������
��/�
�������������/�
/
����
����	����
�����,�8������������#������������	���������������/�
/
����
���
3��
�������FF�&�
������/�������������!H'����������-������-��
������������
�
�����
����
��,����	��#�����������������	��	������
������
������������������
������
�������
�������
�����-����
��/�
/
�����
���������
������/��3�
����
�
�����������������������
�����������,�8�#���
�
��������������������3����������������!���������
������/������
��/����
��
�/���������������-
�
��-�
�������	������
�����
��������������
�������������������
�
�
�	�����������������
��/���#��1����������������

-��	��������-�����������
����/���������	�����	��/������������������
�������
������/������	�����0*�

•� ������H�-����
����������
�������//�
/�������
�����#�����
�	�������
�����
������		���������������	����	�����
���-
������/������/�������-����
�������
�
-������������������������
���
�����������
�������-
���������������#��1��
-������
������������������������
���������
�������������	���
������
�
����C����3�����/�
/
���#�

•� �����!H���
����
��������������������,�8�����/�����������
3��
�������FF#��
�����!H�-��������������
��/�����	�����
�������������
����
-����������
����������������
����������������-
�����������
�/�
3������������
�
���������������������

�#�������!H�-��������������������������
�������/����

����������
����	���3�
/�������-�����-
���/����	��������������
��
�7�����	����������#��1������
/���
��
��
������������������������������3���
������
FF�-���������������)������-�����-����
������������������
�/����-����
���3����/�����	��
���������
��������������/�
3�����������	���
�3��������
�
���������������������3��
���������/���#���

•� �����FF�-����
����������
���������������
��������

	��������
����������

������
�/�
���������
���������������
������������������
������/�
3�����
���6�	����������	�#�������
����������
�����������
�������/
������
�����
����������������������������������������
���
�����������
�������?!#��������-����
��
����������������
���
�������/����
������
�����

	����������/�
�������
�/���������������������
���������������#��

•� �����F?���
���������
3�����
������,�8�����������7�����	��
��
�������
��
����
������
����������
���7/����
��
�������
������/��������	�/�
����#��
(�������������
�������7�����	��
��
���������������
���/
����3�������
����/�
-���������
������������
��
�����������
�������
����
��A�
/�����������#��

•� �����F?�-������������������
��

��������3���
�����3��
������������������
��������������-�����-������	��	���������������������������#������
�
����������������
�����������
��������/����
���7/�����	��7�����	�������
��������������
�������������������-����
������I�������3���
������������
�
�������#��

•� �����F?�-������������������
�����/�
7�������
��������3
�������B�����#��������
-�������������������������	��
���������������������������������������
������
�
������������������
��
*
/����������������/����
���
����	���3�
/������
������
���������#��

Agenda Item 4
Page 9



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��H� �

�

�

•� �������H�-��������������
���7/����
��������//
����
���������������
���
�����/�
3�����������������������
�����#�������7/����
��-����
���������
�
���	����
�/��������������������/����
����������������������/�����
��
����/�
/
�����
����������-���������������������������
���
����	�
��3�
/����#����������-���/�����������������	��������������-�����
��
�����3����/������
�������������������
�����������/��3�
���������
��A�������������������!""�#�67/����
��
�����������-
����
�����������/��	�
-����������I��
��������������
�������#�������
�����������
��������������
������
��
*
/��������������
���
����������#��

•� �������������������
��/�������/�
/
�����
�����
���������������������
/��3�
���������,�8��-
������������������	���
������/������
�������
�#��

•� ��������,
3��������	������-���������3�������
���������3����
��,�/���
�������3���������#�

•� ������/
�������
���������3������	������
��,�/����������3���������#�

•� �������������������������>�-�����������������
�����/�����������������������
��
����-
���������
��������#��

�
1���	���
�������
�������������������������
������/��������9
��	����/
�����
����

-�0*�

•� ����,�8��-
�������
����������������67�����3����������
������

-��	�
-���������������/������
�������
��-
��������������������
������������
,�8��-��������������
��������67�������
�#����
���������/
�����/�
3�����
�
������
����/������
�������
���-
������������3�������
���������������

��������-��������,�8��-����7������#��������	������
��//�
3������,�8��
�
����������
����
3���
�-������������
�����������
�/��3����������
������
�����/�����#���

•� ������@������
��������
����������
���
����
���������,�8�������
�����
�������3����/����
��/�
/
���	��������������������?!#��1��-���/�
/
���������
�����FF������/�����-���������!H��
�������-
�������
�������

	������/����

�������FF#�

•� �����
�����-
�������-����
3����
-���	�����
��������������������7�����	�
�
��
��������
�������
���������������	�/�
����#������7/����
��
������
�7�����	������-
���	
��������������-��������/�
3���
��
��������
���
��������	��������������	�����#�������
�����-���3�����������
�����������
�
�/�
�
����
�����
����
�#��

•� �����
���������������/�
�����
���//���	��
��,
3��������	�������
����3���
����������������
��
�������
�������������/�������	����
�������������
	�����#�

•� ��
���������	�������������	����������������������
��
������-����������
������
���������������������
����
���������
�������
��-
��������B�����#�
�
-�3���������
�������������
�����	��
�-������/�����	��//�����
���
������

������������
��������������������	�/�
����#��1�������
���
����������.��
��
�
�����������������
����������
��������>�-������������������
�����,�8��
�����
�������
��������������������������
���������
���������������
���������
�������
������������#��

�
;

-��	������/����������9
��	��
�������������������
�������������������
���������/�
3������
�����������
����������������������
���
������JH#������
�������
�����3����
����������/
�������-��������
�������
���	�3����
��
�	�������������B�����#�����9
��	����������
�������/�
/
�����
��
�����	�

Agenda Item 4
Page 10



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��J� �

�

�

/��������
����3��������
3���������7���"��������-�����-����?��/�������&������

����!D�	�
-�������'�����

-�0*��
�

!���� �!�$���� �� �-��.�"��%� .��)����

������H�*�)���
�� �F� ������
���F�/�������

�����!H�*�$���
��8���� �F� �����FF��
������/�����-���������!H��
�
����
��������������
���"��
��F�/�������

�����F?�*��
��
�� "� ������
�������
3�����
������/���

�����@!�*�������	�
�� @� .
�����	��

�������H�*���
7��� �>� .
�����	��

�����JH�*�;�������� �"� .
�����	��

�����J?�*����	����� �� .
�����	��

� � �

�"� ,� //� �

� � �

��������
�������������"�
��������B������������!D�

�?� �

�
1��������
������9
��	�����������
�-�������������-�������������
�����/����
��
�����
�����������
��/������������-
��������B������
���
��������#������
��������
��/�������
�������
��������������-
��������3��-���������F������"�
������
������,�8���
�������������������

�����
����
��������-����������������
�
�-���#��
�
0����!�-� %1"#���%�2/34� �%���$"�+���%� ��2/567�
�
���������������3�������������-
����
������������
������������/�
/
�����
����
�
������������������

-�0*��
�
!���2/�
�������	����
�����������������
�������������,�8��-
�������
���������
���
������������-������-������������������
������������������������
����������3��	��
���
�����������
����������������������������������������	��
������
�����������������/�
����#��1�������
���
�������H��������-�����/�������
��������������������/�����	��
�������������
����������

	������/��������
���������
���������-������
�����������������3���������
����������#��1��-���
��		�������������������������������
�����������-���������������
�����������
-����������-������3���������
�������
���������������������������,�8�#��1��
���/
�����������
���
������������������/
����������3��������	������
����
�
�������
��/���
��-
������/�
3������
�����������	�1��/���
�#��
�
���������������3�������/������/�������
��
�������	����
��������H�-�
�
�
��������
���������������
�������������
��/�������/�
/
�����
�������3�����

���������������������F�/�������-
����
����3����/��3�
���	��������������
�
�
��������������
�������
�����#��;��������
��������������������
��������
�7/����
��
�����������������������������������	�����������/����
�����������
����F�
/�������
��������������
�������#��1��-����
������������������
�������
���
�����������/�
/
�����������
��/��������
�������
������������-����������,�8��
�
���
�������
�#���
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 11



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��?� �

�

�

1�����/
�����
������
�������
����������������9
��	������������������
�����
-
����
���
��-���������3����
������������������
��
������������������	���
-�������������#������
�����-�����������������������
����
���
�����������
��������
���������������9
��	�-����
������������������������
��-������
������-
��������	����������7/�������-�����-
���/�
3������/�������
���3��-�
����,�8���������������#��
�
1���	���
��������������
������,�������
���������������������
���������
���
������������
�������H��-�����-�������������������
-���
����������������
�����3��#��1���	���
�����������������������
���//
�����������
�����������#��
�
1���	���
��������������
�����������
�������
�����/
�����������
��������
�	������
���//
�������/�
/
����
��
������F�/�������
��������H#��1���
��	��
����
-����
�������������������������
�������
��������-�����
��/��A������	�����
������
��������
����������������������������$�3�
/���������	�����������
���������/�����	��//�����
��-
������A��	���
������
-�������#�
�
!���448��
���$�8�-�������
������������������!H�&������/��������������
-�����	�
/�
/
���'������������������
���������
���������������)���
��������$��������
�
����#��1���
���/�������-�������3��������-�������//�����
������-���
���
������������������������
��/��������
������
�������!H�����
���������
�����#��
�
���:�����B�������-��������!H����������/�
/
������������������3���
������FF�
-�������-���
����������
���/�
7�������
�����/��3�
������������������-����
�����
�������������������������������������/�
�����������
�����3��������
��������#��
1��-����
�������-���������FF�����F?�-���������
����������
������������-����

������-�����
�#�����:������
��������������!H�-��������������
����3����
����
����������	���������
���������������������������������
���7/�����	����

�
/�
3���
������������/����
���
����	���3�
/����������������#��������-�����
�
���������
�������
����
�����	�����
���������������
���
������FF���������
�
����
��
���F�/���������������
����
��-����

���	�#��1��-�����		�����������
����������
��������
�����/���������
�����
�������	�������	����
�������FF�
�
������!H#�����:�������
�B�������-�������������
������������������
�������
�3�����������-����
���������-�����
���������/��
���
���������������������
/�
����������7������-���
�������	�������������������
���	�/�
�����
�����-��
�
������������
��
���������#��1��-�����		�����������������FF�����F?���
������
���
3�����
������,�8�������������	��������������	����
���������
��������#�
�
1�����/
�����������
��������

���
���������������
���������3�������
�
����������������
���
����������������/��3�
����������
��������������
��
�������������������������������/�
����#�����9
��	���
��
����������������
�������/
������
�����3��-��/�
3�������������
�����������/�
/
���	�����
���
3��
�������FF��-�����-������
���������-
�/������/��������������������	#��
1�������
����������
����������/��	�������//�
���������������	�������
���	�
������������
��-�����-������/���������-
�����3����������������������,�8�#��
�
���,�������
��������
��������/
�������
������
��������	�������	�/����
���-��������,�/����������3�����
������������
����
����
������
������
�
������������������
���#��������FF�����!H�-�����
����������
���������������
�
-�3��������?!�-����
����������������#�����,������B�������-��������-
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 12



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	��@� �

�

�

/���������������������
����������
��
���������/����-
�����������������-������
�������/�����	�/�������
��-
��������B�����#��1�����/
�������9
��	�
�
��������
���������������
�����������	����������
������-��������,�/���
�������3����������������
����������-������//�
/�����#��1�������
���
������-
�
/������������
����
�������7�����	��
��
��������/�����	�/�������
��-
����
��
�����B�����#��������-������3������/�
3������������������
�����,�/�������
���3�������������
��
������-����,
3��������	���������������
����C����/����
������	����-��������������
���������3����#��
�
1���	���
��������������
�����������
�������
�����/
����������
��������
������
�����	������
���//
�������/�
/
����
��
������F�/�������
�������!H#�
�
!���49�
���:��������������������-���
//
�����
���������
�������F?�������-�����A������
�
���-
����	�B�����#��1��-�����
�B�������-�������������-����
����������
����
�
����������������
����������-�������7/�����
�������
�������/�
3���������
�
-���
����������������
����������������������������,�8�#��1�����/
��������
9
��	�����������������������/
������
������
�������
������
����
��������
������
�������	���������
�������!H���������
�������FF#�����������������3�������
�����
����
��
����
������������������������������������������������,�8������
��
�������������������������
�������������������	������
���
�������
�����
!"�>��������
����#�
�
1���	���
��������������
�����������
�������
�����/
����������
��������
������
�����	������
���//
�������/�
/
����
����
3�������F?���
������������
,�8�#��
�
!���:3�
1���	���
�������
�������
�����/
����������
��������������
�����	������
�
��//
�������/�
/
����
��
����������/�������
�������@!#�
�
!���22/��
��/������/������-�����3������
��
������
������/�
/
�����
���������H#��1��-���
��		���������������/�
/
���-
����
�������������������
���������/����������
������-���
�������
��
����
���3����
�����/�
/
���������#��������-�����
�
����������
�������������������������	����

��
�������������������������������
�
����	���3�
/�����
�����������-
������������/�
�������	�����	�������#��
���������������
����
-��������������������������-����
�������-������-���
�
����������
�����������#��1�����/
��������9
��	��
���������������
������
��/���������
�����������������/�
3����������	�����/������
�������
�����
�����
���
�����������-
�����������
���
������������	�1��/���
��-�
���������
������67�������
����������
����#���
�
��� �����
���
��������������
�����
����
����������������
�����/�����	�
/�������
��	�������
��������������������
�������������
������������������
-�����//�
/����������
����#��1�����/
�������9
��	��
�����������������
�
������
����
��/��3����/�����	��//�����
���
�����������������/��3�
���
�
�����
��������
����������������
��������-
����
������
������	��
����
3��
�7�����	��������-������	������
����������#���
�
1���	���
��������������
�����������
�������
�����/
����������
��������
������
�����	������
���//
�������/�
/
����
��
������>�/�������
���������H#�

Agenda Item 4
Page 13



��4���*�� ��#"�#���
��	�� �

�

�

�
!���;/�
1���	���
�������
�������
�����/
����������
��������������
�����	������
�
��//
�������/�
/
����
��
������"�/�������
�������JH#��
�
!���;9�
1���	���
�������
�������
�����/
����������
��������������
�����	������
�
��//
�������/�
/
����
��
�������/�������
�������J?#��
�
;

-��	�������������
�����-�����B���������������
�������/�	�����/�
3�����
��
��������
/����
������������,�8�#��4���������	������
���������������������������
���

������,�8���
��������������
���
�������������������������������
���3�	���#��
�����
����������
��	������
���//
�������/�
/
��������	����
�����/
����
������������//����7�$��
���������/
��#���
�
���9
��	���
���B������������������������
�
�������������������������/�����
�
����������3
3�����������3�
/��	�����,�8���
������/
����������
����#��
�
��������
�
��"��<�$#�!+��
�
2=� �� ������)*(�*'��� +�,,��� �%��">(���"���$$"��"% �!"��

�����������3625'�$"�%#$��%��*���'������%"���%��#�1�$���"�����
 ���%������� %���"����������������%#�!�-�����$"#����".�����
����!�-=��

3=� �� ��2?2�)*(�*� �%��� +�,,���(!�$���� �%�36�(,"���."���� +�,,!�-�
�">(�"(,����� ,,"$ ��%�!������)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����"$ ,��, ��#(��"�
36?2=��

?=� �� �������(�$!.!$��!������� ,,"$ ��%� ��.",,">��!��"�%����"����������
(!�$����@#!��������."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,���� �%��� +�,,!�-�
�">(�"(,��#(��"�36?28A��

�
!���2/�A�	 ��"�� 24�(!�$����."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����
!���3/�A�
#��"��� ��� 24�(!�$����."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����
!���:3�A�� %%!�-�"�� :�(!�$����."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����
!���22/�A��#,,"<�!,,� 2?�(!�$����."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����
!���;/�A�� !�.!�,%� 26�(!�$����."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����
!���;9�B��!�-�!��� 5�(!�$����."��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����
!���93� 5�(,"����"���� ,,"$ ��%� �� �)*(�*� �%�

�� +�,,!�-��">(���"���!��=��
�
5=� �� ������$� �-����"�����%� .��)*(�*� �%��� +�,,����"$ ,��, �� ��

%�� !,�%�!��������("������ ((�"+�%�."��(#�,!$ �!"�=��
�

&.
��0� ����������	��
�����������!#""�/#�#������
����������F#�F�/#�#'�
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 14



��������	�
���
�������������
�

��� �� ������	� 
�� ���� ������	��� ����������� ��������� �� ��������
���������� ���� ��� �
����� ��������� ���
��� �
����� �
��������� �����
��� 
��
������������������������ !"�

�
�������

�
���#���$�����%��������&�

�����'�(�������%$���)��������&�
�

�
���� ���*����
����

���������+������
*���������,��
�

���� -�.��
��
(����������
���������
�

�

�/

	�����
���������0� ���� '����
����
���
�

�

�����������0� ���� �������
��%1��/����
��'����
����
��&�
�

�

���������������������0� ���� ��.������ �
� � '�#�(����� �
� � ������2����/�����(3� �
� � #��
���� �
� � (������ #�/����34�����5��

��������
�������������
�
����������)����5�����

�

6���������������������0� ���'�2
4� 7� �����
��#�5�
/�����������	�
�����
����	�������	��

� ������*����� 7� �����
���
���������������
� �������
����� 7� ����������#�����
��3�5��
�������

���5�����
� ������������	�� 7� ����������
������5�����
� ���-���������� 7� ����������#�����
���������	�
� �����-��/����� 7� ����
��2�����������	���
� ����8������� 7� ������	�������
��������	���
� ������������ 7� ���5����#�5�
/���������	���

�
6���������
�����������

�1�-������
��
�� ������1��/���
��

� ���6��������� (���
���������
����
����������
�
������
����

� ���8�������� (���
��������2��������
'���������5����

� ���*��
�	��� (���
����������
����
��
-�����

�
�
�
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 15



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	���� �

�

�

��6��9 :9;:�
��

��������������������

.
���
�

��6��9 :9;!�
��

�� !�� �������"#�$������� �%��"��#�!$ �!"����

-������������,��
���������
���������������
������
����������
���

����������������	�����������	�
��������
��(���
���������
�����
(���
����������
����
��-���������(���
��������2��������'���������5���"��
�
-����
���������4/���������������//
�����������������#�����
������
34�����5����������,�����
���������������"��
�

��6��9 :9;<�
��

�!�#�����

������
��� �������!�#����"&���������!�'�"&�����#�� !� �(��
�"��#�!�!����)��)!�*� �%�$�#�!�+��"��!�������(%�"��,-�
�$������
./,0�����!'��%��+������� !�� �� �� �$"���$����$"�%1��
�

��6��9 :9;=�
��

���!�!"����

.
���
�

��6��9 :9;>�
��

2#���!"��3�� ��������"��
�4#� �!"����

.
���
�

��6��9 :9;?�
��

� ((5����

.
���
�

��6��9 :9;;�
��

��6#����%��������

-���������������
����������
������������������� =����� >������������
��
�����	���������/��5�
�����������@������������������"�
�

��6��9 :9 ���
��

�7�$#�!)���������#4% ����

.
���
�

��6��9 :9 � �
��

�"��#�!�+� &��+��( �� �%���!"�!�!���8./,09,:;��

-��������
���
�������������������
����������/
������������
�������������
/��
���������������	��	������������������������������������
�	������
�
�������������������������/�%���&�������	���������������
���� !9 <"��
1��/���������������/
�����	��	��������������	���������
������������
��
����
�����@������5�������������
��������������,�����,������/���������
���
����	�����������������
��
���
������������"��-�������������
������������
��5��������	��	�������������,
��������5��,�������
���������
5�������
�
���	�����"��1��������
�������
��������,������5����������������������
�
��������������	�
,������+�/�������-��5����/
/����
�����������������
��

Agenda Item 4
Page 16



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��:� �

�

�

/���������������
�����������,
������������������	���
���������
65��5��,������������������34�����5��������	�"���

�
-����
���������������
������
����%���&���5����������
�������������
�����
�����������/��
������������������������
�����������������"��������
���
����������(���
��������,���
,�����������
�����/�����
�������
���������
������,���������������,�����
��������	��	"��(���
���������
���������
��
�����5������	�����������
����
��������	����������
��������
������	���������
��������������������
����
����������������������A��������������
��,�����
��
��)����/
����	�������������"��(���
���������
����,����
,������/
����
��
�
������������������
������
��������������������"��#����
�����
����������)
��/
����	�
������������
���
����������������,����4/����������������������
��
����������,
�����������"��-����,
������
������������������
������������
�����
�����//�
�����
������	�,��������������
���
������������"��
�
1���	���
��������/
��������
������������
���������������������������
���������������

,��	����������������0)��

•� �
,���//
���,���/�
5������
���������,�
�,������/����������5��	����
��������������
���
������������"��1�����/
�������������
��������
���������� !����,
��������5�����/
����������
���
������
���	���//
���
���5������
��5����������,�����/
�������,
����
�������������//
���
/�
5�������������
���
��
������������������,���������������5��������
/���������/�,����
������	������"��-��������
���
�����������������
�
�
���������������//
���,���/�
5������
�������������
��
����
��,����
�����������B�����5�����������
�����������������	������	���������
(
����

•� -���/�
������
�������	�,������/��������������
������)�
��������5�
���
%��(&"��-���������5��������������	���
����/��5�
������/����
��
(���
���������
������������������
���
���������,�����������������
�
���
��

���
�	�5�����������������/���
�������������/�
5��"���1�
-������
��
����
��
��������������������������/�
�����,������/����
�
�/�
5�����������������������������������������������������/
����
��
�
��������
���
���
��

�"�

•� -�������������������
���
�����
���������������6��������%���6�&�
�����
�����
�������"��-���������5����������
�����������������
��������
�����6�����������������
���������������5��%!������������
(���
�������&"��-�����,����?��
��������������������������,�
�,
���	
�
���
����/
����/
����	"��

•� -�����	����
���
���������������������������������������
�/�
���������
������	������������������������4"��-��������
���
���������������
��5����������
����������������������
���
��������������������������4�,���
��5�
/�������	���
����	�	������������������
��,����/�������"��1��
�����������	��������	������������������,
�����������
�,
���
�
	�������
�����	�������������"��

•� -�����/
�������
�������
����������	�5����,��������,�����5
5�������
�
������	�������
����/������/
�������������������������"��1��
���/
�������������
�������������(���
��������,
����
����������
�
����,�����
��������	���,���
���������)�	������//�
���"���
����	�
���/���������/�/�
5�������������
�����������	�/�
�����,����
���
�������������
���	����������5����
��
���
�����1���	������
6������������	������,���
���������4��/��,�����/���������/�

Agenda Item 4
Page 17



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��!� �

�

�

,
����	���������5���"������)�	����������5����
���������������
���
/�
5��������������
������	��
��/��������������������C����
���/������"�

•� ���������������
���������
����(��������	����,���������	�����������
(���
�������"��1�����/
�����1�-������
��
���
�����������������
�������
������������
�����������������,�����
�������
���������
�����
������
���������(���
���������
����
�������/���������
��������
��
(���
�������8��
�"�

•� �����������,�������/������������������
�����������
������������
���
�
�����
�����6�"��1�����/
�������������
�����������,�����/
������
�������������
�����������5����������
��,������������
����,����/����
��������������
���������������������5����
��������	�������
����
���"�

•� ��������
���������	�����	�/����
�����������
��
���/
���������
���
���/����
������5��,�
������/
����������"��1�����/
���������������������
������,����
����	�����������
���
���5��	��
������������"��-�����,����
�
����������
��������5��,���������������,
�����������5������
���
��������������,
�������������/
�����
��
����������5����/����
���
���������,����"�����
�	������������	��������������������,
����
������4/�������������	����������
���/������������1��
5���
��2����
,
�����/��
���������������	��"��

•� -�����	���5��/����/��
��������������/���������
�����������	�����
/
��������
�����
��/
���������
��"��-���������5����������
��������
����������
�������/
�������
��/�����/����/��
�������
����������������
�
���������������
�������
���
�����"���������������
��/
���������
������
�
5��	������,
�����/��
���/�
5��/����/��
��"���1�-������
��
��
��
��
��������
��������/
�������
����	�	��	�,���������
���/�
/��
�
����
���	��/
����5��/����/��
��������
���������������������
��
�
��
����
�"���
���������
�������
��
����
��,������������
������
�����
����
���,����
�������
���	������
������
����
���	���
���
���/
���5���
�����
���"��

�
1�����/
�����
����/�������@�����
����
������������1�-������
��
���	�����
�
���5��,����/������������,������������������������
������������
����
,
����
�����/
����
�������������,��������
������������������//���������
������������"��1��,����������������������
����������������������
����,
���
/�
5���������/
���������/��
����"��

�
��������
�
��"��7�$#�!)���� �������"��!������#44"��������������
� �������!4��� ��'!$������������4�!"�!�!���!%���!&!�%�&"��./,09,:� ��
&"(("*�<5��
 1� ��%#$�������#�����"&�)!$�!��"&� ��!5�"$! (���� )!"#�� �%�

�#44"��!�'���"���*�"� ����"���)#(��� �(�=�
�1� ��%#$�������#�����"&�)!$�!���"&�%"����!$� �#��� �%��#44"��!�'�

��"���*�"� ����"���)#(��� �(�=��
$1� ��%#$��%"����!$��#�'( �+1�

�
8����!�'� %>"#���%� ��,,/.���� �%���$"�)���%� ��,,,:���;�

�
��6��9 :9 ���

��
��!�#����� ��'+��

-����
��������������	������	���%8����������5����&�/�
5�������
/���������
�����������
�������/��/
���
������8�������������	��������������

Agenda Item 4
Page 18



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��<� �

�

�

�
�/
�����"��-���/���������
����
�
��������������
�����
����������,������
��������/����
������������	������������4�����/�����������/��������
�����

������
������
������
/���������������-��������+���������
����
�������
����	��	�#�5�
/�����������	�"���������
�������
����������������������
,������	������
�����������	�������
���
����
��,�����,����
��������������
��/
��"��
�
1���	���
��������/
�����������/���������
�������
����������������������
�

,��	����������������0)��

•� �����������,����//�
/�������
���������D������B�������	�����������
���
���
�/����������������������������"��-���������	�������
��������	���
��������������/�
/���������������������/������
���
��,�����
����������
D������B"���

•� -����
����������5�
/��	���@�����
��������
����������
�������
�
���������,����������
�����������������
�/�
5���������,�����(������
�
����,��
���������������������"��

•� -���/
����5���������
���������	�������	�
���������������������������
������	�"��

•� -���������
����������������
����

����/��������������������	���
��
������������/�
/
������5�
/������,
����
�����������4�����	�
����������"��1�����/
��������������	�������
��������	����
��������
�����������	�����	����������,
��������5��,��"�

•� �����������,������������
��4/��������������������
�� �=��
��������
���
��
������.
�����
�	��
��'�	�����5�
/������
�������������������������
�
�	��
��'�	��"��-����
��������������	������	�����������������

��������,����,
����	�,����������5�
/������
��
�������
������5�����
���

�����������������
��������5�
/�������
,�5������������,����������
����������
����������
������5������������������"�����������������������
��,��
�	�
��'�	��������������������/����������
��� �=��
��������
���
����������������������
��(����/�������	����
����"��1��������
�������
����������#�����
��������	���������������������,����/
�������
�
��������
�����
�������'. ��//�����
�������������/�����	�
�//�����
�����������
�	��
��'�	����#������������.
����8��
������"��
�����������	���
,�5����������,�����
������	�������������������5����
��
�����'. ��������,
������
����������������5���
����5������
��������
��
�
,���������,�������������������#�5�
/���������	������,
���
��5���
�,��	���/�5���
���/��
��������
�����������,�����������,��������
�������,���
����	����/��
����������
�����/�����	�
��	���
���%�
��
�4��/�������/
��&"��1�������
�������/�����������
��������
1��������������8�5��%�18&�������
�����,
�����5��	���������4�������
5���
��������
���18������	�������
���/��
��������/����
���18��������
,�����
����,���������������������������
����������������������@���������"�

•� �
�5���������������
�
/����/�����,���������@���������,����
���5����	���,���5�
/���������	�/�������
��
���"��1��,�����/
������
����������
�����,������5������������	��	�
,����	��������������������
,����������������5����	��
�5���������������������
�
���
/����/���"��

•� 1��

�������	����������������
�����������������8�������������	�����/����
����	�
,��	�/
/������"��-����
��������������	������	�����������������
���

�������	������������������/������������5�������������������
��,������
������
/��
������������	����
,�5���������	�����5���������������������
���/����!0�����������������5����������	��"�

Agenda Item 4
Page 19



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��=� �

�

�

•� �
,�@��������/�
5�����������������������"�-����
��������������	��
����	�����������������@���������
��������
���,����������
������)
�/����������������,������
������������
����
����
,�-
,�������������
�
�������
��������5����5�
/���������	��
���//���
���4������
������	""����������4�����	�������
�����,���
�����,����������
,������
�
������������������������
��5��������������������
�����
��,�������������
��������
�������,�����,�������5�
/����

•� �����������,������������
��4/����-
,��������������
�������
�/�
5����
������	��������5����������"��-�������������#�����
��������	�
�
�����������������������	���,�����
��
�������,�������������
���
��/����������	�,��������������
�/�
5����������������	�
�/���
������,�
��
�����
������
����5����/��������������"��-����
�����,
�����//
���
-
,��������������
����������//���	��
��
�����/
���
���4������������	�
�������	�������5�������
����5����������"��

•� �����	�������������
������/������/�����
���������������
,�������
5��	���,����/��
���������
��������	��������
�����
�����
��������
1��������������8�5��%�18&"��-�������������#�����
��������	��
��������
����������	��������
��/��
�������	���������
���18�,
��������5�
/���
�������������������
���������,��������//�
/�������5��
���18���
���
��"����������/
����������
��������,
���	�������
//
���������
��
�������
�
,���������
���18���	������/��
�������"��

�
��������
�
��� ���7�$#�!)��
,1��"(("*!�'�&"�� (�$"��#(� �!"����6#!��%�&"�� %"4�!"�� ����$��!$ (�

?#!% �$�3� 44�")�������!�"�� ���%�������"����� %"4��%���!�#���
�� ��'+��� 4����,<�������!�#���� $!(!�!����� ��'+��

.1��"�������$"�������"&������"��!�����!����( �!"���"�����4�"$����
 �%�4�"4"��%�4"(!$+��� �% �%�� �%�& $!(!�+���$"����% �!"���"&�
����%� &����!�#����� ��'+3��� 4�����.� �%�-1��

-1��%"4��������!�#����� ��'+�8�� 4�����,3�.� �%�-;�&"������� (�
	�%&"�%��!��� �%� ����$��!$ (�?#!% �$��&"��%�)�("4�����
� � '������4#�4"���1��

�
��6��9 :9 �:�

��
�"��#�!�+���)!$��� 5�
� &��	#%'��� ./,09,:�  �%���%!#��������!� �$! (�
�( ��./,05./,@��

�
-�������
��2�����������	�������
����������/
��������
�����������
�
�����������5�����������(��	�����������-����2����������������

��������������������������������/����������
������������
����"�����
������
���/�/���,�����
����������������4/�������
��������������

�����������	����
�����/�
/
������/�������	����

,��	�����34�����5��
������	�
�� !����������� !"�
�
��������
�
��� �������"#�$!(A��%� &���#%'���&"��./,09,:���%!#��
������!� �$! (��( �� �%�� 4!� (���"'� ����./,09,:��"�./,B9,@�!��
��( �!"���"��"��#�!�+���)!$�������#44"���%1�
�

��6��9 :9 �!�
��

��'���� �!"�� �%�	#�!�����#44"�����)!$��� 5�
� &��	#%'���./,09,:� �%�
��%!#��������!� �$! (��( ��./,05./,@��

�
-�������
��2�����������	�������
����������/
��������
�����������
'�	�������
������(�����������5�����������(��	�����������-����2��������

Agenda Item 4
Page 20



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��>� �

�

�

��������
��������������������������������/����������
������������
����"�����
������
���/�/���,�����
����������������4/�������
��������������

�����������	����
�����/�
/
������/�������	����

,��	�����34�����5��
������	�
�� !����������� !"�
�
��������
�
��� �������"#�$!(A��%� &���#%'���&"��./,09,:���%!#��
������!� �$! (��( �� �%�� 4!� (���"'� ����./,09,:��"�./,B9,@�!��
��( �!"���"�������'���� �!"�� �%�	#�!�����#44"�����)!$�����
�#44"���%1�
�

��6��9 :9 �<�
��

����� �%��� �'���8./,09,:;��

-�������
��2�����������	�������
����������/
��������/�
/
����������5�����
�������������	����
�������
�����������5���������'�	�������
������
(����������//
������5�����������
�����"������	���,������	��	��������
�����
���
���5�����/��������������������	�����������/�����
���
��/�����	�
����	�����

���������������5�����������4������"��
�
1�����/
�����
�@�����
�����
������������������
��2�����������	���
�	������
�/�
5��������������
��,������	�����
���������������	������������
,������������
������
�����������
,������
������/������
��/����������	��
�
������"��
�
1��,�����
��
�������������,����������
���������������	���
���
	��
���	�
��������
���//������������
���������������������������	����
�������

������"��
�
����
�����4�"4"��%�&���� �%�$� �'���&"�������"��#�!�+���)!$���
 �%���'���� �!"�� �%�	#�!�����#44"�����)!$���%!��$�"� ���1��
�

��6��9 :9 �=�
��

�������$���� �%���)!�"����� (����)!$��!��#����

-���#�/����34�����5�������������
����������/
�����������/
������
�
��5����@�����
�����
�������������	�����	������	��
�������������������
��5��
����������5����"����5����@�����
���,������������,�����,����
���/
������
�����

,�0)��

•� ��5��������	�����,����5�������������/������//�
4�������������
��������������,�����������,�����/�����������	�������������,����
�����
�������,�������!��
���"��6������
�)5��������	�����,�����������
�������@�����"�

•� -����
����������
��
,�����������,��/��	�5������������,����,����
/���
������������������������������	"������������
��������
��
����/

��������
������,����������		����������������
������
�������
,����������,
���������������
�/�������������-$��������
������
������
�����������������
������������"��1��,�����
��
�����������������
�
�������������
���5��,���������
������������������/����������������
�����,����
����������,�����������������������,����/������
��������
�
����	����������
��������"��-���#�/����34�����5����������	������
�


�����
�������������/
����
����������������"�

•� ���5�
���/�
�������������
��
��,�����/�����	������������
�	����
�
�����������
��
�������
�����������	���,�
�������5������
������
����
�
�����	������������,�����/�����	"�

Agenda Item 4
Page 21



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��?� �

�

�

•� ������������
��������
������
��������	�,���,��������
����B��
���/
����������,�����������,����
5�����	��	�
��
�������	�,�����
����
/�
/����������
�����,
�����5������������
,�����
�����������������
	�5������������������,������,������
��
�����,
��"��1�����,����
��
�
�/�����,��������������������������
�����,
�����������������,
���
��������	����������
,���"��-��������������	�������,�������������
����
������/
���,
����������
�������
������
��������	�,��"��

•� -�����,�������//�����
��/�
������
���
	���������������//�����
��,���
����/���������
�����,
���/����
���������5�������/�
5����	���������,���
�
����
������
��������	�,��"��

�
����
�����#4% ��1��
�

��6��9 :9 �>�
��

�" %� �%�� )������� !���� �$�����&"�� �$���

-�������������#�����
��3�5��
����������5�������5����������
��������
���������� ������������
��,����/���
�������
���
�������/�5������
�����������������������
,���������
����5���	�"����/�
C����,���
���������������� ��������
�	����
���/�
5������������
���
�����	�
���
���
����5�����,
���������"��2
����	�
�/��,������������������������
�����
�
�������5�
/��	�����5�����/
�����
��/
��
����/������������
���C
����)
�/����5���"��-����
�����������
��
�	����
���������������������
��
����/��5�����������,
�����������������
�����������
������
����������
/�
���"��'���������5������������
,������������������
��������/�
5������
�
�/����
���
��� �9 :����������
�����,���
���������
������5���������	���
�
���� ="��-�����		�����������
�����������
�/��������������������5���
����������5������������
��������,������������	����	"��
�
1�����/
�����
�@�����
�����
��������������#�/����34�����5���������
�
�������������������,���E ":���������������(��	����
���� !9 <��
�
�
��������
����
5������	
���
�����������	
����,
�/
��
���
��������������
���������"���������	�����
������������	�
5������
���
�����������������,���
��������������	���������/
��
���,�����
����/�����"��
�
����
�������4"��1��
�

��6��9 :9 �?�
��

�"�C���"'� ���� �%��7�$#�!)���"�* �%��( ���

-����
�/
������
���������������������	�����5����������
��������
��
��5�����������������
����
�����,
���/�
	����������

,�0)�

•� �
����3������������8
���3����/���������������/�

•� �������(���
��������#���	��+�����

•� �������(���
��������#�5�
/�����������	��
�

-��������������
���5����������������/���
����4��������,�������������
(���
����������	���������������
�����������
������	������������������"��

�
��������
�
��� ������*"�C�4�"'� ������� 44�")�%��#�>�$���"�
���� %%!�!"���%�� !(�%� �")�1�
�

%.
��0� -��� ������	� �
�������� ���  �"��� �"�"� ���� �
������� ���  �"!>�

Agenda Item 4
Page 22



��6���)�� ��"� " !�
��	��;� �

�

�

/"�"&�
�

���������FFF"FFFFFFFFFFF�
�

#���FFFFFF""FFFFFFFFFF"�
�

Agenda Item 4
Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Page 24



  
 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 27 February 2014  

Subject: Central Bedfordshire Design Guide 

Report of: Cllr Nigel Young, Executive Member for Strategic Planning and 
Economic Development  

Summary: The report recommends that the Sustainable Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee endorse the Central Bedfordshire Design Guide 
and that Executive adopt it as technical guidance for Development 
Management purposes. 

 

 

Advising Officer: Trevor Saunders Assistant Director Planning   

Contact Officer: Connie Frost-Bryant, Senior Planning Officer  

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All   

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1.  The Design Guide will support the Council priority of enhancing Central 
Bedfordshire – creating jobs, managing growth, protecting our countryside and 
enabling businesses to grow. 

Financial: 

2.  There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  

3.  The Design Guide provides detailed guidance in relation to the draft 
Development Strategy ‘Lifetime Homes’ policy (Policy 32) which sets a target 
to deliver adaptable homes for people with different needs at different stages in 
life. This approach has the potential to support elderly and disabled people to 
live in their homes for longer, thus decreasing the future cost to the Council of 
supporting them in residential care or with other forms of additional support.  

4.  The updated guide will also increase efficiency in the planning process and 
thus hopefully save some officer time and resources in re-negotiating schemes 
that do not meet high enough design standards. 

Legal: 

5.  None 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 25



Risk Management: 

6.  Policy 43: (High Quality Development) of the Draft Development Strategy 
defers to detailed design guidance to fill in the details necessary for the 
delivery of successful developments. A failure to have detailed design 
guidance to help in the determination of planning applications would risk poor 
standards of design being delivered on new development schemes.   

7.  An endorsed Design Guide will also give more certainty to the development 
management process and to developers in terms of what the Council’s 
expectations are in relation to layout, street design, parking provision and 
internal dimensions. These elements must all be understood early on in the 
design process in order to provide clarity to developers and to enable them to 
make informed financial decisions.  

8.  Other risks, such as failure to deliver the Council's priorities, reputational risks, 
failure to discharge statutory responsibilities, failure of partnership working, and 
environmental and financial risks could also be incurred. The Design Guide 
serves to minimise these risks by setting an agreed framework for development 
in advance of the planning applications and then onwards through to 
implementation. 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

9.  Not Applicable.  

Equalities/Human Rights: 

10.  Public authorities have a statutory duty to promote equality of opportunity, 
eliminate unlawful discrimination and to foster good relations in respect of nine 
protected characteristics; age disability, gender re-assignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation 

11.  The Design Guide builds on the draft Development Strategy policy on Lifetime 
Homes (Policy 32) which are homes that are adaptable for those with different 
needs at different stages of their lives. It provides the detail for how this policy 
would be delivered in practice to allow people, in particular elderly or disabled 
people to live independently in their homes for longer.  

12.  The guide has an entirely new supplement entitled ‘Accommodating Specific 
Housing Needs’ which seeks to support an increasing need to develop both 
extra care and residential care accommodation in response to the needs of an 
ageing population in Central Bedfordshire. The guide also provides guidance 
for the provision of Gypsy and Traveller accommodation which is another 
specific housing requirement that has not been addressed by previous design 
guidance. 

13.  The Guide seeks to rationalise the Council’s approach to street design and as 
such recommends that level surface streets where safe pedestrian areas are 
still designed in on either side of the carriageway are considered rather than 
shared surfaces which can be difficult for visually impaired people to navigate 
through safely. Further guidance relating to the design measures that can be 
implemented e.g. tactile paving will also be included in the Movement and 
Streets supplement to address the need for streets to be safe and useable for 
all users. The Guide will also seek to address any issues that are raised in 
response to the public survey on the level surface street scheme at Court Drive 
in Dunstable.  

Agenda Item 10
Page 26



14.  Overall, one of the overarching principles of the Design Guide is to ensure that 
developments are planned in sustainable locations so that residents are able 
to access employment opportunities as well as facilities and services to meet 
their everyday needs. This approach should help to ensure a positive impact 
for all sections of the community. 

Public Health 

15.  The Design Guide as a whole, also has the potential to improve the health and 
wellbeing of Central Bedfordshire residents as it is clear that in every 
development, consideration should be given to pedestrian and cycle routes 
and to informal and formal public open space. By encouraging the use of 
sustainable modes of transport, this will also in turn reduce harmful emissions 
and pollution that can lead to respiratory illnesses and aggravate existing 
medical conditions. Living in a pleasant environment both from an aesthetic 
and a functional point of view is also conducive to good mental health and 
overall well-being. 

Community Safety: 

16.  The Council needs to ensure that it complies with its statutory duties under 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act and as such the Guide references 
appropriate elements of the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO) 
‘Secured by Design’ guidance in the document, particularly around the design 
of residential properties.  

17.  The Guide also recognises community safety concerns that have been raised by 
residents in relation to the ‘shared spaces’ concept for street design whereby 
pedestrians and vehicles share a non-demarcated street. In a street in the Land 
South of Leighton Buzzard development, the lack of a safe area for pedestrians 
and demarcation of any kind has prompted complaints in relation to pedestrian 
safety, anti-social behaviour and poor parking practices. It is considered that the 
compromise position of level surface streets adopted by the Guide will address 
these problems by retaining safe areas for pedestrians.  

Sustainability: 

18.  The Design Guide fully supports sustainable development as the principles of 
good design and sustainability are indivisible from one another. A holistic 
approach to design as encouraged by the Design Guide, necessarily takes into 
account economic, social and environmental aspects when developing a new 
scheme whatever the scale. The Design Guide also directly supports many of 
the policies in the draft Development Strategy and all have been subject to a 
Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment. 

Procurement: 

19.  Not applicable.  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

The Committee is asked to: 

1. Consider and comment on the proposed changes to the Design Guide and 
recommend to the Executive that it be adopted as technical guidance for 
Development Management purposes. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 27



2. Delegate to the Director of Regeneration in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder (Strategic Planning and Economic Development) the authority to 
make any minor amendments to the document prior to final publication. 

 

Purpose of the Revised Design Guide 

20. The current Central Bedfordshire Design Guide sets out the policies and 
principles which guide the delivery of high quality design in the authority area. The 
guide is a supplementary planning document which supports the policies set out 
in the adopted development plans for both North and South Central Bedfordshire, 
and was formally adopted as a material consideration for development 
management purposes in January 2010.  It is currently organised into two parts; a 
core document and seven accompanying supplements covering design solutions 
for specific building types or uses.  

21. While the existing guide was adopted comparatively recently and is award-
winning, the document was geared towards small and medium scale 
developments, is somewhat conservation orientated and is not considered wholly 
fit for purpose in guiding the developers of the large urban extensions that are 
being proposed in the emerging Development Strategy. Furthermore, the guide 
does not reflect some of the current best practice guidance and internal 
standards for various key elements including parking, street design, green 
infrastructure, density, public realm, Lifetime Homes and adaptation to climate 
change. In order to successfully incorporate these various design interventions, 
policies and strategies, the Design Guide needed to be fully updated as merely 
adding additional supplements would not have produced a coherent guide with a 
clear and distinctive approach to design.  

22. The main issues the updated Design Guide looks to address are as follows: 

 • To give a strong policy lead on the high quality of design that is expected for 
all development in Central Bedfordshire. 

 • To increase efficiency in the planning process and thus save officer time and 
resources in re-negotiating schemes that do not meet high enough design 
standards or indeed take entirely the wrong approach to design. Without an 
updated guide these principles are not clearly set out for agents and 
developers. 

 • To provide certainty to developers on the expected technical standards for 
elements like parking and room sizes.  

 • To enhance the quality of design in Central Bedfordshire thus making it a more 
attractive place to live. This will in turn lead to an increased sense of well-
being and greater prosperity. 

 • To improve the quality of green infrastructure for all developments by making 
the current best practice a material consideration in planning decisions. 

 • To address the needs of both an ageing population and climate change by 
making clear what standards need to be met to make homes capable of 
adapting to future needs. 

 • To incorporate the approach of existing strategies (Green Infrastructure by 
Design, The Public Art Framework, Central Bedfordshire Parking Standards, 
Manual for Streets 2) into one design guide. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 28



23. Once adopted, the revised Design Guide will assist Development Management 
in the determination of planning applications.  

 

Background 

24. Central Bedfordshire is set to see significant growth in both housing and 
employment in the coming years and is planning for this growth with the 
production of a new Development Strategy. The Strategy plans for 28,700 new 
homes and 27,000 new jobs up to 2031 and focuses the majority of this 
development in strategic urban extensions (East of Leighton Linslade, North of 
Houghton Regis, and North of Luton). In addition, five of the towns in Central 
Bedfordshire have been the subject of town centre masterplans (Biggleswade, 
Dunstable, Leighton Buzzard, Houghton Regis and Flitwick). This work will lead to 
significant regeneration work in these towns over a number of years. 

25. The Council has stated that its design priorities are the provision of homes with 
decent room sizes and gardens; and the ability to adapt to changing lifestyles, an 
ageing population and climate change. Design will therefore be a key issue in 
determining and shaping the successful delivery of this development. 

 Consultation 

26. Continuous internal consultation between internal teams has been a strong 
feature of this project. When the project was initiated, an internal officer working 
group was formed and this allowed different teams and disciplines like green 
infrastructure, highways and archaeology to help to steer the project.  

27. Once a basic draft version of the document had been produced, two themed 
workshops were held to bring together Members, developers, officers and local 
interest groups. The workshops focused on those issues and elements of the 
Design Guide that were considered to be more contentious; namely residential 
space standards, Lifetime Homes, street design and car parking provision.  

28. The first workshop focused on design for residential properties. The session was 
comprised of two introductory presentations; one on the role of design from 
Trevor Saunders, Assistant Director of Planning and another which provided 
some background on the issues to be discussed. The key questions that the 
assembled delegates were asked to consider centred on whether space 
standards and garden standards could be delivered. A total of 45 people 
attended the workshop and the lively and useful debate helped to then further 
shape the public consultation draft.  

29. The second workshop focused on design for movement and streets. The 
session was comprised of three introductory presentations; one on the Council’s 
aspirations for design from Cllr Nigel Young, Executive Member for Strategic 
Planning and Economic Development, another which provided some 
background on the issues to be discussed and a further presentation on parking 
in practice from Mervyn Dobson, a director at Pegasus Planning. The key 
questions that the assembled delegates were asked to consider centred on 
whether shared spaces worked in practice and what level and type of parking 
provision should be required for new residential developments. A total of 65 
people attended the workshop and once again the well-informed debate that 
was had helped to refine our approach to this particularly contentious topic.  

Agenda Item 10
Page 29



30. Following the workshops, a focus group comprising a representative sample of 
the workshop participants took place.  The group was comprised of Cllr Nigel 
Young, Central Bedfordshire Council planning officers, a developer, a planning 
consultant, two urban designers, and a house builder. This purpose of this 
session was to allow key stakeholders to act as a critical friend and provide their 
assessment and analysis of the changes that had been proposed to the draft 
document as a result of the workshops.  

31. Following this, final alterations were made to the draft before it was published for 
further public consultation. This commenced on 21st October 2013 and ran for a 
period of four weeks until 24th November 2013. The consultation and publicity of 
the Design Guide proposals was carried out in compliance with the Central 
Bedfordshire Statement of Community Involvement (October 2012). 

The Supplements – Summary  

32. (1) Placemaking Principles 

  This supplement follows the approach of the previous guide and acts as 
a core document crystallising Central Bedfordshire’s approach to 
design, but deferring to the theme based supplements to add the 
necessary detail. The key change in this supplement relates to car 
parking standards (Appendix C) which have been revised down from 
those in the ‘Central Bedfordshire Parking Strategy’ previously adopted 
by Executive in October 2012. Rather than one space per bedroom 
being required, the new standards are structured to better match levels 
of car ownership in Central Bedfordshire. They also differ by dwelling 
type in order to ensure that appropriately designed parking with trees 
and good landscaping can be delivered. For example, a detached wide 
fronted dwelling can deliver more curtilage parking than a narrow mid 
terrace property with the same number of bedrooms. In addition to 
these revised standards, the Council may also require parking 
enforcement plans to be implemented particularly during the site 
construction phase in order to encourage from the outset, appropriate 
use of the parking provided.  

 (2) Green Infrastructure and Sustainable Buildings  

  This is an entirely new supplement which has been produced to capture 
the information in the award winning Milton Keynes & South Midlands 
‘Green Infrastructure Design Guide’ and to respond to the challenges 
presented by climate change; including the need to make buildings 
capable of adaptation to more extreme weather in the future.  

 (3) Historic Environment  

  This supplement is a revision to the previous one and captures the 
changes and fills in the detail following the withdrawal of ‘Planning 
Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment’. It also 
includes further guidance on archaeology than the previous Guide.   

 (4) Public Art  

  This condenses the material in the ‘Central Bedfordshire Public Art 
Framework’ to provide a user-friendly how-to guide for developers when 
looking at the integration of public art into new developments. 

 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 30



 (5) Residential  

  This supplement is a revision to the previous one. The main elements 
that are new are the residential space standards, the garden standards, 
the need for sufficient bin storage, detailing and chimneys, and details 
of which of the Lifetime Homes criteria must be met.  

  It is proposed that all properties have at least 10m depth of garden and 
that this increases to 12m for three and four bedroom homes. This 
provides minimum garden areas of between 60 and 96sqm.  

  In terms of space standards, suggested overall standards are set out 
together with minimum standards for bedrooms and CEL (cooking, 
eating, living) areas.  

  On the topic of bin storage; the Guide recognises that in certain 
contexts, communal bin storage can be a more appropriate solution to 
minimise the need to provide accessible personal storage areas in 
higher density developments where space may be more limited. Where 
individual bin storage is provided, sufficient provision will also be 
emphasised in order to limit the visual blight of bins which are left out on 
property frontages.  

 (6) Accommodating Specific Housing Needs  

  This is an entirely new supplement which covers the design of extra care 
units, residential care homes and gypsy and traveller accommodation. 

 (7) Alterations and Extensions  

  This is a revision to the previous supplement and covers the information 
needed for standard householder applications. This has been updated to 
take account of the changes to the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development Order) 1995 that allow larger extensions until 30th 
May 2016.   

 (8) Larger Footprint Buildings 

  This is a revision to the previous guide and the main updates are in 
relation to the changes in requirements for Sustainable Drainage 
Systems to combat surface water flooding.   

 (9) Town Centre Vitality  

  This supplement incorporates material from the previous Town Centres 
supplement and the Shop Front Design guidance supplement but 
combines them so that all of the necessary guidance can be found in one 
place. 

 (10) Movement and Streets  

  This supplement is a revision to the previous one but seeks to offer a new 
approach to the provision of user-friendly parking to support the new 
standards of provision set out in the Placemaking Principles supplement. 
It also gives new guidance in relation to level surface streets and raised 
crossings which offer an appropriate balance between slowing down 
traffic, making attractive places and ensuring safety for all road users 
including pedestrians. The use of appropriate trees and landscaping to 
enhance the character of streets is also emphasised from tree lined 
boulevards at main street level to smaller scale planting on lower order 
streets.  

Agenda Item 10
Page 31



Analyses from the Consultation Exercise  

32. A summary of the representations received as a result of the public consultation 
exercise can be found at Appendix A.  

33. The level of responses shows that there is a high level of interest in the Design 
Guide. In brief, 45 responses were submitted on the feedback forms provided, 
or by letter or e-mail in the weeks that followed. The comments and feedback 
were very diverse as would be expected on such a wide ranging document. 
There were also several submissions that were extremely detailed.  

34. In addition, 11 out of the 45 respondents gave positive or neutral feedback, with 
many of the remainder just offering suggestions for revisions on specific 
elements rather than opposing the principle of the guide or the vast majority of 
its content. This lack of contention, is in part due to the fact that much of the 
content in the document builds on very established good design practice which 
has been inherited from the previous Design Guide, which was award-winning 
and widely accepted and appreciated. 

33. Many of comments received, related to car parking provision. There was a split 
between those that sought a higher provision and those that sought lower 
standards. The standards that are now proposed are intended to act as a 
sensible compromise between the views received and make clear that they can 
be applied with some degree of flexibility in appropriate circumstances, as 
outlined in paragraph 37.  

34. Other comments related to the need to reference documents; the need to 
rationalise paragraph numbering and improve photo resolution; the need to 
emphasise the importance of pedestrians and cyclists throughout; the overall 
viability of the proposals; to the importance of bird habitats; the need for cross 
referencing and to various detailed consistency issues.  

Key Proposed Changes  

35. A summary by supplement in paragraph order of all proposed changes and who 
has suggested them can be found at Appendix B (Tables 1-10). Due to the length 
of these supplements, it was considered helpful to make available a track change 
version as a background paper, details for this are included at the end of the 
report. 

36. There are some 190 changes proposed. Many are detailed and technical 
because of the nature of the document and so only the key proposed changes 
are set out below.  

37. Parking  

 (Placemaking Principles Supplement paragraph 1.13 p.28-29) 

 • Allow one parking space out of the three required for four bedroom 
properties to be provided on street and thus unallocated. 

 • Change the wording from ‘tandem parking will not usually be acceptable to 
‘tandem parking of more than two vehicles will not be acceptable unless one 
additional on street parking space is provided’. 

 • Change the wording to allow greater flexibility on how many properties rear 
courtyard parking should serve to around five rather than five.  

 Overall, these changes are designed to allow for greater flexibility as it is not 
appropriate to take a standardised approach to the design of parking. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 32



38. Garden Sizes 

 (Residential Supplement, paragraph 5.06 p.14)  

 • Limit garden depths for 3 and 4 bedroom properties to 12m rather than 14m 
as currently proposed for 4 bedroom properties. 

 This is to take account of the fact that the garden area rather than the depth is 
of greater importance. The average range of property widths for these homes is 
between 5 and 8m and so this still gives very reasonable sized gardens areas of 
between 60 and 96m2.   

39. Residential Space Standards  

 Residential Supplement ( paragraph 5.05, p. 8-9)  

 • Make clear in text and in accompanying rationalised tables that the space 
standards for bedrooms and cooking, eating, living (CEL) areas are minimum 
standards that should be complied with (see Appendix D).  

 This change is proposed as if all of the standards are merely suggested then 
developers will not seek to meet them when designing houses. 

Conclusions  

40 The revised Design Guide is a comprehensive review of the existing Guide. The 
many changes proposed add considerable value to guidance and build upon the 
acclaimed merit of the original Guide. Its revision has been greatly helped by the 
keen support and interest that Members and stakeholders have taken in revising 
the Design Guide. The importance of having design guidance that Members, 
officers and external stakeholders feel that they can buy into is crucial; as it 
serves as a starting point for the Council’s aim to deliver high quality design on 
every development. Adoption of the new Design Guide will give more certainty to 
developers in terms of what the Council’s expectations are in relation to layout, 
street design, parking provision and internal dimensions. Detailed consideration 
has been given to the feedback from consultation at all stages in preparing the 
Guide, and it is therefore concluded that as a technical document and subject to 
the changes set out in Appendix B, the Design Guide is fit for development 
management purposes and should be endorsed as such by this Committee.  

 

Appendices: 

Appendix A –  Overview of Public Consultation Responses   

Appendix B –  A list of the proposed Changes by Supplement  

Appendix C –  Proposed car parking standards  

Appendix D –  Proposed space standards  

 

Background paper –  

Track change versions of each of the supplements (available on the Council’s website 
in the listing with the agenda and papers for this meeting:-  

http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/modgov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=648&Year=0)  

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 1 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
      

1 INT 01 Liz Anderson, Ecologist  
GI 

-  Reference to ‘Designing for Biodiversity’ 
(RIBA/BCT)  should be made  

- Insert reference 

2 INT 02 Lisa White, Leisure  GI/PP -  Suggested changes to text on play areas  - Change text  

3 INT 03 Historic Conservation  
HE 

- Add materials section from previous 
Design Guide (p.27-28) 

-  Insert content 

4 INT 04 Sue Frost, Local 
Planning & Housing 

PP 
- Add reference to Mobile Infrastructure 
Projects 

-  Add reference to document  

– Difference between 21m stipulated for 
back to back distance and 22m for infill 
development questioned at 5.02.0 

-  Align to 21m in both instances  

-  Set distance needs to be stipulated as for 
two storey dwellings at 5.02.04?  

-  Stipulate set distance 

-  Questions whether examples of physical 
protection should be included at 5.03.02 
'2' 

-  Include examples 

-  More clarity required as to when Secured 
by Design Standards would be applied at 
5.04 

-  Provide clarity  

-  States that extensions may be built up to 

the boundary at 7.03.06 

-  Retaining rear access, states a minimum 
1m between two storey side extension 
and boundary. This should apply to 
single storey extensions at 7.03.09 

5 INT 05 Lauren Westley, DM  

RES 
ALT 

-  Wording too vague on the siting of two 
storey extensions at 7.04.02 

 

 
 
 
 

-  Clarify distances to the boundary in all instances   

6 INT 06 Ian Finnegan, Flood 
Risk 

GI 
-  Reference to CBC SUDs guidance should 

be made  
-  Insert reference 

7 INT 07 Keith Brown, Building 
Control 

Multi 
-  Words missing in Figure 1.4 (step 4) and 

lack of consistency with punctuation  
-  Make change to Figure 1.4 

-  Add reference to Figure 1.7 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 35



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 2 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
-  No mention of solar gain in figure 1.7 -  Make change 

-  Car number plate figure 1.27 should be 
pixilated   

-  Make change to Figure 1.27 

-  No reference to disabled parking bays at 
1.14 

-  Add reference to disabled bays 

-  Figures 1.36/7 show examples of tandem 
parking  

-  Clarify that tandem parking of more than two vehicles 
not acceptable   

-  No key to feature 10 at figure 1.40 -  Add key entry for Figure 1.40 

-  U values of walls and windows supplied  -  Add in U values as supplied 

-  Text should say that ground floor WCs are 
a requirement of B/Regs 

-  Change wording to make clear that ground floor WCs 
are a requirement  

-  Recessed door design at Figure 9.22 is 
not accessible unless an automatic 
opening device is fitted  

-  Add ref to automatic opening device  

-  Wording change to clarify at p.27 Heading 
‘ Doors A’  

-  Make wording change at p.27 

-  Legislation should be The Equalities Act 
not DDA p.29 (9) 

-  Make change to legislation reference  

-  Photo example of sign which is mounted 
at a low  level does not accord with the 
CBC signage policy 

-  Change photo 

8 INT 08 Simon Joynes, Env 
Health  

PP 
-  Small scale text changes to pollution 

content 
-  Make changes   

9 INT 09 Clare Harding 
Equalities  

NA 
- Pleased to see references to accessibility/ 
reference to legislation needs update  

-  Update reference to legislation  

10 INT 10 Highways Combined  -  Detailed wording changes to correct 
inaccuracies and strengthen messages 

-  Make minor wording changes through the main 
document and supplements  

-  Street layout, movement and hierarchy 
are one of the first stages in the design 
process and this should be reflected in the 
structure of the document.  

-  Emphasis to be improved in the Placemaking 
Principles document and reordering of supplements to 
ensure Movement and Streets come first.   

11 INT 11 DM Highways  

Multi 
 

-  Unnecessary repetition between -  Retain key messages in Placemaking Principles and 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 36



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 3 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
Placemaking Principles and Movement 
and Streets documents 

detail in the supplement.  

-  Some parts are too detailed and repeat 
good practice guidance. The guide should 
only include locally specific requirements.  

-  Not enough reference to good practice 
guidance i.e. Manual for Streets, Design 
Manual for Roads and bridges, and local 
guidance i.e. LTP3 and supporting 
strategies 

-  Comments noted. The guidance includes important 
good practice information to ensure the full picture is 
presented to the reader. However, references to 
relevant guidance will be strengthened where 
necessary.  

-  More emphasis is needed on CBC context 
and examples 

-  CBC examples to be included and images will be 
replaced. 

-  Disproportionate focus on cars, 
particularly parking. Sustainable modes of 
transport are overlooked, particularly 
cycling.   

-  Improve the emphasis on sustainable modes of 
transport by reordering the Movement and Streets 
supplement and strengthening the content.  

-  Number of functional street types too 
narrow. Should use 9 typologies identified 
by TFL as an example.  

-  Higher order routes not acknowledged.  

-  Comments noted. A smaller number of functional 
types were identified to avoid being too prescriptive 
and enable flexibility in terms of creating streets with 
differing characters.  

-  Comments noted. Design of higher order routes to be 
guided by DMRB.  

-  Not enough emphasis on importance of 
future maintenance of street materials and 
features.  

-  Strengthen references to importance of future 
maintenance, and identify where funding mechanisms 
may be required.  

-  Relationship between functional street 
types and character types is unclear.  

-  Restructure the document and include additional 
explanation to provide clarity.  

-  20mph speed not necessarily appropriate 
in all locations and situations, such as link 
roads. Can be designed into new 
schemes but more difficult to retrofit.  

-  Include additional text to explain importance of context 
and situation.  

-  Lack of clarity on approach to shared 
spaces. Focus is only on level surface 

-  Include general section on shared spaces and key 
principles.  

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 37



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 4 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
streets and there are other types.  

-  Some parameters incorrect and need 
amending both within the PP document 
and in the MS Street Parameters table, 
including parking space dimensions and 
vertical front boundary heights for 
example.  

-  Correct parameters.  

-  Need to clarify that allocated parking 
cannot be included within the extent of the 
adoptable highway. 

-  Include additional text to ensure clarity.  

-  Materials section needs to reflect CBCs 
preferred approach, for example not 
supporting lighting attached to buildings 
and appropriateness of surface materials.  

-  Amend materials section in consultation with CBC 
Highways.  

12 PC 01 Tom Chevalier, 
Resident  MS 

-  Clarification sought on CBC’s street 
lighting document that is referred to at 
paragraph 10.07.20 

-  Remove reference as document is out of date and 
reword as appropriate 

13 PC 02 Pam Manfield, 
Resident  NA  

-  Validity of design guidance questioned in  
relation to the standard of recent 
development in Stotfold 

-  Full response dated 25/10/13 sent to Ms Manfield  

14 PC 03 Les Alexander, 
Resident  

GI 
-  Figure 2.28 cannot be read at current low 

resolution  
-  Make sure image is reproduced at a higher resolution 

15 PC 04 Matrix Planning on 
behalf of Taylor 
Wimpey PP 

The standards in the current Parking 
Strategy constitute an over-provision and 
sustainable travel choices should be 
encouraged. A site by site approach should 
be taken  

-  The Design guide seeks to reduce the number of 
spaces required in line with these concerns  

16 PC 05 Nicolas Tye Architects  RES Correction required to caption error  -  Make correction  

17 PC 06 David Toland, Resident  

NA 

-  Example of Marston Park cited as one of 
poor quality design due to pylons, 
incongruous three storey housing, lack of 
character and adequate bin storage  

-  Comments noted. Guide endeavours to help address 
these concerns  

18 PC 07 Health & Safety NA No comments  -  No action  

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 38



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 5 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
Executive  

-  Figure 1.5 not clear (Fairfield Masterplan) - Change graphic 

-  A parking space per bedroom is too high 
for good design/viability 

-  This is a suggested level of provision – minimum level 
is lower 

-  Text sought to  the planting of fruit trees  -  This is covered in orchard section at 2.03.01.01.05. 

-  More flexibility required on sourcing of 
local materials 

Additional guidance on local materials will be provided in 
the Placemaking Principles supplement – alternative 
materials should be discussed with CBC Conservation 
Officers  

-  More guidance on non-listed buildings of 
historic interest required 

-  Provide additional guidance 

-  General support for PA supplement  -  No action  

-  Section on PD rights within Alterations 
and Extension supp requested  

-  Add section on PD rights 

19 PC 08 Hearne Homes  

Multi 

-  Principles on shop front design need to be 
more rigorously enforced 

-  Not within scope of the DG 

20 PC 09 Henlow Parish Council   General support  -  No action  

22 PC 10 Highways Agency  NA No comments  -  No action  

23 PC 11 Natural England  
GI 

-  General comments other than need for 
inclusion of text in relation to light pollution  

-  Light pollution already dealt with in PP section 

24 PC 12 Aylesbury Vale DC  NA No comments  -  No action  

25 PC 13 Resident, Toddington  
NA  

General support other than for principle of 
Public Art  

-  No action  - principle of delivering public art has been 
agreed  

-  Tree planting should not disrupt water or 
sewer infrastructure 

-  Insert text on tree planting as appropriate 26 PC 14 Anglian Water  

GI 
-  Support coverage of climate change 

adaptation measures 
-  No action required 

27 PC 15 English Heritage  
Multi  

- Six small scale detailed changes 
requested  

-  Action changes  

28 PC 16 Biggleswade Town 
Council  

NA 
-  Letter to follow urging CBC to take 

stronger action to enforce Design Guide  
-  Design Guide will have the status of planning 

guidance once adopted 

29 PC 17 Bedfordshire Police PP -  References Community Safety SPG 2005 -  CBC’s approach is to deliver permeable schemes with 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 39



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 6 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
ALO which concludes that permeable streets 

are undesirable and should be avoided 
wherever possible.  

a common sense approach to community safety 

-  Overall document uses ‘should’ or ‘may’ 
rather than ‘must’ and ‘will’ 

-  Design guidance offers ideas and possible 
approaches and seeking strict compliance is not 
appropriate in all cases  

-  Solar panels should be required on new 
developments 

-  There is no policy requirement for this and no 
evidence base to support such a policy 

-  Wording relating to habitats provision 
questioned 1.7 p.14 

-  Change wording to clarify 

-  Evidence required to justify lower parking 
provision when good access to public 
transport available questioned  

-  Appropriate provision would be proximity to mainline 
rail station or busway  

-  Resident parking standards considered to 
be insufficient  

-  Parking standards far exceed car ownership 

-  Comments in relation to Environmental 
Health guidance requesting greater 
detail/clarity  

-  Overview only. All applications that have 
environmental risks will be assessed in detail by EH 
professionals 

30 PC 18 Langford Parish 
Council  

Multi 

-  Biodiversity checklist format unclear -  Biodiversity checklist will be reworded 

-  Private car should rank above public 
transport in road hierarchy 

-  Behaviour change to use public transport will only 
occur if it is convenient and designed in to 
development 

-  Grass verges can be problematic for 
maintenance by PC 

-  Grass verges can form an attractive part of a 
development and should remain an option 

-  Materials should be determined by master 
craftsmen 

-  Agree  

-  Rest areas could encourage anti-social 
behaviour  

-  Benches and seating are an important feature in the 
public realm provided that they are sited appropriately 

-  Consider provision of allotments for every 
development over 2 homes 

-  Allotment provision is considered in the Leisure 
Strategy 

31 PC 19 Northill Parish Council  
Multi 

-  Birds should be considered especially in 
close proximity to RSPB Headquarters, 
Sandy 

-  References to birds will be included using comments 
from the RSPB 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 40



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 7 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
-  Consent and agreement of local PC 

should be mandatory for public art 
installations  

-  Public art installations usually form part of a planning 
application  

-  Object to lack of double room provision in 
residential care homes 

-  Single room provision is standard practice in 
residential care home – double are available on 
request 

-  Family size for G&T sites needs to be 
defined  

-  Family sizes can vary so it is not appropriate to 
include this in guidance   

-  There should be more emphasis on the 
protection of shrubs and trees on the 
boundary of properties  

-  Add wording about boundaries 

-  Raised footways near schools can be 
dangerous 

-  No evidence to suggest raised footways are 
dangerous – the contrary is in fact true 

-  Vague wording of ‘good sized gardens’ 
challenged. 

-  Wording provides an overview only and will be 
amended to show that some variation in size on is 
acceptable in certain circumstances  

-  One size fits all approach unhelpful   -  Disagree that this approach has been taken 

-  BREEAM Communities Assessment too 
onerous 

-  Change wording to make assessment optional 

-  One space per bedroom standards will 
lead to poor design  

-  Agreed – hence parking standards are being lowered 
slightly in this guide  

-  Unallocated on street parking should 
count as a parking space  

-  Review approach to unallocated on street parking  

-  Garage dimensions are too large -  Garage dimensions will not be altered as they allow 
the parking of larger family vehicles. Smaller garages 
can be delivered but they will not count as a parking 
space  

-  Examples of parking on p.34-35 are 
unsuitable  

-  Graphics will be changed to remove set back parking 
and improve frontage design  

-  Play provision –commented that large 
developments often end up with small, 
underused play areas.   

-  Agree that this is unhelpful for the visual appearance 
of the development. Will include more flexibility to 
enable grouped play provision 

32 PC 20 Barton Willmore on 
behalf or Houghton 
Regis Development 
Corporation  

Multi  

-  Noise barriers should not be excluded and -  Text on p.50 point 5 does allow for the use of noise 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 41



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 8 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
B/regs should not be exceeded barriers as a final resort  

-  Text on p.50 should refer to ‘committed’ 
and not ‘known’ schemes  

-  Make change to wording  

-  Landscaping issues: CBC should stick to 
our advice on "not planting trees on top of 
bunds" - but planting on the side 
acceptable 

-  Para on ground modelling (2.02.02.02.01) will be 
revised - bunds should only be used as boundary 
features where excessive disturbance experienced in 
order to avoid awkward features and the loss of the 
soil as a resource. 

-  Comments that it is difficult to determine 
what are native species  

-  Don’t agree - it is commonly accepted what would and 
wouldn’t be reasonably considered as native. 

-  Elements in landscape checklist need to 
be clarified  

-  Amend table on p27 to improve clarity and amend text 
in relation to barriers to movement 

 

-  Content of Figure 2.32 is too aspirational  -  Document should show how our policy aspirations for 
biodiversity net gain can be realised. This is entirely 
appropriate, and the scope of this guide, in setting out 
aspirations is completely in line with national and local 
policy. Not appropriate just to focus on mitigation 

-  Resource efficiency content at too 
detailed and out of place 

-  Agree, remove ‘Resource Efficiency and Climate 
Change Adaptation Issues’ 

-  The content of this section goes beyond 
the requirements of current UK Building 
Regulations  

-  It is important to stress that the Government has not 
yet published the consultation response to proposed 
changes to Housing Standards nor made changes to 
the current planning policy to not allow LAs to set their 
own standards through planning policy.  In addition, 
the Parliamentary Environmental Audit Committee 
published their findings on the Government’s proposal 
to wind down the Code for Sustainable Homes 
standard, and recommended that the Local Authorities 
should be allowed to set local standards until such 
time the Building Regulations require dwellings to be 
‘truly zero’ carbon as per Level 6 of the CfSH standard 

-  the proposed standards are too -  The Design Guide provides guidance on standards set 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 42



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 9 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
prescriptive by the emerging Development Strategy. The Guide 

outlines measures which should be consider, but 
acknowledges that due to sites’ constrains not all 
might be possible to be implemented. 

-  Multiple standards are affecting the 
overall viability of development and in turn 
the achievement of housing targets 

-  The viability of housing standards had been tested as 
part of the Development Strategy viability test. 

-  Overall space standards and CEL 
standards need to be rationalised so that 
they match and standards are too generic  

-  Space standard tables will be rationalised into one 
table but standards themselves have been adopted as 
they are tried and tested  

-  Stated that a 10m garden depth is 
required for privacy when it may have rear 
parking behind for example  

-  Add wording to explain that this provision is to create 
decent sized gardens too 

-  14m garden depth will discourage 
developers from delivering wide frontage 
units  

-  Remove 14m garden depth and make 12m for three 
and four bedroom properties  

-  Disagree that all side and rear boundaries 
should be brick  

-  Change wording on boundaries to allow for other 
materials  

-  Text on p.23-24 suggests that three 
storeys is maximum appropriate  

-  Reword to clarify that suggested number of storeys is 
in relation to houses 

-  Criticism over the viability of applying all 
16 Lifetime Home criteria  

-  Only a selection of the less onerous criteria are 
marked as essential  

-  The viability and operating requirement of 
larger footprint buildings need to be 
understood and as such BREEAM 
Excellent rating cannot be justified  

-  BREEAM rating has been set  by Development 
Strategy draft policy  

-  More contemporary designs should be 
shown in the Town Centre Vitality Section 

-  Add a contemporary photo to Town Centre Vitality 
supplement  

-  Text in street parameters should say ‘over 
200’ vehicles for main street 

-  Make change to text  

-  Bus length queried -  Bus length is as suggested by CBC Highways 

-  Slow ideal walking speeds queried  -  Speed is as suggested by CBC Highways  

33 PC 21 Pegasus Planning on NA -  Questions overall viability of proposals -  The DG will proceed as planned  

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 43



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 10 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
behalf of The North 
Luton Consortium  

and recommends that the Design Guide 
follows the adoption of the Development 
Strategy  

-  Summary of key principles for each 
supplement would be helpful 

-  Summaries will be added   

-  More reference to best practice guidance 
would be helpful   

-  Guidance is referenced where appropriate and among 
the changes are a number of additional references 

-  The guide is overly long and unwieldy  -  The guide does seek to cover a lot of material hence 
the size but readers can dip in and out as required of 
what will be predominantly a digital resource. The 
document already shows the relationship between the 
supplements on at Figure 1.3 

-  Guide should be consistent with other 
Council strategies and buy in from all 
service areas required 

-  All Council service areas have been rigorously 
consulted on the draft and their input has shaped the 
final content  

-  Consistent approach to presentation in 
general and paragraph numbering needs 
to be applied  

-  Once all changes have been approved, a full overhaul 
of all aspects of presentation including paragraph 
numbering, photo resolution will be undertaken  

-  Car parking standards should be moved 
to M&S Supplement  

-  Car parking standards will remain in Placemaking 
Principles as the provision affects initial layout  

-  Multiple requirements outlined based on 
different parameters e.g. design codes for 
over 400 dwellings  

-  It is considered that it is made clear where each 
requirement would apply but further work will be done 
to update the validation checklist  

-  Not clear how the density information at 
Para.1.20 should be applied 

-  More explanatory text will be added to the section on 
density 

-  Context around design codes should be 
made clear by adding to route map and 
order needs to be changed 

-  Add information on design codes to route map and 
move section to after route map  

-  Headings need to be added to 1.7 -  Add headings 

-  Reference to parking standards to state 
p.29 rather than p.28 

-  Correct reference on p.25 (PP) 

34 PC 22 David Lock Associate 
on behalf of O & H 
Properties  

Multi 

-  Enforceability of suggested level of 
parking questioned  

-  As described, they are ‘suggested’ standards to allow 
developers the flexibility of delivering a premium 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 44



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 11 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
product   

-  Clarify what is meant by ‘demonstrative 
features’ for areas of play  

-  Add wording to areas of play  

-  Walking distances to NEAPs & LEAPS 
questioned  

-  Review walking distances as set out at 1.18 

-  Figure 1.79 is not clear in terms of how 
trade offs can be applied to pollutants  

-  Remove figure 1.79 and list pollutants instead  

-  The inclusion of information on the Code 
for Sustainable Homes questioned given 
current status 

-  It is important to stress that the Government has not 
yet published the consultation response to proposed 
changes to Housing Standards  

-  2.07.02.01 -not all sites lend themselves 
to a purist approach of solar orientation 
and therefore some interpretation will be 
required 

-  It has been acknowledged in Section 2.07.02. 

-  2.07.02.02.04 Definition of Central 
Bedfordshire’s Community Energy Fund 
required  

-  The Community Energy Fund’s details will be defined 
in a separate guidance document after adoption of 
emerging Development Strategy. 

-  Too much descriptive text in relation to 
historic environment for design guidance  

-  Agree – cut paragraphs 3.02.05 – 3.02.10 as they 
repeat national guidance   

-  Too much text on heritage assets, Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas  

-  Disagree – the text is informative and all examples 
and figures supplied are specific to Central 
Bedfordshire  

-  Executive summary for Public Art section 
should be provided   

-  Executive summary will be provided for PA  

-  Text at 4.02.01 should be highlighted for 
clarity  

-  Highlight text at 4.02.01 

-  More detail required about public art 
statements at 4.02.05 

-  Add text relating to Public Art Statements 

-  5.02.01-5.02.04 key figures should be 
highlighted for clarity  

-  Highlight key figures  

-  5.02.01 back to back distances should not 
be advisory 

-  Change wording to clarify that back to back distances 
will be enforced  

-  Figures 2 & 3 bear no relation to text on -  Photos do relate to text but change numbering to 5.2 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 45



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 12 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
page at 5.02  & 5.3 

-  Support elements of Secured by Design 
illustrated but not non-permeable street 
design 

-  Noted 

-  Space standards will be difficult too 
enforce and are categorised as suggested 
and  minimum standards  

-  Amalgamate  tables  for clarity and specify in each 
instance whether standards are minimum or maximum   

-  Bin storage guidance is welcomed but will 
need to be reviewed regularly  

-  Noted  

-  Highlight key areas and lengths in relation 
to garden depth  

-  Highlight for clarity at 5.06 

-  Varying garden depths may be difficult to 
achieve where different sized homes are 
in a terrace  

-  Rationalise longest garden depth to 12m and then if 
two bedroom homes are next to larger homes then the 
larger of the two can be delivered  

-  Lifetime homes commentary needs to be 
highlighted for clarity at 5.13 

-  Add highlight at 5.13 

-  Needs to be made clearer that table 
relates to paragraph on location at 6.02 

-  Add lower order paragraph numbers to ASHN (6)  

-  Add caption to locations table at 6.02 

-  A tabular format would be useful 
indicating the challenge and design 
response at 6.02 

-  Highlight text to make more user friendly at 6.02 

-  Extensions supplement would benefit 
from tables and more information on 
permitted development rights  

-  Add table on permitted development rights  

-  In Larger Footprint Buildings, summary of 
what has changed from previous version 
should be supplied  

-  Disagree - guide is designed to be read in its own right 
without reference to previous guidance  

-  Landscape heading in (8) should be 
highlighted  

-  Highlight heading  

-  Photos are at a low resolution in (8)  -  Correct for final version  

-  Colour palette of buildings needs to be 
emphasised at 8.04.03 

-  Highlight colour choice as key consideration  

-  Purpose of list of policy documents should -  Add additional text to clarify policy section at 9.3 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 46



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 13 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
be clarified at 9.3 

-  Change figures in street parameters to be 
more realistic in terms of traffic flow  

-  Alter figures in parameters table  

-  The ten street typologies would benefit 
from grouping into three street parameters 

-  The ten typologies provide a useful guide to possible 
street types that would be appropriate in different 
contexts. They are non-prescriptive and are intended 
to allow a creative response to street design within the 
three main types  

-  Main street should not be limited to 
20mph  

-  It is considered that main streets through new 
developments should be engineered to be 20mph. 
There may be instances where a higher order road is 
required to connect to the existing road network 
particularly if a step change is required from 40mph. In 
these very particular cases there is ample existing 
highways guidance that can be referenced 

-  Suggest adding approximately to a 
‘maximum of five properties’  

-  Agree add ‘approximately’ to provide a degree of 
flexibility to rear parking design  

-  Remove bullet suggesting that visitor 
parking should be focused on access 
roads  

-  Agree remove reference to visitor parking on access 
roads as it could lead to poor development gateways  

-  Contradiction between text at 10.03.09 
which suggest reverse parking and photo 
examples of parking front on   

-  Change text at 10.03.09 to say that there are two 
options and front or reverse parking will be acceptable 

-  Make sure dimensions are consistent 
between 10.03.11 and the street 
parameters table   

-  Make changes to ensure consistency 

-  Design guide should include cycle 
parameters  

-  The Council’s Cycling Strategy provides detailed 
guidance but some key figures will be provided in a 
table  

-  Further clarification on the Council’s 
General Specification for Estate Roads 
Construction Option 1 

-  Provide more clarification on the Council’s General 
Specification for estate roads 

35 PC 23 Ampthill Town Council  NA  -  General support  -  No action required 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 47



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 14 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
-  Overall welcomes document -  No action required 

-  Seeks reference to DG in Development 
Strategy Policy 43  

-  Cannot change policy wording as part of this project 

-  Seeks reduction in light pollution and 
signage  

-  Both issues already covered in PP (p.53) & M&S 
(p.38)  

-  Cautions against over management of the 
countryside  

-  GI section does not encourage over-management 

-  Seeks gradual transitions between historic 
areas and modern development  

-  Not always appropriate to separate historic from 
modern  

36 PC 24 CPRE Bedfordshire  

Multi 

-  Seeks a policy around consultation on 
public art 

-  Not necessary as PA would usually form part of a 
planning application.  

37 PC 25 Mervyn Dobson, 
Pegasus Planning  PP 

- Concern raised about the requirement for 
two spaces for all two  bedroomed 
properties  

-  Broad consensus is that standards as proposed are 
fair and have been derived as a result of appropriate 
consultation  

38 PC 26 Facebook Feed  
NA  

-  Quality of new developments is poor and 
parking provision is inadequate  

-  Approach taken seeks to address these  concerns  

39 PC 27 Chilterns Conservation 
Board GI  

-  Board welcomes guide but requests minor 
text changes in relation to the setting of 
the AONB & space for trees 

-  Add additional text 

-  Houses should be built with higher quality 
construction materials  

-  Construction materials will vary according to house 
type/location etc. so not appropriate to be too 
prescriptive other than giving a guide to local brick 
types  

-  Infilling should be supported to allow 
necessary growth  

-  Planning policy rather than design guidance will 
dictate where this is appropriate  

40 PC 28 Warmingtons 
Surveyors  

RES 

-  The concept of Lifetime Homes will not 
meet the test of time  

-  Guide will be reviewed as appropriate following 
outcome of Housing Standards Review  

41 PC 29 Resident, Sandy  

PP 

-  More parking spaces are required as 
roads are currently too narrow to 
accommodate visitor parking or delivery 
vehicles  

-  New developments in   Sandy were built under PPG13 
parking standards which led to issue described  

-  Approach taken addressees this issue 

42 PC 30 Shillington Village 
Design Association  

Multi 
-  Considers guide should make ref to 

Village Design Statements and Parish 
-  Add ref to Village Design Statement and Parish Plans 

in flow chart on p.4 (PP) 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 48



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 15 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
Plans  

-  Criteria for non-designated heritage 
assets questioned 

-  Further guidance from conservation officers should be 
sought in these instances  

-  Further guidance on the integration of 
social housing sought 

-  Further reference to tenure blindness in RES  
 

-  Threshold for briefs and appraisals 
questioned 

-  Thresholds are based on the most common sizes of 
developments that are submitted to CBC  

-  Comments that visitor parking is 
insufficient 

-  Third space on four bedroom properties will be 
unallocated and provision for 0.25 visitor spaces per 
dwelling has been made  

43 PC 31 Stotfold Town Council  

Multi  

-  Requests deeper frontages  
 

- Depth of frontage must be considered on a case by 
case basis as it is often desirable to build up to streets 
to give a sense of enclosure 

-  Reference to species in proximity of site 
should be added at 1.7 

-  Add reference at 1.7 

-  Add reference to species at 1.8 (point 6)  -  Add reference at 1.8 

-  Reference to permeable surfaces should 
be made  

-  Add reference at 1.13 

-  Detailed comments on GI picked up in 
Appendix X Table 2 

-  Add reference at 3.07.04 and 3.09 to RIBA guidance 
and to GI section  

-  Questions lack of cross reference to RIBA 
guidance relating to historic conservation 
and biodiversity 

-  Add ref to RIBA guidance to Section 3 (HE) 

-  Should ref back to the GI Section (2) at 
7.1 

-  Add ref to GI Section (2) at 7.1 

-  Add references to birds as supplied at 
7.02.06 

-  Add ref to birds as supplied at 7.02.06 

-  Add references to bird as requested at 
7.04.09 

-  Add ref to birds as requested at 7.04.09 

-  Add references to RIBA guidance as 
above and Living Roofs guidance in 
Section 8  

-  Add ref to RIBA guidance as above and Living Roofs 
guidance to Section 8  

44 PC 32 RSPB  
Multi 

-  Refer to SUDs design guide to add detail -  Refer to SUDs design guide to add detail at Section 8 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 49



Appendix A - SUMMARY OF DESIGN GUIDE PUBLIC CONSULATION RESPONSES                                                                                           

 16 

No. Reference  Respondent  Supp Summary of Comments  CBC Response  
in Section 8  

-  9.6.12 reference to roost bricks & SUDs 
required  

-  Add ref to 9.6.12 to roost bricks & SUDs required 

45 INT 16 Urban Design MK 

PP 
RES 
M&S 

Detailed changes suggested in their 
capacity as critical friend under the existing 
service level agreement with Development 
Management. Proposed changes noted and 
referenced in Appendix B 

-  Action  

 

 
 

 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 50



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

P
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
P

ri
n

c
ip

le
s

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

1
.0

D
a
v
id

L
o
c
k

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

D
L
A

A
d
d

e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

s
u
m

m
a
ry

F
ig

u
re

1
.3

P
a
g

e
4

S
h
ill

in
g

to
n

V
ill

a
g

e
D

e
s
ig

n
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

A
d
d

re
f

to
V

ill
a
g

e
D

e
s
ig

n
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

a
n
d

P
a
ri
s
h

P
la

n
s

in
fl
o
w

c
h
a
rt

u
n
d
e
r

lo
c
a
l
p
o
lic

y

1
.2

P
a
g

e
5

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

R
e
w

o
rd

1
.2

fi
rs

t
tw

o
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

to
s
im

p
lif

y
‘T
h
is
u
p
d
a
te
d
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
h
a
s
b
e
e
n
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
to
w
o
rk
to
w
a
rd
s
g
o
o
d
p
la
c
e
m
a
k
in
g
a
n
d

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
w
h
il
s
t
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
o
f
a
s
a
fe
,
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
a
n
d
h
e
a
lt
h
y
b
u
il
t

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
It
s
e
e
k
s
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
e
a
c
h
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l
re
s
p
o
n
d
s
to
th
e
c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
,

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
a
n
d
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
o
f
it
s
s
it
e
a
n
d
s
e
tt
in
g
b
y
h
e
lp
in
g
to
id
e
n
ti
fy
th
e
a
s
p
e
c
ts
w
h
ic
h

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
to
th
e
ir
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
a
n
d
lo
c
a
l
d
is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
G
u
id
e
s
e
ts
o
u
t
a
ra
n
g
e
o
f
p
o
li
c
ie
s
a
n
d
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
.
T
h
e
s
e
p
o
li
c
ie
s
a
n
d
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
a
re

in
te
n
d
e
d
to
g
u
id
e
g
o
o
d
d
e
s
ig
n
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
.
T
h
is
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
is
n
o
t
in
te
n
d
e
d
to
b
e
a

s
tr
a
ig
h
tj
a
c
k
e
t
to
p
ro
d
u
c
e
n
a
rr
o
w
c
o
n
fo
rm
it
y
,
a
n
d
a
s
s
u
c
h
it
is
th
e
re
fo
re
u
n
li
k
e
ly
th
a
t
th
e

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
‘a
n
y
w
h
e
re
’
d
e
s
ig
n
s
fr
o
m
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts
w
il
l
b
e
a
c
c
e
p
te
d
a
s
a
v
a
li
d
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
b
y
th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
.’

1
.2

P
a
g

e
5

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
m

a
k
e

B
R

E
E

A
M

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

o
p
ti
o
n
a

l
‘F

o
r

s
it
e
s

o
f

7
5

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
a
n
d

o
v
e
r,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

w
h

e
re

th
e
re

a
re

s
e
v
e
ra

l
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g

a
to

w
n

o
r

v
ill

a
g

e
;

a
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t
m
a
y

b
e

re
q

u
ir
e
d

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

m
a
s
te

r
p
la

n
n
in

g
p
ro

c
e
s
s
.’

F
ig

u
re

1
.4

P
a
g

e
6

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
M

o
v
e

w
o
rd

in
g

u
n
d
e
r

h
e
a
d
in

g
‘D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
o
lic

y
4
3
’
s
o

it
is

o
p
p
o
s
it
e

th
e

m
a
tr

ix
a
t

F
ig

u
re

1
.4

to
p
ro

v
id

e
c
o
n
te

x
t

F
ig

u
re

1
.5

P
a
g

e
7

H
e
a
rn

e
H

o
m

e
s

C
h
a
n
g

e
v
is

u
a
l
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
o

th
a
t

it
c
a
n

b
e

s
e
e
n

c
le

a
rl
y

F
ig

u
re

s
1
.5

/1
.6

M
K

U
D

R
e
m

o
v
e

a
n
d

re
p
la

c
e

e
x
a
m

p
le

ill
u
s
tr

a
ti
o
n

in
d
e
s
ig

n
c
o
d
e
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

m
o
v
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

to
a
ft

e
r

ro
u
te

Agenda Item 10
Page 51



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
a
g

e
s

7
/8

M
o

v
e

to
P

a
g

e
9

D
L
A

m
a
p

1
.4

R
o
u
te

M
a
p

P
a
g

e
9

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

M
K

U
rb

a
n

D
e
s
ig

n
-

M
a
k
e

h
e
a
d
in

g
s

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

a
n
d

re
-o

rd
e
r

e
le

m
e
n
ts

o
f

s
te

p
s

2
-4

-
C

h
a
n
g

e
S

te
p

4
to

in
c
lu

d
e

a
ll

m
o
d
e
s

o
f

tr
a
v
e
l
c
h
a
n
g

e
‘P

u
b
lic

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

’
to
‘a
ll
m
o
d
e
s
o
f
tr
a
v
e
l’

a
n
d
m
a
k
e
it
c
le
a
r
th
a
t
‘A
p
p
ra
is
e
th
e
s
it
e
a
n
d
it
s
s
e
tt
in
g
'
is
a
h
e
a
d
e
r,
a
n
d
c
h
a
n
g
e
‘c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
s
’

to
‘c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
’

-
S

te
p

7
C

h
a
n
g

e
‘V

e
h
ic

u
la

r
a
n
d

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

lin
k
s
’
to
T
ra
v
e
l.

A
d
d

‘…
a
n
d
h
o
w
d
o
th
e
y
re
la
te
to

e
x
is
ti
n
g
n
e
tw
o
rk
s
,
a
d
d
re
s
s
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
il
it
y
a
n
d
m
o
d
e
s
h
if
t.

P
a
g

e
9

D
L
A

A
d
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

o
n

d
e
s
ig

n
c
o
d
e
s

to
ro

u
te

m
a
p

1
.4

P
a
g

e
9

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

M
a
k
e

p
u
n
c
tu

a
ti
o
n

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

F
ig

u
re

1
.9

P
a
g

e
1
0

C
B

C
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

o
lic

y
T

e
a
m

M
o

v
e

c
o
n
te

x
t

m
a
p

a
t
F

ig
u
re

1
.9

to
le

ft
h
a
n
d

s
id

e
s
o

it
s
it
s

b
e
fo

re
th

e
te

x
t

o
n

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r

F
ig

u
re

1
.1

0
P

a
g

e
1
1

C
B

C
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

o
lic

y
T

e
a
m

F
ig

1
.1

0
C

B
C

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r
–

re
p
la

c
e

m
a
p

w
it
h

th
a
t

in
th

e
G

I
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

(F
ig

u
re

2
.2

P
a
g

e
7
)

A
ft

e
r

1
.5

P
a
g

e
1
1

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
A

d
d

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

s
e
c
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

p
re

v
io

u
s

C
e
n
tr

a
l
B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e

D
e
s
ig

n
G

u
id

e
(p

.2
7
-2

8
)

T
o

b
e

a
d
d
e
d

to
P

P
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

‘T
h
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
re
a
d
in
c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
w
it
h
th
e
H
is
to
ri
c
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t

S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
e
s
a
s
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
th
e
p
a
le
tt
e
o
f
tr
a
d
it
io
n
a
l
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
fo
u
n
d
in
C
e
n
tr
a
l

B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
.
It
is
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
to
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
th
e
s
u
b
tl
e
ti
e
s
o
f
m
a
te
ri
a
l
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
th
e

d
is
tr
ic
t.

O
ft
e
n
th
e
d
e
c
is
io
n
w
il
l
n
e
e
d
to
b
e
ta
k
e
n
w
h
e
th
e
r
to
a
tt
e
m
p
t
to
m
a
tc
h
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
o
r

w
h
e
th
e
r
a
m
o
d
e
rn
h
ig
h
q
u
a
li
ty
a
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
m
a
y
b
e
m
o
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.
In
s
o
m
e
c
a
s
e
s
a
tt
e
m
p
ts

to
re
p
li
c
a
te
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
m
a
te
ri
a
l
c
a
n
o
ft
e
n
re
s
u
lt
in
a
p
o
o
r
m
a
tc
h
a
n
d
th
is
c
a
n
d
im
in
is
h
th
e

o
v
e
ra
ll
q
u
a
li
ty
o
f
th
e
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
/n
e
w
b
u
il
d
in
g
.

In
a
ll
c
a
s
e
s
c
a
re
fu
l
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
g
iv
e
n
to
th
e
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
o
f
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
a
n
d
it
is

Agenda Item 10
Page 52



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

a
d
v
is
e
d
to
s
p
e
a
k
to
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
p
la
n
n
in
g
o
ff
ic
e
rs
a
n
d
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
te
a
m
(i
n
th
e
c
a
s
e
o
f
a

li
s
te
d
b
u
il
d
in
g
/
s
it
e
in
a
c
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
a
re
a
)
b
e
fo
re
fi
n
a
li
s
in
g
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
to
b
e
u
s
e
d
fo
r
a

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
’

1
.7

P
a
g

e
1
4

M
K

U
D

D
L
A

In
c
lu

d
e

h
e
a
d
in

g
s

fo
r

c
o
lu

m
n
s

in
ta

b
le

.

1
.7

P
a
g

e
1
4

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

A
d
d

in
m

e
n
ti
o
n

o
f

lo
o
k
in

g
a
t
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

to
d
e
te

rm
in

e
le

v
e
l
o

f
s
o
la

r
g

a
in

1
.7

P
a
g

e
1
4

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
to
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
N
e
tw
o
rk
s

ra
th

e
r

th
a
n

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

.
A

d
d
w
a
lk
in
g
a
n
d
c
y
c
li
n
g

to
ta

b
le

u
n
d
e
r

M
o

v
e
m

e
n
t

‘W
a
lk
in
g
a
n
d
C
y
c
li
n
g
–
W
h
a
t
a
re
th
e
lo
c
a
l
w
a
lk
in
g
a
n
d
c
y
c
li
n
g
n
e
tw
o
rk
s
li
k
e
?

1
.7

P
a
g

e
1
4

E
n
g

lis
h

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

S
it
e

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l
fo

rm
s
h
o
u
ld

re
fe

r
to

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
a
re

a
s

a
n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

p
a
rk

s
a
n
d

g
a
rd

e
n
s

u
n
d
e
r

th
e

B
u
ilt

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

h
e
a
d
in

g
.
T

it
le

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

‘B
u
ilt

a
n
d

H
is

to
ri

c
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t’
‘C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
A
re
a
s

a
n
d
H
is
to
ri
c
P
a
rk
s
–
D
o
e
s
th
e
s
it
e
li
e
w
it
h
in
o
r
a
d
jo
in
a
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
A
re
a
o
r
H
is
to
ri
c
P
a
rk
?

1
.7

P
a
g

e
1
4

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
s
p
e
c
ie

s
in

p
ro

x
im

it
y

o
f

s
it
e

(N
a
tu

ra
l
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t)

‘S
p
e
c
ie
s
-
W
h
a
t
s
p
e
c
ie
s
c
a
n
b
e
fo
u
n
d
o
n
s
it
e
?
’

1
.7

P
a
g

e
1
4

L
a
n
g
fo

rd
P

a
ri
s
h

C
o
u
n
c
il

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

re
la

ti
n
g

to
h
a
b
it
a
ts

to
“
A
re
th
e
re
a
n
y
w
il
d
li
fe
h
a
b
it
a
ts
w
it
h
in
th
e
s
it
e
?
”

1
.8

P
a
g

e
1
7

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
s
p
e
c
ie

s
(p

o
in

t
6
)

A
d
ju

s
t
‘…

w
ild

lif
e

h
a
b
it
a
ts

,
s
p
e
c
ie
s
o
n
s
it
e
,

e
x
is

ti
n
g

b
u
ild

in
g

s
’

1
.9

P
a
g

e
1
8

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

D
e
le

te
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t

s
e
rv

ic
e

v
e
h
ic

le
s

fr
o
m

th
e

u
s
e
r

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
.

1
.9

P
a
g

e
1
8

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
‘…
la
y
o
u
t
th
a
t
m
in
im
is
e
s
tr
a
v
e
l
d
is
ta
n
c
e
s
b
y
p
ri
v
a
te
v
e
h
ic
le
s
to
k
e
y

fa
c
il
it
ie
s
a
n
d
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

’

1
.1

0
P

a
g

e
1
9

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

w
e
b

lin
k

to
C

B
C

C
y
c
le

P
a
rk

in
g

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
A

d
d

te
x
t

–
N
e
w
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
li
n
k
in
to
th
e
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
c
y
c
le
n
e
tw
o
rk
a
n
d
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l
s
it
e

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
is
re
q
u
ir
e
d
d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
o
n
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
,
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
a
n
d
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
.

F
ig

u
re

1
.1

4
P

a
g

e
2
0

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

R
e
m

o
v
e

F
ig

u
re

1
.1

4
a
s

it
is

o
u
td

a
te

d

1
.1

1
P

a
g

e
2
1
/2

2
C

B
C

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

R
e
m

o
v
e

F
ig

u
re

1
.1

6
a
n
d

c
ro

s
s

re
fe

re
n
c
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

to
S

tr
e
e
t
h
ie

ra
rc

h
y

in
M

o
v
e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

S
tr

e
e
ts

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t
(p

ro
v
id

e
re

fe
re

n
c
e
)

‘F
u
rt
h
e
r
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
o
n
s
tr
e
e
t
h
ie
ra
rc
h
ie
s
c
a
n
b
e
fo
u
n
d
in
s
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
.0
2
o
f
th
e
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t

a
n
d
S
tr
e
e
ts
S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t.
’

Agenda Item 10
Page 53



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

1
.1

3
P

a
g

e
2
5

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

–
lo
c
a
l
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
o
f
s
p
e
c
ia
l
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
e
.g
.
a
m
a
in
li
n
e
ra
il
w
a
y
s
ta
ti
o
n
o
r

g
u
id
e
d
b
u
s
w
a
y
li
n
k
w
o
u
ld
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
to
ju
s
ti
fy
a
lo
w
e
r
le
v
e
l
o
f
p
ro
v
is
io
n

1
.1

3
P

a
g

e
2
5

D
L
A

C
o
rr

e
c
t
re

fe
re

n
c
e

o
n

p
.2

5
(P

P
)

s
h
o
u
ld

s
a
y

p
a
rk

in
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
o
n

P
2
9

n
o
t
P

2
8

1
.1

3
P

a
g

e
2
5

M
K

U
D

A
d
d

m
o
re

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
o
f

p
a
rk

in
g

o
p
ti
o
n
s

in
s
e
c
ti
o
n

1
.1

3
o
n

P
a
rk

in
g

1
.1

3
P

a
g

e
2
5

M
K

U
D

‘T
h
e
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
S
tr
e
e
ts
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t
p
ro
v
id
e
s
m
o
re
d
e
ta
il
e
d
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
p
a
rk
in
g

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
.’

F
ig

u
re

1
.2

7
P

a
g

e
2
5

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

P
ix

ila
te

c
a
r

n
u
m

b
e
r

p
la

te

1
.3

0
P

a
g

e
2
7

M
K

U
D

D
e
le

te
fi
g

1
.3

0
b
e
c
a
u
s
e

it
a
lr
e
a
d
y

e
x
is

ts
in

th
e

M
&

S
s
u
p
p

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

ta
b
le

P
a
g

e
2
8

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

M
K

U
D

M
a
k
e

c
h
a
n
g

e
to

s
a
y

‘t
a
n
d
e
m
p
a
rk
in
g
o
f
m
o
re
th
a
n
tw
o
c
a
rs
w
il
l
n
o
t
b
e
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
u
n
le
s
s
o
n
e

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
o
n
-s
tr
e
e
t
p
a
rk
in
g
s
p
a
c
e
is
p
ro
v
id
e
d
’

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

ta
b
le

P
a
g

e
2
8

M
K

U
D

A
llo

w
p
a
rk

in
g

a
s

p
a
rt

o
f
a

s
q

u
a
re

to
b
e

in
te

rp
re

te
d

a
s

a
p
a

rk
in

g
s
p
a
c
e

–
P
a
rk
in
g
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
a

s
q
u
a
re
m
a
y
c
o
u
n
t
to
w
a
rd
s
th
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
p
a
rk
in
g
p
ro
v
is
io
n
’

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

ta
b
le

P
a
g

e
2
8

D
L
A

C
h
a
n
g

e
th

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
a
llo

w
g

re
a
te

r
fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

o
n

h
o
w

m
a
n
y

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

re
a
r

c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

p
a
rk

in
g

s
h
o
u
ld

s
e
rv

e
to
a
ro
u
n
d
fi
v
e

ra
th

e
r

th
a
n

fi
v
e
.

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

ta
b
le

P
a
g

e
2
8

R
S

P
B

M
a
k
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
th

e
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f

p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s

fo
r

p
a
rk

in
g

a
re

a
s

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

ta
b
le

P
a
g

e
2
8

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
In

s
e
rt

te
x
t

a
s

fo
llo

w
s
T
h
e
re
a
re
m
a
n
y
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
o
f
re
c
e
n
t
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
,
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
a
t
a
ti
m
e

w
h
e
re
p
la
n
n
in
g
p
o
li
c
y
re
q
u
ir
e
d
h
ig
h
e
r
d
e
n
s
it
ie
s
a
n
d
lo
w
le
v
e
ls
o
f
p
a
rk
in
g
,
w
h
e
re
w
e
ll

d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
a
n
d
re
a
li
s
ti
c
p
a
rk
in
g
p
ro
v
is
io
n
h
a
s
n
o
t
b
e
e
n
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
a
n
d
th
is
h
a
s
re
s
u
lt
e
d
in
o
n
-

s
tr
e
e
t
p
a
rk
in
g
p
ro
b
le
m
s
,
s
u
c
h
a
s
p
a
rk
in
g
o
n
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
a
n
d
v
e
rg
e
s
.
In
o
rd
e
r
to
a
v
o
id
th
e

n
e
e
d
fo
r
c
o
n
tr
o
ll
e
d
p
a
rk
in
g
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
n
e
w
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
m
u
s
t
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
p
a
rk
in
g
p
ro
v
is
io
n
is
m
a
d
e
fo
r
re
s
id
e
n
ts
a
n
d
v
is
it
o
rs
.
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
m
a
y
re
q
u
ir
e
a

Agenda Item 10
Page 54



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

p
a
rk
in
g
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t
p
la
n
to
b
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
,
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e
s
it
e
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n

p
h
a
s
e
,
in
o
rd
e
r
to
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
p
a
rk
in
g
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r.

1
.1

4
P

a
g

e
2
9

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ill

m
o
re

D
L
A

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g

In
s
e
rt

e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
te

x
t
a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
ta

b
le

to
a
llo

w
o
n
e

p
a
rk

in
g

s
p

a
c
e

o
u
t

o
f
th

e
th

re
e

re
q

u
ir
e
d

fo
r

fo
u
r

b
e
d
ro

o
m

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

to
b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

o
n

s
tr

e
e
t
a
n
d

th
u
s

u
n
a

llo
c
a
te

d
.

1
.1

4
P

a
g

e
2
9

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

M
a
k
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
d
is

a
b
le

d
p
a
rk

in
g

b
a
y
s

1
.1

4
P

a
g

e
2
9

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
A

d
d

te
x
t

a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
ta

b
le

to
e
x
p
la

in
w

h
y

m
in

im
u
m

a
n
d

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
p
a
rk

in
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d

“
th
e
s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
p
a
rk
in
g
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
w
il
l
a
ll
o
w
fl
e
x
ib
il
it
y
to
p
ro
v
id
e
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
p
a
rk
in
g
if

s
p
e
c
if
ic
n
e
e
d
s
d
ic
ta
te
th
is
i.
e
.
in
ru
ra
l
a
re
a
s
o
r
to
p
ro
v
id
e
c
h
o
ic
e
fo
r
la
rg
e
r
h
o
m
e
s
”

F
ig

1
.3

3
P

a
g

e
3
0

M
K

U
D

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

C
h
a
n
g

e
g
ra

p
h
ic

s
to

re
m

o
v
e

s
e
t

b
a
c
k

p
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

im
p
ro

v
e

fr
o
n
ta

g
e

C
h
a
n
g

e
F

ig
u
re

1
.3

3
to

m
a
k
e

it
a

2
s
to

re
y

h
o
u
s
e
.

1
.1

5
P

a
g

e
3
1

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

to
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
–

‘A
re

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s

le
v
e
l
a
n
d
s
h
o
u
ld
d
ro
p
p
e
d
k
e
rb
s
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
’

F
ig

u
re

1
.4

0
P

a
g

e
3
2

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

A
d
d

k
e
y

to
fe

a
tu

re
1
0

T
a
c
ti
le
p
a
v
in
g
o
r
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
in
s
u
rf
a
c
e
to
in
d
ic
a
te
th
e
p
re
s
e
n
c
e
o
f
o
b
s
ta
c
le
s

1
.1

7
P

a
g

e
3
4

M
K

U
D

M
o

v
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

1
.1

7
to

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n

5
.0

8
a
n
d

c
a
ll

it
A

c
ti
v
e

F
ro

n
ta

g
e
s

1
.1

8
P

a
g

e
3
6

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ill

m
o
re

D
L
A

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

o
n

p
la

y
a
re

a
s

in
to

a
llo

w
g
ro

u
p
e
d

p
la

y
p
ro

v
is

io
n
/c

o
-l
o
c
a
ti
o
n

1
.1

8
P

a
g

e
s

3
6
-3

8
C

B
C

L
e
is

u
re

T
e
a
m

A
m

e
n
d

p
la

y
a
re

a
te

x
t
to

e
x
a
c
tl
y

m
a
tc

h
th

a
t
in

th
e

L
e
is

u
re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

1
.1

8
P

a
g

e
s

3
6
-3

8
D

L
A

R
e
v
ie

w
w

a
lk

in
g

d
is

ta
n
c
e
s

a
s

s
e
t
o
u
t
a
t
1
.1

8

1
.2

1
P

a
g

e
4
2
/4

3
M

K
U

D
D

L
A

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ill

m
o
re

M
a
k
e

b
o
ld

th
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
to

ry
te

x
t

to
th

e
d
e
n
s
it
ie

s
s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
d
d

te
x
t

to
p
.4

3
to

s
ta

te
th

a
t
“H
o
w
e
v
e
r

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
in
d
e
n
s
it
y
a
c
ro
s
s
a
la
rg
e
s
c
h
e
m
e
o
r
in
u
rb
a
n
s
e
tt
in
g
s
c
a
n
o
ft
e
n
b
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
n
d

a
d
d
v
a
ri
e
ty
a
n
d
m
ix
p
ro
v
id
in
g
th
a
t
th
e
y
a
re
w
e
ll
-d
e
s
ig
n
e
d

“.

1
.2

1
C

B
C

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

te
x
t
to

s
a
y

th
a
t
‘I
f
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
,
d
e
n
s
it
ie
s
c
a
n
b
e
m
a
x
im
is
e
d
a
lo
n
g
e
x
is
ti
n
g
a
n
d
p
o
te
n
ti
a
ll
y

Agenda Item 10
Page 55



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
a
g

e
4
2
/4

3
n
e
w
p
u
b
li
c
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
c
o
rr
id
o
rs
in
o
rd
e
r
to
s
e
c
u
re
th
e
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
ll
y
v
ia
b
le

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
’.

1
.2

2
P

a
g

e
4
8

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
fi
rs

t
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
to

re
a
d
‘l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
to
tr
a
v
e
l
b
y
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le

m
o
d
e
s
to
k
e
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
a
n
d
fa
c
il
it
ie
s
(w
o
rk
,
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
,
s
h
o
p
p
in
g
,
a
n
d
h
e
a
lt
h
)’

.

F
ig

u
re

1
.7

9
P

a
g

e
4
9

D
L
A

R
e
m

o
v
e

fi
g

u
re

1
.7

9
a
n
d

lis
t

p
o
llu

ta
n
ts

in
s
te

a
d

B
e
tw

e
e
n

1
.2

2
&

1
.2

3
C

B
C

P
la

n
n
in

g
A

d
d

n
e
w

h
e
a
d
in

g
M
o
b
il
e
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re

a
n
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
th

e
M

o
b
ile

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
D

e
s
ig

n
G

u
id

e
a
n
d

a
d
d

te
x
t

to
s
ta

te
th

a
t
“t
h
e
g
u
id
e
p
ro
v
id
e
s
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
a
n
d
g
u
id
e
li
n
e
s
fo
r
th
e
s
e
n
s
it
iv
e
s
it
in
g

a
n
d
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
o
f
m
o
b
il
e
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
b
a
s
e
s
ta
ti
o
n
s
”

1
.2

3
P

a
g

e
5
0

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d
O
th
e
r
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
C
o
rr
id
o
rs

to
lis

t
to

ta
k
e

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f
th

e
b
u
s
w

a
y

P
a
g

e
5
0

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

C
h
a
n
g

e
te

x
t

o
n

p
.5

0
s
h
o
u
ld

re
fe

r
to

‘c
o
m
m
it
te
d

’
a
n
d

n
o
t
‘k

n
o
w

n
’
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

1
.2

3
P

a
g

e
5
0

C
B

C
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
H

e
a
lt
h

-
B

u
lle

t
p
o
in

ts
5

&
3

n
e
e
d

c
h
a
n
g

in
g

ro
u
n
d

u
n
d
e
r

H
o
w

c
a
n

w
e

L
im

it
N

o
is

e
P

o
llu

ti
o
n
?

-
L
a
s
t

P
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

o
n

p
a
g
e

s
ta

rt
in

g
"A

N
o
is

e
Im

p
a
c
t

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
..
..
"

n
e
e
d
s

to
b
e

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

a
ft

e
r

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

5
a
ft

e
r

re
v
is

io
n

a
b
o
v
e

-
4

p
o
in

ts
o
n

ri
g

h
t

h
a
n
d

s
id

e
o
f

p
a
g

e
a
re

e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
n
o
te

s
fo

r
ill

u
s
tr

a
ti
o
n

o
n

p
a
g

e
5
1

-
th

e
s
e

n
e
e
d

to
b
e

lin
k
e
d

K
e
y

P
o
in

ts
T

a
b
le

P
a
g

e
5
2

C
B

C
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
H

e
a
lt
h

C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
L
a
n
d

K
e
y

P
o
in

ts
–

m
o
v
e

p
o
s
it
io

n
s
o

it
is

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

w
it
h
in

th
e

C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
L
a
n
d

S
e
c
ti
o
n
.

1
.2

4
G

lo
s
s
a
ry

P
a
g

e
5
5

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
‘R

e
d
u
c
in

g
th

e
n
e
e
d

to
tr

a
v
e
l
s
h
o
rt

d
is

ta
n
c
e
s

b
y

c
a
r,

b
y

a
rr

a
n
g

in
g

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
to

b
e

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
b
y

fo
o
t,

b
ik

e
o
r

b
u
s
’
to

‘R
e
d
u
c
in
g
th
e
n
e
e
d
to
a
n
d
d
is
ta
n
c
e
s
tr
a
v
e
ll
e
d
b
y
p
ri
v
a
te

v
e
h
ic
le
s
a
n
d
to
m
a
x
im
is
e
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
to
tr
a
v
e
l
b
y
w
a
lk
in
g
,
c
y
c
li
n
g
a
n
d
p
u
b
li
c
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
.

G
e
n
e
ra

l
C

B
C

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

M
a
k
e

s
u
re

th
e

P
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
P

ri
n
c
ip

le
s

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t
re

fe
re

n
c
e
d

a
s

s
u
c
h

a
n
d

n
o
t
‘m

a
in

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t’

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t

Agenda Item 10
Page 56



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
2

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

G
re

e
n

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

G
e

n
e

ra
l

V
a

ri
o

u
s

R
e
-n

u
m

b
e
r

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

to
s
im

p
lif

y

2
.0

1
.0

1
P

a
g
e

4

D
a
v
id

L
o
c
k

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

A
d
d

a
n
o
th

e
r

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

a
ft

e
r

2
.0

1
.0

1
.0

3

G
re
e
n
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
c
a
n
p
ro
v
id
e
m
a
n
y
s
o
c
ia
l,
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
n
d
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
c
lo
s
e
to

w
h
e
re
p
e
o
p
le
li
v
e
a
n
d
w
o
rk
in
c
lu
d
in
g
:

S
p
a
c
e
a
n
d
h
a
b
it
a
t
fo
r
w
il
d
li
fe
w
it
h
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
n
a
tu
re
fo
r
p
e
o
p
le

P
la
c
e
s
fo
r
o
u
td
o
o
r
re
la
x
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
p
la
y

C
li
m
a
te
c
h
a
n
g
e
a
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
-
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
fl
o
o
d
a
ll
e
v
ia
ti
o
n
a
n
d
c
o
o
li
n
g
u
rb
a
n
h
e
a
t
is
la
n
d
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

L
o
c
a
l
fo
o
d
p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
-
in
a
ll
o
tm
e
n
ts
,
g
a
rd
e
n
s
a
n
d
th
ro
u
g
h
a
g
ri
c
u
lt
u
re

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
h
e
a
lt
h
a
n
d
w
e
ll
-b
e
in
g
–
lo
w
e
ri
n
g
s
tr
e
s
s
le
v
e
ls
a
n
d
p
ro
v
id
in
g
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r

e
x
e
rc
is
e

In
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
w
it
h
th
e
b
u
il
t
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
th
a
t
s
u
rr
o
u
n
d
s
it
is
c
ru
c
ia
ll
y

im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
if
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
a
re
to
b
e
m
a
x
im
is
e
d
.

B
e
n
e
fi
ts
w
il
l
b
e
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
m
o
s
t
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
ll
y
if
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
e
s
ig
n
is
in
te
g
ra
te
d
w
it
h

m
o
re
tr
a
d
it
io
n
a
l
b
u
il
t
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
p
la
n
n
in
g
.
A
n
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
is
th
e
s
p
a
ti
a
l

p
o
s
it
io
n
in
g
o
f
th
e
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
p
a
rt
s
o
f
th
e
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
.
S
o
m
e
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
d
e
p
e
n
d
o
n
a

s
tr
o
n
g
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
b
e
tw
e
e
n
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d
u
s
e
r.
O
th
e
rs
,
s
u
c
h
a
s
w
il
d
li
fe
h
a
b
it
a
t,
m
a
y
d
e
p
e
n
d

o
n
th
e
in
te
rc
o
n
n
e
c
te
d
n
e
s
s
o
f
th
e
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
t
p
a
rt
s
o
f
th
e
g
re
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
‘j
ig
s
a
w
’.

W
h
il
e
th
e
re
s
t
o
f
th
is
c
h
a
p
te
r
lo
o
k
s
in
d
e
ta
il
a
t
th
e
v
a
ri
o
u
s
c
o
m
p
o
n
e
n
ts
o
f
th
e
g
re
e
n

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
n
e
tw
o
rk
,
a
jo
in
e
d
u
p
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
a
c
ro
s
s
a
ll
th
e
s
e
a
re
a
s
is
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
to

Agenda Item 10
Page 57



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

m
a
x
im
is
e
th
e
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
o
f
g
o
o
d
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
e
s
ig
n
.

A
n
d

a
d
d

in
a

d
ia

g
ra

m
d
e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
th

e
lin

k
s

b
e
tw

e
e
n

g
re

e
n

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a
n
d

s
o
c
ia

l,
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
n
d

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

–
s
im

ila
r

to
d
ia

g
ra

m
o
n

p
a
g

e
s

4
a
n
d

5
h
e
re

,
b
u
t

s
im

p
lif

ie
d
:

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
in

s
ti
tu

te
.o

rg
/P

D
F

/C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

/2
0
1
3
G

re
e
n
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
L
IP

o
s
it
io

n
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

p
d
f

T
h
e
n

a
d
d

in
a
n
o
th

e
r

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

a
ft

e
r

2
.0

1
.0

1
.0

4
,
s
a
y
in

g

A
c
ro
s
s
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
,
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
p
la
n
s
h
a
v
e
b
e
e
n
p
re
p
a
re
d
a
t
a
ra
n
g
e
o
f

s
c
a
le
s
,
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
a
s
s
e
ts
a
n
d
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fr
o
m
th
e
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
to
th
e

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
le
v
e
l.
T
h
e
s
e
p
la
n
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
w
h
e
n
n
e
w
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
a
re
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
.

2
.0

1
.0

1
P

a
g
e

4

D
a
v
id

L
o
c
k

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

A
n
d

a
d
d

a
lin

k
s

to
:

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.b
e
d
s
a
n
d
lu

to
n
g

re
e
n
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.o

rg
/p

la
n
s
/i
n
d
e
x
.h

tm
l

(C
o
u
n
ty

a
n
d

d
is

tr
ic

t
g

re
e
n

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
p
la

n
s
)

a
n
d

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.b
e
d
s
rc

c
.o

rg
.u

k
/g

re
e
n
In

fr
a
s
tu

c
tu

re
/g

re
e
n
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
3
.h

tm
l
(C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

g
re

e
n

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
p
la

n
s
)

2
.0

2
.0

1
.0

1
P

a
g
e

5

C
h
a
n
g

e
a
s

tr
a
c
k
e
d

b
e
lo

w
:

C
e
n
tr

a
l
B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e

h
a
s

a
ri
c
h

a
n
d

v
a
ri
e
d

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
p
a
rt
s
o
f

th
e

C
h
ilt

e
rn

H
ill

s
A

re
a

O
f

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
N

a
tu

ra
l
B

e
a
u
ty

,
th

e
m

a
jo

r
e
s
c
a
rp

m
e
n
t

o
f
th

e
G

re
e

n
s
a
n
d

R
id

g
e

a
n
d

a
ls

o
m

a
n
y
c
la
y

h
il
ls
,
v
a
le
s
a
n
d
ri
v
e
r
v
a
ll
e
y
s
.

D
e
s
ig

n
le

a
d
s

c
a
n

b
e

ta
k
e
n
fr
o
m
th
e
s
e
c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

fe
a
tu
re
s
.
T

h
e
re

a
re

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s

w
h
e
re

la
n
d

u
s
e

is
e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
a
n
d

lit
tl
e

la
n
d
s
c
a

p
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
a
n
d

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
re
m
a
in
s
.
In

th
e
s
e

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

c
a
n

b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

lly
re

s
to

re
fe

a
tu

re
s
.

2
.0

2
.0

2
.0

1
.0

1
P

a
g
e

6

A
m

e
n
d

th
e

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

C
h
a
ra

c
te

r
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t
to

th
e

C
e
n
tr

a
l
B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir

e
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

C
h
a
ra

c
te

r
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

2
.0

2
.0

2
P

a
g
e

s
6

/7

S
w

a
p

p
a
g

e
s

6
a
n
d

7

2
.0

2
.0

2
.0

1
.0

8
C

h
ilt

e
rn

s
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

C
h
a
n
g

e
a
s

tr
a
c
k
e
d

b
e
lo

w
:

C
e
n
tr

a
l
B

e
d
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e

c
o
n
ta

in
s

tw
o

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
s
,
p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

C
h
ilt

e
rn

H
ill

s
A

re
a

o
f

Agenda Item 10
Page 58



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
a

g
e

1
1

B
o
a
rd

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
N

a
tu

ra
l
B

e
a
u
ty

(A
O

N
B

),
a
n
d

p
a
rt

o
f

th
e

M
a
rs

to
n

V
a
le

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

F
o
re

s
t.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

in
th

e
C

h
ilt

e
rn

s
A

O
N

B
,
a
n
d
w
it
h
in
th
e
s
e
tt
in
g
o
f
th
e
A
O
N
B

s
h
o
u
ld

ta
k
e

a
c
c
o
u
n
t

o
f

th
e

C
h
ilt

e
rn

s
B

u
ild

in
g

D
e
s
ig

n
G

u
id

e
,
in

a
d
d
it
io

n
to

th
is

d
e
s
ig

n
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
.
T

h
e

M
a
rs

to
n

V
a
le

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

F
o
re

s
t
is

a
n

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

lly
le

d
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

p
ro

je
c
t,

c
re

a
ti
n
g

a
n
e
w

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

in
th

e
M

a
rs

to
n

V
a
le

,
w

it
h

a
ta

rg
e
t
to

a
c
h
ie

v
e

3
0
%

tr
e
e

c
o
v
e
r

b
y

2
0
3
0
.

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

w
it
h
in

th
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

F
o
re

s
t
w

ill
n
e
e
d

to
g

iv
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

to
c
re

a
ti
n
g

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l
w

o
o
d
la

n
d

a
re

a
s

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

2
.0

2
.0

2
.0

2
.0

1
P

a
g
e

1
2

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

o
n

b
e
h
a
lf

o
f

H
o
u
g

h
to

n
R

e
g

is
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

C
h
a
n
g

e
a
s

tr
a
c
k
e
d

b
e
lo

w
:

A
d
ju

s
ti
n
g

s
it
e

le
v
e
ls

m
a
y

b
e

re
q

u
ir
e
d

to
fa

c
ili

ta
te

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
b
u
t
m

o
re

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

c
h
a
n
g

e
s

in
le

v
e

ls
a
n
d

e
a
rt

h
w

o
rk

s
c
a
n

re
s
u
lt

in
in

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

fe
a
tu

re
s

w
h

ic
h

a
re

o
u
t

o
f
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r
a
n
d

v
is

u
a
lly

in
tr

u
s
iv

e
.
O
v
e
ru
s
e
o
f
b
u
n
d
s
c
a
n
le
a
d
to
th
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
o
f
a
w
k
w
a
rd
fe
a
tu
re
s
,
a
n
d
th
e
lo
s
s
o
f
s
o
il

a
s
a
re
s
o
u
rc
e
.
W
h
e
re
re
q
u
ir
e
d

,
th

e
h
e
ig

h
t

a
n
d

fo
rm

o
f

b
u
n
d
s

a
n
d

m
o
u
n
d
s

m
u
s
t
re

la
te

to
lo

c
a
l

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r
w

it
h
in

a
n
d

b
e
y
o
n
d

th
e

s
it
e

to
e
n
s
u
re

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
.
P

la
n

ti
n
g

o
n

to
p

o
f

b
u
n
d
s

a
n
d

e
a
rt

h
w

o
rk

s
c
a
n

e
x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

th
e

v
is

u
a
l
im

p
a
c
t
o
f

e
a
rt

h
w

o
rk

s
a
s

c
a
n

th
e

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

o
f

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

tr
e
e

a
n
d

s
h
ru

b
s
p
e
c
ie

s
.
If
p
la
n
ti
n
g
is
re
q
u
ir
e
d
,
it
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
li
m
it
e
d
to
th
e
s
id
e
o
f
b
u
n
d
s
,
w
it
h
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te

s
p
e
c
ie
s
.

2
.0

2
.0

2
.0

2
.0

5
P

a
g
e

1
2

A
m

e
n
d

la
s
t
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

to
re

fe
r

to
‘a
d
e
q
u
a
te
s
p
a
c
e
is
in
c
lu
d
e
d
fo
r
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
n
d
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
.’

F
ig

u
re

2
.1

1
P

a
g
e

1
3

A
d
d

in
p
h
o
to

s
o
f

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

b
u
n
d
s

a
n
d

p
o
s
it
iv

e
e
d
g

e
s

to
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

M
K

to
s
o
u
rc

e
,
C

B
C

to
s
u
g
g

e
s
t

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

c
h

e
c
k
lis

t
P

a
g
e

1
9

A
m

e
n
d

te
x
t
fr

o
m

‘D
o
e
s

th
e

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
o
f

th
e

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

in
v
o
lv

e
;’

to
‘H
a
v
e
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
b
e
e
n

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
in
th
e
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
o
f
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t;
’

F
ig

2
.2

1
P

a
g
e

2
2

R
e
p
la

c
e

w
it
h

a
b
e
tt

e
r

p
ic

tu
re

o
f

n
e
w

h
e
d
g

e
p
la

n
ti
n
g
.

F
ig

2
.2

7
P

a
g
e

2
4

A
m

e
n
d

c
a
p
ti
o
n

to
re

a
d

‘A
d
a
m
’s
L
a
b
u
rn
u
m
,
a
fe
a
tu
re
o
f
p
o
s
t
w
a
r
p
la
n
ti
n
g
in
D
u
n
s
ta
b
le
,
n
o
w

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
ra
re
.’

2
.0

3
.0

1
.1

8
P

a
g
e

2
5

A
n
g

lia
n

W
a
te

r
A

d
d

a
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t:
-
‘B
e
a
w
a
re
o
f
th
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
o
f
w
a
te
r
s
u
p
p
ly
a
n
d
s
e
w
e
r
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
a
n
d
e
n
s
u
re
th
e
s
p
e
c
ie
s

p
la
n
te
d
d
o
n
o
t
d
is
ru
p
t
th
e
n
e
tw
o
rk
.’

Agenda Item 10
Page 59



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

2
.0

3
.0

2
P

a
g
e

2
6

C
h
ilt

e
rn

s
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

B
o
a
rd

A
d
d

in
a

b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
a
t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f
th

e
c
h
e
c
k
lis

t;
-

‘H
a
v
e
n
e
w
tr
e
e
s
b
e
e
n
g
iv
e
n
s
p
a
c
e
to
g
ro
w
to
m
a
tu
ri
ty
?
’

2
.0

4
.0

1
.0

4
P

a
g
e

2
7

T
h
is

is
th

e
ti
tl
e

/
k
e
y

to
th

e
ta

b
le

o
n

p
2
7
.
T

h
is

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n
c
le

a
r.

A
m

e
n
d

w
it
h

th
is

a
s

th
e

ti
tl
e

/
k
e
y

o
f

th
e

ta
b
le

;
‘T
h
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
fe
a
tu
re
s
c
a
n
b
e
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
in
to
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
to
im
p
ro
v
e

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
fo
r
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
a
t
d
if
fe
re
n
t
s
c
a
le
s
’.

2
.0

4
.0

2
.0

2
.0

1
P

a
g
e

2
9

U
n
d
e
r

th
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

o
n

o
v
e
rc

o
m

in
g

b
a
rr

ie
rs

to
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t,

a
d
d
;
‘G
o
o
d
d
e
s
ig
n
w
il
l
li
m
it
b
a
rr
ie
rs
to

e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
.
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
w
h
e
re
b
a
rr
ie
rs
c
a
n
n
o
t
b
e
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
o
u
t,
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
c
a
n

b
e
u
s
e
d
to
o
v
e
rc
o
m
e
th
e
m
;’

2
.0

4
.0

2
.0

3
P

a
g
e

3
0

In
th

e
s
e
c
o
n
d

c
o
lu

m
n
,
a
d
d

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
te

x
t

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

b
u
lle

t
p

o
in

ts
o
n

b
a
ts

a
n
d

g
re

a
t
c
re

s
te

d
n
e
w

ts
:

-
‘T
h
e
n
e
s
ts
a
n
d
e
g
g
s
o
f
a
ll
b
ir
d
s
a
re
p
ro
te
c
te
d
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e
n
e
s
ti
n
g
s
e
a
s
o
n
.
S
it
e
c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
o
f

s
c
ru
b
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
o
u
ts
id
e
th
e
b
re
e
d
in
g
s
e
a
s
o
n
.
F
a
il
u
re
to
d
o
s
o
c
o
u
ld
re
s
u
lt
in

le
g
a
l
im
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
d
e
la
y
in
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
.
A
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
b
u
il
d
in
g
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
b
ir
d
s

(p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
s
w
if
t
a
n
d
h
o
u
s
e
s
p
a
rr
o
w
)
h
a
v
e
d
e
c
li
n
e
d
in
re
c
e
n
t
y
e
a
rs
.
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
o
f
e
x
is
ti
n
g

a
n
d
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
n
e
w
n
e
s
ts
w
it
h
in
th
e
fa
b
ri
c
o
f
a
b
u
il
d
in
g
w
il
l
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
to
m
a
in
ta
in
in
g

e
x
is
ti
n
g
p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
s
.’

2
.0

4
.0

3
P

a
g
e

3
3

L
a
n
g
fo

rd
P

a
ri
s
h

C
o
u
n
c
il

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
fo

rm
a
t
u
n
c
le

a
r.

F
ir
s
t
c
o
lu

m
n

h
a
s

w
e
b
lin

k
–

th
is

is
a
lr
e
a
d
y

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n
,
s
o

d
e
le

te
.

S
h
o
u
ld

b
e

m
a
d
e

c
le

a
r

th
a
t
th

e
g

re
y

c
o

lu
m

n
is

th
e

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t,
a
n
d

th
e

o
th

e
r

c
o
lu

m
n
s

a
re

s
u
g
g

e
s
ti
o
n
s

o
f

h
o
w

th
e

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s

a
p
p
ly

to
d
if
fe

re
n
t
s
c
a
le

s
.
M

K
to

m
a
k
e

th
is

s
e
c
ti
o
n

m
o
re

v
is

u
a
lly

s
im

ila
r

to
o
th

e
r

c
h
e
c
k
lis

ts
a
n
d

c
le

a
re

r.
O

n
th

e
p
ro

te
c
te

d
s
p
e
c
ie

s
ro

w
(a

ll
c
o
lu

m
n
s
),

a
d
d
R
e
te
n
ti
o
n
/
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n

,
in

s
te

a
d

o
f

ju
s
t
m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
.

2
.0

4
.0

5
P

a
g

e
3
5

A
d
d

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
:

‘D
e
s
ig
n
in
g
fo
r
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
;
a
te
c
h
n
ic
a
l
g
u
id
e
fo
r
n
e
w
a
n
d
e
x
is
ti
n
g
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
.
B
a
t

C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
T
ru
s
t
a
n
d
R
IB
A
p
u
b
li
s
h
in
g
,
2
0
1
3
.
T
h
is
g
u
id
e
a
d
v
is
e
s
o
n
h
o
w
to
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te

p
ro
v
is
io
n
fo
r
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
w
it
h
in
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
.
It
lo
o
k
s
a
t
d
if
fe
re
n
t
b
u
il
d
in
g
re
li
a
n
t
s
p
e
c
ie
s
,

a
n
d
h
o
w
th
e
ir
h
a
b
it
a
t
p
ro
v
is
io
n
c
a
n
b
e
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
in
to
d
e
s
ig
n
s
.

D
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
th
ro
u
g
h
g
re
e
n
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
,
C
IR
IA
,
2
0
1
1
.’

2
.0

6
.0

5
.0

5
-

2
.0

6
.0

5
.0

6
R

e
m

o
v
e

th
e
s
e

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

(t
o
o

d
e
ta

ile
d
)

to
g

e
th

e
r

w
it
h

fi
g

s
2
.5

5
,
2
.5

6
a
n
d

2
.5

7

Agenda Item 10
Page 60



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
a
g

e
5
7

2
.0

7
.0

1
.0

9
P

a
g

e
6
4

R
e
m

o
v
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

c
o
lu

m
n

o
f

th
e

ta
b
le

w
it
h

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s

to
th

e
B

u
ild

in
g

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

2
.0

7
.0

2
.0

2
.0

2
P

a
g

e
6
8

F
ir
s
t

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

a
s

a
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t

F
if
th

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
b
e

m
o
v
e
d

a
n
d

b
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

A
d
d

te
x
t

a
ft

e
r

th
e

h
e
a
d
in

g
:

‘C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
:

-
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
:
(a

n
d

th
e
n

b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
1

to
re

a
d

‘E
n
e
rg
y
d
e
m
a
n
d
fo
r
h
e
a
ti
n
g
c
a
n
b
e
re
d
u
c
e
d

b
y
(…
)’
..
a
n
d

2
to

re
a
d

‘o
v
e
rh
e
a
ti
n
g
in
c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l
a
n
d
p
u
b
li
c
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
th
a
t
a
re
in

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
u
s
e
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t
th
e
d
a
y
c
a
n
b
e
re
d
u
c
e
d
b
y
a
v
o
id
in
g
(…
)’

)
-

s
h
a
d
in

g
o
r

o
th

e
r

s
o
la

r
c
o
n
tr

o
l
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
:
(b

u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
3

to
re

a
d

‘s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
in

th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
to
a
v
o
id
s
u
m
m
e
r
o
v
e
rh
e
a
ti
n
g

.
T

h
is

(…
)’
)

-
th

e
rm

a
l
m

a
s
s
:
(b

u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
4

to
re

a
d

‘
o
v
e
rh
e
a
ti
n
g
in
s
u
m
m
e
r
m
o
n
th
s
a
n
d
h
e
a
ti
n
g

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t
in
w
in
te
r
m
o
n
th
s
c
a
n
b
e
re
d
u
c
e
d
b
y
in
c
lu
d
in
g
(…
)’

)
-

n
a
tu

ra
l
lig

h
t
(b

u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
5

to
re

a
d
‘d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
li
v
in
g
ro
o
m
s
(…
)
c
a
n
re
d
u
c
e
n
e
e
d
fo
r

a
rt
if
ic
ia
l
li
g
h
ti
n
g
’)
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t
fa
b
ri
c
a
n
d
th
e
rm
a
l
b
ri
d
g
in
g
(b
u
ll
e
t
p
o
in
t
6
)’

2
.0

7
.0

2
.0

2
.0

3
P

a
g

e
6
9

A
d
d

te
x
t

a
ft

e
r

th
e

h
e
a
d
in

g
:

‘C
a
rb
o
n
c
o
m
p
li
a
n
c
e
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
w
h
ic
h
re
d
u
c
e
c
a
rb
o
n
d
io
x
id
e
e
m
is
s
io
n
s
a
re
:’

R
e
m

o
v
e

w
o
rd

‘s
p
e
c
if
y
’
fr

o
m

th
e

fi
rs

t
3

b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

ts

2
.0

7
.0

2
.0

2
.0

5
P

a
g

e
7
0

A
d
d

h
e
a
d
in

g
:
‘W
a
te
r
E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
’

2
.0

7
.0

2
.0

3
.0

2
P

a
g

e
7
2

A
d
d

h
e
a
d
in

g
:
‘E
n
e
rg
y
a
n
d
W
a
te
r
E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
’

Agenda Item 10
Page 61



Agenda Item 10
Page 62



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
3

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

H
is

to
ri
c

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t
S

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

3
.0

2
.0

5
-3

0
.2

1
0

P
a
g

e
s

4
-5

D
L
A

C
u
t

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

3
.0

2
.0

5
–

3
.0

2
.1

0
a
s

th
e
y

re
p
e
a
t
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

3
.0

4
.1

2
P

a
g

e
1
0

E
n
g

lis
h

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

C
h
a
n
g

e
re

fe
re

n
c
e

to
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

A
re

a
C

o
n
s
e
n
t

to
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
e
rm
is
s
io
n

3
.0

7
.0

6
P

a
g

e
1
9

C
h
a
n
g

e
'D

e
s
ig

n
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t
4
:
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l
A

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
't

o
'th

e
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

A
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
s

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t'

C
h
e
c
k
lis

t
o
f

K
e
y

D
e
s
ig

n
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

P
a
g

e
3
1

C
h
a
n
g

e
'M

a
in

D
e
s
ig

n
G

u
id

e
'
to

'P
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
P

ri
n
c
ip

a
ls

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t'

C
h
e
c
k
lis

t
o
f

K
e
y

D
e
s
ig

n
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

P
a
g

e
3
1

E
n
g

lis
h

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g

to
c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
‘D
o
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
ta
k
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
o
f
a
n
y
is
s
u
e
s
re
s
u
lt
in
g

fr
o
m
th
e
s
e
tt
in
g
’

Agenda Item 10
Page 63



Agenda Item 10
Page 64



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
4

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

P
u

b
lic

A
rt

S
u
p

p
le

m
e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

B
e
fo

re
4
.0

1
.0

1
(P

a
g

e
1
)

D
a
v
id

L
o
c
k

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

A
d
d

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

S
u
m

m
a
ry

to
s
e
c
ti
o
n

fo
r

c
la

ri
ty

w
it
h

w
o
rd

in
g

a
s

b
e
lo

w
:

C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
th
e
in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
in
to
n
e
w

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
a
c
ro
s
s
th
e
a
re
a
.
It
is
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
th
a
t
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
a
n
d
p
ro
m
o
te
rs

o
f
p
ro
je
c
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
ta
k
e
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
fo
r
th
e
fu
n
d
in
g
,
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
e
it
h
e
r
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
o
r
th
ro
u
g
h
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t
a
g
e
n
ts
,
in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
w
it
h
T
o
w
n
a
n
d
P
a
ri
s
h

C
o
u
n
c
il
s
a
n
d
C
e
n
tr
a
l
B
e
d
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
.

T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
w
o
u
ld
re
q
u
ir
e
p
u
b
li
c
a
rt
to
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
o
n
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
:

R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
1
0
0
o
r
m
o
re
d
w
e
ll
in
g
s
.

O
th
e
r
p
u
b
li
c
fa
c
in
g
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
w
h
e
re
th
e
fl
o
o
r
a
re
a
to
b
e
b
u
il
t
is
1
,0
0
0
m
2
o
r
m
o
re
.

T
h
is

c
o
u
ld

in
c
lu
d
e

re
ta
il
in
g
,

le
is
u
re
,

p
u
b
li
c

b
u
il
d
in
g
s
,

a
n
d

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
ts
.

M
a
jo
r
P
ro
je
c
ts
/S
c
h
e
m
e
s

a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
o
f
n
e
w
p
u
b
li
c
s
p
a
c
e
s
fo
rm
in
g
a
n
in
te
g
ra
l
p
a
rt
o
f
n
e
w

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
in
e
x
is
ti
n
g
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
s

a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
o
f
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t
h
ig
h
w
a
y
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
in
e
x
is
ti
n
g
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
s

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
P
la
n
s

If
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
is
re
q
u
ir
e
d
a
s
p
a
rt
o
f
a
s
c
h
e
m
e
D
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
w
il
l
n
e
e
d
to
w
o
rk
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
’s

P
la
n
n
in
g
O
ff
ic
e
rs
a
n
d
A
rt
s
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
O
ff
ic
e
r
to
p
ro
d
u
c
e
a
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
P
la
n
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t

th
e
p
u
b
li
c
a
rt
is
w
e
ll
p
ro
v
id
e
d
.

Agenda Item 10
Page 65



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
P
la
n
s
a
re

in
te
n
d
e
d
to

b
e
c
o
n
c
is
e
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts

o
u
tl
in
in
g
a
w
e
ll
th
o
u
g
h
t
o
u
t

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
a
n
d
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t
to
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
.

F
u
ll
d
e
ta
il
s
o
f
w
h
a
t
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
P
la
n
s
fo
r
D
e
ta
il
e
d
a
n
d
O
u
tl
in
e
P
la
n
n
in
g

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
c
a
n
b
e
fo
u
n
d
in
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
4
.0
2
.0
4
a
n
d
4
.0
2
.0
5
o
n
p
a
g
e
1
2

K
e
y
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
in
c
lu
d
e
:

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
in
te
g
ra
te
d
in
to
a
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
d
e
s
ig
n
p
ro
c
e
s
s
fr
o
m
th
e
e
a
rl
y

d
e
s
ig
n
s
ta
g
e
s
a
n
d
b
e
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
in
M
a
s
te
r
P
la
n
s
a
n
d
D
e
s
ig
n
B
ri
e
fs
.

W
h
e
re
p
o
s
s
ib
le
a
rt
is
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
a
p
p
o
in
te
d
a
s
a
n
in
te
g
ra
l
p
a
rt
o
f
a
d
e
s
ig
n
te
a
m
.

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
s
h
o
u
ld

b
e
s
it
e
s
p
e
c
if
ic

re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
to

th
e
p
la
c
e
a
n
d
th
e
p
e
o
p
le
.

C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
g
iv
e
n
to
lo
c
a
l
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
,
h
is
to
ry
a
n
d
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
n
e
s
s
o
f

a
rt
w
o
rk
to
it
s
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
u
n
iq
u
e
ly
c
re
a
te
d
a
n
d
o
f
h
ig
h
q
u
a
li
ty
.

F
u
rt
h
e
r
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
c
a
n
b
e
fo
u
n
d
o
n
p
a
g
e
s
1
4
a
n
d
1
5
.

4
.0

2
.0

1
P

a
g

e
1
0

D
L
A

H
ig

h
lig

h
t
te

x
t
a
t
4
.0

2
.0

1

F
ig

4
.2

2
P

a
g

e
1
1

In
s
e
rt

im
a
g

e
o
f

L
e
y
to

n
J
u
b
ile

e
P

a
rk

B
ri
d
g

e
A

rt
is

t
T

im
W

a
rd

to
g

o
in

to
fi
g

u
re

4
.2

2

4
.0

2
.0

5
P

a
g

e
1
2

D
a
v
id

L
o
c
k

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

In
s
e
rt

te
x
t

a
s

fo
llo

w
s

in
O

u
tl
in

e
P

la
n
n
in

g
A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
e
c
ti
o
n

:

F
o
r
o
u
tl
in
e
P
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
o
f
b
e
tw
e
e
n
1
0
0
a
n
d
u
p
to
3
5
0
h
o
m
e
s
a

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
S
ta
te
m
e
n
t
w
il
l
n
e
e
d
to
b
e
p
re
p
a
re
d
c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
:

Agenda Item 10
Page 66



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

T
h
e
n
a
tu
re
a
n
d
p
u
rp
o
s
e
o
f
th
e
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
a
n
d
th
e
ir
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
to
th
e

s
it
e
in
c
lu
d
in
g
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
a
im
s
a
n
d
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
.

P
re
fe
rr
e
d
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
th
e
p
u
b
li
c
a
rt
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
in
te
rm
s
o
f
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
a
n
d
s
p
a
c
e
s

(t
h
is
c
o
u
ld
b
e
in
th
e
fo
rm

o
f
a
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
p
la
n
).

A
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
b
ri
e
f
e
x
p
la
in
in
g
h
o
w
a
rt
is
ts
a
re
(o
r
c
a
n
)
to
b
e
in
v
o
lv
e
d
d
e
s
c
ri
b
in
g
th
e

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
p
ro
c
e
s
s
fo
r
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
li
a
is
o
n
a
n
d
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

F
o
r
O
u
tl
in
e
P
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
3
5
0
h
o
m
e
s
a
n
d
a
b
o
v
e
a
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
P
la
n
w
il
l
n
e
e
d
to
b
e

p
re
p
a
re
d
c
o
n
ta
in
in
g
th
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
:

T
h
e

n
a
tu

re
a
n
d

p
u
rp

o
s
e

o
f

th
e

P
u
b
lic

A
rt

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

th
e
ir

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

to
th

e
s
it
e

in
c
lu

d
in

g
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
a
im

s
a
n
d

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

.

Agenda Item 10
Page 67



Agenda Item 10
Page 68



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
5

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

R
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l
S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

5
.0

1
.0

4
P

a
g

e
2

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
‘s

tr
a
te

g
ic

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
’
to

‘m
a
in
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
’

to
e
n
s
u
re

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t
re

fe
re

n
c
in

g

5
.0

1
.0

5
P

a
g

e
2

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

R
e
w

o
rd

s
e
n
te

n
c
e

–
to

o
c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
to

‘T
h
is
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t
p
ro
v
id
e
s
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
fo
r
th
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
o
f
h
ig
h
q
u
a
li
ty
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
.
It
in
c
lu
d
e
s
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
’

5
.0

1
.0

6
P

a
g

e
3

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

R
e
m

o
v
e

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

5
.0

2
.0

1
P

a
g

e
3

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

D
e
le

te
fr

o
m

‘,
h
a
v
in

g
n
o

p
a
s
s
iv

e
…

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r’
s

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
”

5
.0

2
.0

1
P

a
g

e
3

D
M

D
if
fe

re
n
c
e

b
e
tw

e
e
n

2
1
m

s
ti
p
u
la

te
d

fo
r

b
a
c
k

to
b
a
c
k

d
is

ta
n
c
e

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g
‘…
b
u
t
th
e
re
m
a
y
b
e
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
w
h
e
re
lo
w
e
r
d
is
ta
n
c
e
s
a
re
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
.’

5
.0

2
.0

1
P

a
g

e
3

D
L
A

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
c
la

ri
fy

th
a
t

b
a
c
k

to
b
a
c
k

d
is

ta
n
c
e
s

w
ill

b
e

e
n
fo

rc
e
d

5
.0

2
.0

3
P

a
g

e
3

D
M

R
e
m

o
v
e

th
is

s
e
c
ti
o
n

5
.0

2
.0

4
P

a
g

e
3

D
M

C
h
a
n
g

e
re

fe
re

n
c
e

fr
o
m

2
.5

s
to

re
y

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
to

3
s
to

re
y

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s

5
.0

2
.0

1
-5

.0
2
.0

4
P

a
g

e
3

D
L
A

H
ig

h
lig

h
t
k
e
y

fi
g

u
re

s
(2

1
m

/1
.8

m
e
tc

)

5
.0

3
.0

2
P

a
g

e
5

D
M

In
c
lu

d
e

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
o
f

p
o
s
s
ib

le
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

fe
a
tu

re
s
e
.g
.
g
a
te
s
,
fe
n
c
e
s
,
w
a
ll
s
,
p
la
n
ti
n
g

5
.0

4
P

a
g

e
6

S
h
ill

in
g

to
n

V
ill

a
g

e
D

e
s
ig

n
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

A
d
d

fu
rt

h
e
r

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
te

n
u
re

b
lin

d
n
e
s
s

a
n
d

th
e

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

o
f
s
o
c
ia

l
h
o
u
s
in

g

5
.0

4
.0

1
C

B
C

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
c
ill

to
s
il
l

Agenda Item 10
Page 69



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
a
g

e
6

5
.0

5
.0

5
P

a
g

e
8

M
ilt

o
n

K
e
y
n
e
s

C
o
u
n
c
il

U
rb

a
n

D
e
s
ig

n
T

e
a
m

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g

“T
h
e

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
m

in
im

u
m

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
fo
r
n
e
w
h
o
u
s
in
g
a
re

b
a
s
e
d
…

…
”

5
.0

5
.0

5
P

a
g

e
8

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
C

h
a
n
g

e
ta

b
le

h
e
a
d
in

g
a
t
5
.0

5
.0

5
to

re
a
d

‘S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d

G
ro

s
s

In
te

rn
a
l
F

lo
o
r

A
re

a
’

5
.0

5
.0

6
P

a
g

e
9

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis

e
th

re
e

ta
b
le

s
in

to
o
n
e

ta
b
le

(s
e
e

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

D
)

5
.0

5
.0

6
P

a
g

e
9

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
C

la
ri
fy

th
a
t
th

e
s
e

a
re
m
in
im
u
m

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
ra

th
e
r

th
a
n

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l
o
r

a
d
v
o
c
a
te

d
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
a
s

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

w
o
rd

e
d

in
th

e
ta

b
le

h
e
a
d
in

g
s

5
.0

5
.0

6
P

a
g

e
9

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
C

h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
re

a
d
T
h
e
s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
fr
o
m
R
IB
A
p
ro
v
id
e
a
u
s
e
fu
l
g
u
id
e
to
o
v
e
ra
ll

d
im
e
n
s
io
n
s
b
u
t
it
is
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
th
a
t
th
e
m
in
im
u
m
b
e
d
ro
o
m
a
n
d
c
o
o
k
in
g
,
e
a
ti
n
g
,
li
v
in
g
(C
E
L
)

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
w
il
l
b
e
c
o
m
p
li
e
d
w
it
h
to
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
s
u
it
a
b
ly
s
iz
e
d
ro
o
m
s
a
re
d
e
li
v
e
re
d
.
T
h
e

c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
s
e
a
n
d
th
e
o
v
e
ra
ll
s
p
a
c
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
is
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
a
t
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
e
r’
s

d
is
c
re
ti
o
n

5
.0

5
.1

5
P

a
g

e
1
1

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
to

“w
il
l
a
ll
o
w

fo
r

th
e

re
a
lis

ti
c
…

”

5
.0

5
.1

6
-5

.0
5
.2

2
C

B
C

P
la

n
n
in

g
In

s
e
rt

m
o
re

im
a
g

e
s

o
f

h
ig

h
q

u
a
lit

y
b
in

s
to

ra
g
e

in
c
lu

d
in

g
c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l
b
in

s
to

ra
g

e

5
.0

5
.1

7
C

B
C

P
la

n
n
in

g
A

d
d

m
o
re

d
e
ta

il
a
b
o
u
t
w

h
e
e
lie

b
in

s
iz

e
s

a
n
d

th
e

n
e
e
d

to
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

a
th

ir
d

g
re

e
n

w
a
s
te

w
h
e
e
lie

b
in

,
a

fo
o
d

w
a
s
te

c
a
d
d
y

a
n
d

g
re

e
n

g
a
rd

e
n

s
a
c
k
s

if
p
ro

v
id

e
d
.

5
.0

6
P

a
g

e
1
3

D
L
A

H
ig

h
lig

h
t
a
ll

fi
g

u
re

s
a
n
d

b
re

a
k

te
x
t

w
it
h

h
e
a
d
in

g
s

fo
r

c
la

ri
ty

5
.0

6
.0

4
P

a
g

e
1
3

M
ilt

o
n

K
e
y
n
e
s

U
rb

a
n

D
e
s
ig

n
T

e
a
m

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
R
e
a
r
g
a
rd
e
n
s
fo
r
th
re
e
a
n
d
fo
u
r
b
e
d
ro
o
m
h
o
m
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
id
e
a
ll
y
b
e
a
b
o
u
t

1
0
0
s
q
m
b
u
t
g
e
n
e
ra
ll
y
n
o
le
s
s
th
a
n
6
0
s
q
m

5
.0

6
.0

4
T

a
b
le

P
a
g

e
1
3

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
C

h
a
n
g

e
ta

b
le

h
e
a
d
in

g
s

to
M
in
im
u
m
a
re
a
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
a
5
m
w
id
th

a
n
d
M
in
im
u
m
D
e
p
th

5
.0

6
.0

4
T

a
b
le

P
a
g

e
1
3

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ill

m
o
re

D
e
le

te
fi
n
a
l
ro

w
o
f

ta
b
le

re
la

ti
n
g

to
4

b
e
d
ro

o
m

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
(7

0
s
q
m

/1
4
m

d
e
p
th

)
a
n
d

a
d
d

3
/
4

u
n
d
e
r

Agenda Item 10
Page 70



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

th
e

N
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

B
e
d
ro

o
m

s
c
o
lu

m
n

5
.0

6
.0

4
P

a
g

e
1
3

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

M
K

U
D

C
h
a
n
g

e
te

x
t
to

s
ta

te
th

a
t
m

in
im

u
m

g
a
rd

e
n

d
e
p
th

s
a
re

fo
r

th
e

c
re

a
ti
o
n

o
f

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

s
iz

e
d

g
a
rd

e
n
s

n
o
t
ju

s
t
fo

r
p
ri
v
a
c
y

a
s

th
e
re

m
a
y

b
e

re
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g

c
o
u
rt

s
e
tc

.
‘T

h
e

m
in

im
u
m

d
e
p
th

fo
r

a
ll

re
a
r

g
a
rd

e
n
s

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

1
0
m

to
e
n
s
u
re
b
o
th

th
a
t

s
u
it
a
b
le

le
v
e
ls

o
f

p
ri
v
a
c
y

a
re

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
,
a
n
d
th
a
t
re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
s
iz
e
d
g
a
rd
e
n
s
a
re
c
re
a
te
d
.’

T
a
b
le

P
a
g

e
1
3

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

L
im

it
g

a
rd

e
n

d
e
p
th

s
in

ta
b
le

to
1
2
m

o
n

th
re

e
a
n
d

fo
u
r

b
e
d
ro

o
m

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

a
n
d

d
e
fa

u
lt

to
m

in
im

u
m

a
re

a
s

F
ig

u
re

1
2

P
a
g

e
1
4

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
E

d
it

ill
u
s
tr

a
ti
o
n

to
re

fl
e
c
t
re

v
is

e
d

d
e
p
th

s
in

5
.0

6
.0

4

5
.0

7
.0

2
P

a
g

e
1
6

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

A
d
d

te
x
t

‘F
ro

n
ta

g
e

a
m

e
n
it
y

s
p
a
c
e
o
r
s
e
tb
a
c
k
’

5
.0

7
P

a
g

e
s

1
6
-1

7
B

a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

A
d
d

in
fi
g

1
.4

4
,
1
.4

5
a
n
d

1
.4

6
fr

o
m

p
g

3
5

o
f
th

e
P

la
c
e
m

a
k
in

g
S

u
p
p
.

5
.0

8
P

a
g

e
1
8

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

A
d
d

in
n
e
w

s
e
c
ti
o
n

c
a
lle

d
A

c
ti
v
e

F
ro

n
ta

g
e
s

(f
ro

m
p
g

3
5

o
f

th
e

P
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
S

u
p
p
)

5
.0

8
P

a
g

e
1
8

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

o
n

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s

to
a
llo

w
fo

r
o
th

e
r

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

in
a
d
d
it
io

n
to

b
ri
c
k

o
r

h
e
d
g

in
g

5
.0

9
.1

2
-1

5
P

a
g

e
s

2
3
-2

4
B

a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

R
e
w

o
rd

to
c
la

ri
fy

th
a
t
th

e
s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

s
to

re
y
s

is
in

re
la

ti
o
n

to
h
o
u
s
e
s

5
.1

1
.1

8
P

a
g

e
3
1

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
c
ill

to
s
il
l

F
ig

6
1

P
a
g

e
3
3

N
ic

o
la

s
T

y
e

A
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

M
a
k
e

c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n

to
c
a
p
ti
o
n

e
rr

o
r

S
h
o
u
ld

re
a
d
‘
N
ic
o
la
s
’

n
o
t

‘N
ic

h
o
la

s
’

5
.1

1
.2

6
P

a
g

e
3
4

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s

to
R

IB
A

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

L
iv

in
g

R
o
o
fs

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

c
ro

s
s

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
re

le
v
a
n
t

s
e
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
G

I
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

5
.1

1
.3

2
P

a
g

e
3
4

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
A

ft
e
r

th
is

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
,
in

s
e
rt

a
n
e
w

s
u
b

s
e
c
ti
o
n

in
c
h
im

n
e
y
s

re
q

u
ir
in

g
th

e
m

a
s

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

fo
r

n
e
w

a
n
d

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
o
u
s
e
s

w
it
h

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

im
a
g

e
s

o
f
g

o
o
d

e
x
a
m

p
le

s

5
.1

3
P

a
g

e
4
3

D
L
A

A
d
d

h
ig

h
lig

h
t

a
t
5
.1

3

Agenda Item 10
Page 71



Agenda Item 10
Page 72



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
6

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

A
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a
ti
n

g
S

p
e

c
if
ic

H
o
u

s
in

g
N

e
e

d
s

S
u
p
p

le
m

e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

6
.0

2
P

a
g

e
3

D
L
A

H
ig

h
lig

h
t
te

x
t
to

m
a
k
e

m
o
re

u
s
e
r

fr
ie

n
d
ly

a
t

6
.0

2

6
.0

2
P

a
g

e
4

D
L
A

A
d
d

c
a
p
ti
o
n

to
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s

ta
b
le

a
t
6
.0

2
‘K
e
y
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
fo
r
E
x
tr
a
C
a
re
H
o
u
s
in
g
’

6
.0

5
P

a
g
e

1
4

C
B

C
P

la
n

n
in

g
-

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g

to
s
a
y

th
a
t
p
a
d
d
o
c
k

s
p
a
c
e

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
w

h
e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

G
e
n
e
ra

l
D

L
A

A
d
d

lo
w

e
r

o
rd

e
r

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

n
u
m

b
e
rs

to
A

S
H

N
(6

)

Agenda Item 10
Page 73



Agenda Item 10
Page 74



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
7

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

A
lt
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
a
n

d
E

x
te

n
s
io

n
s

S
u
p

p
le

m
e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

7
.1

P
a
g

e
3

R
S

P
B

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

b
a
c
k

to
th

e
G

I
S

e
c
ti
o
n

(2
)

a
t
7
.1

A
ft

e
r

7
.0

2
.0

6
P

a
g

e
3

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

n
e
w

h
e
a
d
in

g
re

la
ti
n
g

to
h
a
b
it
a
ts

fo
r

b
ir
d
s

a
n
d

te
x
t
re

q
u
ir
in

g
th

e
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

o
f

b
a
t
ro

o
s
ts

a
n
d

a
c
ti
v
e

b
ir
d

n
e
s
ts

s
ta

ti
n
g

th
a
t
th

is
is

a
le

g
a
l
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
.

M
e
n
ti
o
n

th
a
t
th

is
a
ls

o
in

c
lu

d
e
s

th
e

e
re

c
ti
o
n

o
f

s
c
a
ff

o
ld

a
n
d

s
a
fe

ty
n
e
tt

in
g

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

s
u
m

m
e
r

w
h
ic

h
c
a
n

p
re

v
e
n
t

a
c
c
e
s
s

a
n
d

e
n
s
n
a
re

b
a
ts

/b
ir
d
s

w
it
h

fa
ta

l
c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s

7
.0

3
P

a
g

e
5

H
e
a
rn

e
H

o
m

e
s

D
L
A

In
s
e
rt

s
e
c
ti
o
n

o
r

ta
b
le

o
n

P
e
rm

it
te

d
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
ri
g

h
ts

w
it
h

b
a

s
ic

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

a
s
o
u
rc

e
s

o
f

fu
rt

h
e
r

m
o
re

d
e
ta

ile
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

7
.0

3
.0

6
P

a
g

e
6

C
B

C
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

S
ta

te
s

th
a
t

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s

m
a
y

b
e

b
u
ilt

u
p

to
th

e
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

a
t

7
.0

3
.0

6
R

e
w

o
rd

to
s
a
y

‘A
m

in
im

u
m

1
m

e
tr

e
d
is

ta
n
c
e

fr
o
m

th
e

c
o
m

m
o
n

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

a
t

g
ro
u
n
d

fl
o
o
r

h
e
ig

h
t’

D
e
le

te
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

b
e
g

in
n
in

g
‘S

in
g

le
s
to

re
y

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s

o
n

th
e

g
ro

u
n
d

fl
o
o
r…

.’
a
n
d

re
p
la

c
e

w
it
h

‘T
h
e
re
m
a
y
b
e
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
w
h
e
re
b
y
s
in
g
le
s
to
re
y
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
o
n
th
e
g
ro
u
n
d

fl
o
o
r
(P
D
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
n
o
t
a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le
)
o
r
th
e
g
ro
u
n
d
fl
o
o
r
e
le
m
e
n
t
o
f
a
tw
o
s
to
re
y
e
x
te
n
s
io
n

m
a
y
b
e
b
u
il
t
u
p
to
th
e
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

7
.0

3
.0

9
P

a
g

e
7

C
B

C
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g

“A
m

in
im

u
m

g
a
p

o
f

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
1

m
e
tr

e
b
e
tw

e
e
n

a
tw

o
-s

to
re

y
a
n
d
s
in
g
le
s
to
re
y

s
id

e
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
a
n
d

th
e

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

…
.”

A
ft

e
r

7
.0

3
.1

3
P

a
g

e
7

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s

to
b
ir
d
s

a
s

b
e
lo

w
in

a
n
e
w

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

‘A
ll
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
a
n
d
re
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
s
s
h
o
u
ld
re
ta
in
a
n
y
e
x
is
ti
n
g
b
ir
d
/b
a
t
u
s
e
a
n
d
u
s
e
th
e

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
to
p
ro
v
id
e
n
e
w
a
n
d
o
r
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
p
ro
v
is
io
n
.
A
ll
o
f
th
is
c
a
n
b
e
a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
th
ro
u
g
h

u
s
e
o
f
in
te
g
ra
te
d
b
ri
c
k
s
.’

Agenda Item 10
Page 75



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

7
.0

3
.2

8
P

a
g

e
9

C
B

C
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

D
e
le

te
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

o
n

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s

in
th

e
G

re
e
n

B
e
lt

a
n
d

re
p
la

c
e

w
it
h

N
o
tw
it
h
s
ta
n
d
in
g
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
a
d
v
ic
e
a
b
o
v
e
,
a
n
a
d
d
it
io
n
to
a
d
w
e
ll
in
g
in
th
e
G
re
e
n
B
e
lt
w
il
l
n
o
t

b
e
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
if
it
re
s
u
lt
s
in
a
d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
a
d
d
it
io
n
.

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t
p
o
li
c
y
in
th
e
fo
rm

o
f
th
e
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
y
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
(N
P
P
F
)
(2
0
1
2
)

s
ta
te
s
th
a
t
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
s
h
o
u
ld
n
o
t
re
s
u
lt
in
d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
a
d
d
it
io
n
s
o
v
e
r
a
n
d
a
b
o
v
e
th
e

s
iz
e
o
f
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
b
u
il
d
in
g
.
In
th
e
c
a
s
e
o
f
a
d
w
e
ll
in
g
h
o
u
s
e
,
th
e
te
rm

"
O
ri
g
in
a
l

D
w
e
ll
in
g
h
o
u
s
e
"
’
m
e
a
n
s
th
e
h
o
u
s
e
a
s
it
w
a
s
fi
rs
t
b
u
il
t
o
r
a
s
it
s
to
o
d
o
n
th
e
1
s
t
J
u
ly
1
9
4
8
(i
f
it

w
a
s
b
u
il
t
b
e
fo
re
th
a
t
d
a
te
).

A
s
w
e
ll
a
s
th
e
e
x
te
rn
a
l
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
a
n
d
d
e
s
ig
n
o
f
a
n
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
in
o
r
a
d
ja
c
e
n
t
to
th
e
G
re
e
n

B
e
lt
,
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
s
h
o
u
ld
n
o
t
a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
a
ff
e
c
t
th
e
o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
o
r
v
is
u
a
l
a
m
e
n
it
y
o
f
th
e
a
re
a
.

A
s
a
g
u
id
in
g
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
,
in
o
rd
e
r
to
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
a
s
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
b
u
il
d
in
g

s
h
o
u
ld
n
o
t
b
e
a
d
d
e
d
to
b
y
m
o
re
th
a
n
6
0
%
.
T
h
e
im
p
a
c
t
o
f
th
e
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
in
te
rm
s
o
f

fl
o
o
rs
p
a
c
e
,
v
o
lu
m
e
,
m
a
s
s
in
g
a
n
d
d
e
s
ig
n
w
il
l
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
.

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
d
e
m
o
li
ti
o
n
s
c
a
n
b
e
d
e
d
u
c
te
d
if
th
e
y
a
re
a
n
in
te
g
ra
l
p
a
rt
o
f
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
b
u
il
d
in
g

(d
w
e
ll
in
g
).

G
iv
e
n
th
e
s
e
n
s
it
iv
it
y
o
f
G
re
e
n
B
e
lt
re
la
te
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
it
is
im
p
o
rt
a
n
t
to
d
is
c
u
s
s
y
o
u
r

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l
w
it
h
th
e
P
la
n
n
in
g
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t
a
t
th
e
e
a
rl
ie
s
t
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
.

N
o
te
s

T
h
e
L
P
A
's
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
is
b
a
s
e
d
o
n
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l
a
d
v
ic
e
w
it
h
in
th
e
N
P
P
F
a
t
p
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
8
9
w
h
ic
h

s
ta
te
s
th
a
t
't
h
e
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
o
r
a
lt
e
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
a
b
u
il
d
in
g
p
ro
v
id
e
d
th
a
t
it
d
o
e
s
n
o
t
re
s
u
lt
in

d
is
p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
a
d
d
it
io
n
s
o
v
e
r
a
n
d
a
b
o
v
e
th
e
s
iz
e
o
f
th
e
o
ri
g
in
a
l
b
u
il
d
in
g
'
is
n
o
t

in
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
in
th
e
G
re
e
n
B
e
lt
.

F
o
r
p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
o
f
a
p
p
ly
in
g
th
e
6
0
%
ru
le
,
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
s
to
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
w
il
l
u
s
u
a
ll
y
re
fe
r
to
a
d
d
it
io
n
s

th
a
t
a
re
p
h
y
s
ic
a
ll
y
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
to
th
e
h
o
s
t
b
u
il
d
in
g
.

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
in
c
e
rt
a
in
c
a
s
e
s
,
d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
o
n
th
e
p
ro
x
im
it
y
o
f
a
n
y
o
u
tb
u
il
d
in
g
(s
),
th
e
L
P
A
w
il
l

c
o
n
s
id
e
r,
a
s
a
m
a
tt
e
r
o
f
fa
c
t
a
n
d
d
e
g
re
e
,
w
h
e
th
e
r
o
r
n
o
t
to
in
c
lu
d
e
s
u
c
h
o
u
tb
u
il
d
in
g
s
w
it
h
in

th
e
c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s
.

Agenda Item 10
Page 76



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

T
h
e
s
a
m
e
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
w
il
l
b
e
u
s
e
d
fo
r
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t
b
u
il
d
in
g
s
in
th
e
G
re
e
n
B
e
lt
.

7
.0

4
.0

2
P

a
g

e
1
0

C
B

C
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

D
e
le

te
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

s
ta

rt
in

g
“A

s
a

g
e
n
e
ra

l
ru

le
,
tw

o
s
to

re
y

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
…

.”
a
n
d

re
p
la

c
e

w
it
h

“A
s
a

m
in
im
u
m
,
th
e
re
m
u
s
t
b
e
a
o
n
e
m
e
tr
e
g
a
p
,
p
re
fe
ra
b
ly
m
o
re
a
t
fi
rs
t
fl
o
o
r
le
v
e
l
a
n
d
a
b
o
v
e
’

Agenda Item 10
Page 77



Agenda Item 10
Page 78



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
8

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

L
a

rg
e

r
F

o
o

tp
ri
n

t
B

u
ild

in
g
s

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

G
e
n
e
ra

l
D

L
A

R
e
p
la

c
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

p
h
o
to

s
w

it
h

h
ig

h
e
r

re
s
o
lu

ti
o
n

o
n
e
s

fo
r

fi
n
a
l
v
e
rs

io
n

0
8

.0
4

.0
1

P
a

g
e

9
/
E

n
d

o
f

S
e

c
ti
o

n
8

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s

to
R

IB
A

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

a
n
d

L
iv

in
g

R
o
o
fs

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

to
a

u
s
e
fu

l
lin

k
s

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

S
e
c
ti
o
n

8
-

L
iv

in
g

ro
o
fs

.o
rg

-
G

re
e
n
ro

o
fc

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
.c

o
m

-
C

re
a
ti
n
g

g
re

e
n

ro
o
fs

fo
r

in
v
e
rt

e
b
ra

te
s
,

a
b
e
s
t

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

g
u
id

e
B

u
g

lif
e

(d
o
w

n
lo

a
d
a
b
le

fr
o
m

w
e
b
s
it
e
).

0
8

.0
4

.0
1

P
a

g
e

9

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

te
x
t
to

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

p
o
in

t
G

w
h
ic

h
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s

th
e

G
re

e
n

R
o
o
f

s
e
c
ti
o
n

in
th

e
G

I
S

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

G
re
e
n
ro
o
fs
w
il
l
a
c
t
to
re
d
u
c
e
ru
n
o
ff
fr
o
m
la
rg
e
r
ro
o
fs
a
n
d
h
a
v
e
e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l
g
a
in
s
b
y

a
tt
ra
c
ti
n
g
a
n
d
e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
.
F
u
rt
h
e
r
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
g
re
e
n
ro
o
fs
is
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in

s
e
c
ti
o
n
2
.0
6
o
f
th
e
G
re
e
n
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
,
C
li
m
a
te
C
h
a
n
g
e
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le

B
u
il
d
in
g
s
S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t

F
ig

u
re

8
.1

0
P

a
g
e

9

R
e
p
la

c
e
‘S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

U
rb

a
n

D
ra

in
a
g

e
S

y
s
te

m
’
w

it
h
‘I
n
fi
lt
ra
ti
o
n
P
o
n
d
’

0
8

.0
4

.0
2

P
a

g
e

1
0

C
B

C
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

o
lic

y
T

e
a
m

In
c
lu

d
e

S
u
D

s
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t
tr

a
in

in
s
k
e
tc

h
e
s

a
n
d

te
x
t

(h
ig

h
lig

h
t
c
a
r

p
a
rk

a
re

a
s
)

A
d
d

te
x
t
to

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

8
.0

4
.0

2
,
p
o
in

t
D

:
T
h
e
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
o
f
w
a
te
r
ru
n
-o
ff
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
fr
o
m
th
e
s
o
u
rc
e
,
a
t
a
ll
s
c
a
le
s
a
c
ro
s
s

th
e
s
it
e
.
F
o
r
fu
rt
h
e
r
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
S
U
D
S
re
fe
r
to
s
e
c
ti
o
n
2
.0
6
o
f
th
e
G
re
e
n
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
,

C
li
m
a
te
C
h
a
n
g
e
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
a
n
d
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
B
u
il
d
in
g
s
S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t

8
.0

4
.0

3
P

a
g

e
1
1

D
L
A

H
ig

h
lig

h
t
c
o
lo

u
r

c
h
o
ic

e
a
s

k
e
y

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

8
.0

4
.0

3
P

a
g

e
1
1

D
L
A

A
d
d

s
u
b
-h

e
a
d
in

g
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

Agenda Item 10
Page 79



Agenda Item 10
Page 80



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
9

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

T
o

w
n

C
e

n
tr

e
V

it
a

lit
y

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

9
.2

.1
P

a
g

e
4

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

W
o
rd

in
g

c
h
a
n
g

e
to
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
e
d

fr
o
m

c
o
n
s
tr

ic
te

d

9
.2

P
a
g

e
5

b
e
fo

re
c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d
A
c
c
e
s
s
fo
r
a
ll
m
o
d
e
s

a
s

a
n

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
h
e
a
d
in

g

9
.2

.0
5

P
a
g

e
5

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
d
e
ta

ile
d

c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
t
9
.6

.1
0

‘F
u
rt
h
e
r
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
n
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
o
f
c
a
r
p
a
rk
in
g
is
g
iv
e
n
in
s
e
c
ti
o
n
9
.6
.1
0

9
.3

P
a
g

e
8

D
L
A

A
d
d

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
te

x
t
to

c
la

ri
fy

p
o
lic

y
s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
t
9
.3

‘F
u
rt
h
e
r
p
o
li
c
y
a
n
d
d
e
s
ig
n
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
c
a
n
b
e
fo
u
n
d
a
t:
’

9
.3

P
a
g

e
8

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

th
e
s
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
ti
tl
e
s

u
n
d
e
r

P
o
lic

y
h
e
a
d
in

g
-

M
a

n
u
a

l
fo

r
S

tr
e
e
ts

2
(2

0
1
0
)

&
L
o
c
a
l
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

P
la

n
3

9
.4

P
a
g

e
9

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
:
‘A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
s
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
,
c
y
c
le
,
p
u
b
li
c
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
a
n
d
v
e
h
ic
u
la
r
a
c
c
e
s
s

w
h
il
s
t
p
ro
v
id
in
g
c
y
c
le
a
n
d
c
a
r
p
a
rk
in
g
in
th
e
m
o
s
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
w
a
y
.’

9
.6

.1
P

a
g

e
1
1

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

D
e
le

te
“T

h
e

to
w

n
c
e
n
tr

e
s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

w
it
h
in

a
b
o
u
t

4
0
0

m
e
tr

e
s

w
a
lk

in
g

d
is

ta
n
c
e

fr
o
m

th
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
th

a
t

it
s
e
rv

e
s

–
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
fo

r
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
,
a
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
h
o
u
s
in

g
.”

a
n
d

re
p
la

c
e

w
it
h

“I
d
e
a
ll
y
to
w
n
o
r
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
c
e
n
tr
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
lo
c
a
te
d
w
it
h
in

w
a
lk
in
g
d
is
ta
n
c
e
o
f
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
e
s
p
e
c
ia
ll
y
s
h
e
lt
e
re
d
h
o
u
s
in
g
;
b
u
t
th
is
is
n
’t

a
lw
a
y
s
p
o
s
s
ib
le
w
it
h
la
rg
e
r
c
e
n
tr
e
s
”

9
.6

.1
P

a
g

e
1
1

E
n
g

lis
h

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

A
d
d

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
to

c
ro

s
s

re
fe

re
n

c
e

to
H

is
to

ri
c

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

‘T
a
k
e
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
o
f
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
g
iv
e
n
in
th
e
H
is
to
ri
c
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t
w
h
e
re

a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le
’

P
a
g

e
s

1
1

&
2
2

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

A
d
d

a
p
h
o
to

/s
o
f

c
o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
to

w
n

c
e
n
tr

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

9
.6

.3
P

a
g

e
1
3

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
C

y
c
le

a
n
d

P
u
b
lic

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
n
d

re
-a

lig
n

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

9
.6

.0
8

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d
re

s
s

n
u
m

b
e
ri
n
g

Agenda Item 10
Page 81



R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
a
g

e
1
5

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
w

a
lk

in
g
,

c
y
c
lin

g
a
n
d

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
P

u
b
lic

tr
a
n

s
p
o
rt

9
.6

.0
9

P
a
g

e
1
5

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g

‘s
h
a
re

d
s
u
rf

a
c
e
s

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

a
d
e
q

u
a
te

fo
r

a
s
in

g
le

w
id

th
v
e
h
ic

le
…
to
g
e
th
e
r
w
it
h

p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
s
a
n
d
o
r
c
y
c
li
s
ts
’

9
.6

.1
0

P
a
g

e
1
5

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

C
h
a
n
g

e
w

o
rd

in
g

to
s
a
y

‘l
e
v
e
ls
o
f
p
a
rk
in
g
p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
h
o
u
ld
ta
k
e
in
to
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
a
n
d

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r
s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
tr
a
v
e
l
to
k
e
y
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
a
n
d
fa
c
il
it
ie
s
’

a
s

a
c
a
tc

h
a
ll.

9
.6

.1
2

P
a
g

e
1
7

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g

:
‘T
o
e
n
s
u
re
th
a
t
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
s
a
re
n
o
t
to
o
o
ri
e
n
ta
te
d
to
w
a
rd
s
tr
a
ff
ic
a
n
d
p
a
rk
in
g
,
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
w
il
l
b
e
re
q
u
ir
e
d
to
d
e
te
rm
in
e
th
e
tr
a
ff
ic
im
p
a
c
ts
o
f
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.
T
h
e
s
e
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
s
h
o
u
ld
c
ro
s
s
re
fe
re
n
c
e
th
e
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
S
tr
e
e
t
S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
id
e
n
ti
fy
a
n
y

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
.’

P
u
t

u
n
d
e
r

n
e
w

h
e
a
d
in

g
‘M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t’

9
.6

.1
2

P
a

g
e

1
8

R
S

P
B

A
d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
ro

o
s
t

b
ri
c
k
s

&
S

U
D

s

9
.1

9
.6

.1
7

P
a
g

e
2
1

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

A
d
d

w
o
rd

in
g
‘H
ig
h
w
a
y
la
y
o
u
t
s
h
o
u
ld
c
o
n
s
id
e
r
c
y
c
li
s
ts
in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
e
ir
e
x
is
ti
n
g
p
a
tt
e
rn
s
o
f

m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
a
n
y
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l
d
e
s
ir
e
li
n
e
s
.’

9
.6

.1
8

P
a
g

e
2
1

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

P
ro

v
id

e
c
ro

s
s
-r

e
fe

re
n
c
e

to
s
h
a
re

d
s
u
rf

a
c
e
s

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

in
M

&
S

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

a
n
d

c
h
a
n
g

e
p
h
o
to

to
s
h
o
w

h
o

w
c
h
a
n
g

e
s

in
c
o
lo

u
r

a
n
d

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

c
a
n

h
e
lp

to
d
is

c
o
u
ra

g
e

p
o
o
r

p
a
rk

in
g

9
.7

P
a
g

e
2
2

C
B

C
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

Im
p
ro

v
e

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

a
n
d

c
la

ri
ty

o
f

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t
to

m
a

tc
h

th
o
s
e

in
th

e
G

I
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

A
c
c
e
s
s

fo
r

a
ll

P
a
g

e
2
9

C
B

C
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l
&

E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s

C
h
a
n
g

e
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n

re
fe

re
n
c
e

fr
o
m

D
D

A
to
T
h
e
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
A
c
t
(2
0
1
0
)

Agenda Item 10
Page 82



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
B
,
S
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0

S
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
to

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t
a

n
d

S
tr

e
e

ts
S

u
p
p

le
m

e
n

t

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

O
ri
g
in
a
to
r

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
C
h
a
n
g
e

G
e
n
e
ra

l
c
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ts

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

re
o
rd

e
re

d
to

re
fl
e
c
t
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e

o
f
s
tr

e
e
t
la

y
o
u
t

a
n
d

d
e
s
ig

n
in

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
a

s
c
h
e
m

e
.

A
g

re
e

to
re

o
rd

e
r

th
e

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ts

s
o

th
a
t

M
o
v
e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

S
tr

e
e
ts

is
s
e
c
ti
o
n

2
.
O

th
e
r

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ts

to
b
e

re
o
rd

e
re

d
.

G
e
n
e
ra

l
c
o
m

m
e
n
t

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s

to
b
e

re
o
rd

e
re

d
to

re
fl
e
c
t
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

tr
a
n

s
p
o
rt

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y

(p
e
d
e
s
ti
a
n

a
n
d

c
y
c
lin

g
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s

to
c
o
m

e
b
e
fo

re
v
e
h
ic

le
s
).

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

c
o
v
e
r

p
ic

tu
re

to
re

fl
e
c
t
a

u
s
e
d

s
tr

e
e
t
(p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s
,

c
y
c
lis

ts
,

p
a
rk

e
d

c
a
rs

)
in

a
C

B
C

c
o
n
te

x
t

1
0
.0

1
.0

2
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

‘t
y
p
o
lo

g
y
’
w

it
h

‘t
y
p
e
s

’

1
0
.0

1
.0

2
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

L
a
c
k

o
f

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
a
c
c
e
s
s

a
n
d

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t,

w
h
ic

h
a
re

th
e

o
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

th
a
t
a
p
p
ly

to
e
a
c
h

s
u
b
s
e
c
ti
o
n
.
A

d
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

in
th

e
in

tr
o

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
:
“T

h
is

d
e
s
ig

n
s
u

p
p
le

m
e
n
t
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s

a
s
p
e
c
ts

o
f

d
e
s
ig

n
w

it
h

re
s
p
e
c
t
to

th
e

d
e
s
ig

n
o
f

s
tr

e
e
ts

a
s

p
la

c
e
s

w
h
ic

h
a
re
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
to
a
ll

,
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
a
l,

a
n
d

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t

a
n
d

a
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

to
th

e
ir

c
o
n
te

x
t.
”

1
0
.0

1
.0

3
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
v
is

e
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
0
.0

1
.0

3
to

re
a
d

a
n
d

a
m

e
n
d

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

n
u
m

b
e
ri
n
g

:
T

h
e

s
c
o
p
e

o
f
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

in
th

is
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t
b
ro

a
d
ly

fo
llo

w
s

th
a
t
in

M
a
n
u
a
l
fo

r
S

tr
e
e
ts

a
n
d

re
fe

re
n
c
e

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

m
a
d
e

to
th

is
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
in

d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.
F

o
r

ro
a
d
s

o
u
ts

id
e

o
f

s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
ts

a
n
d

m
a
jo

r
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

,
o
r

w
h

ic
h

a
re

m
a
jo

r
d
is

tr
ib

u
to

rs
,
th

e
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

fo
u
n
d

in
th

e
D

e
s
ig

n
M

a
n
u
a
l
fo

r
R

o
a
d
s

a
n
d

B
ri
d
g

e
s

is
s
ti
ll

b
ro

a
d
ly

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

.

1
0
.0

1
.0

3
(2

)
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
v
is

e
fi
rs

t
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

to
re

a
d
:
“I

t
is

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l
a
ls

o
to

c
o
n
s
u
lt

th
e

m
a
in

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t
o
n

P
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
P

ri
n
c
ip

le
s

w
h
ic

h
s
e
ts

o
u
t…

R
e
v
is

e
la

s
t

s
e
n
te

n
c
e

to
re

a
d
:
“I

t
a
ls

o
s
e
ts

o
u
t
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
p
a
rk

in
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
a
n
d

g
e
n
e
ra

l
p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

fo
r

d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
fo

r
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t
a
n
d
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
il
it
y
a
s
w
e
ll
a
s
p
a
rk
in
g
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

”

1
0
.0

2
.0

1
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
e
le

te
fi
n
a
l
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

Agenda Item 10
Page 83



1
0
.0

2
.0

2
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

s
e
c
o
n
d

s
e
n
te

n
c
e

o
f

th
e

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:
“
W
e
ll
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
li
n
k
a
g
e
s
to
a
d
ja
c
e
n
t
a
re
a
s

a
re
v
it
a
l
in
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
is
w
e
ll
in
te
g
ra
te
d
w
it
h
in
th
e
a
re
a
a
n
d
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
b
y

w
a
lk
in
g
,
c
y
c
li
n
g
,
p
u
b
li
c
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
o
r
c
a
r”

In
c
lu

d
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
L
T

P
3

a
t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f
th

e
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
:
“
T
h
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
L
o
c
a
l
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
P
la
n
3

a
n
d
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
u
s
e
d
to
in
fo
rm

th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
p
ro
c
e
s
s
fr
o
m
th
e
o
u
ts
e
t”

1
0
.0

2
.0

3
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
e
le

te
‘a

n
d

ty
p
e
’
fr

o
m

th
e

fi
rs

t
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
A

m
e
n
d

3
rd

b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
to

re
fl
e
c
t
ro

u
te

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y

(m
a
in

,
a
c
c
e
s
s
,
m

in
o
r)

:
“
W
h
e
th
e
r
it
is
a
m
a
in
,

a
c
c
e
s
s
o
r
m
in
o
r
ro
u
te
”

R
e
p
la

c
e

‘a
n
d
’
w

it
h
‘o
r’

in
th

e
fi
n
a
l
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t

1
0
.0

2
.0

4
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

In
s
e
rt

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
m

o
re

m
a
jo

r
ro

a
d
s

fo
r

la
rg

e
r

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

:

A
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
m

a
y

ty
p
ic

a
lly

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
a
ll

o
r

a
s
e
le

c
ti
o
n

o
f

th
re

e
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

e
e
t
ty

p
e
s
:
m

a
in

s
tr

e
e
t,

a
c
c
e
s
s

s
tr

e
e
t

a
n
d

m
in

o
r

s
tr

e
e
t.
“
T
h
is
s
e
c
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
s
e
ts
o
u
t
th
e

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
a
n
d
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
fo
r
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
th
e
s
e
th
re
e
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr
e
e
t
ty
p
e
s
.
L
a
rg
e
r

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
m
a
y
a
ls
o
re
q
u
ir
e
m
o
re
m
a
jo
r
ro
a
d
s
w
h
ic
h
a
re
n
o
t
c
o
v
e
re
d
in
th
e
s
c
o
p
e
o
f
th
is

D
e
s
ig
n
G
u
id
e
.
In
th
e
s
e
c
a
s
e
s
re
fe
re
n
c
e
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
m
a
d
e
to
th
e
D
e
s
ig
n
M
a
n
u
a
l
fo
r
R
o
a
d
s
a
n
d

B
ri
d
g
e
s
(D
M
R
B
).
”

1
0
.0

2
.0

5
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

‘m
o
d
e
lle

d
’
w

it
h
‘a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
’

in
th

e
fi
rs

t
s
e
n
te

n
c
e
.

T
a
b
le

(p
a
g

e
5
)

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

In
s
e
rt

fi
g

u
re

n
u
m

b
e
r

a
n
d

h
e
a
d
in

g
to

th
e

ta
b
le

:
F
ig
u
re
x
:
T
y
p
ic
a
l
c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

‘m
a
y
’
w

it
h

‘m
u
s
t’

in
th

e
th

ir
d

b
o
x

in
M

in
o
r

S
tr

e
e
t.

In
s
e
rt

fo
llo

w
in

g
c
a
v
e
a
t
“
T
h
e
p
e
a
k
fl
o
w
s
g
iv
e
n
w
it
h
in
th
is
ta
b
le
a
re
in
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
.
T
h
e
a
c
tu
a
l
p
e
a
k

fl
o
w
o
f
v
e
h
ic
le
s
w
il
l
b
e
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
b
y
th
e
c
o
n
te
x
t
o
f
th
e
s
it
e
,
s
u
c
h
a
s
w
h
e
th
e
r
it
’s
u
rb
a
n
o
r

ru
ra
l,
o
r
a
th
ro
u
g
h
ro
u
te
,
to
w
n
c
e
n
tr
e
o
r
in
d
u
s
tr
ia
l
a
re
a
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
.”

A
d
d

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
ro

w
s
e
tt
in

g
o
u
t
s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
fo

r
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
s

a
n

d
c
y
c
lis

ts
.
T

o
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
.

T
a
b
le

(p
a
g

e
5
)

B
a
rt

o
n

W
ilm

o
re

a
n
d

D
L
A

A
lt
e
r

te
x
t

in
p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
ta

b
le

to
re

a
d

‘o
v
e
r

2
0
0

v
e
h
ic

le
s

fo
r’

m
a
in

s
tr

e
e
t

F
ig

1
0
.0

2
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

th
e

k
e
y

to
th

e
im

a
g

e
:

Agenda Item 10
Page 84



E
–

R
e
p
la

c
e

‘w
a
y
’
w

it
h
‘s
tr
e
e
t’

1
0
.0

2
.0

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
v
is

e
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:
“O

n
c
e

th
e

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

o
f
th

e
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l
s
tr

e
e
ts

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
,
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
ir

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r.
S

tr
e
e
ts

w
it
h

s
im

ila
r

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s

m
a
y

h
a
v
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

d
if
fe

re
n
t
c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
o
n

th
e
ir

c
o
n
te

x
t

a
n
d

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
,

a
n
d

m
a
y

d
is

p
la

y
c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s

o
f

tw
o

o
r

m
o
re

o
f

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
.
T
h
e
s
e
a
re
s
o
m
e
e
x
a
m
p
le
s
o
f
s
tr
e
e
t

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
ty
p
e
s
a
n
d
a
re
n
o
t
a
n
e
x
h
a
u
s
ti
v
e
li
s
t.
In
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
th
e
c
o
n
te
x
t
a
n
d

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
s
it
e
is
li
k
e
ly
to
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r.
S
e
c
ti
o
n
x
o
f
P
la
c
e
m
a
k
in
g
P
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
s
e
ts

o
u
t
th
e
d
if
fe
re
n
t
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
ty
p
e
s
a
n
d
ty
p
ic
a
l
d
e
s
ig
n
c
u
e
s
th
a
t
w
il
l
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
a
s
c
h
e
m
e
.

1
0
.0

2
.0

7
D

L
A

a
n
d

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

R
e
o
rg

a
n
is

e
th

e
im

a
g

e
s

o
n

p
a
g

e
s

7
-9

to
re

fl
e
c
t
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

e
e
t

ty
p
e
s
.

R
e
p
la

c
e

fi
g

u
re

s
(1

0
.0

4
;1

0
.1

3
;1

0
.1

6
;1

0
.1

8
;1

0
.1

9
)

to
p
ro

v
id

e
m

o
re

re
a
lis

ti
c

a
n
d

lo
c
a
lly

c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
.

1
0
.0

2
.0

8
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

fi
rs

t
tw

o
s
e
n
te

n
c
e
s

o
f

in
tr

o
d
u
c
to

ry
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

w
it
h
:
H
a
v
in
g
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
s
o
m
e
s
tr
e
e
t

c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
ty
p
e
s
in
th
e
p
re
v
io
u
s
s
e
c
ti
o
n
,
th
is
ta
b
le
s
e
ts
o
u
t
th
e
k
e
y
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
w
h
ic
h
s
h
o
u
ld

b
e
fo
ll
o
w
e
d
in
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
th
e
th
re
e
ty
p
e
s
o
f
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr
e
e
t
ty
p
e
s
–
m
a
in
,
a
c
c
e
s
s
a
n
d
m
in
o
r.

S
o
m
e
o
f
th
e
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
m
a
y
b
e
s
u
b
tl
y
v
a
ri
e
d
to
c
re
a
te
s
tr
e
e
ts
w
it
h
d
if
fe
re
n
t
c
h
a
ra
c
te
rs
,
fo
r

e
x
a
m
p
le
w
id
th
s
o
f
c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
s
,
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
a
n
d
v
e
rg
e
s
.

A
d
d

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

a
t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

th
e

in
tr

o
d
u
c
to

ry
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
:
In
d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
s
h
a
re
d
s
p
a
c
e
s
th
e

p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
in
th
is
ta
b
le
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
fo
ll
o
w
e
d
w
h
e
re
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.
S
o
m
e
m
o
re
s
p
e
c
if
ic

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
a
n
d
p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
le
v
e
l
s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
tr
e
e
ts
a
re
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
s
e
c
ti
o
n
x
.

S
tr

e
e
t
p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
ta

b
le

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

a
n
d

D
L
A

R
e
p
e
a
t

h
e
a
d
in

g
s

o
n

th
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

p
a
g

e

C
h
a
n
g

e
fi
rs

t
h
e
a
d
in

g
to
S
tr
e
e
t
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
ty
p
e
s

D
e
le

te
‘n

o
m

o
re

th
a
n
’
fr

o
m

m
a
in

s
tr

e
e
ts

in
re

la
ti
o
n

to
ta

rg
e
t

s
p
e
e
d
.

A
m

e
n
d

c
a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

w
id

th
s

in
a
c
c
e
s
s

s
tr

e
e
t

a
n
d

m
in

o
r

s
tr

e
e
t
to

re
a
d
:
4
.8
m
-
5
.5
m
(m
a
y
b
e

re
d
u
c
e
d
to
a
m
in
im
u
m
o
f
3
.7
m
-
4
.1
m
fo
r
p
in
c
h
p
o
in
ts
).
S
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
in
s
e
t
p
a
rk
in
g
b
a
y
s
m
u
s
t
b
e

in
te
g
ra
te
d
in
to
th
e
s
tr
e
e
t.

In
m

a
in

s
tr

e
e
t

a
n
d

a
c
c
e
s
s

s
tr

e
e
t
a
m

e
n
d

b
u
s

c
a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

w
id

th
to
6
.5
m

Agenda Item 10
Page 85



A
d
d
m
in
im
u
m

2
.0

m
to

fo
o
tw

a
y

w
id

th
o
n

a
ll

s
tr

e
e
t
ty

p
e
s

A
d
d
m
in
im
u
m

3
.0

m
to

s
h
a
re

d
fo

o
tw

a
y

a
n
d

c
y
c
le

w
a

y

A
ll

s
tr

e
e
t
ty

p
e
s

s
h
o
u
ld

in
c
lu

d
e

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
v
e
rg

e
w

id
th

s
:
M
in
im
u
m
o
f
2
.0
m
o
r
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t
to

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
s
u
it
a
b
le
la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
.

O
n

s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
ra

lle
l
p
a
rk

in
g

b
a
y
s

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e
6
.0
m
x
2
.4
m

.
D

e
le

te
e
n
d

b
a
y

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.

In
s
e
rt

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s

fo
r

e
c
h
e
lo

n
a
n
d

p
e
rp

e
n
d
ic

u
la

r
p
a
rk

in
g

b
a
y
s

b
e
in

g
5
.0
m
x
2
.5
m

A
m

e
n
d

ju
n
c
ti
o
n

s
ig

h
tl
in

e
s

to
2
.4
m
x
4
3
m

(m
a
in

s
tr

e
e
t)

,
2
.4
m
x
2
5
m

(a
c
c
e
s
s

s
tr

e
e
t)

,
2
.4
m
x
1
7
m

(m
in

o
r

s
tr

e
e
t)

D
e
le

te
(2

5
m

m
d
ro

p
k
e
rb

s
)

fr
o
m

a
c
c
e
s
s

s
tr

e
e
t
a
n
d

m
in

o
r

s
tr

e
e
t

u
n
d
e
r

‘d
ir
e
c
t

a
c
c
e
s
s

to
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
’

1
0
.0

3
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
n
a
m

e
s
e
c
ti
o
n

h
e
a
d
in

g
:
“
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
p
a
rk
in
g
w
it
h
in
d
e
s
ig
n
”

1
0
.0

3
.0

1
-1

0
.0

3
.0

4
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

a
n
d

D
L
A

D
e
le

te
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

1
0
.0

3
.0

1
–

1
0
.0

3
.0

4
a
n
d

re
n
u
m

b
e
r

th
e

re
m

a
in

in
g

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s
.

1
0
.0

3
.0

5
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

a
n
d

D
L
A

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
0
.0

3
.0

5
to

re
a
d
:

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
n
g

p
a
rk

in
g

is
in

te
g

ra
l
to

g
o
o
d

p
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
.
T

h
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

p
ro

v
id

e
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

o
n

h
o
w
c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g
c
a
n

b
e

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
o
n

s
tr

e
e
t
b
y

p
ro

v
id

in
g

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
o
f

d
if
fe

re
n
t

ty
p
e
s

a
n
d

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.
T

h
e

P
la

c
e
m

a
k
in

g
P

ri
n
c
ip

le
s

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

s
e
ts

o
u
t
th

e
k
e
y

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

fo
r

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
n
g

p
a
rk

in
g

w
it
h
in

d
e
s
ig

n
a
n
d

p
ro

v
id

e
s

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
o
f

h
o
w

p
a
rk

in
g

c
a
n

b
e

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
u
s
in

g
a

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n

o
f

o
n
-p

lo
t,

o
ff
-p

lo
t

a
n
d

o
n
-s

tr
e
e
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n
.
T

h
e

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t

p
ro

v
id

e
s

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

o
n

g
a
ra

g
e
s
.

1
0
.0

3
.0

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

a
n
d

D
L
A

A
m

e
n
d

1
s
t
b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
to

re
a
d
:

O
n

s
tr

e
e
t
p
a
rk

in
g
c
a
n
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
o
n
a
ll
s
tr
e
e
t
ty
p
e
s
w
it
h
in
th
e
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l
h
ie
ra
rc
h
y
a
n
d

s
h
o
u
ld

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
in

s
e
t

b
a
y
s

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t
to

th
e

m
a
in

c
a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

to
a
v
o
id

in
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
te

p
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d

o
v
e
rh

a
n
g

in
g

o
f
o
n

fo
o
tw

a
y
s
fo
o
tp
a
th
s

a
n
d

c
y
c
le

w
a

y
s
.
In
s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
w
h
e
re
e
c
h
e
lo
n
p
a
rk
in
g

is
p
ro
v
id
e
d
th
e
w
id
th
o
f
th
e
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
to
c
a
te
r
fo
r
a
n
y
v
e
h
ic
le
o
v
e
rh
a
n
g
.

1
0
.0

3
.0

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

5
th

b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t
to

re
a
d
:

Agenda Item 10
Page 86



A
ll

o
n

s
tr

e
e
t

p
a
rk

in
g

w
it
h
in

th
e

e
x
te

n
t

o
f
th

e
a
d
o
p
ta

b
le

h
ig

h
w

a
y

w
ill

b
e

u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
b
u
t
a
n
d

w
ill

p
ro

v
id

e
p
a
rk

in
g

fo
r

v
is

it
o
rs

a
s

w
e
ll

a
s

re
s
id

e
n
ts

.

1
0
.0

3
.0

9
D

L
A

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

5
.3
m

p
lu

s
a

3
.6

m
w

id
e

m
a
n
o
e
u
v
ri
n
g

a
re

a
.
It

is
p
re

fe
ra

b
le

fo
r

v
e
h
ic

le
s

to
re

v
e
rs

e
in

to
p
a
rk

in
g

s
p
a
c
e
s

u
n
le

s
s

th
is

is
im

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l.
V
e
h
ic
le
s
m
a
y

a
c
c
e
s
s
p
a
rk
in
g
s
p
a
c
e
s
b
y
e
it
h
e
r
re
v
e
rs
in
g
o
r
g
o
in
g
fo
rw
a
rd
.
T
h
e
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
ro
a
d
w
il
l

d
e
te
rm
in
e
th
e
m
o
s
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
o
p
ti
o
n
.

F
ig

u
re

1
0
.2

9
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

p
a
rk

in
g

s
p
a
c
e

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s

w
it
h
5
.0
m
x
2
.5
m

R
e
p
la

c
e

d
e
p
th

w
it
h
5
.3
m

F
ig

u
re

1
0
.3

3
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

w
id

th
o
f

p
a
ra

lle
l
w

it
h
2
.4
m

1
0
.0

3
.1

1
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
e
le

te
3

rd
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

re
la

ti
n
g

to
u
n
c
o
n
fi
n
e
d

e
n
d

b
a
y
s
.

F
ig

u
re

1
0
.3

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
rk

in
g

s
p
a
c
e

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
:

P
a
ra

lle
l
–
6
.0
m
x
2
.4
m

P
e
rp

e
n
d
ic

u
la

r
–
5
.0
m
x
2
.5
m

1
0
.0

3
.1

4
–

1
0
.0

3
.1

7
;

a
n
d

fi
g

u
re

s
1
0
.3

8
–

1
0
.4

1

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

a
n
d

D
L
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n

to
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
,

to
in

c
lu

d
e

:

-
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

to
d
e
ta

ile
d

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

a
s

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

w
it
h
in

C
B

C
C

y
c
lin

g
S

tr
a
te

g
y

(L
T

P
3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

F
)

a
d

C
y
c
le

P
a
rk

in
g

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s

-
G

e
n
e
ra

l
p
a
rk

in
g

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
(n

u
m

b
e
r

o
f

s
p
a
c
e
s
)

a
n
d

le
v
e
ls

o
f

p
a

rk
in

g
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

-
P

u
b
lic

p
a
rk

in
g

v
p
ri
v
a
te

p
a
rk

in
g

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s

-
S

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n

c
y
c
le

p
a
rk

in
g

k
e
y

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s

-
P

re
fe

rr
e
d

ty
p
e
s

o
f

c
y
c
le

p
a
rk

in
g

w
it
h

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s

o
f
g

o
o
d

e
x
a

m
p
le

s

S
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
.0

3
&

1
0
.0

4
M

ilt
o
n

K
e
y
n
e
s

C
o
u
n
c
il

U
rb

a
n

S
w

a
p

s
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
.0

3
a
n
d

1
0
.0

4
a
ro

u
n
d

–
L
e
v
e
l
S

u
rf

a
c
e

S
tr

e
e
ts

fo
llo

w
s

o
n

fr
o
m

S
tr

e
e
t
T

y
p
o
lo

g
y

a
n
d

s
h
o
u
ld

th
e
re

fo
re

c
o
m

e
b
e
fo

re
o
th

e
r

d
e
ta

ile
d

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s

Agenda Item 10
Page 87



D
e
s
ig

n
T

e
a
m

1
0
.0

4
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

S
h
a
re

d
s
p
a
c
e

a
n
d

le
v
e
l
s
u
rf

a
c
e

s
tr

e
e
ts

a
re

d
if
fe

re
n
t

c
o
n
c
e
p
ts

(l
e
v
e
l
s
u
rf

a
c
e

s
tr

e
e
ts

a
re

a
ty

p
e

o
f

s
h
a
re

d
s
p
a
c
e
).

In
s
e
rt

a
n

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

s
e
c
ti
o
n

o
n

s
h
a
re

d
s
u
rf

a
c
e
s

b
e
fo

re
L
e
v
e
l
S

u
rf

a
c
e

S
tr

e
e
ts

.

1
0
.0

4
.0

1
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

fi
rs

t
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

to
re

a
d
:

L
e
v
e
l
s
u
rf

a
c
e

s
tr

e
e
ts

a
re

d
e
fi
n
e
d

a
s
L
e
v
e
l
s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
tr
e
e
ts
a
re
a
s
p
e
c
if
ic
ty
p
e
o
f
s
h
a
re
d
s
p
a
c
e

m
o
s
t
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
to
m
in
o
r
s
tr
e
e
ts
,
a
n
d
a
re
d
e
fi
n
e
d
a
s
…

1
0
.0

4
.0

5
C

B
C

E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s

O
ff

ic
e
r

In
s
e
rt

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

a
ft

e
r

1
0
.0

4
.0

5
a
b
o
u
t
a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n

a
n
d

d
e
s
ig

n
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
th

a
t

c
a
n

b
e

u
s
e
d

to
m

a
k
e

th
e
s
e

ty
p
e
s

o
f

s
tr

e
e
ts

s
a
fe

r
fo

r
v
is

u
a
lly

im
p
a
ir
e
d

p
e
o
p
le

,
a
n
d

in
c
lu

d
e

im
a
g

e
to

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

.
T
h
e
n
e
e
d
s
o
f
a
ll
s
tr
e
e
t
u
s
e
rs
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
fr
o
m
th
e
o
u
ts
e
t
o
f
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n
p
ro
c
e
s
s
.
If

p
o
o
rl
y
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
,
le
v
e
l
s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
tr
e
e
ts
c
a
n
b
e
p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
fo
r
s
o
m
e
s
tr
e
e
t
u
s
e
rs
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y

b
li
n
d
a
n
d
p
a
rt
ia
ll
y
s
ig
h
te
d
p
e
o
p
le
.
‘I
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
m
o
b
il
it
y
–
a
G
u
id
e
to
B
e
s
t
P
ra
c
ti
c
e
o
n
A
c
c
e
s
s

to
P
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
a
n
d
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
(D
fT
,
2
0
0
2
)
p
ro
v
id
e
s
a
d
v
ic
e
o
n
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g

th
e
n
e
e
d
s
o
f
d
is
a
b
le
d
p
e
o
p
le
in
th
e
b
u
il
t
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
n
d
m
u
c
h
o
f
th
e
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
re
m
a
in
s

v
a
li
d
in
le
v
e
l
s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
tr
e
e
t
s
e
tt
in
g
s
.
T
h
e
fo
ll
o
w
in
g
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
a
d
h
e
re
d
to
in

d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
le
v
e
l
s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
tr
e
e
ts
:

S
u
rf
a
c
e
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
w
e
ll
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
a
n
d
fr
e
e
fr
o
m
c
lu
tt
e
r
a
n
d
o
b
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
;

S
tr
e
e
ts
m
u
s
t
b
e
le
g
ib
le
w
it
h
id
e
n
ti
fi
a
b
le
fe
a
tu
re
s
to
a
id
o
ri
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
.
T
o
n
a
l
a
n
d
te
x
tu
re

c
o
n
tr
a
s
t
m
a
y
b
e
u
s
e
d
to
a
s
s
is
t
w
it
h
p
e
rc
e
iv
in
g
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri
e
s
w
h
il
s
t
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
s
u
rf
a
c
e

p
a
tt
e
rn
s
a
re
n
o
t
o
v
e
r
c
o
m
p
li
c
a
te
d
;

T
h
e
b
u
il
d
in
g
li
n
e
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
u
n
c
lu
tt
e
re
d
;
a
n
d

C
o
m
fo
rt
s
p
a
c
e
fo
r
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
s
a
t
th
e
e
d
g
e
o
f
th
e
s
tr
e
e
t
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
p
ro
v
id
e
d
w
it
h

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r
s
e
a
ti
n
g
.
.

W
o
rd

in
g

to
b
e

a
g

re
e
d

w
it
h

C
B

C
E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s

O
ff

ic
e
r.

1
0
.0

4
.0

8
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

T
h
e
y

a
re

m
o
s
t
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

fo
r
m
in
o
r

s
tr

e
e
ts

a
t
th

e
lo

w
e
s
t

e
n
d

o
f

th
e

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y
,

a
n
d

s
h
o
u
ld

n
o
t
b
e

s
u
b
je

c
t
to

v
e
h
ic

le
fl
o
w

s
g
re

a
te

r
th

a
n

2
0

v
e
h
ic

u
la

r
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

p
e

r
h
o
u
r

(w
h
ic

h
e
q

u
a
te

s
to

a
s
tr

e
e
t

s
e
rv

in
g

a
m

a
x
im

u
m

o
f

2
5

h
o
u
s
e
s
).

F
ig

s
1
0
.4

2
–

1
0
.4

8
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

fi
g

u
re

s
to

p
ro

v
id

e
m

o
re

lo
c
a
lly

c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
,
w

h
e
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.
.

1
0
.0

4
.1

4
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

In
o
rd

e
r

to
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
th

e
ir

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e

fr
o
m

c
o
n
v
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l
s
tr

e
e
ts

a
n
d

th
u
s

h
e
lp

to
v
a
ry

th
e

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r
a
c
ro

s
s

a
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
th
e
p
re
fe
rr
e
d
s
u
rf
a
c
e
m
a
te
ri
a
l
fo
r

le
v
e
l
s
u
rf

a
c
e

s
tr

e
e
ts

m
u
s
t

b
e

s
u
rf

a
c
e
d

in
is

b
lo

c
k

p
a
v
in

g
ra

th
e
r

th
a
n

b
la

c
k
to

p
a
s
p
h
a
lt
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
o
th
e
r
s
u
rf
a
c
e
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
w
il
l
b
e

Agenda Item 10
Page 88



c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
.

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

fo
r

M
a
n
u
a
l
fo

r
S

tr
e
e
ts

h
a
s

fu
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

s
h
o

w
n

th
a
t

b
lo

c
k

p
a
v
in

g
ra

th
e
r

th
a
n

a
s
p
h
a
lt

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s

h
e
lp

s
re

d
u
c
e

tr
a
ff

ic
s
p
e
e
d
s
.
T
h
e
fu
tu
re
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
o
f
s
u
rf
a
c
e

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
m
u
s
t
b
e
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
a
n
d
d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
w
it
h
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il
fr
o
m
th
e
o
u
ts
e
t
o
f
th
e
d
e
s
ig
n

p
ro
c
e
s
s
.
F
u
rt
h
e
r
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
o
f
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
a
n
d
d
e
ta
il
in
g
is
in
c
lu
d
e
d
in
s
e
c
ti
o
n
1
0
.0
6
.

F
ig

1
0
.4

9
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

fi
g

u
re

1
0
.0

5
.4

2
-1

0
.0

5
.4

4
(p

2
3
)

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
R

e
n
u
m

b
e
r

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
s

to
fo

llo
w

1
0
.0

4
.1

8

1
0
.0

5
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

S
e
c
ti
o
n

to
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
,

to
in

c
lu

d
e

:

-
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

to
d
e
ta

ile
d

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

1
.

D
e
s
ig

n
in

g
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n

ro
u
te

s
:

-
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

-
D

e
s
ig

n
c
ri
te

ri
a

-
D

e
s
ig

n
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

2
.

D
e
s
ig

n
in

g
c
y
c
le

ro
u
te

s
:

-
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

-
D

e
s
ig

n
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s

-
S

h
a
ri
n
g

th
e

c
a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

-
O

ff
c
a
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

c
y
c
le

tr
a
c
k
s

3
.

D
e
s
ig

n
in

g
fo

r
p
u
b
lic

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

:

-
S

tr
e
e
t
d
e
s
ig

n
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

-
B

u
s

s
to

p
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

-
B

u
s

s
to

p
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s

1
0
.0

5
.1

9
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
e
ta

ile
d

S
tr

e
e
t

D
e
s
ig

n
a
s

a
n
e
w

s
e
c
ti
o
n

1
0
.0

5
.2

0
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

fi
n
a
l
s
e
n
te

n
c
e

to
re

a
d
:

O
ft

e
n

th
e

b
u
ild

in
g

lin
e

a
n
d

g
ro

u
n
d

fl
o
o
r

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
c
a
n

h
a
v
e

a
c
a
lm

in
g

e
ff

e
c
t
b
u
t

it
c
a
n

a
ls

o
b
e

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

to
p
ro

v
id

e
o
th

e
r

s
p
e
e
d

re
d
u
c
in

g
fe

a
tu

re
s

w
it
h
in

th
e

o
v
e

ra
ll

d
e
s
ig

n
,

s
u
c
h

a
s

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

Agenda Item 10
Page 89



s
h
a
re

d
s
p
a
c
e
s
,
s
tr

e
e
t

n
a
rr

o
w

in
g

,
th

e
p
re

s
e
n
c
e

o
f
p
a
rk

e
d

v
e
h
ic

le
s

a
n

d
g

a
te

w
a

y
fe

a
tu

re
s
,
a
s
w
e
ll
a
s

th
e
p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
o
f
s
h
a
ri
n
g

.

1
0
.0

5
.2

8
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

C
ro

s
s

ro
a
d
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
a
v
o
id
e
d
b
u
t

m
a
y

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

…
.

1
0
.0

5
.3

0
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

W
o
rd

in
g

to
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
.

1
0
.0

5
.3

2
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

T
re

e
s

w
it
h
in

s
ig

h
tl
in

e
s

w
ill

o
n
ly

b
e

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
if

th
e
y

a
re

c
le

a
r

s
te

m
m

e
d

u
p

to
a

h
e
ig

h
t
o
f

2
.0

0
m

a
n
d

th
e
ir

e
ff

e
c
t
o
n
d
o
n
o
t
im
p
a
c
t
o
n

o
v
e
ra

ll
v
is

ib
ili

ty
is

n
o
t
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t.

1
0
.0

5
.3

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

M
o

v
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t
to

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n

s
e
c
ti
o

n
.

1
0
.0

5
.3

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

P
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
c
ro
s
s
in
g
s
s
h
o
u
ld
b
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
o
n
d
e
s
ir
e
li
n
e
s
,
a
n
d

th
e

c
h
o
ic

e
o
f

c
ro

s
s
in

g
w

ill
d
e
p
e
n
d

o
n

v
e
h
ic

le
fl
o
w

s
a
n
d

s
p
e
e
d
s
.
…

1
0
.0

5
.3

9
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

O
n
h
ig
h
e
r
o
rd
e
r

ro
u
te

s
w

it
h

h
ig

h
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n

fl
o
w

s
o
r

w
it
h

s
p
e
e
d
s

o
f

3
0
m

p
h

a
n
d

a
b

o
v
e
,

P
e
lic

a
n
s
,

P
u
ff

in
o
r

T
o
u
c
a
n

c
ro

s
s
in

g
s

m
a
y

b
e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

.

F
ig

s
1
0
.6

6
a
n
d

1
0
.6

7
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

R
e
p
la

c
e

fi
g

u
re

s
to

p
ro

v
id

e
m

o
re

lo
c
a
lly

c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l
p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s

1
0
.0

5
.4

0
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

M
o

v
e

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t
to

p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n

a
n
d

c
y
c
lin

g
s
e
c
ti
o
n
.

1
0
.0

5
.4

0
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

A
d
d

s
e
n
te

n
c
e

to
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

s
e
c
o
n
d

b
u
lle

t
p
o
in

t:
T
h
e
re
m
o
v
a
l
o
f
th
e
c
e
n
tr
e
li
n
e
c
a
n
b
e
u
s
e
d
to
g
iv
e
th
e
a
p
p
e
a
ra
n
c
e
o
f
c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
n
a
rr
o
w
in
g
.

1
0
.0

6
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
,

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
,

D
L
A

S
e
c
ti
o
n

to
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
,

to
c
la

ri
fy

C
B

C
’s

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

to
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

a
n
d

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

e
th

e
n
e
e
d

fo
r

e
a
rl
y

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s

w
it
h

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il

o
n

fu
tu

re
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

c
o
s
t
o
f

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

.

1
0
.0

6
.1

8
C

B
C

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

o
lic

y

In
c
lu

d
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
S

U
D

S
in

ro
a
d
s

to
c
o
v
e
r

ro
a
d
s
id

e
w

a
te

r
g

a
rd

e
n

s
,
fi
lt
e
r

s
tr

ip
s

a
n
d

s
w

a
le

s
w

it
h
in

v
e
rg

e
s
.
W

o
rd

in
g

to
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

o
lic

y
.

F
ig

1
0
.9

1
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

D
e
le

te
im

a
g

e

1
0
.0

6
.2

0
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

In
s
e
rt
c
y
c
li
s
ts
a
n
d
d
ri
v
e
rs

a
t
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

th
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
.

1
0
.0

6
.2

2
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

W
o
rd

in
g

to
b
e

re
v
is

e
d

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
.

A
m

e
n
d

p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h

to
re

a
d
:

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

s
h
o
u
ld

g
e
n
e
ra

lly
b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

o
v
e
rh

e
a

d
s
tr

e
e
t
la

m
p

s
w

it
h

fu
ll

c
u
t

o
ff

la
n
te

rn
s
u
ti
li
s
in
g

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
a
l,
w
h
it
e
li
g
h
t
L
E
D
s
o
r
s
u
c
h
im
p
ro
v
e
d
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
b
y
th
e
C
o
u
n
c
il

.
T

o

Agenda Item 10
Page 90



m
in

im
is

e
c
lu

tt
e
r,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y

w
h
e
re

b
u
ild

in
g

s
a
re

lo
c
a
te

d
c
lo

s
e

to
th

e
re

a
r

o
f

th
e

fo
o
tw

a
y
,

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

m
a
y

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
a
tt
a
c
h
in

g
la

m
p

u
n
it
s

to
b
u
ild

in
g

s
.
W

h
ils

t
th

e
m

o
u
n
ti
n
g

h
e
ig

h
t

a
n
d

s
p
a
c
in

g
o
f

lig
h
ti
n
g

u
n
it
s

w
ill

n
e
e
d

to
e
n
s
u
re

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

le
v
e
ls

o
f

ill
u
m

in
a
ti
o
n
,

it
s
h
o
u
ld

re
la

te
to

tr
a
ff

ic
fl
o
w

s
,

s
tr

e
e
t
w

id
th

s
a
n
d

s
c
a
le

o
f

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
C
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
m
u
s
t
b
e
g
iv
e
n
to
th
e
p
la
c
in
g

o
f
li
g
h
ti
n
g
in
re
la
ti
o
n
to
p
ro
p
e
rt
y
fr
o
n
ta
g
e
.

F
ig

1
0
.9

3
C

B
C

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
tr

o
l

C
h
a
n
g

e
p
h
o
to

e
x
a
m

p
le

o
f

s
ig

n
w

h
ic

h
is

m
o
u
n
te

d
a
t
a

lo
w

le
v
e
l
a
n
d

d
o
e
s

n
o
t

a
c
c
o
rd

w
it
h

C
B

C
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
.

1
0
.0

6
.2

3
E

n
g

lis
h

H
e
ri
ta

g
e

In
c
lu

d
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
H

is
to

ri
c

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t
a
n
d

In
c
lu

d
e

n
e
w

im
a
g

e
s

to
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
o
f

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

s
tr

e
e
t
fu

rn
it
u
re

.

1
0
.0

6
.3

0
C

B
C

P
u
b
lic

A
rt

In
s
e
rt

n
e
w

s
e
c
ti
o
n

a
ft

e
r

1
0
.0

6
.3

0
to

re
a

d
:

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
c
a
n
b
e
a
u
s
e
fu
l
w
a
y
to
im
p
ro
v
e
a
n
d
d
e
fi
n
e
m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
le
g
ib
il
it
y
a
n
d
n
a
v
ig
a
ti
o
n
o
f

s
tr
e
e
ts
a
n
d
s
p
a
c
e
s
.
P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
c
a
n
h
e
lp
to
c
re
a
te
a
s
e
n
s
e
o
f
p
la
c
e
a
n
d
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
to
th
e

d
e
s
ig
n
,
th
e
m
e
a
n
d
c
h
a
ra
c
te
r
o
f
a
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
fo
r
e
x
a
m
p
le
a
rt
is
ts
c
a
n
d
e
s
ig
n
a
n
d
in
fl
u
e
n
c
e

a
n
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
k
e
y
fe
a
tu
re
s
o
f
a
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
s
u
c
h
a
s
s
ig
n
a
g
e
,
w
a
y
m
a
rk
e
rs
,
h
a
rd
a
n
d
s
o
ft

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
in
g
,
b
o
ll
a
rd
s
,
s
tr
e
e
t
fu
rn
it
u
re
,
tr
e
e
g
ri
ll
s
,
fl
o
o
r
tr
e
a
tm
e
n
ts
a
n
d
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
.
R
e
fe
r
to
th
e

P
u
b
li
c
A
rt
s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
t
fo
r
m
o
re
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
.

1
0
.0

7
C

B
C

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
,

C
B

C
P

la
n
n
in

g
,

D
L
A

R
e
v
is

e
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n

s
e
c
ti
o
n

in
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

w
it
h

C
B

C
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s

to
s
e
t

o
u
t
k
e
y

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
th

e
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
G

e
n
e
ra

l
S

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

fo
r

E
s
ta

te
R

o
a
d
s
.

1
0
.0

7
.2

0
R

e
m

o
v
e

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
C

B
C

’s
s
tr

e
e
t

lig
h
ti
n
g

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

a
s

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
is

o
u
t

o
f

d
a
te

a
n
d

re
w

o
rd

a
s

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

1
0
.0

8
C

B
C

P
la

n
n
in

g
U

p
d
a
te

p
o
lic

ie
s

a
n
d

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

Agenda Item 10
Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C  
 
 
Revised Parking Standards  
 
Extract from Placemaking Principles supplement, 1.14, p.29  
 
 

Type of 
Property 

4/4 + bedrooms  3 bedrooms  2 bedrooms  1 bedroom 

 Minimum 
No. Of 
Spaces 

Suggested 
Number of 
Spaces  

Minimum 
No. Of 
Spaces 

Suggested 
Number of 
Spaces 

Minimum 
No. Of 
Spaces 

Suggested 
Number of 
Spaces 

Minimum 
No. Of 
Spaces 

Suggested 
Number of 
Spaces 

Detached  3* 4 2 3 2 2 1 2 

Semi-
Detached  

3* 4 2 3 2 2 1 2 

Terraced  2 2.5 2 2.5 2 2 1 2 

Apartment  2 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 

 
 
* The third space in this instance can be provided on street and thus unallocated  
 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 93



P
age 94

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D  
 
Proposed Internal Space Standards for Residential Properties 
 
Extract from Residential Supplement  
 
Dwelling 
Type  

Number of 
Bedrooms 
& 
Bedspaces  

Suggested 
Gross 
Internal 
Floor Area 
m
2 

Number of 
Bedspaces 

Minimum 
Cooking 
Eating & 
Living 
Areas m

2 

Minimum  
Width of 
Living 
Area m

2
 

Minimum 
Bedroom 
Area m

2 

Minimum 
Bedroom 
Length 
(m) 

Minimum 
Bedroom 
Width (m) 

1p 37 1  - 3.2 8 3 - 
1b2p 50 2 23 12 3 2.6 

2b3p 61 3 25 

2b4p 70 4 27 

3b4p 74 5 30 

3b5p 86 6 33 

 

3b6p 95  CEL must be over 2 or 
more rooms if more than 
2 bedrooms 

 

4b5p 90       

Flats  

4b6p 99       
2b4p 83       
2b4p 83       
3b4p 87       
3b5p 96       
4b5p 100       

Two 
Storey 
Houses  

4b6p 107       
3b5p 102     
4b5p 106 

For dwellings for more than 
6 persons add 10m

2 
per 

person     

Three 
Storey  

4b6p 113 

 

      

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 95



 

A
genda Item

 10
P

age 96



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 27 February 2014  

Subject: Arlesey Masterplan 

Report of: Cllr Nigel Young, Executive Member Sustainable Communities; 
Strategic Planning and Economic Development 

Summary: The report outlines the proposals contained within the Draft Masterplan 
for Arlesey Cross and outlines where changes have been made in 
response to public consultation. It further recommends that the 
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorse 
the Masterplan and that Executive adopt it as technical guidance for 
Development Management purposes. 

 

 

Advising Officer: Trevor Saunders, Assistant Director Planning 

Contact Officer: Sue Frost, Local Planning and Housing Manager 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: Arlesey, Stotfold and Langford, Shefford 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1. The Arlesey Masterplan will deliver against two of the Council’s key priorities: 

• Enhancing Central Bedfordshire – creating jobs, managing growth, 
protecting our countryside and enabling businesses to grow. 

• Better infrastructure – improved roads, broadband reach and transport. 

Financial: 

2. There are financial implications as the Council is the majority landowner of the 
site, but this report relates only to the planning process. There has been a cost 
to the Council in the preparation of the Masterplan but this has been met from 
existing budgets. There are no financial implications arising directly from the 
report, as it deals with planning matters. The Council is the majority landowner 
of the site and therefore when developed, the Council will be expecting a 
capital receipt from the sale of land to developers.   

Legal: 

3. The Council owns a greater part of the site on the east of the High Street. In 
order to avoid any conflict of interest between the Council as Planning 
Authority and the Council as landowner, the Council’s Assets Team has 
employed consultants Woods Hardwick and Hankinson Duckett Associates to 
prepare the Masterplan on its behalf. In line with common practice, it has also 
entered into a Planning Performance Agreement with the Planning Division 
for the administration and supervision of the Masterplan and subsequent 

Agenda Item 11
Page 97



determination of future outline planning applications. 

Risk Management: 

4. Policy MA8 of the adopted Site Allocations DPD allocates this land for 
development and makes clear the requirement for the production of a 
Masterplan for the site. The policy and Masterplan together  set the 
requirements for the development and a framework within which future 
planning decisions will be made. A failure to endorse the Masterplan gives the 
Council as Local Planning Authority reduced control if piecemeal applications 
are submitted for the site and may result in major infrastructure requirements 
not being delivered in a timely and sustainable way. 

5. Other risks, such as failure to deliver the Council's priorities, reputational 
risks, failure to discharge statutory responsibilities, failure of partnership 
working, and environmental and financial risks could also arise. The 
masterplan serves to minimise these risks by setting an agreed framework for 
development in advance of the planning applications and then onwards 
through to implementation. 

6. An adopted Masterplan will give more certainty to the development plan 
process.  

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

7. Not Applicable.  

Equalities/Human Rights: 

8. The Site Allocations DPD Equality Impact assessment (EIA) highlighted the 
need for: 

 • The delivery of housing and employment in towns and villages throughout 
the north of Central Bedfordshire 

 • The selection of housing sites on the basis that that future residents live in 
locations close to services and public transport routes. 

 • Provision of land for community facilities. 

 • New employment units allocated close to centres of population in order to 
increase job opportunities locally and help to address unemployment and 
out-commuting. 

9. The DPD EIA concluded that the emphasis placed on ensuring that 
developments are allocated within sustainable locations and ensuring that 
residents are able to access employment opportunities, facilities and services 
to meet their everyday needs should help to ensure a positive impact for all 
sections of the community. The report highlights the key objectives of the 
Masterplan, many of which will address key equality issues 

Public Health 

10. The Masterplan requires new or improved health facilities and new cycling 
and pedestrian routes which will allow people to use sustainable modes of 
transport. The level of public open space that is to be provided on the site 
which is in excess of the requirements, will also contribute to health and 
wellbeing. 

 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 98



Community Safety: 

11. The Council needs to ensure that it complies with its statutory duties under 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act and as such the Masterplan refers 
to compliance with the Central Bedfordshire Design Guide which includes 
criteria set down for community safety. 

Sustainability: 

12. Within the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
Development Plan Document (DPD) for Central Bedfordshire (North), Arlesey 
has been identified as a minor service centre with excellent road and rail 
connections capable of accommodating additional housing and employment 
provision. The proposed development would also contribute toward the vitality 
and viability of local facilities and provide a large area of employment land 
thereby reducing the need to travel. The Site Allocations DPD has also been 
the subject of a Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental 
Assessment. 

Procurement: 

13. Not applicable.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Committee is asked to endorse the Masterplan and recommend to the 
Executive that it be adopted as technical guidance for Development Management 
purposes. 

 

Purpose of the Masterplan 

14. The production of a masterplan was a requirement of Policy MA8 of the Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document (2011). The Masterplan refers to the 
background and policy context for the site and its allocation. It sets out the 
aims for the development to deliver and identifies the constraints and 
opportunities which the subsequent outline planning application must address. 

15. It is a high level document, whose purpose is to set out general principles; the 
more concentrated and detailed work will be a matter to be addressed when 
planning applications are submitted in due course. 

Background 

16. Arlesey is classified in planning terms as a ‘minor service centre’. It has grown 
steadily over a number of years through piecemeal development. Such 
developments have not brought about additions or improvements to facilities’ 
in the town. For this reason the Town Council promoted larger scale growth 
through its 2004 Town Plan. In conjunction with the legacy Mid Beds District 
Council, a site was identified for large scale mixed use development to meet 
district wide housing and employment needs and to deliver significant 
improvements to local services and improve traffic conditions along the High 
Street.  

17. In November 2009, the Council adopted the Core Strategy and Development 
Management DPD following an Examination in Public in June/July of the same 
year. The Core Strategy required the delivery of at least 17,950 new homes 
between 2001 and 2026 with 5,000 new homes required in addition to those 
already committed. Of these 5,000, the Core Strategy stated that 1000 homes 

Agenda Item 11
Page 99



and 10-15 ha of employment land should be provided in Arlesey (Policy CS5). 
This is therefore an important site in helping the Council meet its future 
housing requirements. 

18. In April 2011, the Council formally adopted the Site Allocations DPD  following a 
public examination. Policy MA8 of the Central Bedfordshire Site Allocations DPD 
(April 2011)  made clear that a mixed use development of a minimum of 1000 
dwellings and 10ha of employment land should be developed and a Masterplan 
prepared to guide the development.. 

Masterplan Proposals  

19. The Masterplan covers all of the land included in the Policy MA8 allocation. The 
document sets out the vision, land use mix and development principles expected 
to be delivered for the allocation at Arlesey.  The Masterplan is made up of two 
parts; a Concept Plan diagram and a supplementary written document. The 
Concept Plan diagram identifies the indicative location of infrastructure and land 
uses.  The written document sets out the vision for the allocated site and Central 
Bedfordshire Council’s expectations for any planning applications to be 
determined.  The draft Masterplan has been attached as Appendix A to this 
report. 

20. The key requirements of policy MA8 are the provision of a relief road, a new 
focal area of retail and other community uses, better health facilities, a new 
lower school, more open space and routes for pedestrians and cyclists and 
employment opportunities together with a minimum of 1000 new homes.  

21.  Those indicated in the Masterplan are as follows 

 (a) Residential – Around a 1000 dwellings, including a mix of types 
including affordable housing in line with the Council’s requirement at the 
time of application. Extra care and assisted living is indicated on land to 
the east of the High Street totalling about 1.09ha 

 (b) Employment – 10ha of employment land the majority of which is located 
on the eastern edge which will allow direct access to be taken from the 
new spine road close to the proposed junction on the A507 

 (c) Education – A site for a new two form entry First School is identified in 
the south of the eastern land as the existing school does not have 
capacity to serve the development. A new school identity was agreed by 
Executive on the 10th December 2013; the likelihood is that the school 
will be open by 2016. The existing Gothic Meade Academy will be able 
to bid to run the school if it so wishes.   

 (d) Local Centre – 1.67ha is identified to provide a focal point Arlesey 
currently lacking because of the linear nature of the town. The uses to 
be provided include community, health and retail but this can be flexible 
and subject to further agreement and discussion with the Town Council 

 (e) A new relief road providing an alternative route relieving the High Street, 
House Lane and Stotfold Road  

Agenda Item 11
Page 100



 (f) Recreation and Open Space – significant overall provision has been 
made including a new town park with play area adjacent to the local 
centre. Other open space and play facilities are provided within 
accessible walking distances to all parts of the development. The new 
pitch provision is located adjacent to the school site and outside of the 
allocation boundary on CBC owned land to provide an enhanced 
landscape edge to the town. 

 (g) New green routes for walking, cycling and landscaping permeate 
through the indicative layout and a significant north south car free route 
is proposed linking the development to the existing school and 
community facilities.  

22. In addition to the masterplan an Interim Transport Assessment (ITA) was 
undertaken and a non technical summary document was published as part of 
the consultation. See appendix B. 

23. A number of junctions have been modelled on the basis of clear and robust 
assumptions about the growth that will result from this and other developments 
in the surrounding area to 2025 (The ITA explains in greater detail the 
assumptions used). The modelling, which has been agreed with the Highway 
Agency and CBC, demonstrates that the proposed site accesses would operate 
well within their capacities (subject to some modification) and are therefore 
considered to be the appropriate means of access to the site for future planning 
applications 

24. The extent of physical mitigation works required to these junctions to bring about 
a nil detriment impact will ultimately be determined by a detailed Transport 
Assessment which will be submitted with any future planning application. The 
costs of such works will be quantified and an appropriate financial contribution 
then made by the developer through what is referred to as a S106 Agreement.   

Consultation and Changes in response to feedback 

25. A public consultation on the draft masterplan was held from 9th November 2013 
to 16th December 2013. Approximately 460 people attended an exhibition over 
two consecutive Saturdays. A total of 124 survey responses were received from 
the consultation events along with a further 24 written responses. There were 52 
responses opposing the scale of development. With the remaining responses 
commenting on the issues residents perceive to have a bearing on the 
development, the following were the most common.  

 • Concerns about traffic south of the five ways junction 55 

 • Comments/concerns relating to existing amenity area/impact upon the 
southern part of the town 36 

 • Concerns about increased traffic and HGV’s 25 

 • Community/social concerns and comments 24 

 • Local people should benefit from homes/employment 22 

 • Disagree with traffic calming proposals 20 

 • Local shops/café and services should be provided 20 

 • Concerns that the size of the employment area exceeds local demand 16 

 • Existing fields around the town should be retained 15 

Agenda Item 11
Page 101



 • Public transport facilities and services should be considered 15 

 • Comments suggesting the relief road should be to the east of the village 12 

 The feedback in these responses has been analysed and a detailed response 
has been provided in the consultation statement appendix C 

26 The principal amendments made in response to the consultation are as follows: 

 • Extend proposed greenways (cycle/ pedestrian links) including potential 
options for a crossing over/under the A507 to provide a safer route for school 
children to Etonbury school and provide access to Etonbury Woods; the 
Concept Plan within the Draft Masterplan has been amended to indicate an 
approximate location for this so that developers are aware of the desire for 
this to form part of the infrastructure required with the site. 

 • As a result of concerns expressed about formalising parking on High Street 
and introducing further traffic calming, the indicative measures have been 
scaled back on the revised plans at Figures 5.3 and 5.4.  Promoters of sites 
will be expected to have further discussions with officers and local 
representatives, such as Arlesey Town Council before any measures are 
finalised as part of planning applications. 

 • In responses to concerns that the proposed Local Centre will have a negative 
impact on the existing Civic Amenity Area, wording has been added in 
Section 9 to the effect that S106 money towards community facilities and 
services could be spend on rejuvenating this existing area to help maintain 
its vitality.  Wording has also been added to clarify that the uses in the Local 
Centre are intended to be complementary. 

 • Additional wording has been added identifying the critical and essential 
infrastructure to be provided, critical being the relief road and educational 
provision. Additional wording on the phasing of infrastructure provision, 
including the requirement for an infrastructure phasing programme to be 
submitted and agreed at the planning application stage has been added to 
section 9 in response to concerns over pressure on existing infrastructure. 

27. The other two main were the scale of development and increased traffic and 
HGV’s on the High Street and south of the five ways junction. 

28 The scale of development cannot be changed as it is already required in the 
adopted Core Strategy to meet CBC’s housing targets. 

29. With regard to traffic, the relief road is intended to take traffic off the High Street 
and traffic calming will deter traffic from using the High Street as the main 
through route. In the south the relief road enters the High Street again at the 
fiveways junction and this is where the main problems are perceived to be. 
Standard guidance in the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges identifies that 
with this type of road and width there is still sufficient capacity within the highway 
network to accommodate the increased vehicle movements.  Although an 
interim traffic assessment had accompanied the Masterplan, following 
consultation a further site survey of peak morning traffic was undertaken on the 
22nd January 2014 to understand residents concerns. However, highway 
engineers did not observe any significant problems and concluded that 
additional measures south of the five ways junction would not provide any 
solutions. Notwithstanding this a full transport assessment will be required at the 
outline application stage. 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 102



Conclusion and Next Steps  

30. 

 

The Masterplan has followed the Council’s due process in terms of 
consultation and additional consultation has also been undertaken 
including stakeholder meetings and staffed exhibitions for two consecutive 
Saturdays. Full consideration has been afforded to the consultation 
exercise and where possible amendments have been made to the 
Masterplan. As a planning technical document, the Masterplan has 
followed due process and is fit for development management purposes. 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the Masterplan 
which has been prepared following public consultation and to recommend 
the Executive adopt the Masterplan as formal planning guidance. 

 
 

Appendices: 

Appendix A –  Draft Masterplan incorporating proposed changes 

(Due to its size the appendix has been circulated in hard copy to 
Members of the Committee only and is available on the Council’s 
website) 

Appendix B - Interim Transport Assessment non technical summary 

Appendix C – Statement of Consultation and consultation results 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

 
 

Land at Chase Farm and Land 
West and North-East of High 

Street, 
Arlesey 

 

Interim Transport 
Assessment 

 
  Revision A 
  February2014

Agenda Item 11
Page 105



 

 

Contents 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
2.0 Site Location, Development Proposal and Existing Local Highway Network 

 
3.0 Transportation Policy 
 
4.0 Impact Assessment 

 
5.0 Summary and Conclusions 

 
 
 

Revision A 
 
This document has been updated to reflect additional information/clarification 
requested by local residents and stakeholder groups during the consultation period.  
 
For ease of reference additional and amended text is presented in green typeface.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Issue Date Prepared By Reviewed By Approved By 

1 30/09/2013 ASB GBR GBR 

Rev A 04/02/2014 GBR GBR GBR 

Agenda Item 11
Page 106



 

 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 This Interim Transport Assessment (ITA) has been prepared by Woods Hardwick 

Infrastructure LLP on behalf of Central Bedfordshire Council(CBC) Property Assetsin relation 
to a site known as Arlesey Cross, Arlesey, Bedfordshire. 
 

1.2 The site is allocated for a mixed-use development consisting of a minimum of 1,000 dwellings 
and 10ha of employment land.  This allocation is set out in Policy MA8 of the Central 
Bedfordshire (North) Site Allocations Development Plan Document (April 2011) which gives 
details of the specific requirements for development on this site.  The site is allocated as 
‘Land at Chase Farm and Land West and North-East of High Street, Arlesey’, however, for the 
purpose of this document the site is referred to as ‘Arlesey Cross’. 
 

1.3 A Masterplan Document has been prepared by Woods Hardwick Planning and Hankinson 
Duckett Associates in order to guide the development.  This ITA is a standalone document 
that has informed the Masterplan document, focusing solely on the transportation 
opportunities and impacts of the proposals; a non-technical summary has been included as 
an appendix to the Masterplan.  A full Transport Assessment (TA) will be prepared and 
submitted at such time as a planning application is submitted in relation to the Arlesey Cross 
site. 
 

1.4 The site consists of one parcel to the west of High Street which has been assumed will 
provide in the region of 400 dwellings and a second parcel to the east of High Street, which 
will provide in the region of 850 residential dwellings; areas of employment; a First School; 
community buildings;a supermarket and retail units;sports pitches; and areas of public open 
space. 

 
1.5 Following scoping discussions with the local highway authority,Central Bedfordshire Council 

(CBC), and the Highways Agency (HA) regarding this ITA and a future TA in support of a 
planning application, the proposal’s impact on the followinglocations has been considered: 
 

• A507 Arlesey Road/Hitchin Road (roundabout south of Henlow) 

• A507 Arlesey Road/Stotfold Road (roundabout) 

• A507/Hitchin Road (roundabout south of Stotfold) 

• Hitchin Road/Eliot Way (roundabout) 

• A507/A1(M) (grade-separated roundabout) 

• A1/B658 (roundabout) 
 

1.6 Following consultation on this ITA, in order to address the concerns of local residents and 
stakeholder groups, the study has been extended to include an assessment of the capacity of 
the Hitchin Road link to the south of ‘5-ways’ junction. 
 

1.7 The document describes the results of initial capacity assessments undertaken at the 
locations listed above. The assessments account for: existing traffic; projected network traffic 
growth; projected traffic generation of other committed developments; and a robust estimation 
of the likely traffic flows which will be generated by the proposed development. 

 
1.8 The report addressees the transportation and highway issues raised by the development and 

concludes that: the site lies in a highly sustainable location; the provision of onsite services 
and facilities will enhance the sustainability credentials of the surrounding area; the proposed 
development will not result in any insurmountable impact on the local highway network; and 
that no issues in terms of highway safety will arise as a result of the proposed development. 
 

1.9 The purpose of this document is to gauge the impact of the proposed development on the 
surrounding highway network and to identify sustainable alternatives to single occupancy car 
use which can be utilised by residents of the site. The ITA is written in accordance with the 
Department for Transport’s (DfT) ‘Guidance on Transport Assessment’ (March 2007) and with 
due regard to relevant planning policy both at a national and a local level.  

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 107



 

2.0 Site Location, Development Proposal and Existing Local Highway Network 
 
2.1 Arlesey is located in Central Bedfordshire district and is easily accessible from Letchworth 

Garden City, Hitchin and Biggleswade which lie approximately 5km south east, 7km south 
and 7km north respectively. 
 

2.2 Arlesey is accessible from all directions. The A1(M), to the east of the town, offers access to 
the north and south including London, Letchworth and Stevenage. 
 

2.3 The proposed scheme comprises two parcels of land either side of High Street.  The western 
parcel has been assumed to be capable of accommodating in the region of 400 residential 
dwellings, and the second parcel to the east of High Street, could provide approximately 850 
residential dwellings; areas of employment; a First School; community buildings; and a small 
supermarket. 

 
2.4 The two parcels lie either side of High Street.  The western parcel lies to the north and west of 

the southern part of Arlesey, and is abutted by the East Coast Mainline on the western edge 
and on all other sides by existing housing.  

 
2.5 The eastern parcel lies directly to the east of the northern part of Arlesey, and is abutted by 

Stotfold Road to the north, the A507 to the east, farmland to the south and housing to the 
west. 
 

2.6 The western parcel will be accessible from two principal junctions on High Street: one at the 
northern end, which will also act as an access for the eastern parcel (‘Central Access’) and 
another access further south (‘Western Access’).  A link will be provided through the site 
connecting the two accesses, thereby providing relief to High Street.  The western access is 
shown on the concept plan as being taken off the 5 ways junction to the south of the 
allocation via a junction, which already has planning permission.  Additional secondary 
access points are also shown linking High Street and the western land at various points in 
order to provide connectivity. 

 
2.7 The eastern parcel will be accessed by the aforementioned Central Access; through a 

roundabout on the A507 to the east of the parcel (‘Eastern Access’); and also through an 
access on Stotfold Road (‘Stotfold Road Access’).  The internal roads to the Stotfold Road 
access will be designed such that it will be an inefficient way to exit the site for all but those 
who live closest to it. 
 

2.8 The site will be accessible by non-vehicular modes with suitable provision for cyclists and 
pedestrians being provided at the aforementioned accesses, as well as secondary access 
points, promoting connectivity between the site and the existing areas of Arlesey. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 108



 

 
3.0 Transportation Policy 
 
3.1 This ITA considers the guidance set out in the DfT document ‘Guidance on 

Transport Assessment’ published in March 2007. In accordance with this guidance 
a review of relevant transportation policy at a national, regional and local level is 
included in this section.  

 
3.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) replaces the 

previous transport related guidance set out in Planning Policy Guidance 13 
(PPG13), published in March 2001 (updated January 2011). The NPPF aims to 
bring about sustainable development and create positive growth – making 
economic, environmental and social progress for this and future generations.  
 

3.3 Section 4 of NPPF focuses on promoting sustainable transport. Paragraph 30 
states that encouragement should be given to solutions which support reductions in 
greenhouse gas emissions and reduce congestion. In preparing Local Plans, local 
planning authorities should therefore support a pattern of development which, 
where reasonable to do so, facilitates the use of sustainable modes of transport. 
 

3.4 Paragraph 32 outlines that all developments that generate significant amounts of 
movement should be supported by a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment 
and that plans and decisions should take account of whether: 
 

• The opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up 
depending on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the need for 
major transport infrastructure. 

• Safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people. 

• Improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that cost-
effectively limit the significant impacts of the development. Development 
should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. 

 
3.5 Paragraphs 34-35 describe how developments which generate significant traffic 

movements should be located where the need to travel will be minimised and the 
use of sustainable transport modes can be maximised, therefore developments 
should be located and designed where practical to: 
 

• Accommodate the efficient delivery of goods and supplies. 

• Give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements, and have access to high 
quality public transport facilities. 

• Create safe and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic 
and cyclists or pedestrians, avoiding street clutter and where appropriate 
establishing home zones. 

• Incorporate facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra-low emission 
vehicles. 

• Consider the needs of people with disabilities by all modes of transport. 
 
3.6 The requirement for developers (in partnership with local authorities) to submit 

plans for the implementation and maintenance of measures that will minimise the 
traffic generated by their development and that encourage walking and cycling is 
also outlined in paragraph 33 of the DfT Circular 02/07. 
 

3.7 The DfT’s Manual for Streets, (MfS) (2007) also recognises the significance of the 
design of a development in encouraging sustainable modes of transport as 
paragraph 2.2.5 states that: “attractive and well-connected permeable street 
networks encourage more people to walk and cycle to local destinations, improving 
health while reducing motor traffic, energy use and pollution”.  

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 109



 

3.8 Walking is widely considered to be the most important mode of travel at the local 
level and offers the greatest potential to replace short car trips, particularly for 
journeys that are less than 2km. It is also important to provide sustainable routes 
for journeys of greater distances through the provision of a high quality, safe, 
secure and reliable network of routes, with good interchanges, which matches the 
pattern of travel demand in order to maximise public transport patronage. 

 
     Figure 3.1 

    
Source: Department for Transport Manual for Streets 2007 

 

3.9 The ‘Road User Hierarchy’ as shown above (Figure 3.1) and as described in MfS 
and ‘Building Sustainable Transport into New Developments’ (2008) also puts 
forward walking and cycling as the two preferred modes of travel, followed by public 
transport. It is recommended that where possible a scheme should follow this 
proposed hierarchy.  
 

3.10 As advised in MfS and summarised in Manual for Streets 2 (MfS2) (September 
2010) encouraging walking has many benefits, including reductions in vehicle 
emissions and traffic collisions, and improvements in personal health. In summary 
the documents advise that: 

 

• The propensity to walk is influenced not only by distance, but also by the 
quality of the walking experience. 

• Good sightlines and visibility towards destinations and intermediate points 
are important for way-finding and personal security. 

• Pedestrian routes need to be direct and match desire lines as closely as 
possible, including across junctions, unless site-specific reasons preclude 
it. 

• Pedestrian networks need to be connected. Where routes are separated by 
heavily-trafficked routes, appropriate surface-level crossings should be 
provided where practicable. 

• Pedestrians should generally be accommodated on multifunctional streets 
rather than on routes segregated from motor traffic. In situations where it is 
appropriate to provide traffic-free routes they should be short, well-
overlooked and relatively wide. 

• Obstructions on the footway should be minimised. Street furniture on 
footways can be a hazard for vulnerable people. 

• There is no maximum width for footways; widths should take account of 
pedestrian volumes and composition. 

 
3.11 As with walking, MfS and MfS2 advise that cycling can bring about benefits in terms 

of vehicular emissions, traffic collisions and public health. To summarise, the 
documents advise that: 
 

• Cyclists should be accommodated on the carriageway.  

• Cyclists prefer direct, barrier-free routes that avoid the need to dismount. 
Routes that take cyclists away from their desire lines and require them to 
concede priority to side-road traffic are less likely to be used. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 110



 

• Off-carriageway cycle tracks that bring cyclists into conflict with side road 
traffic can be more hazardous than routes that stay on the main 
carriageway. 

• Cyclists are sensitive to traffic conditions; high speeds or high volumes of 
traffic tend to discourage cycling. If traffic conditions are inappropriate for 
on-street cycling, they should be addressed to make on-street cycling 
satisfactory. 

• Junctions should be designed to accommodate cyclist’s needs. Over-
generous corner radii that lead to high traffic speed should be avoided. 
 

3.12 At a regional level transport related policy is set out in CBC’s ‘3
rd
 Local Transport Plan 

04/2011 to 03/2026’ (LTP3) and the Arlesey & Stotfold Local Area Transport Plan.  The 
overarching transport objectives that are pursued within the plans are: 
 

• To assist the sustainable economic growth of the region, through improvements to 

the transport network 

• To create an integrated transport system that is safe, sustainable and accessible 

• To implement initiatives that bring improvements in the areas of safety, quality and 
convenience 

• To increase public transport usage by improving; the quality of vehicles and 

infrastructure; the reliability, frequency and journey time of services; and bus/rail 

integration  

• To improve access to key services by widening travel choices, especially for those 

without access to a car  

• To make travel for all modes safer and, in particular, reduce the number and severity 

of road casualties 

• To remove unnecessary HGVs from affected communities through; appropriate traffic 
management measures, highway improvements and encouraging the use of 
alternative modes of transport.  

• To maintain the transport system to standards which allow safe and efficient 
movement of people and goods 

• To protect and enhance the built and natural environment of the county by reducing 
the adverse impacts of traffic. 

• To improve the quality of public spaces for residents, workers and visitors by creating 
a safe, attractive and accessible environment. 

• To enhance air quality, particularly within declared Air Quality Management Areas.   
 
3.13 At a local level the vision for Arlesey is set out in the Central Bedfordshire Site 

AllocationsDevelopment Plan Document (April 2011). 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 111



 

4.0 Impact Assessment 
 

4.1 The DfT Guidance on Transport Assessment (2007) outlines the issues which a TA should 
address in terms of any possible transport and related environmental impacts. 
 

4.2 The Guidance outlines that a TA should address the following issues: 
 

• Reducing the need to travel, especially by car – ensure at the outset that thought 
is given to reducing the need to travel; consider the types of uses (or mix of uses) and 
the scale of development in order to promote multipurpose or linked trips. 
 

• Sustainable accessibility – promote accessibility by all modes of travel in particular 
public transport, cycling and walking; assess the likely travel behaviour or travel 
pattern to and from the proposed site; and develop appropriate measures to influence 
travel behaviour. 

 

• Dealing with residual trips – provide accurate quantitative and qualitative analysis 
of the predicted impacts of residual trips from the proposed development and ensure 
that suitable measures are proposed to manage these impacts. 

 

• Mitigation Measures – ensure as much as possible that the proposed mitigation 
measures avoid unnecessary physical improvements to highways and promote 
innovative and sustainable transport solutions.  

 
4.3 These issues are considered in detail in this section of the report.  

 
Sustainable Accessibility 
 

4.4 A summary of the sustainable options available for residents and visitors to the site is 
provided below. A Travel Plan (TP)will be prepared in support of future Planning Applications 
on the site. The TP will provide a detailed assessment of the existing sustainable alternatives 
to the private car that are prevalent to the site and will propose additional measures to assist 
in achieving the modal shift target of the plan.  
 

4.5 As part of the TP, a Travel Plan Coordinator (TPC) will be appointed to oversee the 
management and monitoring of the Plan to ensure that all available options are capitalised 
upon to ensure that the site is as sustainable as possible.   
 
Sustainability – Walking 
 

4.6 Walking is widely considered to be the most important mode of travel at a local level.  It can 
be appreciated that the facilities within Arleseyare all located within the widely recommended 
2km walking distance of the site. 
 

4.7 Well-maintained, illuminated footpaths on High Street will link both parcels of the development 
to the rest of Arlesey.   The relief road and proposed traffic-calming measures on High Street 
which form part of the development will make it a more attractive and safer route for 
pedestrians. 

 
4.8 Walking forms an often forgotten part of journeys made predominantly by other modes.  There 

are several bus stops for both directions of travel on High Street and Stotfold Road. 
 
4.9 Arlesey railway station is located in the north of the town.  It is situated on the East Coast 

Mainline, which runs regular services between London, Leeds, Newcastle and Edinburgh. 
 
4.10 Passive surveillance of the routes from the site to the town centre is provided by virtue of the 

fact that the routes are overlooked by residential dwellings and that cars, cyclists and 
pedestrians follow the same routes. This is in line with the recommendations detailed in ‘Safer 
Places: The Planning System and Crime Prevention’ (2004) and MfS (2007). 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 112



 

4.11 The pedestrian routes within the site will follow logical routes thereby providing convenient 
sustainable access around the site, and linking in with the existing provision adjacent to the 
site. 

 
Existing Pedestrian Behaviour 
 

4.12 According to 2011 UK Census Data, 4.48% of Arlesey residents travel to work on foot. This 
figure falls below the national average of 11.34%. 

 
4.13 Census data from 2001 (the most recent Census from which figures are available) shows that 

10.56% of Arlesey residents live within 2km of their place of work.  There is therefore potential 
to more than double the number of residents who walk to work. It is envisaged that the 
promotion of walking through the TP and the provision of employment opportunities on the 
site will encourage a greater proportion of residents of the siteto walk than is currently the 
case within the town. 

 
Access for the Disabled  
 

4.14 The existing route between the proposed residential dwellings, the proposed local centre and 
the existing areas of Arlesey will be designed to facilitate journeys by mobility scooters.   
 
Sustainability – Cycling 

 
4.15 It is widely recognised that cycling has the potential to substitute for short car trips, particularly 

those less than5km.The site lies well within 5km of the entire built up settlement of Arlesey, 
with Letchworth also located within 5km of the site. There therefore exists great potential for 
residents and visitors to the site to use a bicycle as their main mode of travel. 

 
4.16 As is the case with walking, cycling is also well suited to form part of longer journeys by public 

transport. Given the proximity of the site to Arlesey Railway Station, where cycle standsand 
lockers are provided, the site’s location is considered to be ideal in terms of facilitating multi-
modal sustainable journeys within the region and to London.  
 

4.17 A footpath/cycleway will run north-south through the centre of the Eastern parcel, from the 
existing SUSTRANS cycle route on Stotfold Road to High Street, where it will loop around the 
back of Gothic Mede School. 

 
4.18 A secure and easily accessible cycle parking facility will be provided with each dwelling and 

cycle parking will also be provided within the local centre and areas of employment. 
 
Existing Cycling Behaviour 
 

4.19 Data from the 2011 Census shows that 1.55% of commuters living in Arlesey commute by 
bicycle.  This is less than the national average of 3.04%. 

 
4.20 Given that 15.86% of Arlesey commuters live within 5km of their workplace (as shown in the 

2001 Census), there exists a huge potential for a high uptake of cycling amongst residents of 
the development to act as a catalyst to increase the number of residents of Arlesey who 
commute by bicycle, especially as this will be promoted by the TPC as part of the TP. 

 
Services and Facilities Accessible on Foot/by Bicycle 
 

4.21 In addition to the proposed onsite facilities, the following services and facilities are 
conveniently and safely accessible by foot and bicycle from the site: 

 

• Schools: 
- Gothic Mede Lower School – located adjacent to the western parcel 

 
- Etonbury Academy – A Middle School located north of the eastern parcel 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 113



 

In addition to those mentioned above, there are a number of other schools within 5km 
of the site.  Please note that within the Bedfordshire area, there are some schools 
which use the rarely-used, lower, middle, upper system. 

 

• Day-today facilities 
 
In addition to nearby schools, there is a Medical Centre, resource centre and library 
on High Street, a Post Office on Stotfold Road and various Convenience Stores and 
other facilities within the town. 

 
Sustainability – Public Transport 
 

4.22 As alluded to above, the site is well located in terms of accessibility within Arlesey and the 
wider region by public transport.  
 
Bus Services 
 

4.23 Bus stops are located along the length of High Street, Church Lane and Stotfold Road.  
Arlesey is served by several bus routes connecting it to the wider region. 
 

4.24 A summary of the bus services is provided below: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.25 From the above it can be appreciated that regular bus services operate between Arlesey and 

the surrounding towns. 
 

Existing Bus Patronage 
 

4.26 2011UK Census data shows that 1.78% of residents of Arlesey commute by bus.  This is 
lower than the national average of 7.77% however, given the promotion of bus travel within 
the TP, it is envisaged that a greater proportion of residents of the new development will 
make use of bus services than is currently the case for residents of Arlesey. 

 
Train Services 
 

4.27 Arlesey Railway Station is situated on the East Coast Mainline, which runs regular services 
between London, Leeds, Newcastle and Edinburgh (though not all destinations can be 
reached directly from Arlesey).  Arlesey Station is served by First Capital Connect. 
 

4.28 The week-day average frequency and journey times for direct trains between Arlesey and the 
key destinations are given below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Route 
Number 

Operator Route Frequency 
(Monday-
Saturday) 

72 Stagecoach Bedford-Hitchin Hourly 

90 Link J & D Travel Chicksands/Shefford-
Stotfold 

Hourly 

E7 J & D Travel Sandy/Biggleswade-
Letchworth/Baldock 

Hourly 

W7 Wanderbus Shefford-Letchworth Hourly 
(Thursday 

only) 

Destination Frequency Journey Time 

London (Kings Cross) 2 Per Hour 37-41 minutes 

Peterborough 2 Per Hour 40-45 minutes 

Stevenage 2 Per Hour 11-12 minutes 

Agenda Item 11
Page 114



 

4.29 From the above it can be seen that regular services, offering connections to many 
destinations further afield, serve Arlesey.  Regular journeys to and from London make Arlesey 
a viable place from which to commute to London. 
 

4.30 Secure cycle storage facilities are provided at the station thereby facilitating multi-modal 
sustainable travel.  

 
 Existing Train Patronage 

 
4.31 2011 UK Census data indicates that 9.05% of Arlesey residents commute by train; this is 

above the national figure of 5.46%, reflecting Arlesey’s position as a commuter town. 
 

Highway Safety 
 
4.32 Within the context of this ITA, safety is concerned with reducing the loss of life, injuries and 

damage to property resulting from transport related incidents and crime on critical locations on 
the road network.  
 

4.33 MfS advises that safety by way of natural surveillance is best achieved if cars, cyclists and 
pedestrians are kept together if the route is over any significant distance and that there should 
be a presumption against routes serving only pedestrians and/or cyclists.  Footpaths and 
cycle ways within the development will follow this guidance. 
 

4.34 The increased safety associated with over-looked streets is also alluded to in the 
Government’s National Guidance ‘Encouraging Walking: Advice for Local Authorities’ (March 
2000) which concludes that walking is good for the community as streets are safer with 
people in them. To ensure that the site itself can be considered to be as safe as possible, 
footpaths within the development will be provided alongside the carriageway or overlooked by 
residential properties. Where formal pedestrian crossing facilities are required they will be 
positioned along the key desire lines in order to minimise the number of pedestrians seeking 
to cross the carriageway at other locations. 
 

4.35 In accordance with the guidelines set out in the DfT’s ‘Guidance on Transport Assessment’ a 
review of the accidents to have occurred within the scope of the study during the past five 
years has been undertaken.  
 

4.36 CBC have provided highway accident statistics for the period 01/1/2008 – 31/3/2013.  A 
summary of the accidents to have occurred within approximately 50m of the junctions 
assessedwithin this ITA is presented below: 
 
Hitchin Road/Arlesey Road Roundabout(South of Henlow) 
 

4.37 There have been two serious accidents and six slight accidents within 50m of the roundabout 
in the period under consideration. 
 

4.38 One serious accident involved a car and a motorcyclist, and was as a result of the car pulling 
out to overtake a motorcyclist, then pulling in sharply, causing the motorcyclist to brake 
heavily and skid. 

 
4.39 The other serious accident involved two cars, and was caused by a driver following too 

closely to the car in front and failing to slow down in time for the roundabout, resulting in a 
collision with the car in front. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 115



 

 
4.40 The contributory factors of the six slight accidents are shown below: 
 

Travelling too fast for conditions, failed to look properly. 

Failed to look properly. 

Failed to look properly, failed to judge other person’s path or 
speed. 

Failed to look properly, Not displaying lights at night or in poor 
visibility, vehicle blind spot. 

Careless, reckless or in a hurry. 

Slippery road (due to weather), disobeyed automatic traffic 
signal. 

 
 Arlesey Road/Stotfold Road Roundabout 

 
4.41 There has been one serious accident and three slight accidents within 50m of the Stotfold 

Road/Arlesey Road roundabout in the period being considered. 
 

4.42 The serious accident involved a motorbike and two cars, and occurred when the motorcyclist 
swerved on a patch of ice, and the motorist behind them swerved to avoid them, colliding with 
a car travelling in the opposite direction. 

 
4.43 Of the three slight accidents, two are listed as having no contributory factors, and one was 

attributable to aggressive driving, failure to look properly, exceeding the speed limit and 
driving carelessly, recklessly or being in a hurry. 
 
A507/Hitchin Road Roundabout (South of Stotfold) 
 

4.44 There were three accidents in the vicinity of the junction during the period being considered.  
One was serious in nature and two were slight. 
 

4.45 The serious accident involved two cars, and occured as a result of one driver failing to look 
properly, and pulling out onto the roundabout into the path of the other car. 

 
4.46 Of the two slight accidents, one was as a result of a driver failing to look properly, and one 

was as a result of a slippery road due to adverse weather conditions. 
 
Hitchin Road/Eliot Way Roundabout 

 
4.47 There have been no serious accidents and one slight accident at the Hitchin Road/Eliot Way 

Roundabout. 
 
4.48 The slight accident was attributable to failure of a driver to look properly. 

 
A1(M)/A507 Grade-separated Roundabout 
 

4.49 There has been one serious accident and eight slight accidents at the A1(M)/Arlesey Road 
grade-separated junction in the five year period being considered. 
 

4.50 The serious accident involved one car, which skidded in snow and hit a tree whilst exiting the 
slip road.  It was attributable to a slippery road surface, and defective or under-inflated tyres. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 116



 

 
4.51 The contributory factors of the eight slight accidents are shown below: 
 

Stationary or parked vehicles(s). 

Poor turn or manoeuvre, failed to signal or misleading signal, failed to look 
properly, sudden breaking, careless, reckless or in a hurry. 

Exceeding speed limit, swerved, loss of control, defective brakes, careless, 
reckless or in a hurry. 

Sudden braking, failed to look properly. 

Poor turn or manoeuvre, failed to judge other person’s path or speed, failed 
to look properly, following too close, sudden braking. 

Failed to look properly.  

Poor turn or manoeuvre, careless, reckless or in a hurry, junction restart 
(moving off at a junction). 

No contributory factors. 

 
Proposed Site Accesses 
 
Central and Western Accesses - High Street/Hitchin Road 
 

4.52 One serious accident and nine slight accidents have been recorded on the 1.6km section of 
High Street/Hitchin Road that will be the location of the site access as well as traffic-calming 
measures as part of the development. 
 

4.53 The serious accident involved a car and a cyclist, and was attributable to the cyclist entering 
the road from the pavement and poor visibility due to vegetation.  The cyclist was travelling 
along the pavement, the car edged out of their drive and the cyclist failed to stop, hitting the 
car’s bonnet. 
 

4.54 The contributory factors of the nine slight accidents are shown below: 
 

Slippery road (due to weather), road layout (eg. bend, hill, 
narrow carriageway), travelling too fast for conditions, poor 
turn or manoeuvre. 

Loss of control, nervous, uncertain or panic. 

Sudden braking. 

Slippery road (due to weather), stationary or parked 
vehicle(s). 

Exceeding speed limit, stationary or parked vehicle(s), 
vehicle blind spot, dazzling sun, pedestrian crossing road 
masked by stationary or parked vehicle, pedestrian failed to 
judge vehicle’s path or speed. 

Failed to look properly, careless, reckless or in a hurry, 
dazzling sun, distraction in vehicle. 

Failed to look properly, failed to judge other person’s path or 
speed, failed to signal or misleading signal, exceeding speed 
limit. 

No contributing factors. 

Vehicle in course of crime, impaired by alcohol. 

 
Eastern Access – A507 
 

4.55 There have been no serious accidents and one slight accident in the area of the proposed 
A507 access junction. 
 

4.56 The slight accident was attributable to driving carelessly, recklessly or in a hurry, and failure to 
look properly. 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 117



 

 
Stotfold Road Access 
 

4.57 There has been one serious accident and two slight accidents in proximity to the proposed 
access on Stotfold Road. 
 

4.58 The serious accident involved a motorbike and two cars, and was covered in the Stotfold 
Road/Arlesey Road roundabout section of this report. 

 
4.59 One of the slight accidents was attributable to failure to look properly and dazzling by the sun, 

and the other was attributable to impairment by alcohol and driving carelessly, recklessly or in 
a hurry. 

 
Accident Summary 
 

4.60 From the above summary of accidents to haveoccurred in the vicinity of the junctions within 
the scope of this ITA, it can be appreciated that the vast majority of accidents have been 
slight in nature and have been attributable to careless driving, poor weather conditions or 
drivers being impaired by alcohol. None of the accidents to occur have been attributable to 
junction geometry. 

 
Traffic Impact 
 

4.61 Following scoping discussions with CBC Highway Authority it was agreed that the impact of 
the proposed development on the following junctions and links would be assessed during the 
traditional AM (08:00-09:00) and PM (17:00-18:00) peak hours: 
 

• A507 Arlesey Road/Hitchin Road (roundabout south of Henlow) 

• A507 Arlesey Road/Stotfold Road (roundabout) 

• A507/Hitchin Road (roundabout south of Stotfold) 

• Hitchin Road/Eliot Way (roundabout) 

• A507/A1(M) (grade-separated roundabout) 

• Arlesey Road/Hitchin Road/Arlesey New Road (priority junction) 
 
4.62 In addition to the above impact assessments requested by CBC, the HAhave been contacted.  

The HA confirmed the request to assess the A507/A1(M) junction and also requested that an 
assessment of the A1/B658 roundabout is undertaken. 
 

4.63 Following feedback from local residents and stakeholder groups during the consultation 
period the assessment has been extended to include the section of Hitchin Road to the south 
of ‘5-ways’ junction.  
 

4.64 A robust approach has been taken at every opportunity during the assessment. The traffic 
flows modelledin this interim assessment can therefore be considered to be an over-estimate; 
this allows the resulting conclusions to be made with a great deal of confidence.  
 

4.65 The trip generation of the residential element of the site is based upon 1,400dwellings, which 
is higher than the number of dwellings that are anticipated. 
 

4.66 Network growth has been added to the traffic count data; there will therefore inevitably be a 
degree of double counting given that the proposals form a large percentage of the growth that 
is proposed within the area in the near future. Furthermore, network growth to 2025 has been 
applied.  It should be noted that the DfT Guidance on Transport Assessment advises that 
growth should be applied for a period no less than five years after the registration of a 
planning application or ten years for the strategic road network.  

 
4.67 No allowance has been made within this ITA for the reduction in trip generation which will 

come about as a result of the measures identified within the TP. The target of the TP is to 

Agenda Item 11
Page 118



 

bring about a reduction in single occupancy car use. The findings of this ITA can therefore be 
considered to be a conservative estimate. 

4.68 No account has been taken of the anticipated reduction in trips that will result from the 
facilities proposed on the eastern parcel.  The supermarket and local centre, by definition, will 
provide facilities for residents of the site as well as the existing residents of Arlesey.  These 
facilities are therefore unlikely to generate the number of vehicular trips onto the highway 
network which have been accounted for within this ITA, as the majority of patrons will be able 
to travel on foot or by bicycle.  Furthermore, the vehicles which do access these facilities are 
likely to be vehicles already travelling adjacent to the site, i.e. pass-by trips; there will 
therefore inevitably be further double counting. 

 
4.69 To assist in assessing the potential impact of the development, independent 12-hour 

classified traffic counts were conducted by Streetwise Services Ltd on Thursday 20
th
 June 

2013. This date was agreed with the highway authority,and was outside of the school holidays 
in the locality. The traffic surveys confirm that the traditional peak hours assessed within this 
report coincide with the actual peak times at each of the junction locations. 

 
4.70 In order to gauge the potential impact of the proposed development each of the 

junctions/roundabouts has been modelled with and without the anticipated development 
related traffic, this is known as the Do Something and the Do Nothing scenario.  
 

4.71 The Do Nothing 2013 scenario models the junctions using the data taken directly from the 
classified traffic counts described above.  

 
4.72 The figures used in the Do Nothing 2025 scenario use data taken from the classified traffic 

counts with NTM adjusted TEMPRO (6.2) growth to 2025 applied and the expected trip 
generations of other consented developments (and developments which are allocated and will 
therefore potentially be consented in the foreseeable future) in the area accounted for.  The 
consented developments included within the assessment are listed below: 

 

• Land at Arlesey Road, Stotfold – 85 dwellings (Policy HA12) 

• Land at Roker Park, The Green, Stotfold – 43 dwellings (Policy HA13) 

• Land at Roecroft School Site, Stotfold – 40 dwellings (Policy HA14) 

• Land at former Pig Development Unit, Hitchin Road, Stotfold – 5ha of 
employment land, assumed for the purpose of this assessment as being 0.75ha 
each of B1, B2 and B8 employment land (Policy MA7) 

 
4.73 The Do Something 2025 scenario is made up of the classified count data with NTM adjusted 

TEMPRO (6.2) growth rates to 2025 applied, with the addition of the predicted development 
generated traffic of the aforementionedconsented developments as well as the anticipated trip 
generation of the Arlesey Cross site. 
 

4.74 The application of TEMPRO network growth to the traffic count data is considered to be a 
highly robust approach given that the Arlesey Crossdevelopment itself constitutes a 
significant proportion of the growth predicted in the town.  

 
4.75 The anticipated traffic generation of the site has been calculated using trip rates extracted 

from the TRICS database.  The trip rates are based upon average traffic surveys conducted 
at similar sites throughout England (excluding Greater London, the Isle of Man and the Isle of 
Wight).  

 
4.76 The quantum of development on the site which has been accounted for is listed below; the 

TRICS categories used are shown in brackets. It should be noted that in order to ensure that 
the assessment can be considered to be robust the scale of development within each land 
use category has been rounded up. Following discussions with CBC highway authorityit has 
been agreed that as the onsite primary school is largely intended to serve the development 
and existing residents of Arlesey it will therefore not adversely impact upon the wider road 
network; as such the potential trip generation of this facility has not been included within the 
assessment.  

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 119



 

• 1,400 Residential Dwellings (Mixed Private/Non-Private Housing) 

• 500m² Retail Units (Local Shops) 

• 1,000m²  Supermarket (Food Superstore) 

• 300m²  D2 Health Care (GP Surgery) 

• 1,700m² B1 Office (Offices) 

• 2,4000m² Industrial Estate (Industrial Estate) 

• 300m² Community Centre (Community Centre) 

• 100 Bed Care Home (Care Home) 

• 50 bed Sheltered Accommodation (Sheltered Accommodation) 
 
4.77 For the purposes of this model, of the 1,400 residential units, 500 will be situated on the 

western site, and 900 on the eastern site, along with all non-residential development. 
 
Traffic Distribution  

 
4.78 The distribution of the trip generation of the site has been determined using a gravity model 

which has been prepared based upon the 2001UK Census data for the Arlesey ward (data on 
commuting distance from the more recent 2011 census is not currently available). 
 

4.79 The ‘Distance Travelled to Work’ category of the Census Data has been used to determine 
the percentage of people who travel the following distances to work: less than 5km; between 
5km and 20km; between 20km and 40km and greater than 40km.  

 
4.80 The total trip generation of the site was apportioned to the three zones described above 

based upon the proportions that travel these distances in the Census Data; these proportions 
are shown below: 
 

• Less than 5km – 26.2% 

• Between 5km and 20km – 48.0% 

• Between 20km and 40km – 14.5% 

• Greater than 40km – 11.3% 
 
4.81 Radii of these distances from the site were then drawn on a map. The major towns/cities 

within each zone were identified and the traffic allocated to each zone was then apportioned 
to each town/city within the zone on a pro rata basis, based upon the population of the 
settlement. 
 

4.82 The route to each town/city was determined using Google Maps, and the route through the 
junctions that were analysed for this ITA was noted. 

 
4.83 The main roads through the eastern and western parcel of the development are intended to 

act as a relief road for the High Street.  The trip distribution has therefore assumed that 80% 
of the current traffic on High Street will instead use the Relief Road. 

 
4.84 In both the Do Nothing and the Do Something scenarios the HGV% modelled at each of the 

existing junctions on the network are those taken directly from the classified countdata. This 
will inevitably lead to an over estimate in the Do Something scenario, as given the largely 
residential nature of the development, the HGV% of the site generated traffic is likely to be 
lower than that currently on the network. 
 

4.85 Capacity assessments have been undertaken at all of the junctions listed in Paragraph 4.61 
using the industry standard computer modelling software, ‘Junctions 8’. 

 
4.86 What follows is an analysis of the result of the modelling at each of the junctions: 

 
Site Access 

 
4.87 The development proposal includes fourpotential site accesses.Preliminary designs for these 

access junctions have been subject to capacity assessments. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 120



 

 
4.88 As previously mentioned within this report there will be two principle points of access to the 

western land, with a spine road being provided through the site between the two points of 
access to provide relief to High Street. 

4.89 The northernmost point of access to the western land will be the central access described 
below.  An additional access will be provided to the south of High Street off a reconfigured 
five-ways junction.  The main spine road through the western land will therefore serve as a 
relief road, thereby helping to minimise vehicular movements along High Street. 

 
4.90 This junction has already been designed by others and approved by CBC Highway Authority. 

 
Central Access 
 

4.91 The central access will be situated between the two parcels on High Street, and will serve 
both parcels.  It will take the form of two mini roundabouts set in a shared-surface 
environment. 
 
Eastern Access 
 

4.92 The eastern access will serve the eastern parcel from the A507 in the form of a roundabout. 
 

4.93 The main road through the eastern development connecting High Street to the A507 will act 
as a relief road for High Street, Church Lane and Stotfold Road. 

 
4.94 The access junctions were analysed in the AM (07:45-09:15) and PM (16:45-18:15) peak 

periods to 2025, with the addition of the development traffic. 
 
4.95 This analysis showed that the proposed access junctions will operate within capacity to the 

growth year 2025 with the full development occupied. 
 

Summary of Junction Assessments 
 

4.96 Additionally some junctions that are at or below capacity in the Do Nothing 2025 scenario will 
potentially be above capacity at peak times in the Do Something 2025 scenario. 

 
4.97 Initial modelling has demonstrated that some of the junctions will be operating above their 

capacity as a result of the development traffic and network growth.  Geometric highway 
improvement works may therefore be required in order to mitigate the impacts of the 
development by promoting a nil-detriment solution. 
 

4.98 The modelling has also demonstrated that some junctions will operate above their capacity in 
the Do Nothing 2025 scenario; that is to say they will be above capacity even without the 
traffic resulting from this development. 

 
4.99 It should be noted that at such time as the exact nature of the development is known a full TA 

will be prepared in support of a planning application for the Arlesey Cross development;at this 
time a more detailed analysis of the junctions will be undertaken. 
 

4.100 The detailed analysis will make allowance for the measures which will be promoted within the 
TP which will be submitted in support of the application, and will also take into account the 
internal movements to the local centre, community and employment facilities provided on the 
site. 
 

4.101 Upon completion of the detailed assessment described above, physical highway mitigation 
measures designed to bring about a nil detriment solution will be proposed and agreed with 
the Highway Authority at junctions at which the cumulative impact of the development is 
considered to be severe in the context of the NPPF. 
 

4.102 The cost of the works will be quantified by a contractor (approved by CBC highway authority) 
and set out in the site’s Section 106 Agreement.  

Agenda Item 11
Page 121



 

 
 
 
 
 

Assessment of Hitchin Road South of ‘5-ways’ junction 
 
4.103 The standard methodology used to assess determine the capacity of a road link is presented 

in the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB): Volume 5, Section 1, Chapter 3, Part 3 
TA 79/99.  
 

4.104 Based upon the above methodology an initial assessment of Hitchin Road to the south of ‘5-
ways’ junction has been undertaken.  
 

4.105 The assessment demonstrated that upon full occupation of the proposed development the link 
will continue to operate within its capacity. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 122



 

5.0 Summary and Conclusions  
 

5.1 This ITA has been prepared by Woods Hardwick Infrastructure LLP, on behalf of Central 
Bedfordshire Council (CBC) Property Assets, in relation to a site known as Arlesey Cross, 
Arlesey, Bedfordshire. 
 

5.2 The proposal is for a mixed use development at a site known as Land at Chase Farm and 
Land West and North-East of High Street, Arlesey, Bedfordshire, comprising in the region of 
1,250 residential dwellings; areas of employment; a First School; community buildings; a 
supermarket and retail units; and areas of public open space. 
 

5.3 The development will be across two parcels on either side of High Street, known as the 
western and eastern parcels. 
 

5.4 As set out within this ITA, the site is considered to lie in a sustainable location and clearly 
conforms to policy, guidance and objectives at a national, regional and local level. The site is 
included in the Central Bedfordshire (North) Site Allocations Development Plan Document 
(April 2011). 
 

5.5 Four junctions allowing access to the site are proposed: 
 

• A double mini roundabout on High Street, providing access to and between the two 
parcels (‘Central Access’) 

• An access to the south of the western parcel from which a spine road through the 
western parcel will connect to the central access (‘Western Access’) 

• A roundabout on the A507, allowing access to the eastern parcel (‘Eastern Access’) 

• A priority junction for the eastern parcel on Stotfold Road (‘Stotfold Road Access’) 
 

5.6 The development will include a relief road, which is indented to reduce the level of traffic on 
High Street.  It will connect the Western Access to the Central Access, where it will cross High 
Street and continue to meet the A507 at the Eastern Access. 

 
5.7 The accesses will be designed in accordance with Design Manual for Roads and Bridges 

TD40/94 and Manual for Streets and their formats have been agreed in principle with the 
highway authority.  

 
5.8 As agreed in pre-application scoping discussions with the local Highway Authority, CBC, and 

the HA, the potential impact of the proposed development on the local highway network has 
been examined in detail with particular reference to the following locations: 
 

• A507 Arlesey Road/Hitchin Road (roundabout south of Henlow) 

• A507 Arlesey Road/Stotfold Road (roundabout) 

• A507/Hitchin Road (roundabout south of Stotfold) 

• Hitchin Road/Eliot Way (roundabout) 

• A507/A1(M) (grade-separated roundabout) 

• A1(M)/B658 (roundabout) 

• Arlesey Road/Hitchin Road/Arlesey New Road (priority junction) 
 
5.9 An assessment of Hitchin Road to the south of ‘5-ways’ junction has also been undertaken.  

 
5.10 An extremely robust approach has been undertaken during the modelling of the above 

junctionsand link, which have been assessed with network growth to 2025 and other locally 
consented schemes accounted for.  
 

5.11 The modelling has demonstrated that some junctions will operate above their capacity in the 
Do Nothing 2025 scenario; that is to say they will be above capacity even without the traffic 
resulting from this development. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 123



 

5.12 Additionally some junctions that are at or below capacity in the Do Nothing 2025 scenario will 
potentially be above capacity at peak times in the Do Something 2025 scenario. 
 

5.13 Highway improvement works may therefore be required at some of these junctions. 
 
5.14 Upon completion of a detailed TA, geometric highway improvement works designed to bring 

about a nil detriment solution will be proposed and agreed with the highway authority at 
junctions at which the cumulative impact of the development is considered to be severe. 
 

5.15 The cost of the works will be quantified by a CBC highway authority approved contractor and 
detailed in the site’s Section 106 Agreement. 
 

5.16 The assessment has also demonstrated the Hitchin Road to the south of ‘5-ways’ junction will 
continue to operate within capacity upon full occupation of the proposed development. 

 
5.17 As described throughout the report, the site lies in a highly sustainable location in terms of 

safe and convenient provision for pedestrians and cyclists, the site is also ideally located in 
terms of accessibility to Arlesey Railway Station.  

 
5.18 The services and facilities within the town centre, as well as those that will form part of the 

development, will be accessible on foot and by bicycle,which will reduce the vehicular trip 
generation of the development.  
 

5.19 There is therefore no reason in transportation or highway terms why the nature and 
scale of the development proposed on the Arlesey Crosssite should not be fully 
supported through the planning process.  

Agenda Item 11
Page 124



S
u
m
m
a
ry

o
f
Is
su
e
s

R
e
sp
o
n
se

C
h
a
n
g
e
m
a
d
e
if
re
q
u
ir
e
d

1
.
V
is
io
n

T
h

e
V

is
io

n
in

fu
n

ct
io

n
a

l
ra

th
e

r
th

a
n

v
is

io
n

a
ry

T
h

e
V

is
io

n
fo

r
A

rl
e

se
y

C
ro

ss
is

in
fo

rm
e

d
b

y
P

o
li

cy

M
A

8
,

b
a

se
li

n
e

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
,

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

fr
o

m
th

e

p
u

b
li

c
e

xh
ib

it
io

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
a

n
d

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

A
k

e
y

a
sp

e
ct

o
f

th
e

v
is

io
n

is
th

a
t

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
e

n
h

a
n

ce
th

e
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

in
A

rl
e

se
y

.
T

h
is

w
il

l
b

e
a

ch
ie

v
e

d

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
n

e
w

g
re

e
n

li
n

k
s

th
ro

u
g

h

th
e

to
w

n
w

h
ic

h
in

cl
u

d
e

a
n

e
w

n
o

rt
h

-s
o

u
th

ro
u

te

fo
r

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

s
a

n
d

cy
cl

is
ts

,
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

to
th

e
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t,
e

n
h

a
n

ce
d

li
n

k
s

to
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

fo
o

tp
a

th
n

e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d
a

n
e

tw
o

rk
o

f

g
re

e
n

ro
u

te
s

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.

T
e

xt
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to
a

d
d

e
m

p
h

a
si

s
to

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
to

th
e

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

T
h

e
V

is
io

n
w

il
l

im
p

ro
v

e
th

e
n

o
rt

h
e

n
d

o
f

A
rl

e
se

y
o

n
ly

T
h

e
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

a
re

a
is

lo
ca

te
d

to
w

a
rd

s
th

e
n

o
rt

h

o
f

th
e

se
tt

le
m

e
n

t,
w

h
e

re
th

e
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
m

a
ss

is

g
re

a
te

st
,

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
th

e
u

se
s

p
ro

p
o

se
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
a

re
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

to
co

m
p

le
m

e
n

t
th

e

e
xi

st
in

g
C

iv
ic

A
m

e
n

it
y

a
re

a
lo

ca
te

d
m

o
re

ce
n

tr
a

ll
y

w
it

h
in

A
rl

e
se

y
a

n
d

S
1

0
6

m
o

n
e

y
co

u
ld

b
e

u
se

d
to

e
n

su
re

it
d

o
e

s
n

o
t

su
ff

e
r

a
s

a
re

su
lt

o
f

th
e

Lo
ca

l

C
e

n
tr

e
.

In
a

d
d

it
io

n
p

a
rk

in
g

ra
ti

o
n

a
li

sa
ti

o
n

a
n

d

o
th

e
r

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
o

n
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
a

n
d

H
it

ch
in

R
o

a
d

a
re

p
ro

p
o

se
d

w
h

ic
h

w
il

l
b

e
n

e
fi

t
th

e
so

u
th

o
f

A
rl

e
se

y
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
C

-
S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
M
a
in
Is
s
u
e
s
R
a
is
e
d
in
Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s

Agenda Item 11
Page 125



T
o

o
m

u
ch

is
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l

a
n

d
n

o
t

d
e

fi
n

it
e

A
s

o
u

tl
in

e
d

in
S

e
ct

io
n

1
.1

0
o

f
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
,

th
e

p
u

rp
o

se
o

f
th

e
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t

is
to

g
u

id
e

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

si
te

a
n

d
to

p
ro

v
id

e

a
fu

rt
h

e
r

la
y

e
r

o
f

p
o

li
cy

to
b

u
il

d
o

n
P

o
li

cy
M

A
8

o
f

th
e

S
it

e
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s
D

P
D

,
w

h
ic

h
w

il
l

a
ss

is
t

C
B

C
in

d
e

a
li

n
g

w
it

h
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s.

T
h

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
ca

n
n

o
t

b
e

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

to
p

ro
v

id
e

fu
ll

d
e

ta
il

o
n

a
ll

o
f

th
e

is
su

e
s

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

o
r

fi
x

m
a

tt
e

rs
a

b
so

lu
te

ly
a

t
th

is

st
a

g
e

,
a

s
th

is
ca

n
o

n
ly

b
e

d
o

n
e

o
n

ce
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s
a

re
su

b
m

it
te

d
w

it
h

th
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

th
a

t
w

il
l

a
cc

o
m

p
a

n
y

th
e

m
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
V

is
io

n
sh

o
u

ld
m

a
k

e
cl

e
a

re
r

th
e

ro
u

te
o

f
th

e
re

li
e

f

ro
a

d
is

to
ru

n
fr

o
m

th
e

5
w

a
y

s
ju

n
ct

io
n

to
th

e
A

5
0

7

It
is

n
o

t
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

th
is

le
v

e
l

o
f

d
e

ta
il

is
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry

in
th

e
v

is
io

n
.

S
e

ct
io

n
5

o
f

th
e

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

co
v

e
rs

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
in

d
e

ta
il

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

2
.
S
ca
le
o
f
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

T
h

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
is

o
u

t
o

f
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

w
it

h
th

e
si

ze
o

f

A
rl

e
se

y
a

n
d

w
il

l
h

a
rm

th
e

v
il

la
g

e
fe

e
l

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

p
ro

v
id

e
s

g
u

id
a

n
ce

o
n

d
e

li
v

e
ry

o
f

th
e

q
u

a
n

tu
m

o
f

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

re
q

u
ir

e
d

b
y

th
e

S
it

e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
,

w
h

ic
h

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
th

ro
u

g
h

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

b
y

a
C

e
n

tr
a

l

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
In

sp
e

ct
o

r
a

n
d

fo
u

n
d

to
b

e
so

u
n

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

3
.
D
is
p
o
si
ti
o
n
o
f
La
n
d
U
se
s

T
h

e
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

is
p

ro
p

o
se

d
to

b
e

in
th

e
w

ro
n

g
p

la
ce

a
n

d

w
il

l
b

e
to

o
fa

r
fr

o
m

th
e

ce
n

tr
e

o
f

A
rl

e
se

y

T
h

e
p

o
si

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

w
a

s
in

fo
rm

e
d

b
y

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

re
sp

o
n

se
s

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

th
e

2
0

1
2

e
xh

ib
it

io
n

w
h

e
n

th
e

m
a

jo
ri

ty
o

f
re

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts

su
g

g
e

st
e

d
th

a
t

th
is

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

n
e

a
r

to

C
h

a
se

F
a

rm
cl

o
se

to
th

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

/
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t

ju
n

ct
io

n
.

T
h

e
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

w
il

l
n

e
e

d
to

se
rv

e
th

e

n
e

w
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

a
s

w
e

ll
a

s
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

a
n

d
th

is
is

th
e

m
o

st
ce

n
tr

a
l

lo
ca

ti
o

n
fo

r
b

o
th

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 126



C
o

n
ce

rn
s

th
a

t
A

rl
e

se
y

w
il

l
lo

se
it

s
h

e
a

rt
b

y
si

ti
n

g
th

e
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

a
w

a
y

fr
o

m
e

xi
st

in
g

a
m

e
n

it
y

ce
n

tr
e

w
it

h
th

is

d
e

tr
a

ct
in

g
fr

o
m

e
xi

st
in

g
se

rv
ic

e
s

It
is

a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
d

th
a

t
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

a
m

e
n

it
y

a
re

a

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
co

re
o

f
lo

ca
l

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

w
h

ic
h

in
cl

u
d

e

th
e

sc
h

o
o

l,
n

u
rs

e
ry

,
re

so
u

rc
e

ce
n

tr
e

,
T

o
w

n

C
o

u
n

ci
l

o
ff

ic
e

s,
h

a
ll

a
n

d
d

o
ct

o
r'

s
su

rg
e

ry
.

S
e

ct
io

n

1
0

6
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

ca
n

fa
ci

li
ta

te
a

n
u

p
g

ra
d

e
o

f
th

e

e
xi

st
in

g
a

m
e

n
it

y
a

re
a

a
n

d
e

xp
a

n
si

o
n

o
f

th
e

d
o

ct
o

r'
s

su
rg

e
ry

.

W
o

rd
in

g
a

d
d

e
d

to
S

e
ct

io
n

9
to

cl
a

ri
fy

th
a

t
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

a
n

y
S

1
0

6
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n

to
w

a
rd

s
'c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
a

n
d

se
rv

ic
e

s'
m

o
n

e
y

co
u

ld
b

e
sp

e
n

t
o

n

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
to

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
a

m
e

n
it

y

a
re

a
to

h
e

lp
m

a
in

ta
in

it
s

v
ia

b
il

it
y

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
re

su
lt

in
a

n
o

rt
h

/s
o

u
th

d
iv

id
e

a
n

d

se
p

a
ra

te
th

e
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

in
to

tw
o

w
it

h
a

ll
o

f
th

e
b

e
n

e
fi

ts

g
o

in
g

to
C

h
u

rc
h

E
n

d
a

n
d

th
e

n
o

rt
h

o
f

A
rl

e
se

y

S
e

ct
io

n
1

0
6

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
ca

n
b

e
u

se
d

to

fa
ci

li
ta

te
a

n
u

p
g

ra
d

e
o

f
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ci
v

ic
a

m
e

n
it

y

a
re

a
a

t
it

's
cu

rr
e

n
t

lo
ca

ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
e

xi
st

in
g

sc
h

o
o

l

w
il

l
a

ls
o

re
m

a
in

in
th

is
lo

ca
ti

o
n

.
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

w
il

l
a

ls
o

b
e

m
a

d
e

to
th

e
e

n
ti

re

le
n

g
th

o
f

th
e

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

b
e

tw
e

e
n

th
e

n
e

w
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

a
n

d
th

e
fi

v
e

w
a

y
s

ju
n

ct
io

n
to

im
p

ro
v

e
th

e

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

W
o

rd
in

g
a

d
d

e
d

to
S

e
ct

io
n

9
to

cl
a

ri
fy

th
a

t
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

a
n

y
S

1
0

6
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n

to
w

a
rd

s
'c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
a

n
d

se
rv

ic
e

s'
m

o
n

e
y

co
u

ld
b

e
sp

e
n

t
o

n

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
to

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
a

m
e

n
it

y

a
re

a
to

h
e

lp
m

a
in

ta
in

it
s

v
ia

b
il

it
y

.

It
w

o
u

ld
b

e
m

o
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

to
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g

ci
v

ic
a

m
e

n
it

y
a

re
a

th
a

n
cr

e
a

te
a

n
e

w
ce

n
tr

e
a

s
it

is
m

o
re

ce
n

tr
a

ll
y

lo
ca

te
d

T
h

e
re

is
n

o
t

th
e

la
n

d
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

to
e

xt
e

n
d

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
ci

v
ic

a
m

e
n

it
y

a
re

a
,

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
th

e
n

e
w

lo
ca

l
ce

n
tr

e
w

il
l

h
a

v
e

a
re

ta
il

fo
cu

s
a

n
d

e
xi

st
in

g

a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
ca

n
b

e
im

p
ro

v
e

d
a

t
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ci
v

ic

a
m

e
n

it
y

a
re

a
.

V
e

h
ic

le
a

cc
e

ss
to

th
e

n
e

w
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

w
o

u
ld

b
e

fr
o

m
th

e
n

e
w

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
to

a
v

o
id

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

p
re

ss
u

re
u

p
o

n
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s

N
e

tw
o

rk
.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

w
o

u
ld

b
e

m
a

d
e

to
e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

w
a

lk
in

g
a

n
d

cy
cl

in
g

b
e

tw
e

e
n

th
e

n
e

w
a

n
d

e
xi

st
in

g
a

m
e

n
it

ie
s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

e
xp

a
n

si
o

n
a

n
d

m
ix

o
f

u
se

s
N

o
te

d
N

o
n

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
n

th
e

w
e

st
e

rn
la

n
d

is
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

T
h

e
w

e
st

e
rn

la
n

d
fo

rm
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
si

te

a
n

d
sh

o
u

ld
th

e
re

fo
re

n
e

e
d

s
to

b
e

in
cl

u
d

e
d

in
th

e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 127



La
n

d
a

d
ja

ce
n

t
to

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
re

a
sh

o
u

ld
b

e

in
cl

u
d

e
d

if
m

a
d

e
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

b
y

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

to
a

v
o

id

fr
a

g
m

e
n

te
d

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

in
th

e
fu

tu
re

A
n

y
fu

rt
h

e
r

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
la

n
d

w
o

u
ld

h
a

v
e

to
g

o

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
d

u
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
ro

ce
ss

a
n

d
b

e
su

b
je

ct

to
fo

rm
a

l
e

xa
m

in
a

ti
o

n
,

th
is

co
u

ld
h

a
p

p
e

n
a

t
th

e

n
e

xt
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
S

tr
a

te
g

y

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

D
e

v
e

lo
p

a
b

le
la

n
d

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
S

t
Jo

h
n

's
R

o
a

d
to

th
e

so
u

th
o

f

th
e

w
e

st
e

rn
e

xp
a

n
si

o
n

a
re

a
is

b
e

in
g

o
v

e
rl

o
o

k
e

d
fo

r
b

u
il

t

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
it

h
o

u
t

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
a

re
a

s
h

a
v

e
b

e
e

n
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

o
n

th
e

b
a

si
s

o
f

u
rb

a
n

d
e

si
g

n
p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s

ta
k

in
g

in
to

a
cc

o
u

n
t

si
te

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
n

o
t

o
n

th
e

b
a

si
s

o
f

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
o

f
h

o
u

se
s

a
p

p
e

a
rs

to
fa

v
o

u
r

th
e

m
a

jo
r

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

w
h

il
st

n
o

t
re

fl
e

ct
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
a

n
d

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

T
h

e
h

o
u

si
n

g
a

re
a

s
h

a
v

e
b

e
e

n
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

o
n

th
e

b
a

si
s

o
f

u
rb

a
n

d
e

si
g

n
p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s

ta
k

in
g

in
to

a
cc

o
u

n
t

si
te

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
n

o
t

o
n

th
e

b
a

si
s

o
f

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

La
ck

o
f

d
e

ta
il

fo
r

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

a
n

d
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
,

p
la

y
a

re
a

s
a

n
d

a
tt

e
n

u
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

p
la

n
a

t
fi

g
u

re
4

.1
p

ro
v

id
e

s
a

n

in
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

o
f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
,

p
la

y
a

re
a

s
a

n
d

a
tt

e
n

u
a

ti
o

n
to

g
u

id
e

fu
tu

re

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s,
w

h
ic

h
w

il
l

p
ro

v
id

e
m

o
re

d
e

ta
il

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

g
a

rd
e

n
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

lo
ca

te
d

n
e

a
r

to
th

e

e
xi

st
in

g
C

h
a

se
H

o
u

se
ca

re
h

o
m

e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

g
a

rd
e

n
s

co
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
w

it
h

in
a

n

e
n

cl
o

se
d

co
u

rt
y

a
rd

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
E

xt
ra

C
a

re

fa
ci

li
ty

.
T

h
e

g
a

rd
e

n
s

w
o

u
ld

b
e

sa
fe

a
n

d
se

cu
re

a
n

d
o

v
e

rl
o

o
k

e
d

b
y

re
si

d
e

n
ts

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

a
s

th
is

ca
n

b
e

d
e

a
lt

w
it

h
a

t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

is
p

ro
p

o
se

d
to

o
cl

o
se

to
th

e
A

5
0

7
.

T
h

e
re

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

m
o

re
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

se
p

a
ra

ti
n

g
it

.

T
h

e
n

e
a

re
st

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l

d
w

e
ll

in
g

w
o

u
ld

b
e

o
v

e
r

2
5

0
m

fr
o

m
th

e
A

5
0

7
.

T
h

e
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

a
re

a
w

il
l

p
ro

v
id

e
a

n
o

is
e

b
u

ff
e

r
b

e
tw

e
e

n
th

e
A

5
0

7
a

n
d

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s.
T

h
e

re
is

a
ls

o
su

b
st

a
n

ti
a

l

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
b

e
tw

e
e

n
th

e
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

a
n

d

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l

a
re

a
s

(a
ro

u
n

d
2

5
m

in
w

id
th

).

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ri

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 128



T
h

e
re

d
li

n
e

si
te

b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
in

cl
u

d
e

s
so

m
e

la
n

d
w

h
ic

h
is

n
o

t
in

cl
u

d
e

d
w

it
h

in
th

e
M

A
8

Lo
ca

l
P

la
n

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
si

te

a
n

d
e

xc
lu

d
e

s
so

m
e

sm
a

ll
a

re
a

s
w

h
ic

h
a

re

O
n

ly
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

is
p

ro
p

o
se

d
o

n
la

n
d

o
u

ts
id

e
o

f

th
e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
a

re
a

,
th

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

w
h

ic
h

w
o

u
ld

h
e

lp
m

a
in

ta
in

th
e

v
is

u
a

l
se

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

b
e

tw
e

e
n

A
rl

e
se

y
a

n
d

S
to

tf
o

ld
a

n
d

F
a

ir
fi

e
ld

P
a

rk
,

w
h

ic
h

is
a

st
a

te
d

a
im

o
f

P
o

li
cy

M
A

8
.

T
h

e
re

d
li

n
e

w
it

h
in

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
is

b
a

se
d

o
n

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
p

ro
v

id
e

d
b

y

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

4
.
H
o
u
si
n
g
D
e
si
g
n
/D

e
n
si
ty

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

e
n

si
ty

o
f

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

is
to

o
h

ig
h

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
n

in
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

o
v

e
ra

ll
d

e
n

si
ty

o
n

ly
.

D
e

n
si

ty
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

v
a

ry
a

cr
o

ss
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

it
h

th
e

re
b

e
in

g

d
if

fe
re

n
t

ch
a

ra
ct

e
r

a
re

a
s

a
n

d
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

a
n

d
st

a
g

e
th

ro
u

g
h

d
e

si
g

n
co

d
in

g

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

e
d

to
b

e
m

o
re

p
re

ci
se

o
n

sc
a

le
a

n
d

d
e

n
si

ty
o

f
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

in
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

T
h

is
w

il
l

b
e

co
v

e
re

d
in

th
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

th
ro

u
g

h
d

e
si

g
n

co
d

in
g

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

U
n

ti
l

th
e

m
ix

o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

is
k

n
o

w
n

it
is

n
o

t
p

o
ss

ib
le

to

co
m

m
e

n
t

w
h

e
th

e
r

it
is

th
e

m
o

st
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
w

a
y

o
f

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
n

g
th

e
la

n
d

u
se

F
u

rt
h

e
r

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

w
il

l
b

e
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

w
h

o
u

se
s

w
il

l
n

o
t

b
e

fo
r

th
e

lo
ca

l
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

so
th

is

w
il

l
h

a
v

e
a

n
e

g
a

ti
v

e
im

p
a

ct
o

n
A

rl
e

se
y

P
e

o
p

le
in

A
rl

e
se

y
in

h
o

u
si

n
g

n
e

e
d

w
il

l
b

e
e

li
g

ib
le

fo
r

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

si
n

g
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

lo
ca

l
le

tt
in

g
s

p
o

li
cy

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

5
0

%
o

f
h

o
u

se
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

fo
r

A
rl

e
se

y
a

n
d

S
to

tf
o

ld
re

si
d

e
n

ts
o

n
ly

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
ca

n
n

o
t

co
n

tr
o

l
m

a
rk

e
t

h
o

u
si

n
g

a
n

d

w
h

o
is

a
b

le
to

p
u

rc
h

a
se

it
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

sh
o

u
ld

in
cl

u
d

e
la

rg
e

r
h

o
m

e
s

to
p

ro
v

id
e

fo
r

th
e

n
e

e
d

s
o

f
fa

m
il

ie
s

C
B

C
P

o
li

cy
re

q
u

ir
e

s
a

m
ix

o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

si
ze

s
o

n

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

su
ch

a
s

th
is

a
n

d
it

w
il

l
th

e
re

fo
re

in
cl

u
d

e
la

rg
e

r
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

su
it

a
b

le
fo

r
fa

m
il

ie
s

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

n
e

w
h

o
m

e
s

to
m

e
e

t
n

e
e

d
o

f

g
ro

w
in

g
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

N
o

te
d

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

a
ss

is
te

d
li

v
in

g
h

o
u

si
n

g
fo

r
e

ld
e

rl
y

p
e

o
p

le
N

o
te

d
N

o
n

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d

Agenda Item 11
Page 129



H
o

u
se

s
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
re

a
so

n
a

b
ly

p
ri

ce
d

C
B

C
ca

n
n

o
t

co
n

tr
o

l
th

e
p

ri
ce

o
f

n
e

w
h

o
m

e
s

a
s

th
is

w
il

l
b

e
e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
b

y
th

e
m

a
rk

e
t.

T
h

e
re

w
il

l

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
b

e
a

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

m
e

s
o

f

d
if

fe
re

n
t

te
n

u
re

s
d

e
li

v
e

re
d

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
d

e
q

u
a

te
p

a
rk

in
g

re
q

u
ir

e
d

in
n

e
w

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

to
a

v
o

id

o
n

st
re

e
t

p
a

rk
in

g

T
h

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

n
e

e
d

to
co

m
p

ly
w

it
h

C
B

C
's

a
d

o
p

te
d

p
a

rk
in

g
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
h

a
s

a
m

ix
o

f
h

o
u

si
n

g
st

y
le

s
a

n
d

a
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
o

f

n
e

w
h

o
u

se
s

w
o

u
ld

b
e

o
u

t
o

f
ch

a
ra

ct
e

r
w

it
h

e
xi

st
in

g
to

w
n

P
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
4

.1
3

st
a

te
s:

'T
h

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
e

xp
e

ct
th

e

d
e

si
g

n
o

f
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

w
e

ll
in

g
s

to
re

fl
e

ct
th

e

b
e

st
fe

a
tu

re
s

o
f

lo
ca

l
a

rc
h

it
e

ct
u

re
.

P
ro

p
o

se
d

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

w
il

l
n

e
e

d
to

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

a
co

n
te

xt
u

a
l

a
n

a
ly

si
s

to
in

fo
rm

th
e

d
e

si
g

n
p

ro
ce

ss
,

w
h

ic
h

sh
o

u
ld

fo
rm

p
a

rt
o

f
fu

tu
re

D
e

si
g

n
C

o
d

in
g

a
n

d

P
la

n
n

in
g

A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s.
'

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
h

a
s

a
m

ix
tu

re
o

f
b

u
il

d
in

g
st

y
le

s
so

a
F

a
ir

fi
e

ld
P

a
rk

st
y

le
o

f
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

o
u

ld
b

e
p

re
fe

ra
b

le

A
s

a
b

o
v

e
N

o
n

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d

H
e

ig
h

t
re

st
ri

ct
io

n
s

n
e

e
d

e
d

to
k

e
e

p
a

v
il

la
g

e
fe

e
l

P
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
4

.1
2

st
a

te
s

th
a

t
n

e
w

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
il

l

co
m

p
ri

se
p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl

y
2

st
o

re
y

h
o

u
si

n
g

w
it

h
a

m
a

xi
m

u
m

o
f

3
st

o
re

y
s

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.
It

is

li
k

e
ly

th
a

t
b

u
il

d
in

g
s

w
it

h
in

th
e

lo
ca

l
ce

n
tr

e
w

il
l

b
e

2
.5

a
n

d
3

st
o

re
y

s
in

h
e

ig
h

t.
T

h
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

d
e

si
g

n

a
n

d
co

d
in

g
w

il
l

n
e

e
d

to
co

n
si

d
e

r
th

e
sc

a
le

a
n

d

m
a

ss
in

g
o

f
th

e
lo

ca
l

ce
n

tr
e

in
re

la
ti

o
n

to
a

d
ja

ce
n

t

la
n

d
u

se
s

a
n

d
b

u
il

t
fo

rm
to

h
e

lp
e

n
su

re
a

g
o

o
d

fi
t

w
it

h
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

se
tt

le
m

e
n

t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
e

st
h

e
ti

c
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
re

q
u

ir
e

d
th

a
t

b
le

n
d

s
in

w
it

h
re

st

o
f

A
rl

e
se

y

T
h

is
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

is
re

fl
e

ct
e

d
in

p
a

ra
4

.1
3

o
f

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
D

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

H
o

u
se

s
sh

o
u

ld
in

cl
u

d
e

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
e

n
e

rg
y

ie
so

la
r

p
a

n
n

e
ls

C
u

rr
e

n
t

C
B

C
p

o
li

cy
in

th
e

C
o

re
S

tr
a

te
g

y
re

q
u

ir
e

s
a

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
th

e
e

n
e

rg
y

u
se

d
in

n
e

w

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
is

si
ze

b
e

d
e

ri
v

e
d

fr
o

m

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
so

u
rc

e
s.

T
h

is
w

il
l

b
e

se
cu

re
d

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 130



5
.
A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
H
o
u
si
n
g

N
o

n
e

e
d

fo
r

3
5

%
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

u
si

n
g

-
it

e
xc

e
e

d
s

th
e

n
e

e
d

s
o

f
A

rl
e

se
y

C
B

C
's

p
o

li
cy

is
fo

r
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
b

e

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
o

n
a

ll
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
o

f
4

h
o

u
se

s
o

r

m
o

re
to

h
e

lp
m

e
e

t
th

e
w

id
e

r
n

e
e

d
w

it
h

in
C

e
n

tr
a

l

B
e

d
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
re

si
d

e
n

ts
sh

o
u

ld
h

a
v

e
p

ri
o

ri
ty

in
p

ri
v

a
te

a
n

d

so
ci

a
l

h
o

u
si

n
g

P
e

o
p

le
in

A
rl

e
se

y
in

h
o

u
si

n
g

n
e

e
d

w
il

l
b

e
e

li
g

ib
le

fo
r

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

si
n

g
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

lo
ca

l
le

tt
in

g
s

p
o

li
cy

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
s

th
a

t
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

u
si

n
g

w
il

l
a

tt
ra

ct
so

ci
a

l

p
ro

b
le

m
s

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l
h

a
s

a
d

u
ty

to
p

ro
v

id
e

sa
fe

a
n

d

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

si
n

g
fo

r
a

ll
se

ct
io

n
s

o
f

th
e

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

si
n

g
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
se

p
e

ra
te

d
fr

o
m

p
ri

v
a

te

h
o

u
si

n
g

C
B

C
's

p
o

li
cy

is
fo

r
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
b

e

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
a

cr
o

ss
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
to

p
ro

m
o

te

so
ci

a
l

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

si
n

g
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
a

n
d

v
a

ri
e

d
C

B
C

's
P

o
li

cy
is

fo
r

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
b

e
te

n
d

e
r

b
li

n
d

so

th
e

re
is

n
o

d
if

fe
re

n
ce

in
th

e
ch

a
ra

ct
e

r
o

f

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
a

n
d

p
ri

v
a

te
m

a
rk

e
t

h
o

u
si

n
g

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

6
.
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
lo

ca
te

d
o

u
ts

id
e

o
f

A
rl

e
se

y
P

o
li

cy
M

A
8

o
f

th
e

S
it

e
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s
D

P
D

re
q

u
ir

e
s

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

La
n

d
cl

o
se

to
th

e
A

5
0

7
is

id
e

a
l

fo
r

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

N
o

te
d

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
lo

ca
te

d
to

th
e

w
e

st
o

f
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t

b
a

ck
in

g
o

n
to

th
e

ra
il

w
a

y
li

n
e

T
h

e
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

is
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

to
b

e
in

th
e

b
e

st

lo
ca

ti
o

n
in

te
rm

s
o

f
a

tt
ra

ct
in

g
in

te
re

st
fr

o
m

th
e

m
a

rk
e

t.
It

w
o

u
ld

a
ls

o
p

ro
v

id
e

a
n

a
co

u
st

ic
b

u
ff

e
r

fo
r

th
e

h
o

u
si

n
g

p
ro

p
o

se
d

o
n

th
e

e
a

st
e

rn
la

n
d

to

re
d

u
ce

n
o

is
e

fr
o

m
th

e
A

5
0

7
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
in

cr
e

a
se

co
m

m
u

ti
n

g
to

A
rl

e
se

y
fr

o
m

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re

T
h

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

is
a

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
P

o
li

cy
M

A
8

o
f

th
e

S
it

e
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s
D

P
D

a
n

d
w

il
l

g
e

n
e

ra
te

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
fo

r
lo

ca
l

p
e

o
p

le
,

w
h

ic
h

m
a

y
re

d
u

ce
o

u
t-

co
m

m
u

ti
n

g
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 131



E
xi

st
in

g
in

d
u

st
ri

a
l

a
re

a
s

n
o

t
fu

ll
y

o
cc

u
p

ie
d

so
w

h
y

th
e

n
e

e
d

fo
r

m
o

re
?

Is
th

e
re

a
ct

u
a

ll
y

e
v

id
e

n
ce

th
a

t
th

is
is

re
q

u
ir

e
d

?

T
h

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

is
a

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
P

o
li

cy
M

A
8

o
f

th
e

S
it

e
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s
D

P
D

.
T

h
e

a
v

a
il

a
b

il
it

y
o

f
la

n
d

fo
r

sp
e

cu
la

ti
v

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

to
p

ro
v

id
e

a

ra
n

g
e

o
f

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

w
il

l
a

tt
ra

ct
fu

rt
h

e
r

b
u

si
n

e
ss

in
v

e
st

m
e

n
t

in
A

rl
e

se
y

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
o

re
in

d
u

st
ri

a
l

u
n

it
s

w
il

l
n

o
t

cr
e

a
te

n
e

w
jo

b
s,

it
w

il
l

si
m

p
ly

b
e

a
ca

se
o

f
re

lo
ca

ti
o

n
o

f
b

u
si

n
e

ss
/j

o
b

s
fr

o
m

o
n

e

a
re

a
to

a
n

o
th

e
r

W
h

il
st

th
is

m
a

y
b

e
a

co
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

o
f

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

fu
rt

h
e

r
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

la
n

d
b

e
in

g

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
it

w
o

u
ld

a
t

le
a

st
re

ta
in

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
in

A
rl

e
se

y
a

n
d

co
u

ld
a

ls
o

cr
e

a
te

n
e

w
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

o
f

n
e

w
jo

b
s

cr
e

a
te

d
w

o
u

ld
b

e
lo

w

co
m

p
a

re
d

to
th

e
a

m
o

u
n

t
o

f
h

o
u

si
n

g

It
is

e
st

im
a

te
d

th
a

t
a

p
p

ro
xi

m
a

te
ly

1
,0

0
0

jo
b

s

co
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
a

cr
o

ss
th

e
v

a
ri

o
u

s
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

u
se

s
p

ro
p

o
se

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

w
h

ic
h

in
cl

u
d

e
B

1
,

B
2

&
B

8
U

se
C

la
ss

e
s,

e
xt

ra
ca

re
a

n
d

re
ta

il
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Jo
b

s
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

fo
r

p
e

o
p

le
in

A
rl

e
se

y
fi

rs
t

It
is

n
o

t
p

o
ss

ib
le

u
n

d
e

r
cu

rr
e

n
t

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
la

w
s

to
re

st
ri

ct
th

e
a

v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y

o
f

jo
b

s
in

th
is

w
a

y
,

b
u

t

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

n
e

w
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

w
o

u
ld

a
t

le
a

st

p
ro

v
id

e
jo

b
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
lo

ca
ll

y
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

is
w

il
l

n
o

t
cr

e
a

te
jo

b
s

fo
r

lo
ca

l
p

e
o

p
le

T
h

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
n

e
w

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
la

n
d

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
o

u
ld

a
t

le
a

st
cr

e
a

te
jo

b

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

w
h

ic
h

lo
ca

l
p

e
o

p
le

co
u

ld
a

p
p

ly
fo

r.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
xi

st
in

g
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

a
re

a
s

in
A

rl
e

se
y

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

re
lo

ca
te

d

to
th

is
la

n
d

T
h

e
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

la
n

d
w

o
u

ld
g

o
to

th
e

m
a

rk
e

t
so

th
e

re
w

o
u

ld
b

e
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
fo

r
e

xi
st

in
g

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s

in
A

rl
e

se
y

to
re

lo
ca

te
if

d
e

si
re

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
is

a
co

m
m

u
te

r
a

re
a

so
n

o
n

e
e

d
fo

r
m

o
re

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

T
h

e
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
re

q
u

ir
e

s
th

e
d

e
li

v
e

ry
o

f

1
0

h
a

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
la

n
d

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

m
u

st
re

fl
e

ct

th
is

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 132



F
u

rt
h

e
r

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
o

n
th

e
ty

p
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
sh

o
u

ld

b
e

in
cl

u
d

e
d

in
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

M
o

re
d

e
ta

il
o

n
th

e
ty

p
e

o
f

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

a
n

d

th
e

re
w

il
l

b
e

a
fu

rt
h

e
r

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
to

co
m

m
e

n
t

th
e

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

h
a

za
rd

o
u

s
in

d
u

st
ry

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

a
ll

o
w

e
d

to
lo

ca
te

a
t

th
e

si
te

A
n

y
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
fo

r
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
o

u
ld

h
a

v
e

to
co

m
p

ly
w

it
h

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l'

s
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

o
li

ci
e

s,

w
h

ic
h

se
e

k
to

p
ro

te
ct

th
e

a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
o

f
n

e
a

rb
y

h
o

u
si

n
g

a
n

d
w

o
u

ld
a

ls
o

b
e

re
fe

rr
e

d
to

th
e

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

A
g

e
n

cy
a

n
d

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l'

s
P

u
b

li
c

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t
fo

r
co

m
m

e
n

ts
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
o

re
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

w
o

u
ld

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

to
tr

a
ff

ic
co

n
g

e
st

io
n

a
t

th
e

so
u

th
e

n
d

o
f

to
w

n

T
h

e
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

la
n

d
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

lo
ca

te
d

a
s

cl
o

se

a
s

p
o

ss
ib

le
to

th
e

A
5

0
7

so
th

a
t

th
e

m
a

jo
ri

ty
o

f

tr
a

ff
ic

w
o

u
ld

u
ti

li
se

th
e

A
5

0
7

ra
th

e
r

th
a

n

tr
a

v
e

ll
in

g
th

ro
u

g
h

A
rl

e
se

y
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

in
cr

e
a

se
in

H
G

V
m

o
v

e
m

e
n

ts
a

s
a

re
su

lt
T

h
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
la

n
d

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
lo

ca
te

d
a

s
cl

o
se

a
s

p
o

ss
ib

le
to

th
e

A
5

0
7

so
th

a
t

th
e

m
a

jo
ri

ty
o

f

tr
a

ff
ic

w
o

u
ld

u
ti

li
se

th
e

A
5

0
7

ra
th

e
r

th
a

n

tr
a

v
e

ll
in

g
th

ro
u

g
h

A
rl

e
se

y
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
p

o
si

ti
v

e
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
la

n
p

ro
v

id
in

g
a

cc
e

ss
is

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

to
b

e
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

A
5

0
7

It
is

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
th

a
t

th
e

m
a

jo
ri

ty
o

f
H

G
V

tr
a

ff
ic

w
o

u
ld

in
e

v
it

a
b

ly
u

se
th

e
A

5
0

7
a

s
th

e
n

e
a

re
st

m
a

jo
r

ro
a

d
a

n
d

th
e

q
u

ic
k

e
st

m
e

a
n

s
o

f
re

a
ch

in
g

th
e

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

R
o

a
d

N
e

tw
o

rk
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

P
a

rk
in

g
a

n
d

a
cc

e
ss

fo
r

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
is

in
th

e
w

ro
n

g

p
o

si
ti

o
n

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

p
la

n
w

it
h

in
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

is

in
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
o

n
ly

a
n

d
p

a
rk

in
g

a
n

d
a

cc
e

ss
fo

r
th

e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
a

re
a

s
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

o
n

ly
b

e

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
a

t
th

e
d

e
ta

il
e

d
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n

st
a

g
e

w
h

e
n

th
e

re
w

il
l

b
e

a
fu

rt
h

e
r

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
to

m
a

k
e

co
m

m
e

n
ts

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 133



T
h

e
re

is
in

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

fo
r

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
N

e
w

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

in
th

e
fo

rm
o

f
th

e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
a

n
d

a
n

e
w

ju
n

ct
io

n
o

n
th

e
A

5
0

7
cl

o
se

to
th

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

p
ri

n
ci

p
a

l
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

a
re

a

a
re

to
b

e
d

e
li

v
e

re
d

.
A

n
y

re
in

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

ts
re

q
u

ir
e

d

to
g

a
s,

e
le

ct
ri

ci
ty

,
w

a
te

r
o

r
o

th
e

r
se

rv
ic

e
s

w
o

u
ld

a
ls

o
b

e
p

a
id

fo
r

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
to

e
n

su
re

th
e

se
a

re
in

p
la

ce
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
a

re
a

to
th

e
e

a
st

m
u

st
h

a
v

e
g

o
o

d
sc

re
e

n
in

g
T

h
e

G
re

e
n

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

C
o

n
ce

p
t

P
la

n
a

t
F

ig
u

re

6
.1

in
d

ic
a

te
s

a
st

ro
n

g
la

n
d

sc
a

p
in

g
sc

re
e

n

b
e

tw
e

e
n

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
la

n
d

a
n

d
th

e

A
5

0
7

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
m

p
lo

m
e

n
t

u
n

it
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

li
m

it
e

d
to

2
st

o
re

y
s

in
h

e
ig

h
t

T
h

e
d

e
si

g
n

o
f

th
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
u

n
it

s
is

a
m

a
tt

e
r

th
a

t
w

o
u

ld
b

e
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

a
t

th
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

a
n

d
th

ro
u

g
h

D
e

si
g

n
C

o
d

in
g

.

A
n

y
p

ro
p

o
sa

l
w

o
u

ld
n

e
e

d
to

m
e

e
t

C
B

C
's

a
d

o
p

te
d

d
e

si
g

n
p

o
li

ci
e

s
a

n
d

th
e

C
B

C
D

e
si

g
n

G
u

id
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

7
.
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
a
ti
o
n
/H

ig
h
w
a
y
s

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

th
e

re
su

lt
in

g
in

cr
e

a
se

in
tr

a
ff

ic
a

n
d

co
n

g
e

st
io

n
g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y

in
A

rl
e

se
y

.

A
n

y
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
w

o
u

ld
b

e
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

b
y

a
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
w

h
ic

h
w

o
u

ld
a

ss
e

ss
th

e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
im

p
a

ct
o

f
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

o
n

th
e

lo
ca

l
h

ig
h

w
a

y
n

e
tw

o
rk

.
In

th
e

e
v

e
n

t
th

a
t

ca
p

a
ci

ty
is

su
e

s
a

re
p

re
d

ic
a

te
d

,
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
b

e
fu

n
d

e
d

b
y

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 134



T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

w
il

l
n

o
t

w
o

rk
a

n
d

is
re

a
ll

y
ju

st
a

n
e

st
a

te

ro
a

d
fo

r
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

ro
p

o
se

d
.

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

w
il

l
p

ro
v

id
e

a
n

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

to
th

e
m

a
in

ro
u

te
th

ro
u

g
h

A
rl

e
se

y
o

f

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t,

H
o

u
se

La
n

e
a

n
d

S
to

tf
o

ld
R

o
a

d
.

It
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

si
g

n
e

d
so

th
a

t
th

e
ca

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
is

n
o

t

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

b
y

p
a

rk
e

d
ca

rs
e

n
a

b
li

n
g

tr
a

ff
ic

to
fl

o
w

a
n

d
it

w
il

l
th

e
re

fo
re

b
e

a
m

o
re

d
e

si
ra

b
le

ro
u

te

th
a

n
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

.
T

h
is

,
in

co
n

ju
n

ct
io

n
w

it
h

tr
a

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

m
e

a
su

re
s

o
n

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
ro

u
te

,
w

il
l

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
p

e
o

p
le

to
u

se
th

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

th
e

re
b

y

re
li

e
v

in
g

co
n

g
e

st
io

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

sh
o

u
ld

re
fe

r
to

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
fu

rt
h

e
r

cl
a

y
e

xt
ra

ct
io

n
to

ta
k

e
p

la
ce

a
t

th
e

la
n

d
fi

ll
si

te
,

w
h

ic
h

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

fr
o

m
a

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
u

n
ti

l
2

0
4

2

T
h

e
re

is
a

p
e

rm
it

te
d

m
in

e
ra

l
re

se
rv

e

re
m

a
in

in
g

 u
n

d
e

r
o

ld
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

w
h

ic
h

e
xp

ir
e

s
in

2
0

4
2

,
th

e
si

te
is

g
a

u
lt

cl
a

y
a

n
d

to
th

e
so

u
th

o
f

th
e

e
xi

si
tn

g
re

st
o

re
d

si
te

a
n

d
is

g
re

e
n

fi
e

ld
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

th
e

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
M

in
e

ra
ls

a
n

d
W

a
st

e
T

e
a

m
le

a
d

e
r

is
th

a
t

it
w

o
u

ld
b

e
h

ig
h

ly
u

n
li

k
e

ly
th

a
t

it
w

o
u

ld
b

e

w
o

rk
e

d
a

s
th

e
m

a
te

ri
a

l
is

n
o

t
h

ig
h

q
u

a
li

ty
a

n
d

th
e

w
o

rk
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

to
e

xt
ra

ct
a

re
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t.

T
e

xt
in

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

a
m

e
n

d
e

d

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly

A
5

0
7

ca
n

n
o

t
co

p
e

w
it

h
th

e
cu

rr
e

n
t

e
xt

e
n

t
o

f
tr

a
ff

ic
a

t

p
e

a
k

ti
m

e
s

A
n

y
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
w

o
u

ld
b

e
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

b
y

a
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
w

h
ic

h
w

o
u

ld
a

ss
e

ss
th

e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
im

p
a

ct
o

f
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

o
n

th
e

lo
ca

l
h

ig
h

w
a

y
n

e
tw

o
rk

.
In

th
e

e
v

e
n

t
th

a
t

ca
p

a
ci

ty
is

su
e

s
a

re
p

re
d

ic
a

te
d

,
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
b

e
fu

n
d

e
d

b
y

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Im
p

a
ct

o
n

Ju
n

ct
io

n
1

0
o

f
th

e
A

1
M

,
w

h
ic

h
is

a
lr

e
a

d
y

co
n

g
e

st
e

d

T
h

e
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s

A
g

e
n

cy
h

a
v

e
re

q
u

e
st

e
d

th
a

t
a

n

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

o
f

Ju
n

ct
io

n
1

0
o

f
th

e
A

1
(M

)
is

in
cl

u
d

e
d

w
it

h
in

th
e

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

w
h

ic
h

w
il

l
a

cc
o

m
p

a
n

y
a

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
o

n

th
e

si
te

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 135



T
h

e
S

u
st

a
ia

n
b

il
it

y
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l

o
n

th
e

C
o

re
S

tr
a

te
g

y
in

2
0

0
9

ta
k

e
s

in
to

a
cc

o
u

n
t

te
ch

n
ic

a
l

is
su

e
s

o
u

ts
id

e
o

f
A

rl
e

se
y

e
.g

.

m
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
o

f
Ju

n
ct

io
n

1
0

o
f

th
e

A
1

M
.

W
h

a
t

is
u

n
cl

e
a

r
is

h
o

w
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
a

ss
e

ss
e

d
a

g
a

in
st

o
th

e
r

re
ce

n
t

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

a
n

d
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
1

,0
0

0
d

w
e

ll
in

g
s

in
Le

tc
h

w
o

rt
h

A
ll

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

si
te

s
w

it
h

in
A

rl
e

se
y

a
n

d
S

to
tf

o
ld

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

a
cc

o
u

n
te

d
fo

r
in

th
e

ju
n

ct
io

n
ca

p
a

ci
ty

m
o

d
e

ll
in

g
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

to
d

a
te

.
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l

n
e

tw
o

rk
g

ro
w

th
fo

r
th

e
lo

ca
li

ty
h

a
s

a
ls

o
b

e
e

n

a
cc

o
u

n
te

d
fo

r.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
re

a
re

co
n

ce
rn

s
th

a
t

w
it

h
o

u
t

k
n

o
w

in
g

th
e

p
re

ci
se

e
xt

e
n

t
o

f
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
n

o
w

re
si

d
e

n
ts

ca
n

n
o

t
p

ro
p

e
rl

y

a
ss

e
ss

th
e

tr
a

ff
ic

fl
o

w
s

a
n

d
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

is
su

e
s

F
u

rt
h

e
r

p
u

b
li

c
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
w

il
l

b
e

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
a

t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

ti
o

n
a

ll
o

w
in

g

m
e

m
b

e
rs

o
f

th
e

p
u

b
li

c
to

co
m

m
e

n
t

o
n

th
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

h
ig

h
w

a
y

s
m

o
d

e
ll

in
g

in
th

e
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
n

e
e

d
s

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
a

n
d

fo
r

it
to

b
e

a
q

u
ic

k
w

a
y

in
to

a
n

d
o

u
t

o
f

th
e

to
w

n

T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

w
il

l
b

e
d

e
si

g
n

e
d

so
th

a
t

th
e

ca
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

is
n

o
t

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

b
y

p
a

rk
e

d
ca

rs

e
n

a
b

li
n

g
tr

a
ff

ic
to

fl
o

w
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

is
in

co
n

si
st

e
n

t
in

th
e

te
rm

in
o

lo
g

y
it

u
se

s

to
d

e
sc

ri
b

e
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

.

A
g

re
e

d
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to
ti

d
y

u
p

w
o

rd
in

g

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
w

il
l

p
u

sh
th

e
tr

a
ff

ic
p

ro
b

le
m

to
th

e
so

u
th

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

5
-w

a
y

s
ju

n
ct

io
n

a
n

d
n

o
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

m
a

d
e

o
f

th
is

.
P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
a

re
o

n
ly

fo
cu

se
d

o
n

p
a

rt
o

f

A
rl

e
se

y
a

n
d

n
o

t
th

e
se

tt
le

m
e

n
t

a
s

a
w

h
o

le

A
n

y
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
w

o
u

ld
b

e
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

b
y

a
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
w

h
ic

h
w

o
u

ld
a

ss
e

ss
th

e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
im

p
a

ct
o

f
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

o
n

th
e

lo
ca

l
h

ig
h

w
a

y
n

e
tw

o
rk

.
In

th
e

e
v

e
n

t
th

a
t

ca
p

a
ci

ty
is

su
e

s
a

re
p

re
d

ic
a

te
d

,
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
b

e
fu

n
d

e
d

b
y

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 136



Q
u

e
st

io
n

w
h

y
n

o
tr

a
ff

ic
su

rv
e

y
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

co
m

p
le

te
d

so
u

th

o
f

th
e

5
w

a
y

s
ju

n
ct

io
n

W
h

il
st

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s

so
u

th
o

f
th

e
5

-w
a

y
s

ju
n

ct
io

n

w
e

re
n

o
t

in
cl

u
d

e
d

w
it

h
in

th
e

o
ri

g
in

a
l

sc
o

p
in

g
o

f

th
e

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t,

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t

tr
a

ff
ic

co
u

n
t

d
a

ta
w

a
s

o
b

ta
in

e
d

a
t

th
e

A
rl

e
se

y
N

e
w

R
o

a
d

/H
it

ch
in

R
o

a
d

ju
n

ct
io

n
to

e
n

a
b

le
a

n
a

ly
si

s
o

f

th
e

v
o

lu
m

e
o

f
tr

a
ff

ic
tr

a
v

e
ll

in
g

so
u

th
.

C
B

C
is

a
w

a
re

lo
ca

l
re

si
d

e
n

ts
h

a
v

e
co

n
ce

rn
s

th
a

t
ca

p
a

ci
ty

is
su

e
s

m
a

y
o

cc
u

r
o

n
H

it
ch

in
R

o
a

d
,

so
u

th
o

f
th

e
5

-

w
a

y
s

ju
n

ct
io

n
d

u
ri

n
g

p
e

a
k

h
o

u
rs

a
n

d
th

is
w

il
l

b
e

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

in
d

e
ta

il
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

It
is

su
g

g
e

st
e

d
th

a
t

m
e

a
su

re
s

a
re

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

a
t

th
e

5

w
a

y
s

ju
n

ct
io

n
to

p
re

v
e

n
t

tr
a

ff
ic

tr
a

v
e

ll
in

g
so

u
th

It
w

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

p
ra

ct
ic

a
b

le
to

p
re

v
e

n
t

tr
a

ff
ic

fr
o

m

e
xi

ti
n

g
A

rl
e

se
y

to
th

e
so

u
th

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
n

e
w

ro
a

d
w

il
l

a
tt

ra
ct

tr
a

ff
ic

fr
o

m
th

e
A

5
0

7
tr

a
v

e
ll

in
g

to
w

a
rd

s
H

it
ch

in

It
is

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
th

a
t

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

si
te

w
o

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
a

n
a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
fo

r

tr
a

ff
ic

fr
o

m
fu

rt
h

e
r

a
fi

e
ld

tr
a

v
e

ll
in

g
to

w
a

rd
s

H
it

ch
in

.
V

e
h

ic
le

s
a

cc
e

ss
in

g
v

ia
th

e
A

1
w

o
u

ld
ta

k
e

th
e

m
o

st
d

ir
e

ct
ro

u
te

v
ia

th
e

A
6

0
2

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
g

e
st

io
n

is
su

e
s

w
il

l
a

ri
se

a
lo

n
g

H
o

u
se

La
n

e
T

h
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
a

n
d

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

n
e

w

A
5

0
7

a
cc

e
ss

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t
w

il
l

m
e

a
n

th
a

t
v

e
h

ic
le

s

se
e

k
in

g
to

a
cc

e
ss

/e
xi

t
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

w
il

l
n

o
t

n
e

e
d

to
tr

a
v

e
l

a
lo

n
g

H
o

u
se

La
n

e
to

re
a

ch

th
e

si
te

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
th

e
e

a
st

o
f

H
ig

h

S
tr

e
e

t
fr

o
m

H
it

ch
in

R
o

a
d

to
th

e
so

u
th

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

5
-

w
a

y
s

ju
n

ct
io

n

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

m
u

st
re

la
te

to
th

e
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

la
n

d
,

w
h

ic
h

re
q

u
ir

e
s

a
w

e
st

e
rn

ro
u

te
fo

r
th

e
re

li
e

f

ro
a

d
.

A
q

u
e

st
io

n
w

a
s

a
sk

e
d

a
b

o
u

t
th

e
lo

ca
l

d
e

si
re

fo
r

a
n

e
a

st
e

rn
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

in
a

d
d

it
io

n
to

th
e

w
e

st
e

rn
o

p
ti

o
n

in
th

e
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
to

g
a

g
e

p
u

b
li

c

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

.
T

h
is

is
so

m
e

th
in

g
C

B
C

ca
n

e
xp

lo
re

fu
rt

h
e

r
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

a
re

v
ie

w
o

f
th

e
LD

F
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 137



R
e

li
e

f
ro

a
d

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

o
n

th
e

w
e

st
e

rn
si

d
e

o
f

th
e

ra
il

w
a

y

A
ro

u
te

to
th

e
w

e
st

o
f

th
e

ra
il

w
a

y
w

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

su
it

a
b

le
fo

r
a

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
g

iv
e

n
th

a
t

th
is

la
n

d
li

e
s

w
it

h
in

th
e

fl
o

o
d

p
la

in
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
n

e
e

d
s

g
re

a
te

r
a

cc
e

ss
ib

il
it

y
to

b
o

th
th

e
e

a
st

a
n

d

w
e

st

T
h

e
sc

h
e

m
e

w
o

u
ld

d
e

li
v

e
r

a
n

e
w

ju
n

ct
io

n
o

n
th

e

A
5

0
7

a
n

d
a

se
ct

io
n

o
f

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
ru

n
n

in
g

e
a

st

fr
o

m
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
so

w
o

u
ld

im
p

ro
v

e
a

cc
e

ss
ib

il
it

y
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

It
is

e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l
th

a
t

h
e

a
v

y
v

e
h

ic
le

s
a

re
d

is
su

a
d

e
d

fr
o

m

u
si

n
g

S
to

tf
o

ld
R

o
a

d
,

H
o

u
se

La
n

e
a

n
d

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

a
n

d

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
d

to
u

se
th

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

in
st

e
a

d

T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

w
il

l
b

e
d

e
si

g
n

e
d

to
a

su
it

a
b

le

st
a

n
d

a
rd

to
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

ly
a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

th
e

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
ts

o
f

H
G

V
s.

T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

w
il

l

th
e

re
fo

re
b

e
co

m
e

a
m

o
re

d
e

si
ra

b
le

ro
u

te
fo

r
a

ll

v
e

h
ic

le
s

th
a

t
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ro
u

te
v

ia
S

to
tf

o
ld

R
o

a
d

a
n

d
H

o
u

se
La

n
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
H

G
V

b
a

n
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
im

p
o

se
d

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t

A
rl

e
se

y
P

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
th

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
si

te
w

il
l

p
ro

v
id

e
a

m
o

re
d

ir
e

ct
ro

u
te

fo
r

H
G

V
's

th
e

re
b

y

re
li

e
v

in
g

th
e

ir
im

p
a

ct
u

p
o

n
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ro
a

d

n
e

tw
o

rk
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

U
p

g
ra

d
e

W
e

st
D

ri
v

e
to

a
fu

ll
ro

a
d

to
a

ll
o

w
a

n
o

th
e

r
ro

u
te

o
u

t
o

f
A

rl
e

se
y

T
h

is
ro

u
te

w
o

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
su

it
a

b
le

g
iv

e
n

th
a

t
it

w
o

u
ld

p
a

ss
th

ro
u

g
h

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
t

F
a

ir
fi

e
ld

P
a

rk
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Q
u

e
st

io
n

w
h

e
th

e
r

it
is

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

to
h

a
v

e
a

n
e

w

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t
o

n
th

e
A

5
0

7
o

r
if

it
is

fe
a

si
b

le
to

u
se

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
ro

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

w
it

h
S

to
tf

o
ld

R
o

a
d

to
sa

v
e

co
st

s

It
w

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

p
o

ss
ib

le
to

e
n

g
in

e
e

r
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t
to

in
cl

u
d

e
a

5
th

a
rm

to
a

cc
e

ss
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
a

cc
e

ss
fr

o
m

th
e

A
5

0
7

is
n

o
t

sh
o

w
n

in
th

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
n

th
e

S
it

e
A

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s
P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
M

a
p

T
h

e
ro

u
te

to
th

e
A

5
0

7
sh

o
w

n
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
o

n
th

e
P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
M

a
p

w
a

s
o

n
ly

in
te

n
d

e
d

to
b

e
in

d
ic

a
ti

v
e

.
T

h
e

ro
u

te
p

ro
p

o
se

d
o

n

th
e

p
la

n
s

w
it

h
in

th
e

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

h
a

s
b

e
e

n

th
e

su
b

je
ct

o
f

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s
w

it
h

C
B

C
's

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

is
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

b
y

th
e

m
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 138



A
cc

e
ss

o
ff

th
e

A
5

0
7

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

th
e

o
n

ly
m

e
a

n
s

o
f

a
cc

e
ss

to
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

a
cc

e
ss

to
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
is

re
q

u
ir

e
d

in
o

rd
e

r
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

ro
u

te
to

la
n

d
w

e
st

o
f

H
ig

h

S
tr

e
e

t.
It

is
a

ls
o

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

to
p

ro
v

id
e

li
n

k
a

g
e

in

o
rd

e
r

to
e

n
su

re
th

a
t

th
e

n
e

w
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
is

fu
ll

y

in
te

g
ra

te
d

w
it

h
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

to
w

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

It
is

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
th

a
t

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

sh
a

re
d

su
rf

a
ce

d
o

u
b

le

m
in

i-
ro

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

si
te

a
cc

e
ss

w
il

l
n

o
t

b
e

sa
fe

.
S

h
o

u
ld

b
e

tr
a

ff
ic

li
g

h
ts

T
h

e
sh

a
re

d
su

rf
a

ce
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

si
g

n
e

d

su
ch

th
a

t
it

w
il

l
cr

e
a

te
a

sa
fe

r
p

la
ce

a
s

d
ri

v
e

rs
w

il
l

a
n

ti
ci

p
a

te
th

a
t

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

s/
cy

cl
is

ts
m

a
y

b
e

se
e

k
in

g
to

cr
o

ss
th

e
ju

n
ct

io
n

a
n

d
w

il
l

a
d

a
p

t
th

e
ir

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
.

T
h

e
fi

n
a

li
se

d
p

ro
p

o
sa

l
w

il
l

a
ls

o
b

e
su

b
je

ct
to

a
n

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

sa
fe

ty
a

u
d

it
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
d

o
u

b
le

-m
in

i
ro

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

ju
n

ct
io

n
w

il
l

b
e

d
if

fi
cu

lt
to

b
u

il
d

in
p

h
a

se
s.

A
cc

e
ss

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t

d
ra

w
in

g
s

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
p

h
a

si
n

g

if
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
)

w
il

l
b

e
su

b
m

it
te

d
to

a
n

d
a

g
re

e
d

w
it

h

C
B

C
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
fo

r
a

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
o

n
th

e
si

te
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
p

a
ss

in
g

th
ro

u
g

h
h

o
u

si
n

g
o

n
S

t

Jo
h

n
's

R
o

a
d

a
n

d
a

ls
o

th
e

w
id

th
o

f
ro

a
d

a
ch

ie
v

a
b

le

A
co

rr
id

o
r

o
f

la
n

d
in

th
e

S
t

Jo
h

n
s

R
o

a
d

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
re

se
rv

e
d

fo
r

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
a

n
d

th
e

sc
h

e
m

e
w

a
s

d
e

si
g

n
w

it
h

th
is

sp
e

ci
fi

c

in
te

n
ti

o
n

in
m

in
d

.
T

h
e

co
rr

id
o

r
o

f
la

n
d

w
o

u
ld

e
n

a
b

le
a

ca
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

w
id

th
o

f
7

.3
m

.
T

h
is

is
in

a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce
w

it
h

th
e

D
e

si
g

n
M

a
n

u
a

l
fo

r
R

o
a

d
s

a
n

d
B

ri
d

g
e

s
(D

M
R

B
).

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

se
co

n
d

a
ry

ro
a

d
s

o
n

to
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
fr

o
m

w
e

st
e

rn
la

n
d

It
is

g
o

o
d

d
e

si
g

n
p

ra
ct

ic
e

to
cr

e
a

te
p

e
rm

e
a

b
le

se
tt

le
m

e
n

ts
.

Li
n

k
s

fr
o

m
th

e
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
to

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
p

ro
v

id
e

a
ch

o
ic

e
o

f
ro

u
te

s
o

n
to

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
to

p
re

v
e

n
t

u
n

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

ca
r

jo
u

rn
e

y
s

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t.
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
o

n
th

e
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
w

il
l

m
a

k
e

it
a

b
e

tt
e

r
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 139



S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
ro

a
d

s
o

n
to

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

fr
o

m
th

e
w

e
st

e
rn

la
n

d

w
o

u
ld

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
lo

w
le

v
e

l
a

cc
e

ss
p

o
in

ts
d

e
si

g
n

e
d

o
n

'H
o

m
e

Z
o

n
e

'p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s
w

it
h

ta
rg

e
t

sp
e

e
d

s
o

f
5

-1
0

m
p

h

a
n

d
th

is
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
m

a
d

e
cl

e
a

r
in

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

m
a

st
e

rp
la

n
d

e
sc

ri
b

e
s

th
e

se
ro

u
te

s
a

s

se
co

n
d

a
ry

ro
u

te
s.

T
h

e
se

co
n

d
a

ry
ro

u
te

s
w

il
l

b
e

n
a

rr
o

w
w

it
h

ti
g

h
te

r
ra

d
ii

th
a

n
th

e
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n

ro
u

te
s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
cc

e
ss

o
n

to
S

to
tf

o
ld

R
o

a
d

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

fo
r

cy
cl

e
s

o
n

ly
a

s

S
to

tf
o

ld
R

o
a

d
is

a
lr

e
a

d
y

co
n

g
e

st
e

d

A
ca

p
a

ci
ty

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

a
cc

e
ss

o
n

to
S

to
tf

o
ld

R
o

a
d

w
il

l
b

e
in

cl
u

d
e

d
w

it
h

in
th

e

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

su
b

m
it

te
d

in
su

p
p

o
rt

o
f

a

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
to

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

th
e

re

w
o

u
ld

b
e

n
o

ca
p

a
ci

ty
is

su
e

s
a

s
a

re
su

lt
o

f
th

is
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

F
ig

u
re

s
5

.1
a

n
d

5
.4

a
re

co
n

fu
si

n
g

a
n

d
co

n
tr

a
d

ic
to

ri
n

g
in

re
sp

e
ct

o
f

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
o

r
p

ro
p

o
se

d
a

cc
e

ss
p

o
in

ts

F
ig

u
re

5
.1

is
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

to
b

e
cl

e
a

r.
F

ig
u

re
5

.4
is

to
b

e
u

p
d

a
te

d
in

re
sp

o
n

se
to

o
th

e
r

p
o

in
ts

a
b

o
u

t

p
a

rk
in

g
ra

ti
o

n
a

li
sa

ti
o

n
m

e
a

su
re

s.

F
ig

u
re

5
.4

u
p

d
a

te
d

F
ig

u
re

5
.2

w
o

u
ld

b
e

n
e

fi
t

fr
o

m
b

e
in

g
o

v
e

rl
a

id
o

n
a

n

e
xi

st
in

g
p

la
n

o
f

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t.

A
g

re
e

d
F

ig
u

re
5

.2
u

p
d

a
te

d
a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

W
h

y
is

th
e

5
w

a
y

s
ju

n
ct

io
n

n
o

t
p

a
rt

o
f

th
is

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

a
n

d
w

h
y

w
a

s
it

th
e

su
b

je
ct

o
f

a
se

p
a

ra
te

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

?

T
h

e
5

w
a

y
s

ju
n

ct
io

n
is

in
cl

u
d

e
d

w
it

h
in

th
e

re
d

li
n

e

in
F

ig
u

re
4

.1
o

f
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
w

it
h

th
e

re
le

v
a

n
t

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
re

fe
re

n
ce

n
u

m
b

e
rs

a
n

n
o

ta
te

d
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
w

a
s

g
ra

n
te

d
a

s

th
e

la
n

d
in

v
o

lv
e

d
is

lo
ca

te
d

w
it

h
in

th
e

S
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t

E
n

v
e

lo
p

e
o

f
A

rl
e

se
y

a
n

d
it

s
re

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

is

th
e

re
fo

re
a

cc
e

p
ta

b
le

in
p

ri
n

ci
p

le
in

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
o

li
cy

te
rm

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 140



T
h

e
e

xi
st

in
g

A
rl

e
se

y
R

o
a

d
/A

rl
e

se
y

N
e

w
R

o
a

d
/H

it
ch

in

R
o

a
d

p
ri

o
ri

ty
ju

n
ct

io
n

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

re
p

la
ce

d
w

it
h

a
m

in
i-

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t

A
t

su
ch

ti
m

e
a

s
a

d
e

ta
il

e
d

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

is

su
b

m
it

te
d

a
fu

ll
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

b
e

p
re

p
a

re
d

a
n

d
su

b
m

it
te

d
.

T
h

e
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
a

ss
e

ss
th

e
e

xt
e

n
t

to
w

h
ic

h

ca
p

a
ci

ty
is

su
e

s
a

re
p

re
d

ic
te

d
in

th
is

lo
ca

ti
o

n
.

In

th
e

e
v

e
n

t
th

a
t

is
su

e
s

a
re

p
re

d
ic

te
d

to
o

cc
u

r,
a

s
a

re
su

lt
o

f
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
ju

n
ct

io
n

la
y

o
u

ts
w

o
u

ld
b

e
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
e

d
p

ri
o

r
to

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
o

f
h

o
u

si
n

g
/p

h
a

si
n

g
n

e
e

d
s

to
b

e
p

ro
p

e
rl

y

co
n

si
d

e
re

d

T
h

e
ro

a
d

w
o

u
ld

b
e

fu
n

d
e

d
b

y
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
sa

le
o

f
h

o
u

se
s.

It
is

th
e

re
fo

re
,

n
o

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

ll
y

v
ia

b
le

to
b

u
il

d
th

e
ro

a
d

p
ri

o
r

to

h
o

u
si

n
g

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

co
m

m
e

n
ci

n
g

.
T

h
e

ro
a

d
w

il
l

b
e

b
u

il
t

in
p

h
a

se
s

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
a

n
a

g
re

e
d

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

h
o

u
se

s
th

a
t

a
ff

e
ct

s
th

e
a

cc
e

ss
ib

il
it

y
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

a
t

e
a

ch
st

a
g

e
o

f
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
T

h
e

la
tt

e
r

w
il

l

b
e

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
th

ro
u

g
h

d
e

ta
il

e
d

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

su
b

m
it

te
d

in
su

p
p

o
rt

o
f

a
n

y
fu

tu
re

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s.
A

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
tr

ig
g

e
rs

fo
r

th
e

d
e

li
v

e
ry

o
f

h
ig

h
w

a
y

a
cc

e
ss

e
s

a
s

w
e

ll
a

s
a

n
y

o
ff

-s
it

e
h

ig
h

w
a

y
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
b

e

in
cl

u
d

e
d

in
p

la
n

n
in

g
co

n
d

it
io

n
s

o
r

le
g

a
l

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

a
tt

a
ch

e
d

to
a

n
y

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g

co
n

se
n

t,

T
e

xt
in

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
co

v
e

ri
n

g
p

h
a

si
n

g

to
b

e
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to
p

ro
v

id
e

fu
rt

h
e

r

cl
a

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

sh
o

u
ld

m
a

k
e

cl
e

a
r

th
a

t
th

e
w

h
o

le
o

f
th

e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
w

il
l

b
e

se
cu

re
d

b
y

w
a

y
o

f
le

g
a

l
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t
to

e
n

su
re

d
e

li
v

e
ry

.
A

lo
w

th
re

sh
o

ld
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
p

la
ce

d
o

n

h
o

u
si

n
g

n
u

m
b

e
rs

a
h

e
a

d
o

f
d

e
li

v
e

ry
o

f
th

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

A
s

a
b

o
v

e
A

s
a

b
o

v
e

W
o

rd
in

g
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
a

d
d

e
d

to
P

ri
n

ci
p

le
5

to
m

a
k

e
cl

e
a

r

th
a

t
th

e
ti

m
in

g
a

n
d

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
to

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

m
u

st
b

e
li

n
k

e
d

to
d

e
li

v
e

ry

o
f

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
.

A
g

re
e

d
T

e
xt

in
P

ri
n

ci
p

le
5

to
b

e
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly

Agenda Item 11
Page 141



H
o

u
se

la
n

e
a

n
d

C
h

u
rc

h
La

n
e

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

tu
rn

e
d

in
to

a
o

n
e

-

w
a

y
sy

st
e

m

T
h

is
is

n
o

t
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

a
s

tr
a

ff
ic

o
n

th
e

se
ro

a
d

s
w

il
l

b
e

re
d

u
ce

d
o

n
ce

th
e

se
ct

io
n

o
f

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
fr

o
m

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

to
th

e
A

5
0

7
is

co
m

p
le

te
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
e

a
su

re
s

n
e

e
d

to
b

e
ta

k
e

n
to

p
re

v
e

n
t

a
'r

a
t

ru
n

'

b
e

tw
e

e
n

th
e

n
e

w
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

a
n

d
th

e
R

a
il

w
a

y
S

ta
ti

o
n

v
ia

C
h

u
rc

h
La

n
e

T
h

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
si

te
w

o
u

ld
p

ro
v

id
e

a
n

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

fo
r

v
e

h
ic

le
s

tr
a

v
e

ll
in

g
to

w
a

rd
s

th
e

ra
il

w
a

y
st

a
ti

o
n

fr
o

m
th

e
A

5
0

7
to

th
e

so
u

th
.

C
h

u
rc

h
La

n
e

w
o

u
ld

th
e

re
fo

re
b

e
th

e
m

o
st

d
e

si
ra

b
le

ro
u

te
fo

r
so

m
e

ro
a

d
u

se
rs

se
e

k
in

g
to

a
cc

e
ss

A
rl

e
se

y
R

a
il

w
a

y
S

ta
ti

o
n

,
h

o
w

e
v

e
r,

it
is

n
o

t

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
th

a
t

th
is

w
o

u
ld

b
e

a
'r

a
t

ru
n

'.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
th

e
re

w
il

l
b

e
in

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e

t
p

a
rk

in
g

le
a

d
in

g
to

fu
rt

h
e

r
p

a
rk

in
g

is
su

e
s/

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t

p
a

rk
in

g
n

e
e

d
s

to
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
w

it
h

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

n
e

e
d

to
co

m
p

ly
w

it
h

C
B

C
's

a
d

o
p

te
d

p
a

rk
in

g
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

lo
ss

o
f

o
n

-s
tr

e
e

t
p

a
rk

in
g

o
n

S
t

Jo
h

n
's

R
o

a
d

w
h

e
re

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
d

o
n

o
t

h
a

v
e

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t

p
a

rk
in

g
a

s
it

is
.

T
h

e
co

rr
id

o
r

th
ro

u
g

h
S

t
Jo

h
n

's
R

o
a

d
w

a
s

re
se

rv
e

d

fo
r

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
in

th
e

S
1

0
6

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t

p
u

rs
u

a
n

t
to

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
fo

r
th

a
t

si
te

a
n

d
w

a
s

n
e

v
e

r
in

te
n

d
e

d
to

p
ro

v
id

e
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t
o

n
-

st
re

e
t

p
a

rk
in

g
fo

r
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

in
th

a
t

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

P
a

rk
in

g
fo

r
th

e
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

is
p

ro
v

id
e

d
in

re
a

r

p
a

rk
in

g
co

u
rt

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
tr

a
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g
m

e
a

su
re

s
a

lo
n

g
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t

w
il

l
le

a
d

to
m

o
re

tr
a

ff
ic

tr
a

v
e

ll
in

g
a

lo
n

g
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d

n
e

w
ro

a
d

T
h

a
t

is
th

e
in

te
n

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

in
o

rd
e

r
to

e
a

se
co

n
g

e
st

io
n

o
n

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
m

a
in

ro
u

te

th
ro

u
g

h
A

rl
e

se
y

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

a
s

lo
n

g
a

s
th

e
p

ro
b

le
m

s
o

n
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
o

f
p

a
rk

e
d

ca
rs

,
tr

a
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g
e

tc
a

re
n

o
t

re
p

e
a

te
d

o
n

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d

N
o

te
d

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
xi

st
in

g
p

a
rk

e
d

ca
rs

sl
o

w
tr

a
ff

ic
d

o
w

n
/n

o
n

e
e

d
fo

r

ca
lm

in
g

m
e

a
su

re
s

o
n

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

T
h

e
tr

a
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g
m

e
a

su
re

s
w

o
u

ld
b

e

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

to
fu

rt
h

e
r

d
is

su
a

d
e

p
e

o
p

le
fr

o
m

u
si

n
g

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

a
s

a
th

ro
u

g
h

ro
u

te
o

n
ce

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
is

o
p

e
n

a
n

d
th

e
ir

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

w
o

u
ld

b
e

ti
e

d
to

th
e

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
re

li
e

f

ro
a

d
.

T
e

xt
in

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

a
m

e
n

d
e

d

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly

Agenda Item 11
Page 142



P
a

rk
in

g
re

st
ri

ct
io

n
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

im
p

o
se

d
a

lo
n

g
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
T

h
is

is
n

o
t

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
a

n
d

m
a

y
ca

u
se

m
o

re
h

a
rm

th
a

n
g

o
o

d
g

iv
e

n
th

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
th

a
t

d
o

n
o

t
h

a
v

e
o

n
-p

lo
t/

o
ff

-s
tr

e
e

t

p
a

rk
in

g
a

n
d

th
e

re
fo

re
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
p

a
rk

o
n

H
ig

h

S
tr

e
e

t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
ra

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

m
e

a
su

re
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
so

u
th

to

in
cl

u
d

e
th

e
re

st
o

f
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
a

n
d

H
it

ch
in

R
o

a
d

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
a

fu
rt

h
e

r
su

rv
e

y
o

f
tr

a
ff

ic
co

n
d

it
io

n
s

in

th
e

a
re

a
it

p
ro

p
o

se
d

to
e

xt
e

n
d

th
e

tr
a

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

m
e

a
su

re
s

so
u

th
to

w
h

e
re

th
e

5
w

a
y

s
ju

n
ct

io
n

is

p
ro

p
o

se
d

.
T

ra
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g
o

n
H

it
ch

in
R

o
a

d
is

n
o

t

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
.

P
la

n
s

in
d

ic
a

ti
n

g
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l

tr
a

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

m
e

a
su

re
s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

a
m

e
n

d
e

d

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly
.

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

p
a

rk
in

g
p

ro
v

is
io

n
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
a

t
th

e

a
cc

e
ss

to
W

e
st

D
ri

v
e

T
h

is
ca

n
b

e
e

xp
lo

re
d

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
m

o
re

d
e

ta
il

e
d

w
o

rk
a

t
th

e
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
st

a
g

e
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
a

rk
e

d
p

a
rk

in
g

b
a

y
s

w
il

l
re

su
lt

in
le

ss
p

a
rk

in
g

a
v

a
il

a
b

le

d
u

e
to

o
v

e
rs

iz
e

d
sp

a
ce

s

A
g

re
e

d
P

la
n

s
in

d
ic

a
ti

n
g

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
tr

a
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g

m
e

a
su

re
s

to
b

e
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

ta
k

in
g

o
u

t
th

e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

p
a

rk
in

g
b

a
y

s.

T
ra

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
ca

u
se

n
o

is
e

a
n

d
a

ir

p
o

ll
u

ti
o

n
a

s
ca

rs
a

cc
e

le
ra

te
a

n
d

d
e

ce
le

ra
te

T
h

e
in

te
n

ti
o

n
is

fo
r

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

to
b

e
a

ca
lm

e
d

a
re

a
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
th

e
o

p
e

n
n

in
g

o
f

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d

w
it

h
lo

w
e

r
v

e
h

ic
le

sp
e

e
d

s
m

a
k

in
g

fo
r

a
b

e
tt

e
r

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
p

e
e

d
ca

m
e

ra
s

w
o

u
ld

b
e

b
e

tt
e

r
th

a
n

tr
a

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

S
p

e
e

d
ca

m
e

ra
s

co
u

ld
b

e
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
a

p
a

ck
a

g
e

o
f

m
e

a
su

re
s

to
re

d
u

ce
sp

e
e

d
o

n
th

e

e
xi

st
in

g
ro

a
d

n
e

tw
o

rk
a

n
d

cr
e

a
te

a
m

o
re

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

fr
ie

n
d

ly
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
T

h
is

w
il

l
b

e

e
xp

lo
re

d
fu

rt
h

e
r

a
t

th
e

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
m

a
in

ro
a

d
th

ro
u

g
h

A
rl

e
se

y
n

e
e

d
s

to
b

e
cl

e
a

re
d

o
f

p
a

rk
e

d
ca

rs

T
h

is
is

n
o

t
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

p
ra

ct
ic

a
b

le
g

iv
e

n
th

e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
th

a
t

d
o

n
o

t
h

a
v

e
o

n
-

p
lo

t/
o

ff
-s

tr
e

e
t

p
a

rk
in

g
a

n
d

th
e

re
fo

re
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y

p
a

rk
o

n
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

F
o

o
tp

a
th

s
o

n
H

it
ch

in
R

o
a

d
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
n

a
rr

o
w

e
d

to
a

ll
o

w

th
e

ca
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

to
b

e
w

id
e

n
e

d

T
h

is
is

n
o

t
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

a
n

d
w

o
u

ld
le

a
d

to
a

re
d

u
ce

d
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
'd

ro
p

-o
ff

'p
a

rk
in

g
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

u
ts

id
e

G
o

th
ic

M
e

d
e

Lo
w

e
r

S
ch

o
o

l
w

il
l

ca
u

se
co

n
g

e
st

io
n

A
g

re
e

d
P

la
n

s
in

d
ic

a
ti

n
g

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
tr

a
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g

m
e

a
su

re
s

to
b

e
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

ta
k

in
g

o
u

t
th

e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

p
a

rk
in

g
b

a
y

s.

Agenda Item 11
Page 143



C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

to
re

d
u

ce
p

a
v

e
m

e
n

t
w

id
th

s
o

n

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t.

W
h

e
re

w
il

l
p

e
o

p
le

p
u

t
th

e
ir

b
in

s.

T
h

e
re

a
re

n
o

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

to
re

d
u

ce
p

a
v

e
m

e
n

t

w
id

th
s

o
n

th
e

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t.

O
n

th
e

co
n

tr
a

ry
th

e

su
g

g
e

st
e

d
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

in
cl

u
d

e

w
id

e
n

in
g

th
e

fo
o

tp
a

th
s,

w
h

e
re

th
e

ca
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

w
id

th
a

ll
o

w
s,

to
cr

e
a

te
m

o
re

sp
a

ce
fo

r

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

R
e

d
u

ci
n

g
th

e
w

id
th

o
f

ca
rr

ia
g

e
w

a
y

s
o

n
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
is

n
o

t

n
e

e
d

e
d

a
n

d
w

il
l

sl
o

w
tr

a
ff

ic
fu

rt
h

e
r

T
h

e
in

te
n

ti
o

n
is

to
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
m

e
a

su
re

s
o

n
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
in

co
n

ju
n

ct
io

n
w

it
h

th
e

o
p

e
n

in
g

o
f

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
to

ca
lm

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

fu
rt

h
e

r,
im

p
ro

v
in

g

th
e

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

fo
r

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

s
a

n
d

e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

th
ro

u
g

h
tr

a
ff

ic
o

n
to

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

n
a

rr
o

w
in

g
o

f
ju

n
ct

io
n

a
ro

u
n

d
Ly

m
a

n
s

R
o

a
d

g
iv

e
n

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
p

a
rk

in
g

in
th

a
t

a
re

a

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
tr

a
ff

ic
ca

lm
in

g
m

e
a

su
re

s
a

re
o

n
ly

in
d

ic
a

ti
v

e
a

n
d

w
il

l
b

e
e

xp
lo

re
d

fu
rt

h
e

r
a

t
th

e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

a
n

d
w

il
l

b
e

th
e

su
b

je
ct

o
f

fu
rt

h
e

r
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
b

e
fo

re
b

e
in

g
fi

n
a

li
se

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
cy

cl
e

ro
u

te
sh

o
u

ld
p

a
ss

u
n

d
e

rn
e

a
th

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
in

o
rd

e
r

to
e

n
su

re
cy

cl
is

t
sa

fe
ty

N
e

ce
ss

a
ry

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
b

e
ta

k
e

n
to

e
n

su
re

th
e

sa
fe

ty
o

f
cy

cl
is

ts
a

n
d

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

s
a

t
a

ll
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s

o
f

th
e

si
te

.
W

it
h

sp
e

ci
fi

c
re

g
a

rd
to

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
,

fo
rm

a
l

cr
o

ss
in

g
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
w

il
l

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

a
lo

n
g

th
e

k
e

y
d

e
si

re
li

n
e

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
n

o
rt

h
-s

o
u

th
cy

cl
e

w
a

y
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
a

cy
cl

e
w

a
y

o
n

ly
a

n
d

n
o

t
lo

ca
te

d
n

e
xt

to
a

ro
a

d

T
h

e
n

o
rt

h
-s

o
u

th
cy

cl
e

w
a

y
o

n
th

e
e

a
st

e
rn

la
n

d
is

p
ro

p
o

se
d

to
b

e
w

it
h

in
a

g
re

e
n

co
rr

id
o

r
a

n
d

is
n

o
t

lo
ca

te
d

a
d

ja
ce

n
t

to
a

ro
a

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
cy

cl
e

/p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

ro
u

te
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

to
li

n
k

to
W

e
st

D
ri

v
e

In
th

e
e

v
e

n
t

th
a

t
a

n
e

a
st

e
rn

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
is

p
u

rs
u

e
d

it
is

li
k

e
ly

th
a

t
a

n
o

n
-v

e
h

ic
u

la
r

li
n

k
w

o
u

ld
fo

ll
o

w

th
is

ro
u

te
.

A
t

th
is

st
a

g
e

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
it

is
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

m
o

re
co

n
v

e
n

ie
n

t
a

n
d

b
e

n
e

fi
ci

a
l

in
te

rm
s

o
f

cy
cl

is
t

sa
fe

ty
fo

r
th

e
ro

u
te

to
li

n
k

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
a

n
d

p
ro

p
o

se
d

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s
w

it
h

in
th

e
to

w
n

to
th

e

e
xi

st
in

g
cy

cl
e

ro
u

te
to

th
e

n
o

rt
h

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
m

o
re

cy
cl

e
w

a
y

s
th

a
t

ca
n

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

th
e

b
e

tt
e

r
N

o
te

d
N

o
n

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d

Agenda Item 11
Page 144



T
h

e
re

n
e

e
d

s
to

b
e

a
sa

fe
cy

cl
e

ro
u

te
li

n
k

in
g

to
A

rl
e

se
y

S
ta

ti
o

n

T
h

e
re

is
li

k
e

ly
to

b
e

a
S

1
0

6
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
to

w
a

rd
s

n
e

w
a

n
d

im
p

ro
v

e
d

cy
cl

e
ro

u
te

s
fr

o
m

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

P
ro

p
o

se
d

cy
cl

e
a

n
d

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

ro
u

te
s

sh
o

u
ld

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

te
d

is
a

b
le

d
ro

a
d

u
se

rs

A
t

th
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

d
e

si
g

n
st

a
g

e
th

e
re

le
v

a
n

t

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

w
il

l
b

e
co

n
su

lt
e

d
in

o
rd

e
r

to
e

n
su

re

th
a

t
a

ll
ro

u
te

s
a

d
d

re
ss

th
e

n
e

e
d

s
a

n
d

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
le

ss
a

b
le

d
u

se
rs

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
su

st
a

in
a

b
le

li
n

k
to

E
to

n
b

u
ry

M
id

d
le

S
ch

o
o

l
sh

o
u

ld
b

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

th
ro

u
g

h
a

cr
o

ss
in

g
o

v
e

r/
u

n
d

e
r

th
e

A
5

0
7

in
th

e

v
ic

in
it

y
o

f
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
n

e
w

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t

In
re

sp
o

n
se

to
co

m
m

e
n

ts
in

su
p

p
o

rt
o

f
th

is
a

te
ch

n
ic

a
l

so
lu

ti
o

n
is

b
e

in
g

e
xp

lo
re

d
a

n
d

co
st

e
d

.

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to
in

d
ic

a
te

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

li
n

k
o

v
e

r/
u

n
d

e
r

th
e

A
5

0
7

in
th

e
a

re
a

a
ro

u
n

d
th

e
n

e
w

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t.
T

h
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

/c
y

cl
e

lo
o

p
th

ro
u

g
h

F
a

ir
fi

e
ld

P
a

rk
to

S
to

tf
o

ld
v

ia
H

it
ch

in
R

o
a

d
w

o
u

ld
b

e
a

g
re

a
t

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
b

e
n

e
fi

t

F
u

rt
h

e
r

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
w

il
l

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

th
is

ro
u

te
a

t
th

e
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
st

a
g

e
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Im
p

o
rt

a
n

t
to

h
a

v
e

a
n

e
a

st
-w

e
st

cy
cl

e
w

a
y

N
o

te
d

a
n

d
o

n
e

is
p

ro
p

o
se

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

sc
h

e
m

e
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
li

n
k

sh
o

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
sh

o
w

n
a

t
e

it
h

e
r

G
lo

ss
o

p

W
a

y
o

r
Li

tt
le

F
ie

ld
C

lo
se

a
s

th
e

se
a

re
p

ri
v

a
te

se
ct

io
n

s
o

f

ro
a

d

A
g

re
e

d
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
to

d
e

le
te

a
rr

o
w

s

in
d

ic
a

ti
n

g
th

e
se

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
li

n
k

s.

R
o

a
d

w
id

th
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

su
it

a
b

le
to

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

te
b

u
se

s
A

ll
o

n
-s

it
e

ro
a

d
s

w
il

l
b

e
d

e
si

g
n

e
d

in
a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

w
it

h
th

e
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l

a
n

d
lo

ca
l

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s.

It
is

e
n

v
is

a
g

e
d

th
a

t
a

n
e

w
b

u
s

ro
u

te
w

il
l

b
e

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
in

th
e

d
e

si
g

n
o

f
th

e
la

n
d

to
th

e
e

a
st

o
f

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t.

T
h

e
ro

u
te

w
il

l
b

e
d

e
si

g
n

e
d

in

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

w
it

h
lo

ca
l

b
u

s
o

p
e

ra
to

rs
a

n
d

C
B

C
's

P
u

b
li

c
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
O

ff
ic

e
r.

T
h

e
w

id
th

o
f

th
e

ro
a

d
s

a
lo

n
g

th
is

ro
u

te
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

si
g

n
e

d
in

a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce

w
it

h
th

e
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

o
f

C
B

C
's

D
e

si
g

n
G

u
id

a
n

ce
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

e
d

fo
r

a
n

e
xt

e
n

si
v

e
tr

a
v

e
l

p
la

n
w

it
h

im
p

ro
v

e
d

fr
e

q
u

e
n

cy
o

f
b

u
s

se
rv

ic
e

s
a

n
d

co
n

n
e

ct
iv

it
y

w
it

h
st

a
ti

o
n

A
T

ra
v

e
l

P
la

n
w

il
l

b
e

su
b

m
it

te
d

in
su

p
p

o
rt

o
f

a

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
o

n
th

e
si

te
.

F
u

ll

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
w

il
l

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
e

n
h

a
n

ce
m

e
n

t

o
f

e
xi

st
in

g
b

u
s

se
rv

ic
e

s
w

it
h

in
th

e
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 145



N
e

e
d

fo
r

in
cr

e
a

se
d

ra
il

se
rv

ic
e

to
a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

cu
st

o
m

.
D

is
cu

ss
io

n
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

h
e

ld
w

it
h

tr
a

in

o
p

e
ra

to
rs

T
h

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
ra

il
se

rv
ic

e
s

is
a

d
e

ci
si

o
n

to
b

e
m

a
d

e
b

y
th

e
tr

a
in

o
p

e
ra

to
r,

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
if

th
e

p
a

tr
o

n
a

g
e

in
cr

e
a

se
s

it
is

li
k

e
ly

th
a

t
th

e
se

rv
ic

e
s

w
il

l
b

e
e

n
h

a
n

ce
d

to
re

fl
e

ct
th

is
.

D
is

cu
ss

io
n

s
w

il
l

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
b

e
h

e
ld

w
it

h
th

e
m

to

m
a

k
e

th
e

m
a

w
a

re
o

f
th

e
ti

m
e

sc
a

le
s

fo
r

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

e
d

fo
r

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

p
a

rk
in

g
a

t
th

e
st

a
ti

o
n

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

p
a

rk
in

g
a

t
A

rl
e

se
y

S
ta

ti
o

n
is

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

b
e

in
g

p
ro

v
id

e
d

b
y

o
th

e
rs

.
T

h
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
il

l

fo
cu

s
o

n
e

n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
p

e
o

p
le

to
a

cc
e

ss
th

e
st

a
ti

o
n

b
y

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
m

o
d

e
l

o
f

tr
a

v
e

l.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
rl

e
se

y
S

ta
ti

o
n

n
e

e
d

s
to

b
e

u
p

g
ra

d
e

d
T

h
is

is
a

m
a

tt
e

r
fo

r
N

e
tw

o
rk

R
a

il
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

tr
a

ff
ic

sh
o

u
ld

n
o

t
u

se
H

o
u

se
La

n
e

C
B

C
is

li
k

e
ly

to
im

p
o

se
a

co
n

d
it

io
n

o
n

a
n

y

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

re
q

u
ir

in
g

a
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

b
e

p
re

p
a

re
d

p
ri

o
r

to
th

e
co

m
m

e
n

ce
m

e
n

t
o

f
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.

T
h

is
w

il
l

in
cl

u
d

e
d

e
ta

il
s

o
f

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
tr

a
ff

ic

ro
u

ti
n

g
a

n
d

h
o

u
rs

o
f

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

8
.
G
re
e
n
In
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re

a
n
d
O
p
e
n
S
p
a
ce

T
h

e
re

w
il

l
b

e
le

ss
g

re
e

n
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

a
s

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

to
o

b
ig

a
n

d
b

e
in

g
b

u
il

t
o

n
g

re
e

n
la

n
d

W
h

il
st

th
e

sc
h

e
m

e
w

o
u

ld
in

v
o

lv
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
n

o
p

e
n

la
n

d
,

m
u

ch
o

f
it

is
p

ri
v

a
te

a
n

d
th

e
re

fo
re

n
o

t
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
p

u
b

li
ca

ll
y

a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

.
T

h
e

C
o

n
ce

p
t

P
la

n
w

it
h

in
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

in
d

ic
a

te
s

ci
rc

a
1

7
h

a

o
f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

a
to

w
n

p
a

rk
,

sp
o

rt
s

p
it

ch
e

s,
a

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
o

rc
h

a
rd

a
n

d
in

fo
rm

a
l

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l
a

re
a

s,
a

ll
o

f
w

h
ic

h
w

o
u

ld
b

e

p
u

b
li

ca
ll

y
a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 146



Lo
ss

o
f

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

m
a

st
e

rp
la

n
co

n
si

d
e

rs
th

e
e

co
lo

g
ic

a
l

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

.
T

h
e

e
a

st
e

rn
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
a

re
a

is

o
p

e
n

a
ra

b
le

fi
e

ld
s

w
it

h
li

m
it

e
d

e
co

lo
g

y
v

a
lu

e
.

T
h

e

w
e

st
e

rn
la

n
d

p
a

rc
e

l
h

a
s

a
C

o
u

n
ty

W
il

d
li

fe
si

te
a

n
d

th
is

w
il

l
b

e
re

ta
in

e
d

w
it

h
a

la
n

d
sc

a
p

e
b

u
ff

e
r

b
e

tw
e

e
n

it
a

n
d

th
e

h
o

u
si

n
g

.
A

fu
ll

e
co

lo
g

ic
a

l

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

w
il

l
a

cc
o

m
p

a
n

y
fu

tu
re

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Lo
ss

o
f

a
g

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l

la
n

d
T

h
e

si
te

is
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
fo

r
th

e
u

se
s

o
u

tl
in

e
d

in
P

o
li

cy

M
A

8
o

f
th

e
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
a

n
d

th
e

re
fo

re

th
e

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

o
f

it
s

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

fo
r

th
e

se
u

se
s

is

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

W
h

y
h

a
v

e
n

't
th

e
b

ro
w

n
fi

e
ld

si
te

s
b

e
e

n
e

le
ct

e
d

to
b

e
u

se
d

fo
r

h
o

u
si

n
g

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

ra
th

e
r

th
a

n
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t

a
g

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l

la
n

d
?

W
h

e
n

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
th

e
C

o
re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
s

C
B

C
u

n
d

e
rt

o
o

k
a

n
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t

o
f

th
e

e
xt

e
n

t
o

f
h

o
u

si
n

g
th

a
t

co
u

ld
b

e
d

e
li

v
e

re
d

o
n

b
ro

w
n

fi
e

ld
si

te
s.

T
h

is
co

n
cl

u
d

e
d

th
a

t
th

e
re

is

in
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t
b

ro
w

n
la

n
d

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
to

m
e

e
t

th
e

o
v

e
ra

ll
h

o
u

si
n

g
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

in
th

e
n

o
rt

h
p

a
rt

o
f

C
e

n
tr

a
l

B
e

d
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

a
n

d
a

s
a

co
n

se
q

u
e

n
ce

g
re

e
n

fi
e

ld
la

n
d

h
a

s
h

a
d

to
b

e
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
to

h
e

lp

m
e

e
t

th
is

n
e

e
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
w

h
o

le
si

te
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
m

a
d

e
w

o
o

d
la

n
d

fo
r

w
il

d
li

fe
T

h
e

si
te

is
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
fo

r
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
in

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l'

s
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
a

n
d

th
e

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

o
f

it
s

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

is
a

lr
e

a
d

y
e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

g
re

e
n

li
n

k
s

a
n

d
w

il
d

li
fe

a
re

a
s

N
o

te
d

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
u

p
p

o
rt

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

p
la

y
a

re
a

s
N

o
te

d
N

o
n

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d

A
s

m
u

ch
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

a
s

p
o

ss
ib

le
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
T

h
e

C
o

n
ce

p
t

P
la

n
w

it
h

in
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

in
d

ic
a

te
s

ci
rc

a
2

1
h
a

o
f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

e
d

fo
r

a
re

a
s

fo
r

d
o

g
w

a
lk

in
g

T
h

e
C

o
n

ce
p

t
P

la
n

w
it

h
in

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
in

cl
u

d
e

s

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t

a
re

a
o

f
in

fo
rm

a
l

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l
sp

a
ce

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
la

rg
e

p
la

y
a

re
a

in
th

e
to

w
n

p
a

rk
a

n
d

ca
fé

w
o

u
ld

m
a

k
e

a

g
o

o
d

fo
ca

l
p

o
in

t
fo

r
A

rl
e

se
y

O
n

e
is

sh
o

w
n

in
d

ic
a

te
d

o
n

th
e

C
o

n
ce

p
t

P
la

n
a

t

F
ig

u
re

4
.1

o
f

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 147



A
re

a
to

e
a

st
o

f
m

a
in

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
a

s
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
/g

re
e

n
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
co

m
m

it
te

d
to

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
b

le
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

is
sh

o
w

n
o

n
th

e
e

a
st

e
rn

la
n

d
o

n
th

e
C

o
n

ce
p

t
P

la
n

a
t

F
ig

u
re

4
.1

o
f

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
sh

o
w

s
li

tt
le

in
w

a
y

o
f

g
re

e
n

sp
a

ce
w

it
h

in

a
ct

u
a

l
lo

ca
l

p
la

n
si

te
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

b
o

u
n

d
a

ry

In
e

xc
e

ss
o

f
2
1
h
a

o
f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
is

sh
o

w
n

w
it

h
in

th
e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
si

te
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

.
T

h
e

a
re

a
sh

o
w

n

o
u

ts
id

e
o

f
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

a
re

a
w

il
l

h
e

lp
m

a
in

ta
in

th
e

v
is

u
a

l
se

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

b
e

tw
e

e
n

A
rl

e
se

y
,

S
to

tf
o

ld
a

n
d

F
a

ir
fi

e
ld

P
a

rk
,

w
h

ic
h

is
a

st
a

te
d

a
im

o
f

P
o

li
cy

M
A

8
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

W
o

o
d

e
d

p
a

rk
so

u
th

o
f

W
h

it
e

H
o

rs
e

P
H

w
it

h
p

la
y

a
re

a

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

cr
e

a
te

d

T
h

is
a

re
a

co
u

ld
b

e
p

la
n

te
d

w
it

h
tr

e
e

s
b

u
t

n
a

tu
ra

l

v
is

u
a

l
su

rv
e

il
la

n
ce

a
n

d
p

e
rm

e
a

b
il

it
y

w
il

l
b

e

re
ta

in
e

d
to

e
n

su
re

th
a

t
th

is
re

m
a

in
s

a
sa

fe
p

la
ce

.

T
h

e
d

e
ta

il
e

d
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s

w
il

l
p

ro
v

id
e

m
o

re
d

e
ta

il

a
b

o
u

t
th

e
ch

a
ra

ct
e

r
o

f
th

e
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

G
e

n
e

ra
l

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

o
f

p
u

b
li

c
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

cl
o

se
to

a

ra
il

w
a

y
li

n
e

is
q

u
e

st
io

n
a

b
le

a
n

d
is

li
k

e
ly

to
b

e

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
fr

o
m

a
ch

il
d

sa
fe

ty
p

e
rs

p
e

ct
iv

e
.

N
e

tw
o

rk
R

a
il

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

co
n

su
lt

e
d

a
n

d
h

a
v

e
n

o

o
b

je
ct

io
n

s
to

th
e

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

o
f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
in

th
is

lo
ca

ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

w
il

l
b

e
fe

n
ce

d
o

ff
fr

o
m

th
e

ra
il

w
a

y
tr

a
ck

a
n

d
th

e
re

w
il

l
b

e
n

o
fo

rm
a

l

sp
o

rt
s

p
it

ch
e

s
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

.
T

h
e

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
p

ro
v

id
e

s
a

b
u

ff
e

r
o

f
la

n
d

sc
a

p
e

b
e

tw
e

e
n

th
e

h
o

u
si

n
g

a
re

a
a

n
d

C
o

u
n

ty
W

il
d

li
fe

si
te

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
it

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
a

s
a

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

O
rc

h
a

rd
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
m

o
v

e
d

to
th

e
n

o
rt

h
o

f
p

u
b

li
c

fo
o

tp
a

th
F

P
/A

R
L/

3
/1

0
w

h
e

re
th

e

fo
rm

e
r

o
rc

h
a

rd
w

a
s

lo
ca

te
d

T
h

e
re

a
re

re
m

n
a

n
ts

o
f

o
rc

h
a

rd
b

o
th

n
o

rt
h

a
n

d

so
u

th
o

f
th

e
fo

o
tp

a
th

.
E

xi
st

in
g

o
rc

h
a

rd
tr

e
e

s
o

n

b
o

th
si

d
e

s
o

f
th

e
fo

o
tp

a
th

w
il

l
b

e
re

ta
in

e
d

a
n

d

o
rc

h
a

rd
tr

e
e

s
w

it
h

in
p

ro
p

o
se

d
o

rc
h

a
rd

to
th

e

so
u

th
o

f
th

e
fo

o
tp

a
th

w
il

l
a

ls
o

b
e

re
ta

in
e

d
.

T
e

xt
a

d
d

e
d

fo
r

cl
a

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

T
h

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
n

e
e

d
s

to
m

a
k

e
a

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

to
th

e
d

e
li

v
e

ry
o

f
th

e
A

rl
e

se
y

a
n

d
S

to
tf

o
ld

G
re

e
n

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

P
la

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
e

m
e

rg
in

g
'G

re
e

n

W
h

e
e

l'
.

T
h

e
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
g

o
so

m
e

w
a

y
to

w
a

rd
s

m
e

e
ti

n
g

th
is

O
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

a
cr

o
ss

in
g

o
f

th
e

A
5

0
7

,
n

o
rt

h
-s

o
u

th

g
re

e
n

li
n

k
s

a
n

d
co

n
n

e
ct

e
d

g
re

e
n

co
rr

id
o

rs
o

f

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
a

n
d

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
a

ro
u

n
d

th
e

p
e

ri
m

e
te

r

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
a

co
m

m
u

n
it

y

o
rc

h
a

rd
)

w
il

l
h

e
lp

d
e

li
v

e
r

th
is

.

W
o

rd
in

g
a

d
d

e
d

to
P

ri
n

ci
p

le
3

a
n

d
v

a
ri

o
u

s

p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
s,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

4
.7

a
n

d
5

.1

re
q

u
ir

in
g

o
p

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

a
n

e
w

cr
o

ss
in

g
o

f

th
e

A
5

0
7

in
th

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

n
e

w
ro

u
n

d
a

b
o

u
t

to
b

e
e

xp
lo

re
d

.
C

o
n

ce
p

t

p
la

n
a

t
fi

g
u

re
4

.1
a

ls
o

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
to

in
d

ic
a

te
th

is
.

Agenda Item 11
Page 148



W
o

u
ld

li
k

e
to

se
e

G
I

a
n

d
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it

y
a

d
d

e
d

to
th

e
li

st
o

f

P
la

n
n

in
g

O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s

A
g

re
e

d
T

e
xt

a
d

d
e

d
to

p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
9

.3
(n

o
w

9
.9

)
o

f

th
e

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

b
e

n
e

e
d

e
d

fo
r

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

a
n

d

u
p

k
e

e
p

o
f

g
re

e
n

a
re

a
s

o
n

ce
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
is

co
m

p
le

te
d

T
h

is
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

a
lt

w
it

h
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

S
1

0
6

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t

o
n

a
n

y
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

If
sp

o
rt

s
p

it
ch

e
s

a
re

fo
r

d
if

fe
re

n
t

u
se

s
th

e
n

th
e

re
w

o
u

ld

b
e

n
o

h
a

rm
sp

li
tt

in
g

th
e

m
u

p

P
ro

v
id

in
g

th
e

p
it

ch
e

s
in

a
si

n
g

le
lo

ca
ti

o
n

a
ll

o
w

s

fo
r

fl
e

xi
b

il
it

y
in

th
e

ir
u

se
,

sh
a

re
d

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

w
it

h
th

e

sc
h

o
o

l,
a

n
d

a
ch

a
n

g
in

g
fa

ci
li

ty
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
p

o
rt

s
p

it
ch

e
s

a
re

n
o

t
e

a
si

ly
a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
in

th
e

ir
cu

rr
e

n
t

lo
ca

ti
o

n

T
h

e
sp

o
rt

s
p

it
ch

e
s

a
re

cl
o

se
to

g
re

e
n

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

a
n

d
cy

cl
e

ro
u

te
s,

th
e

sc
h

o
o

l
a

n
d

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
xp

a
n

si
o

n
o

f
cu

rr
e

n
t

A
rl

e
se

y
T

o
w

n
F

o
o

tb
a

ll
C

lu
b

a
n

d

o
th

e
r

p
it

ch
e

s
in

A
rl

e
se

y
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
fo

cu
se

d
o

n
in

st
e

a
d

o
f

p
ro

v
id

in
g

n
e

w
p

it
ch

e
s

C
B

C
's

cu
rr

e
n

t
p

o
li

cy
re

q
u

ir
e

s
th

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
o

f
n

e
w

sp
o

rt
s

p
it

ch
e

s
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
h

a
n

g
in

g
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
n

e
e

d
to

b
e

o
f

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t

si
ze

T
h

is
w

il
l

b
e

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
a

t
th

e
d

e
ta

il
e

d
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

a
n

ti
-s

o
ci

a
l

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

ta
k

in
g

p
la

ce
a

t
p

la
y

a
re

a
s

T
h

e
p

la
y

a
re

a
s

a
re

lo
ca

te
d

w
h

e
re

th
e

re
is

v
is

u
a

l

su
rv

e
il

la
n

ce
fr

o
m

a
d

ja
ce

n
t

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s.

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

te
xt

a
d

d
e

d
to

S
e

ct
io

n
6

to

m
a

k
e

th
is

cl
e

a
r

R
e

ta
in

in
g

m
a

tu
re

tr
e

e
s

a
n

d
p

la
n

ti
n

g
h

e
d

g
e

ro
w

s
a

n
d

w
il

d
fl

o
w

e
rs

is
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t

A
T

re
e

S
u

rv
e

y
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
a

n
d

in
fo

rm
e

d

th
e

p
re

p
a

rt
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
.

W
h

e
re

v
e

r
p

o
ss

ib
le

e
xi

st
in

g
tr

e
e

s
a

n
d

h
e

d
g

e
ro

w
s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

sh
o

w
n

a
s

re
ta

in
e

d

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
re

e
s

li
n

in
g

th
e

so
u

th
si

d
e

o
f

S
to

tf
o

ld
R

o
a

d
sh

o
u

ld
b

e

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

p
la

n
sh

o
w

s
th

e
se

re
ta

in
e

d
w

h
e

re

p
o

ss
ib

le
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

li
n

k
fr

o
m

G
lo

ss
o

p
W

a
y

w
o

u
ld

b
e

b
e

tt
e

r
se

rv
e

d

in
to

C
h

a
n

ce
ll

o
rs

W
a

y
so

th
e

re
is

a
cc

e
ss

to
th

e
p

la
y

a
re

a

Li
n

k
to

G
lo

ss
o

p
W

a
y

is
to

b
e

re
m

o
v

e
d

a
s

it
sh

o
w

s

a
co

n
n

e
ct

io
n

v
ia

a
p

ri
v

a
te

p
a

rk
in

g
co

u
rt

.

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to
d

e
le

te
a

rr
o

w
s

in
d

ic
a

ti
n

g
th

e
se

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
li

n
k

s.

9
.
R
e
ta
il
o
r
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
U
se
s

R
e

ta
il

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

la
rg

e
e

n
o

u
g

h
to

se
rv

e
th

e

e
xp

a
n

d
e

d
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

/c
o

n
ce

rn
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
w

il
l

n
o

t

b
e

b
ig

e
n

o
u

g
h

T
h

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
p

ro
v

id
e

s
a

n
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
fo

r
n

e
w

re
ta

il
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
to

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 149



A
la

rg
e

2
4

h
o

u
r

su
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t

is
n

e
e

d
e

d
T

h
e

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
n

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
o

f

th
e

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

n
e

w
re

ta
il

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

to
b

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

ca
r

p
a

rk
in

g
in

lo
ca

l
ce

n
tr

e
a

re
a

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
n

e
e

d
to

m
e

e
t

C
B

C
's

a
d

o
p

te
d

p
a

rk
in

g
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s

a
t

th
e

ti
m

e
a

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

is
m

a
d

e
fo

r
th

is
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

sc
h

e
m

e
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
xt

e
n

si
o

n
o

f
e

xi
st

in
g

d
o

ct
o

r'
s

su
rg

e
ry

n
e

e
d

e
d

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

d
o

ct
o

r'
s

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

w
il

l
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
a

s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
T

h
is

m
a

y
b

e
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

re
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
d

o
ct

o
r'

s
su

rg
e

ry
to

la
rg

e
r

p
re

m
is

e
s

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

o
r

th
ro

u
g

h
a

co
n

fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
cu

rr
e

n
t

u
se

s
in

th
e

ci
v

ic
a

m
e

n
it

y
a

re
a

to
a

ll
o

w
it

s
e

xp
a

n
si

o
n

in
th

e

cu
rr

e
n

t
lo

ca
ti

o
n

.
T

h
is

w
il

l
b

e
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

a
t

th
e

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

w
it

h
th

e

e
xi

st
in

g
su

rg
e

ry
a

n
d

lo
ca

l
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

v
e

s,
su

ch
a

s

A
rl

e
se

y
T

o
w

n
C

o
u

n
ci

l.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

W
o

u
ld

li
k

e
to

se
e

a
p

e
tr

o
l

fi
ll

in
g

st
a

ti
o

n
T

h
e

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
n

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
o

f

th
e

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

n
e

w
re

ta
il

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

to
b

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

A
ca

fé
/r

e
st

a
u

ra
n

t
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

Lo
ca

l

C
e

n
tr

e

T
h

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
p

ro
v

id
e

s
a

n
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

n
e

w
re

ta
il

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

to
b

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

W
o

u
ld

li
k

e
to

se
e

a
b

u
tc

h
e

rs
a

n
d

a
b

a
k

e
rs

T
h

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
p

ro
v

id
e

s
a

n
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

n
e

w
re

ta
il

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

to
b

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 150



A
rl

e
se

y
n

e
e

d
s

a
m

a
n

n
e

d
p

o
li

ce
st

a
ti

o
n

T
h

is
is

a
m

a
tt

e
r

fo
r

B
e

d
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

P
o

li
ce

to
d

e
ci

d
e

o
n

a
n

d
is

n
o

t
so

m
e

th
in

g
th

a
t

ca
n

b
e

sp
e

ci
fi

ca
ll

y

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

b
a

n
k

in
g

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

n
e

e
d

e
d

T
h

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
p

ro
v

id
e

s
a

n
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l'

s
a

sp
ir

a
ti

o
n

s
fo

r
n

e
w

re
ta

il
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
to

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
p

o
rt

s
C

e
n

tr
e

/c
ri

ck
e

t
p

it
ch

/b
o

w
li

n
g

g
re

e
n

P
la

y
in

g
fi

e
ld

p
ro

v
is

io
n

to
co

v
e

r
a

ra
n

g
e

o
f

u
se

s

w
il

l
b

e
p

ro
v

id
e

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Le
is

u
re

ce
n

tr
e

/s
w

im
m

in
g

p
o

o
l/

ci
n

e
m

a
It

is
u

n
li

k
e

ly
th

a
t

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

co
u

ld
su

st
a

in

su
ch

u
se

s,
b

u
t

th
e

re
w

il
l

b
e

a
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

to
w

a
rd

s
le

is
u

re
a

n
d

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
S

1
0

6
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

P
u

b
li

c
H

o
u

se
T

h
e

D
ra

ft
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

p
ro

v
id

e
s

a
n

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
o

f

th
e

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

fo
r

n
e

w
re

ta
il

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

to
b

e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
,

b
u

t
w

h
a

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
w

il
l

u
lt

im
a

te
ly

co
m

e
d

o
w

n
to

m
a

rk
e

t

d
e

m
a

n
d

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

e
d

a
to

w
n

sq
u

a
re

to
g

iv
e

A
rl

e
se

y
id

e
n

ti
ty

It
is

in
te

n
d

e
d

th
a

t
th

e
Lo

ca
l

C
e

n
tr

e
a

re
a

in
cl

u
d

e
s

a
h

ig
h

q
u

a
li

ty
p

u
b

li
c

re
a

lm
a

n
d

in
te

rf
a

ce
w

it
h

th
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

to
w

n
p

a
rk

to
th

e
n

o
rt

h
o

f
it

.
T

h
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

d
e

si
g

n
o

f
th

is
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
a

t
th

e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

G
a

in
in

g
a

su
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t

w
il

l
m

e
a

n
lo

si
n

g
lo

ca
l

sh
o

p
s

T
h

e
e

xt
e

n
t

o
f

n
e

w
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

ro
p

o
se

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

sc
h

e
m

e
w

il
l

b
ri

n
g

co
n

si
d

e
ra

b
le

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l

cu
st

o
m

w
h

ic
h

w
il

l
h

e
lp

to
su

st
a

in
b

o
th

e
xi

st
in

g

a
n

d
p

ro
p

o
se

d
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
a

n
d

se
rv

ic
e

s.

F
u

rt
h

e
rm

o
re

,
A

rl
e

se
y

's
le

n
g

th
a

n
d

th
e

p
o

si
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

Lo
ca

l
C

e
n

tr
e

w
il

l
m

e
a

n
it

is
m

o
re

co
n

v
e

n
ie

n
t

fo
r

th
o

se
li

v
in

g
in

th
e

so
u

th
o

f
th

e
to

w
n

to

co
n

ti
n

u
e

to
u

se
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

sh
o

p
s

a
n

d
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s

th
e

re
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 151



C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

th
e

im
p

a
ct

o
n

th
e

cu
rr

e
n

t
ci

v
ic

a
re

a
?

It
is

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
th

a
t

th
e

u
se

s
p

ro
p

o
se

d
in

th
e

Lo
ca

l
C

e
n

tr
e

w
il

l
b

e
co

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

to
ra

th
e

r

th
a

n
co

m
p

e
te

w
it

h
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ci
v

ic
a

m
e

n
it

y

a
re

a
.

S
1

0
6

m
o

n
e

y
fr

o
m

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

to
w

a
rd

s
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

co
u

ld
a

ls
o

b
e

d
ir

e
ct

e
d

a
t

re
ju

v
e

n
a

ti
n

g
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

ci
v

ic
a

m
e

n
it

y

a
re

a
to

e
n

su
re

it
re

m
a

in
s

a
v

it
a

l
a

n
d

v
ia

b
le

p
a

rt
o

f

th
e

to
w

n
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

W
h

e
re

is
th

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
fo

r
te

e
n

a
g

e
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s
to

b
e

lo
ca

te
d

?

F
u

rt
h

e
r

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

a
b

o
u

t
th

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

a
n

d
ty

p
e

o
f

fa
ci

lt
ie

s
re

q
u

ir
e

d
w

il
l

b
e

ca
rr

ie
d

o
u

t
a

t
th

e
o

u
tl

in
e

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

U
n

ti
l

th
e

re
a

re
b

e
tt

e
r

fa
ci

li
te

s
A

rl
e

se
y

ca
n

n
o

t
su

st
a

in

a
n

o
th

e
r

1
,0

0
0

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s

T
h

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

to
h

e
lp

im
p

ro
v

e
th

e
le

v
e

l
o

f
se

rv
ic

e
p

ro
v

is
io

n
in

A
rl

e
se

y
.

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

o
u

tl
in

e
s

th
e

li
k

e
ly

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

th
a

t

w
il

l
re

su
lt

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

1
0
.
E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n

N
e

e
d

m
o

re
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

o
n

h
o

w
th

e
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

b
e

m
e

t

A
d

e
ci

si
o

n
o

n
p

re
ci

se
ly

h
o

w
th

e
n

e
w

lo
w

e
r

sc
h

o
o

l

p
ro

v
is

io
n

is
to

b
e

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
w

il
l

b
e

m
a

d
e

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

w
sc

h
o

o
l

n
e

e
d

s
to

b
e

in
a

d
d

it
io

n
to

G
o

th
ic

M
e

d
e

a
n

d

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
e

a
rl

y
in

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
n

e
w

lo
w

e
r

sc
h

o
o

l
p

ro
v

is
io

n
w

il
l

b
e

in
a

d
d

it
io

n

to
G

o
th

ic
M

e
d

e
S

ch
o

o
l,

b
u

t
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

B
o

a
rd

w
il

l

b
e

g
iv

e
n

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
to

b
id

fo
r

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
th

e

n
e

w
sc

h
o

o
l

a
lo

n
g

w
it

h
o

th
e

r
p

a
rt

ie
s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
ch

o
o

l
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
ru

n
fr

o
m

tw
o

si
te

s
T

h
e

n
e

w
lo

w
e

r
sc

h
o

o
l

p
ro

v
is

io
n

w
il

l
b

e
in

a
d

d
it

io
n

to
G

o
th

ic
M

e
d

e
S

ch
o

o
l,

b
u

t
th

e
e

xi
st

in
g

B
o

a
rd

w
il

l

b
e

g
iv

e
n

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
to

b
id

fo
r

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
th

e

n
e

w
sc

h
o

o
l

a
lo

n
g

w
it

h
o

th
e

r
p

a
rt

ie
s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

E
xt

e
n

d
e

xi
st

in
g

sc
h

o
o

l
in

to
li

b
ra

ry
a

n
d

su
rg

e
ry

a
n

d
th

e
n

re
lo

ca
te

th
o

se
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s

H
a

v
in

g
tw

o
sc

h
o

o
l

si
te

s
is

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
to

b
e

b
e

tt
e

r

in
te

rm
s

o
f

a
v

o
id

in
g

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
co

n
g

e
st

io
n

a
ro

u
n

d
a

si
n

g
le

si
te

lo
ca

te
d

ce
n

tr
a

ll
y

in
A

rl
e

se
y

a

sc
h

o
o

l
o

p
e

n
in

g
a

n
d

cl
o

si
n

g
ti

m
e

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 152



W
o

u
ld

b
e

b
e

tt
e

r
to

p
ro

v
id

e
o

n
e

la
rg

e
sc

h
o

o
l

o
n

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
si

te
a

n
d

m
o

v
e

o
th

e
r

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

to
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

la
n

d

H
a

v
in

g
tw

o
sc

h
o

o
l

si
te

s
is

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
to

b
e

b
e

tt
e

r

in
te

rm
s

o
f

a
v

o
id

in
g

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
co

n
g

e
st

io
n

a
ro

u
n

d
a

si
n

g
le

si
te

lo
ca

te
d

ce
n

tr
a

ll
y

in
A

rl
e

se
y

a

sc
h

o
o

l
o

p
e

n
in

g
a

n
d

cl
o

si
n

g
ti

m
e

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
id

d
le

a
n

d
u

p
p

e
r

sc
h

o
o

ls
n

e
e

d
to

b
e

ta
k

e
n

in
to

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n

A
s

in
d

ic
a

te
d

in
S

e
ct

io
n

9
o

f
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
,

S
1

0
6

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
a

re
li

k
e

ly
to

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

to
w

a
rd

s
a

ll
ti

e
rs

o
f

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
to

m
e

e
t

th
e

n
e

e
d

re
su

lt
in

g
fr

o
m

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
ch

o
o

l
sh

o
u

ld
n

o
t

b
e

lo
st

a
m

o
n

g
st

h
o

u
si

n
g

T
h

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

sc
h

o
o

l
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d

to
a

ll
o

w
th

e
p

o
ss

ib
il

it
y

o
f

cl
o

se
li

n
k

s
to

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
sc

h
o

o
l

si
te

w
h

il
st

st
il

l
m

e
e

ti
n

g
th

e
n

e
e

d
s

o
f

th
e

n
e

w
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

e
d

s
to

b
e

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
p

a
rk

in
g

a
n

d
d

ro
p

o
ff

/p
ic

k
u

p
a

re
a

s

fo
r

th
e

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s

T
h

is
is

a
m

a
tt

e
r

fo
r

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

t
th

e
d

e
ta

il
e

d

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
e

w
sc

h
o

o
l

p
ro

p
o

se
d

to
b

e
to

o
fa

r
fr

o
m

e
xi

st
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it

y

T
h

e
lo

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

sc
h

o
o

l
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d

to
a

ll
o

w
th

e
p

o
ss

ib
il

it
y

o
f

cl
o

se
li

n
k

s
to

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
sc

h
o

o
l

si
te

w
h

il
st

st
il

l
m

e
e

ti
n

g
th

e
n

e
e

d
s

o
f

th
e

n
e

w
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

S
ch

o
o

l
si

te
sh

o
u

ld
h

a
v

e
ro

o
m

fo
r

e
xp

a
n

si
o

n
T

h
is

is
a

d
e

ta
il

e
d

m
a

tt
e

r
th

a
t

w
il

l
b

e
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

fu
rt

h
e

r

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s
w

it
h

th
e

C
o

u
n

ci
l'

s
S

ch
o

o
l

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

a
n

d
C

a
p

it
a

l
P

la
n

n
in

g
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

1
1
.
C
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n

T
h

e
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

is
b

e
in

g
a

sk
e

d
to

su
p

p
o

rt
th

e
sc

h
e

m
e

w
it

h
o

u
t

h
a

v
in

g
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t
te

ch
n

ic
a

l
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

A
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t
a

m
o

u
n

t
o

f
te

ch
n

ic
a

l
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

h
a

s

b
e

e
n

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
to

in
fo

rm
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

a
n

d

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
re

fe
rr

e
d

to
w

it
h

in
th

e
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
a

t

th
e

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

s
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

.
A

t
th

e
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

te
ch

n
ic

a
l

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

w
it

h
b

e

su
b

m
it

te
d

in
su

p
p

o
rt

o
f

th
e

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 153



T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

's
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

a
p

p
e

a
rs

to
h

a
v

e
e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

b
e

y
o

n
d

th
e

e
a

st
e

rn
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

sh
o

w
n

o
n

th
e

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

M
a

p
,

th
is

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

m
a

d
e

cl
e

a
r

o
n

th
e

co
n

ce
p

t
p

la
n

so

m
e

m
b

e
rs

o
f

th
e

p
u

b
li

c
a

re
a

w
a

re

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

p
la

n
d

o
e

s
m

a
k

e
cl

e
a

r
w

h
e

re
th

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

is
a

n
d

th
e

e
xt

e
n

t
o

f
o

p
e

n

sp
a

ce
p

ro
v

id
e

d
o

u
ts

id
e

o
f

it
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
p

ro
ce

ss
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

w
e

a
k

a
n

d

in
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t/
re

si
d

e
n

ts
v

ie
w

s
a

re
b

e
in

g
ig

n
o

re
d

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
b

le
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
-

m
o

re
so

th
a

n
o

n
a

n
y

o
f

th
e

o
th

e
r

si
te

s
o

f
si

m
il

a
r

si
ze

b
ro

u
g

h
t

fo
rw

a
rd

to
d

a
te

.
T

h
is

is
o

u
tl

in
e

d
in

S
e

ct
io

n
s

1
a

n
d

2
o

f
th

e
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

A
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t

o
f

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
w

il
l

a
ls

o
b

e
p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

w
it

h
th

e
R

e
p

o
rt

to
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

o
n

th
e

D
ra

ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
B

C
h

a
s

n
o

t
e

n
a

b
le

d
o

r
p

ro
v

id
e

d
e

q
u

a
li

ty
o

f
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

fo
r

in
te

re
st

e
d

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
g

ro
u

p
s

a
n

d
a

ct
iv

e
m

e
m

b
e

rs
o

f

th
e

p
u

b
li

c.
T

h
is

is
n

o
t

in
k

e
e

p
in

g
w

it
h

th
e

N
P

P
F

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
b

le
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n

d
u

ri
n

g
th

e
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
-

m
o

re
so

th
a

n
o

n
a

n
y

o
f

th
e

o
th

e
r

si
te

s
o

f
si

m
il

a
r

si
ze

b
ro

u
g

h
t

fo
rw

a
rd

to
d

a
te

.
T

h
is

is
o

u
tl

in
e

d
in

S
e

ct
io

n
s

1
a

n
d

2
o

f
th

e
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t.

A
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t

o
f

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
w

il
l

a
ls

o
b

e
p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

w
it

h
th

e
R

e
p

o
rt

to
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

o
n

th
e

D
ra

ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
B

C
h

a
s

fa
il

e
d

to
ca

rr
y

o
u

t
a

re
v

ie
w

o
f

th
e

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss

o
f

it
s

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s

in
o

rd
e

r
to

d
e

te
rm

in
e

w
h

y

th
e

re
h

a
s

h
is

to
ri

ca
ll

y
b

e
e

n
a

lo
w

re
sp

o
n

se
ra

te

T
h

e
re

sp
o

n
se

ra
te

to
co

n
su

lt
a

it
o

n
o

n
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

h
ig

h
e

r
th

a
n

o
n

si
m

il
a

r

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
in

o
th

e
r

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s,

a
s

h
a

s
th

e
tu

rn
o

u
t

a
t

p
u

b
li

c
e

xh
ib

it
io

n
s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
th

a
t

th
e

S
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r
W

o
rk

sh
o

p
s

h
e

ld
in

2
0

1
2

d
id

n
o

t
in

v
o

lv
e

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
A

rl
e

se
y

co
m

m
u

n
it

y

A
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
lo

ca
l

in
te

re
st

g
ro

u
p

s
w

e
re

in
v

it
e

d
to

ta
k

e
p

a
rt

a
n

d
sp

e
ci

fi
c

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

w
a

s

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
w

it
h

A
rl

e
se

y
T

o
w

n
C

o
u

n
ci

l
a

t
th

e

ti
m

e
o

f
th

e
S

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
r

W
o

rk
sh

o
p

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 154



T
h

e
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
q

u
e

st
io

n
n

a
ir

e
is

st
il

te
d

w
it

h
to

o
m

a
n

y

le
a

d
in

g
q

u
e

st
io

n
s

T
h

e
m

u
li

tp
le

ch
o

ic
e

q
u

e
st

io
n

s
g

a
v

e
re

sp
o

n
d

e
n

ts

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
to

re
sp

o
n

d
p

o
si

ti
v

e
ly

,
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

ly

o
r

n
e

u
tr

a
ll

y
a

n
d

th
e

re
w

e
re

a
ls

o
o

p
e

n
e

n
d

e
d

q
u

e
st

io
n

s
o

n
e

a
ch

is
su

e
p

ro
v

id
in

g
th

e
fr

e
e

d
o

m
to

m
a

k
e

a
n

y
o

th
e

r
co

m
m

e
n

ts

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

th
e

e
m

p
h

a
si

s
p

la
ce

d
o

n
th

e
A

rl
e

se
y

T
o

w
n

P
la

n
w

h
e

n
th

e
si

te
w

a
s

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

a
n

d
th

e
la

ck
o

f
o

p
e

n

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

o
n

th
is

a
n

d
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
th

e
ro

u
te

o
f

th
e

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d

C
B

C
w

e
n

t
th

ro
u

g
h

a
ri

g
o

ro
u

s
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
p

ro
ce

ss

b
e

fo
re

a
d

o
p

ti
n

g
b

o
th

th
e

C
o

re
S

tr
a

te
g

y
&

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

P
o

li
ci

e
s

a
n

d
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
s,

w
it

h
b

o
th

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
b

e
in

g

fo
u

n
d

so
u

n
d

b
y

a
n

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

In
sp

e
ct

o
r.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

W
h

y
ra

is
e

th
e

is
su

e
o

f
a

n
e

a
st

e
rn

re
li

e
f

ro
a

d
a

t
th

is
st

a
g

e

o
f

th
e

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

if
th

e
w

e
st

e
rn

ro
u

te
is

se
t

in
st

o
n

e
?

T
h

e
in

te
n

ti
o

n
w

a
s

to
e

st
a

b
li

sh
th

e
e

xt
e

n
t

o
f

su
p

p
o

rt
fo

r
th

e
e

a
st

e
rn

o
p

ti
o

n
to

b
e

e
xp

lo
re

d
in

a
d

d
ti

o
n

to
th

e
cu

rr
e

n
t

p
la

n
so

th
a

t
th

e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
co

u
ld

b
e

fu
tu

re
-p

ro
o

fe
d

if
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

ju
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

fo
r

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
th

e
r

th
a

n
th

e

C
o

u
n

ci
l

o
w

n
s

th
e

la
n

d

F
u

ll
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
fo

r
th

e
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

o
f

th
e

si
te

a
n

d

th
e

sc
a

le
o

f
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

a
s

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in

su
p

p
o

rt
o

f
th

e
C

o
re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
n

d
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
s

o
n

th
e

b
a

si
s

th
a

t
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

o
u

ld

d
e

li
v

e
r

a
re

li
e

f
ro

a
d

,
n

e
w

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
m

e
e

t
th

e

n
e

e
d

in
C

e
n

tr
a

l
B

e
d

fo
rd

sh
ir

e
,

a
n

u
p

li
ft

in
se

rv
ic

e
s

in
A

rl
e

se
y

a
n

d
jo

b
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
th

a
t

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

w
il

l
n

o
t

p
ro

v
id

e
th

e
fu

ll
ra

n
g

e
o

f

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

si
n

g
o

n
v

ia
b

il
it

y
g

ro
u

n
d

s

D
e

ta
il

e
d

v
ia

b
il

it
y

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s
w

il
l

o
n

ly
ta

k
e

p
la

ce

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

a
n

d
C

B
C

w
il

l

se
e

k
to

ro
b

u
st

ly
a

ss
e

ss
a

n
y

v
ia

b
il

it
y

a
rg

u
m

e
n

ts
to

e
n

su
re

th
e

m
a

xi
m

u
m

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

to
A

rl
e

se
y

a
re

re
ce

iv
e

d
fr

o
m

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 155



1
2
.
M
is
ce
ll
a
n
e
o
u
s

D
o

cu
m

e
n

t
n

o
t

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
to

b
e

a
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

a
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

b
y

P
o

li
cy

M
A

8
o

f
th

e
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
a

n
d

n
e

e
d

s
to

m
u

ch
m

o
re

d
e

ta
il

e
d

to
p

ro
v

id
e

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

g
u

id
a

n
ce

o
n

th
e

n
a

tu
re

,
fo

rm
,

sc
a

le
a

n
d

d
e

si
g

n
o

f
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

a
n

d
h

o
w

it
is

to
b

e
d

e
li

v
e

re
d

C
B

C
is

sa
ti

sf
ie

d
th

a
t

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
p

ro
v

id
e

s

su
ff

fi
ci

e
n

t
d

e
ta

il
a

t
th

is
st

a
g

e
to

g
u

id
e

fu
tu

re

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
te

xt
a

t
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

1
.8

sh
o

u
ld

re
fe

r
to

'r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

'

ra
th

e
r

th
a

n
'o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s'

A
g

re
e

d
T

e
xt

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

T
h

e
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
p

ro
v

id
e

d
e

ta
il

e
d

d
e

si
g

n
g

u
id

a
n

ce

d
e

sp
it

e
th

is
b

e
in

g
a

st
a

te
d

p
u

rp
o

se
.

It
w

o
u

ld
n

o
rm

a
ll

y
b

e

th
e

ca
se

th
a

t
a

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
w

o
u

ld
a

t
le

a
st

p
ro

v
id

e
so

m
e

g
u

id
a

n
ce

o
n

d
e

si
ti

e
s

a
n

d
ch

a
ra

ct
e

r
a

re
a

s
to

g
u

id
e

fu
tu

re

su
b

m
is

si
o

n
s

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

m
a

k
e

s
cl

e
a

r
th

a
t

C
B

C
w

il
l

re
q

u
ir

e

D
e

si
g

n
C

o
d

e
s

e
it

h
e

r
w

it
h

o
u

tl
in

e
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s
o

r
p

ri
o

r
to

re
se

rv
e

d
m

a
tt

e
rs

,
w

h
ic

h

w
il

l
e

st
a

b
li

sh
th

e
d

e
ta

il
e

d
d

e
si

g
n

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts

fo
r

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
to

o
g

e
n

e
ra

l
a

n
d

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
p

ro
v

id
e

a

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

w
it

h
in

w
h

ic
h

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

ca
n

b
e

fo
rm

a
ll

y
b

ro
u

g
h

t
fo

rw
a

rd
a

n
d

d
e

li
v

e
re

d

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

is
in

te
n

d
e

d
to

b
e

a
h

ig
h

le
v

e
l

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t,
b

u
t

o
n

e
th

a
t

p
ro

v
id

e
s

fu
rt

h
e

r
cl

a
ri

ty
to

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

o
n

th
e

re
q

u
ri

e
m

e
n

ts
fo

r
th

e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

in
su

p
p

o
rt

o
f

P
o

li
cy

M
A

8
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
n

e
e

d
s

to
b

e
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to
b

e
tt

e
r

re
fl

e
ct

h
is

to
ri

c
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t
is

su
e

s

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

m
a

k
e

s
cl

e
a

r
th

a
t

a
H

e
ri

ta
g

e

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
a

t
th

e
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

It
is

d
is

a
p

p
o

in
ti

n
g

th
a

t
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

co
n

ta
in

s
li

tt
le

re
fe

re
n

ce
to

th
e

h
is

to
ri

c
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t,
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
in

th
e

C
o

n
te

xt
,

V
is

io
n

a
n

d
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

se
ct

io
n

s.
O

th
e

r
th

a
n

th
e

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
fo

r
a

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

in
S

e
ct

io
n

1
0

,

th
e

re
is

n
o

g
u

id
a

n
ce

o
n

h
o

w
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls

sh
o

u
ld

m
it

ig
a

te
im

p
a

ct
s

a
g

a
in

st
li

st
e

d
b

u
il

d
in

g
s

a
n

d

a
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

y
si

te
s

T
h

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

m
a

k
e

s
cl

e
a

r
th

a
t

a
H

e
ri

ta
g

e

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

w
il

l
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
a

t
th

e
p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

st
a

g
e

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 156



It
is

st
a

te
d

o
n

p
a

g
e

2
2

th
a

t
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

ca
n

o
n

ly
m

a
k

e

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
to

la
n

d
in

cl
u

d
e

d
w

it
h

in
th

e
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

o
r

in

C
e

n
tr

a
l

B
e

d
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s'
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

.
H

o
w

e
v

e
r,

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
a

p
p

e
a

rs
to

b
e

in
cl

u
d

in
g

g
e

n
e

ra
l

la
n

d
to

th
e

e
a

st
n

o
t

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
h

ig
h

w
a

y
to

d
e

li
v

e
r

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
re

li
e

f

ro
a

d
a

n
d

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
a

n
d

h
o

u
se

s
o

u
ts

id
e

o
f

th
e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
.

T
e

xt
w

it
h

in
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
cl

a
ri

fi
e

d
o

n
th

is

p
o

in
t

T
e

xt
w

it
h

in
th

e
D

ra
ft

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
cl

a
ri

fi
e

d

o
n

th
is

p
o

in
t

T
h

e
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
p

la
n

a
t

fi
g

u
re

2
.8

co
u

ld
b

e
n

e
fi

t
fr

o
m

u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
to

re
fl

e
ct

th
e

p
o

si
ti

o
n

o
f

a
m

a
in

d
ra

in
w

h
ic

h

ru
n

s
fr

o
m

th
e

e
xi

st
in

g
S

t
Jo

h
n

's
R

o
a

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

n
o

rt
h

w
a

rd
s.

A
g

re
e

d
F

ig
u

re
2

.8
u

p
d

a
te

d
a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

T
h

e
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
p

la
n

sh
o

w
s

a
sp

u
r

fr
o

m
th

e
m

a
in

ro
a

d
,

ru
n

n
in

g
e

a
st

to
H

ig
h

S
tr

e
e

t
in

th
e

v
ic

in
it

y
o

f
n

o
s.

1
3

3
-1

3
9

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t.

T
h

e
k

e
y

im
p

li
e

s
th

is
is

a
m

a
in

a
cc

e
ss

a
n

d

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
to

re
fl

e
ct

it
s

st
a

tu
s

a
s

a
se

co
n

d
a

ry

ro
u

te
,

a
s

re
fe

rr
e

d
to

in
th

e
re

st
o

f
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

A
g

re
e

d
F

ig
u

re
2

.9
u

p
d

a
te

d
a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

In
F

ig
u

re
2

.2
th

e
re

a
re

n
o

ta
ti

o
n

s
n

o
t

in
cl

u
d

e
d

in
th

e
K

e
y

,

su
ch

a
s

th
e

b
la

ck
d

o
u

b
le

e
n

d
e

d
a

rr
o

w
s

A
g

re
e

d
K

e
y

u
p

d
a

te
d

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

ly

P
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
8

.4
d

o
e

s
n

o
t

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

re
fl

e
ct

th
e

w
o

rd
in

g
o

f

P
o

li
cy

D
M

1
o

f
th

e
C

o
re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
g

re
e

d
P

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

8
.4

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

to

b
e

tt
e

r
re

fl
e

ct
P

o
li

cy
D

M
1

o
f

th
e

C
o

re

S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
8

.5
is

co
n

fu
si

n
g

in
im

p
ly

in
g

th
a

t
th

e
C

o
d

e
fo

r

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
le

H
o

m
e

s
is

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
,

w
h

ic
h

it
is

n
o

t.

A
g

re
e

d

W
o

rd
in

g
o

f
p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h

8
.5

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
fo

r

cl
a

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

H
e

lp
fu

l
if

a
ll

3
co

n
ce

p
t

p
la

n
s

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

w
e

re
p

ro
v

id
e

d
a

s

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
to

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

T
h

e
p

re
fe

rr
e

d
m

a
st

e
rp

la
n

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
p

re
p

a
re

d

b
a

se
d

o
n

b
e

st
fi

t
w

it
h

th
e

re
su

lt
s

o
f

th
e

p
u

b
li

c

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

a
n

d
si

te
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
.

P
u

tt
in

g
a

ll
th

re
e

p
la

n
s

in
th

e
fi

n
a

l
v

e
rs

io
n

w
o

u
ld

le
a

d
to

co
n

fu
si

o
n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

O
n

w
e

st
si

d
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
in

cl
u

d
e

s
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

1
3

3
-1

3
9

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

w
h

e
re

a
s

lo
ca

l
p

la
n

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
e

xc
lu

d
e

s
th

e

h
o

u
se

s
a

n
d

o
n

ly
in

cl
u

d
e

s
a

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
re

a
r

g
a

rd
e

n
s

T
h

is
lo

ca
ti

o
n

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

a
s

a
su

it
a

b
le

p
o

si
ti

o
n

fo
r

a
se

co
n

d
a

ry
a

cc
e

ss
b

e
tw

e
e

n
th

e

w
e

st
e

rn
la

n
d

a
n

d
re

li
e

f
a

n
d

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

a
n

d
h

a
s

th
e

re
fo

re
b

e
e

n
in

cl
u

d
e

d
in

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 157



R
e

fe
re

n
ce

s
to

A
re

a
s

A
a

n
d

B
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
re

m
o

v
e

d
fr

o
m

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n
a

s
it

a
s

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

a
s

o
n

e
si

te

T
h

e
u

se
o

f
A

re
a

s
A

a
n

d
B

is
d

e
sc

ri
p

ti
v

e
a

s
th

e
se

a
re

se
p

a
ra

te
p

a
rc

e
ls

o
f

la
n

d
o

n
d

if
fe

re
n

t
si

d
e

s
o

f

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

a
n

d
w

it
h

d
if

fe
re

n
t

ch
a

ra
ct

e
rs

.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

If
re

fe
re

n
ce

to
A

re
a

s
A

a
n

d
B

re
la

te
s

to
p

h
a

si
n

g
it

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

e
xp

la
in

e
d

in
th

e
M

a
st

e
rp

la
n

A
re

a
s

A
a

n
d

B
d

o
n

o
t

re
la

te
to

p
h

a
si

n
g

a
n

d
th

is
is

n
o

t
su

g
g

e
st

e
d

a
n

y
w

h
e

re
in

th
e

M
a

st
e

rp
la

n

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

P
h

a
si

n
g

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
to

b
e

o
f

g
re

a
t

im
p

o
rt

a
n

ce
a

s
w

il
l

h
a

v
e

a
n

im
p

a
ct

o
n

h
o

w
th

e
p

ro
p

o
se

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
is

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
a

n
d

se
cu

re
d

to
th

e
b

e
n

e
fi

t
o

f
lo

ca
l

p
e

o
p

le

A
g

re
e

d
,

b
u

t
th

is
ca

n
o

n
ly

b
e

d
e

a
lt

w
it

h
a

t
th

e

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

n
st

a
g

e
.

T
h

e
w

o
rd

in
g

o
f

S
e

ct
io

n
9

is
to

b
e

ti
g

h
te

n
e

d
to

p
ro

v
id

e
cl

a
ri

fy
o

n
w

h
a

t
C

B
C

e
xp

e
ct

s
h

o
w

e
v

e
r.

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
m

a
d

e
to

th
e

w
o

rd
in

g
o

f

S
e

ct
io

n
9

o
n

p
h

a
si

n
g

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
n

th
e

e
a

st
si

d
e

o
f

H
ig

h
S

tr
e

e
t

sh
o

u
ld

n
o

t

p
ro

ce
e

d
w

it
h

o
u

t
th

a
t

o
n

th
e

w
e

st
si

d
e

a
s

it
w

o
u

ld
b

e

co
n

tr
a

ry
to

th
e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
p

h
a

si
n

g
o

f
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
ca

n
o

n
ly

b
e

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
a

t
th

e
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
st

a
g

e

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
m

a
d

e
to

th
e

w
o

rd
in

g
o

f

S
e

ct
io

n
9

o
n

p
h

a
si

n
g

P
o

ck
e

ts
o

f
la

n
d

a
d

ja
ce

n
t

to
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

n
t

a
re

a
sh

o
u

ld

b
e

a
d

o
p

te
d

in
to

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

if
th

e
y

a
re

m
a

d
e

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
b

y
la

n
d

o
w

n
e

rs

T
h

is
w

o
u

ld
b

e
d

o
n

e
a

t
th

e
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n

st
a

g
e

a
n

d
w

o
u

ld
d

e
p

e
n

d
o

n
th

e
p

la
n

n
in

g
m

e
ri

ts

o
f

in
cl

u
d

in
g

th
e

la
n

d
a

n
d

a
n

y
co

st
in

v
o

v
le

d

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
s

th
a

t
th

e
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
b

e
in

g
o

ff
e

re
d

a
re

n
o

t

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

ll
y

su
st

a
in

a
b

le

La
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

a
n

d
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

co
n

si
d

e
r

th
e

v
ia

b
il

it
y

o
f

sc
h

e
m

e
s

b
e

fo
re

su
b

m
it

ti
n

g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

re
li

a
n

ce
o

n
d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

rs
fu

n
d

in
g

a
n

d
th

e
re

b
e

in
g

n
o

g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
th

a
t

so
m

e
o

f
th

e
o

th
e

r
'b

e
n

e
fi

ts
'

su
g

g
e

st
w

il
l

b
e

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
,

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

g
iv

e
n

th
e

co
st

o
f

th
e

ro
a

d
.

C
B

C
w

il
l

ro
b

u
st

ly
a

ss
e

ss
a

n
y

v
ia

b
il

it
y

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

su
b

m
it

te
d

w
it

h
a

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

to
e

n
su

re

th
e

m
a

xi
m

u
m

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

p
o

ss
ib

le
a

re
a

ch
ie

v
e

d
fo

r

A
rl

e
se

y

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

C
o

n
ce

rn
th

a
t

e
xi

st
in

g
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
,

su
ch

a
s

se
w

e
rs

w
o

n
't

co
p

e
a

n
d

n
o

r
w

il
l

se
rv

ic
e

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

b
e

a
b

le
to

d
e

a
l

w
it

h

th
e

in
cr

e
a

se
d

p
re

ss
u

re

In
it

ia
l

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

h
a

s
a

lr
e

a
d

y
b

e
e

n
h

e
ld

w
it

h

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

a
n

d
w

h
e

re
e

xi
st

in
g

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s

ca
n

n
o

t
co

p
e

w
it

h
th

e
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
p

re
ss

u
re

fr
o

m
th

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
to

fa
ci

li
ta

te
u

p
g

ra
d

e
s

w
il

l
b

e
m

a
d

e
.

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 158



C
o

n
ce

rn
a

b
o

u
t

d
ra

in
a

g
e

is
su

e
s

a
n

d
in

cr
e

a
se

d
fl

o
o

d
ri

sk
.

A
rl

e
se

y
h

a
s

a
h

ig
h

w
a

te
r

ta
b

le

T
h

e
co

n
ce

p
t

p
la

n
in

d
ic

a
te

s
a

tt
e

n
u

a
ti

o
n

m
e

a
su

re
s

w
il

l
b

e
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

to
p

o
si

ti
v

e
ly

m
a

n
a

g
e

su
rf

a
ce

w
a

te
r

d
ra

in
a

g
e

a
n

d

to
e

n
su

re
th

a
t

ru
n

o
ff

ra
te

s
in

to
e

xi
st

in
g

w
a

te
rc

o
u

rs
e

s
w

il
l

re
m

a
in

a
t

g
re

e
n

fi
e

ld
le

v
e

ls
.

A

F
lo

o
d

R
is

k
A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
w

il
l

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

w
it

h
a

n
y

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s
a

n
d

th
e

d
ra

in
a

g
e

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

a
n

d
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t
A

g
e

n
cy

w
il

l
b

e

co
n

su
lt

e
d

to
e

n
su

re
th

e
y

a
re

sa
ti

sf
ie

d
w

it
h

th
e

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

T
h

e
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

b
u

il
t

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
in

A
rl

e
se

y
si

n
ce

th
e

si
te

w
a

s
a

ll
o

ca
te

d
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
d

e
d

u
ct

e
d

fr
o

m
th

e
to

ta
l

T
h

e
S

it
e

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
P

D
co

n
fi

rm
s

a
m

in
im

u
m

re
q

u
ri

e
m

e
n

t
o

f
1

,0
0

0
d

w
e

ll
in

g
s

b
e

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
o

n

th
e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
la

n
d

.
T

h
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s
b

u
il

t

si
n

ce
2

0
1

1
is

le
ss

th
a

n
5

0

N
o

n
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

Agenda Item 11
Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 27 February 2014  

Subject: Planning Guidance on Sustainable Drainage 

Report of: Cllr Nigel Young, Executive Member for Sustainable Communities – 
Strategic Planning and Economic Development 

Summary: The report proposes asks the Committee to consider and comment on 
formal planning guidance regarding Sustainable Drainage in Central 
Bedfordshire, prior to consideration and its recommendation for adoption 
by Executive. 

 

 

Advising Officer: Trevor Saunders, Assistant Director of Planning 

Contact Officer: Laura Kitson, Green Infrastructure Co-ordinator 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1. Providing clear guidance regarding the design and adoption of Sustainable 
Drainage Systems (SuDS) will provide a greater degree of clarity over what we 
expect for the design of SuDS within development proposals, and how we 
expect them to be managed once development is complete. This will 
contribute to the Council’s priority of ‘Enhancing Central Bedfordshire – 
creating jobs, managing growth, protecting our countryside and enabling 
businesses to grow’. 

Financial: 

2. None. 

Legal: 

3. None. 

Risk Management: 

4. Providing statutory guidance enables Central Bedfordshire Council to be 
prepared for the future role of SuDS Approval Body. Not being prepared leaves 
the Council at risk of appeals / tribunals.  Using the guidance early on in the 
development process will help ensure SuDS are properly designed, reducing 
future implications for the council if and when they have to be adopted by CBC 
in our future role as the SuDs Approval Body. 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

5. Not Applicable.  

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 161



Equalities/Human Rights: 

7. None. 

Public Health 

8. The guidance sets out expectations of design for SuDS to benefit public health 
through promoting access to greenspaces. 

Community Safety: 

9. Implementation of SuDS within future development should reduce future flood 
risk within new developments, and reduce the risk of new development 
exacerbating surface water flood risk. 

Sustainability: 

10. The guidance sets out local principles for designing SuDS to reduce the risk of 
flooding from surface water, and therefore to promote developments that are 
more resilient to storm events and surface water flooding. 

Procurement: 

11. Not applicable.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Committee is asked to consider the draft document and recommend that 
Executive adopt it as Supplementary Planning Guidance in support of current 
adopted planning policy and Technical Guidance for the purposes of Development 
Management, in support of policy in the emerging Development Strategy. 

 

Introduction 

12. Surface water flooding is a challenge for Central Bedfordshire’s residents and 
businesses. Currently 9% of all homes and 34% of all business premises in 
Central Bedfordshire are located in areas that are susceptible to surface water 
flooding. In the future, extreme weather events, associated with surface water 
flooding are likely to become more frequent. Extreme weather events take 
place on average about 1 in 30 years at present, but frequency of extreme 
weather is forecast to increase to 1 in 18 years by the 2050s, and 1 in 14 years 
by the 2080s. 

13. In urban areas, the ability for precipitation to penetrate the hard paved 
surfaces to the groundwater below is inhibited. This leads to increased surface 
water flood risk and overstressed sewer infrastructure. Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (SuDS) can mitigate these issues by replicating natural drainage 
processes and rainwater management. 

14. The Flood and Water Management Act, introduced in 2010, aims to reduce 
flood risk and improve water management. As part of the phased 
implementation of the Act, Schedule 3 will require new developments to 
implement SuDS. It also introduces a new role for top tier Local Authorities as 
a ‘SuDS Approval Body’ (SAB). The SAB will evaluate the acceptability of 
proposed SuDS in all new developments and will adopt and maintain SuDS 
where a scheme serves more than one property (i.e. in the vast majority of 
cases). 

Agenda Item 12
Page 162



15. It was anticipated that Schedule 3 would be implemented in April 2014, but this 
has been postponed to allow Local Authorities more time to prepare to take on 
the new role. 

16. A key element of being prepared is to have clear guidance in place for 
developers, setting out our expectations and requirements of SuDS as high 
quality drainage systems that also deliver environmental benefits, in line with 
local planning policy.  Guidance will also help developers consider their design 
of SuDS early in the planning process, helping ensure better design and 
integration into new development. 

The Policy Framework for SuDS 

17. The SuDS guidance prepared is intended to complement national SuDS 
guidance (that focuses on the hydrological functionality of SuDS), and support 
local Planning Policy. 

18. Policy 46 of the Council’s emerging Development Strategy covers adaptation 
to climate change. The guidance prepared supports the policy, which requires 
(where relevant) development to use Sustainable Drainage Schemes to 
prevent surface water flooding. 

19. Policy DM2 of the Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
(Central Bedfordshire – North) sets out an expectation of the provision of 
SuDS for the disposal of surface water within and leading from developments 
sites 

20. Policy IS4 of the South Bedfordshire Local Plan requires new developments to 
include appropriate measures for surface water attenuation. 

21. The draft Development Strategy, the Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies for Central Bedfordshire (North) and the South 
Bedfordshire Local Plan also include policies relating to other areas, including 
flooding, design quality, water quality, water reuse, biodiversity, landscape and 
open space. Well designed SuDS have the potential to deliver a range of these 
policy areas. 

The Key Aspects of the draft SuDS Guidance 

22. The guidance details the approval and adoption process for SuDS, looking at 
what information is required at various stages of the planning process. It 
provides information about the adoption process, looking at what the council 
will adopt in its future role as the SAB, the requirements for adoption, the 
adoption process and what happens post adoption. 

23. The guidance sets out 10 local requirements, tailored to Central Bedfordshire. 
These requirements aim to ensure that SuDS are designed to function 
optimally, whilst enhancing the sense of place and quality of the environment. 
Crucially, these local requirements will help to ensure that new developments 
meet existing policy requirements through effective SuDS design. 

 The10 key requirements are: 

 1. Plan in SuDS from the start 

 2. Replicate natural drainage 

 3. Water re-use first 

 4. Enhance biodiversity 

 5. Focus on multi-functional uses 

Agenda Item 12
Page 163



 6. Minimise carbon and waste in SuDS 

 7. Design for easy access and maintenance 

 8. Linked design through every scale 

 9. Place making through SuDS design 

 10. Keep surface water above ground. 

24.  The guidance also includes information on how to design to deal with common 
challenges for SuDS, including: 

 • Designing SuDS within a floodplain 

 • Designing SuDS near areas of existing surface water flood risk areas 

 • Protecting the quality of water in existing watercourses 

 • Designing SuDS in sites with high groundwater levels of groundwater 
protection zones 

 • Designing SuDS in very flat sites 

 • Designing SuDS on very steep sites 

 • Designing SuDS in areas of poor permeability 

 • Designing SuDS for sites with land contamination 

 • Designing SuDS for sites with limited space. 

25.  Finally, the guidance looks at the characteristics of different areas of Central 
Bedfordshire in relation to landscape character, geology and topography, all of 
which influence SuDS design. Four ‘Local Zones’ are identified and the 
guidance outlines how SuDS can be designed in the context of these local 
zones. 

Consultation Process 

26.  Initial engagement 

 A workshop for stakeholders in the development industry, the water industry 
and environmental sector and for Central Bedfordshire Council officers was 
held on the 14th October, 2013. Workshop participants identified key barriers 
and opportunities associated with the implementation of SuDS. They also 
advised on the key local requirements to be included in the guidance to deliver 
effective sustainable drainage solutions within the area. The workshop was 
extremely helpful in informing preparation of the draft guidance.  

 A list of organisations that attended the workshop can be found as Appendix B. 

27.  Consultation within Central Bedfordshire and with Statutory Consultees for 
SuDS Approval 

 Following the initial workshop, a first draft of the Sustainable Drainage 
Guidance was produced and circulated for consultation within Central 
Bedfordshire Council and with statutory consultees to the SAB.  

 More information on respondents and comments can be found at Appendix C. 

28.  Public Consultation 

 The resulting draft is currently being consulted on as part of the formal public 
consultation process. A further consultation event is planned for the 11th 
February as part of the public consultation process. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 164



Conclusion and Next Steps  

29.  Under the Flood and Water Management Act (2010), the inclusion of 
Sustainable Drainage (SuDS) in construction projects will become obligatory.  

30.  Central Bedfordshire Council will, under the Act, take on the new role of SuDS 
Approval Body. 

31.  Providing clear guidance to developers as to our expectations and 
requirements for the design and adoption process is important as it enables 
SuDS to be designed effectively, ensuring that schemes deliver in line with 
local planning policies.  

32.  The draft guidance, informed by responses to the public consultation exercise 
will be considered by Executive on 18th March 2014. If adopted, it will become 
Supplementary Planning Guidance, in support of policies DM2 and IS4 of the 
Central Bedfordshire (North) LDF and South Bedfordshire Local Plans 
respectively, and Technical Guidance for the purposes of Development 
Management, in support of Policy 48 of the Development Strategy. 

 

Appendices: 

 

Appendix A –  Central Bedfordshire Sustainable Drainage Supplementary 
Planning Guidance Consultation Draft 

  

(Due to its size Appendix A has been circulated in hard copy to 
Members of the Committee only.  A full copy of Appendix A is 
available publically on the Council’s website). 

 

Appendix B –  Organisations attending the initial workshop 

 

Appendix C –  Internal and Statutory Consultee Consultation 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 165



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B  

 
Organisations attending the initial workshop 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Building Control) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Environmental Policy) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Development Management) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Highways) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Leisure) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Estates) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Environmental Health) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Countryside) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Schools) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Waste) 

• Anglian Water 

• RSPB 

• Environment Agency 

• Woods Hardwick 

• Persimmon Homes 

• Worth Planning and Design 

• Taylor Wimpey 

• J&J Design 

• Triad Planning and Design 

• O&H Properties 

• Bloor Homes 

• Hearne Holmes 

• Levitt Partnership 

• DFP 

• Easton and Associates  
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

 
Internal and Statutory Consultee Consultation 
Comments were received from the following organisations: 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Building Control) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Environmental Policy) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Countryside) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Leisure) 

• Central Bedfordshire Council (Local Planning) 

• Bedfordshire Internal Drainage Board 

• Environment Agency 
 
Comments reflected a number of topics including; 

• The need to link clearly to existing statutory and local policy requirements 

• The need to keep local SuDS requirements simple 

• The need to include flood risk issues more explicitly 

• Detail on content of sections on local SuDS zones 

• The need to ensure the content in relation to both SuDS design and the adoptions 
process is bespoke to CBC 

• The need to include information on dealing with SuDS design in challenging sites 
(e.g. those with high groundwater), and design for management and maintenance 

 
These consultation comments were considered by the CBC project team and the 
consultants, and the draft has been amended to reflect these concerns and suggestions 
as far as possible. 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 27 February 2014 

Subject: Local Transport Plans Programme 2014/15 

Report of: Cllr Nigel Young , Executive Member for Sustainable Communities 

Summary: The report proposes the endorsement of the Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
capital funding split for 2014/15 together with details of the scheme 
programmes for the Leighton Linslade, Ampthill and Flitwick, Marston 
Vale, Shefford, Silsoe and Shillington, and Heath and Reach, Barton le 
Clay and Toddington Local Area Transport Plans (LATPs). In addition it 
seeks the endorsement of schemes to be delivered through the Rural 
Match Fund, the local safety funding allocation and the creation of a 
“development fund” for advance design works. 

 

 

Advising Officer: Paul Cook, Assistant Director of Highways and Transport  

Contact Officer: Ben King, Principal Transport Planner 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

1. The Local Transport Plan (referred to as the LTP) is an important tool in helping 
to deliver the priorities contained within the Medium Term Plan. 

 Transport is a means to an end and the LTP helps to assist in providing the 
capacity for economic growth, catering for an increase in demand to travel, 
improving the health and well being of the population, increasing access to 
education and other local services, and addressing general quality of life issues. 

 This all equates to ‘Enhancing Central Bedfordshire’, ‘Promoting Health and 
Well Being’ and providing ‘Better Infrastructure’, all priorities contained within 
the Medium Term Plan.  

Financial: 

2. The authority has received its annual capital settlement from Central Government 
for spend on integrated transport measures in 2014/15. This amounts to 
£1,882,000 which represents a significant increase on previous years. The 
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which is going to Council for approval 
includes the capital scheme of integrated transport spend for this amount. 

 Around £538,000 of this funding has already been allocated to schemes across 
the authority (as agreed at Executive on 19 March 2013) and this report sets out 
the areas in which the remaining £1,344,000 is earmarked to be spent. 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 171



Legal: 

3. No direct implications. 

Risk Management: 

4. The following risks have been identified - (1) Failure to discharge statutory 
requirements; (2) Reputational damage through not addressing community / 
local needs. 

 These risks will be monitored and mitigating action taken. There are also 
financial risks associated with being able to deliver the schemes contained 
within the LATP programmes within their allocated budget. The involvement of 
engineers at Bedfordshire Highways throughout the process of identifying 
these schemes has sought to mitigate this risk. 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

5. Not Applicable.  

Equalities / Human Rights: 

6. An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) was carried out in conjunction with the 
production of the Local Transport Plan, and both the LATPs and the Scheme 
Prioritisation Framework sit within the LTP suite of documents. 

 The EIA concluded that the LTP’s focus on providing realistic travel options and 
alternatives to car based travel to increase accessibility especially to 
employment and training opportunities, education, healthcare provision and 
leisure facilities would have positive impacts across all groups, particularly 
disabled people and those in deprived areas without access to a car.  

 In addition the LTP also addresses the worst impacts of traffic, namely 
pedestrian accidents, air and noise pollution and busy roads cutting through 
communities which disproportionately affect deprived areas and people facing 
social exclusion. 

 As part of the development of each LATP, detailed consideration is given to 
these issues at a local level and further public consultation will be undertaken 
to ensure that all relevant issues are identified. 

Public Health: 

7. Schemes included within the LATPs may encourage more active travel through 
walking and cycling initiatives which contribute to improving the health and well 
being of local residents. These and other schemes which reduce reliance on 
the private car also help to minimise harmful emissions which may lead to 
respiratory illnesses, particularly in areas with a high volume of traffic.  

Community Safety: 

8. Central Bedfordshire Council has a statutory duty under Section 17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act to do all that it reasonably can to reduce crime and 
disorder, whilst mitigating any risks of increasing crime and disorder.  

 Promoting more active travel helps to ensure that there are more people on the 
street providing natural surveillance, which in turn helps to reduce crime and 
the fear of crime. To ensure this, community safety risks will be assessed in 
the design of schemes. 

 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 172



Sustainability: 

9. A Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) was produced for the LTP, whilst 
a number of the schemes included within the LTP programme will promote less 
reliance on use of the car and increase use of sustainable transport modes, 
which in turn reduce congestion, air pollution, and CO2 emissions.  

Procurement: 

10. Not applicable. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

The Committee is asked to:- 

i. Review and comment on the LATP programmes for Leighton Linslade, 
Ampthill and Flitwick, Marston Vale, Shefford, Silsoe and Shillington, and 
Heath and Reach, Barton le Clay and Toddington in 2014/15.  

ii. Review and comment on the Rural Match Fund proposals to be 
implemented following a bidding process by Town and Parish Councils.  

iii. Review and comment on the road safety financial allocation.  

iv. Review and comment on the use of the “development fund” in 2014/15.  

 

Overview 

10. The report proposes the endorsement of Local Transport Plan capital funding for 
2014/15, the programme of schemes in the Local Area Transport Plans for 
Leighton Linslade, Ampthill and Flitwick, Marston Vale, Shefford, Silsoe and 
Shillington, and Heath and Reach, Barton le Clay and Toddington, the schemes 
to be delivered through the Rural Match Fund, the value of the dedicated road 
safety allocation and the use of a small ‘development fund’ through the year.   

Local Transport Plan 

11. The Central Bedfordshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) was adopted by the 
authority on 1 April 2011. It covers the 15 year period up until March 2026 and 
contains a series of objectives and related targets and indicators against which 
to determine the success of the authority in improving transport infrastructure 
and service provision.   

12. The LTP details strategic areas of intervention which form a framework for 
investment, to not just achieve the objectives of the Plan but also ensure that 
transport contributes towards the wider priorities of the authority. 

13. The authority is awarded an annual settlement from the Government through 
which to deliver the Local Transport Plan. This amounts to £1,882,000 in 
2014/15. Around £538,000 of this funding has already been allocated to 
schemes across the authority and this report sets out the areas in which the 
remaining £1,344,000 is earmarked to be spent.  

14. Extensive consultation was undertaken on the LTP prior to it’s adoption in April 
2011. This included a survey of over 2,000 local residents together with 
meetings with town and parish councils, Central Bedfordshire members and an 
extensive online presence including on the authority’s own website and 
dedicated Facebook and Twitter pages.  

Agenda Item 13
Page 173



15. The LTP has been very well received by the Department for Transport and has 
been the basis for a number of successful bids and major projects. 

Local Area Transport Plans 

16. A series of Local Area Transport Plans (LATPs) sit underneath the LTP. These 
apply the principles established within the LTP at the local level taking into 
account pertinent local issues and travel patterns. The LATPs and the 
timetable over which they have been produced are included in Table 1.  

 

Table 1: Local Area Transport Plans 

 

Year Commenced  Area Covered 

2011/12 

(Tranche 1) 

Arlesey & Stotfold,  

Biggleswade & Sandy, 

Dunstable & Houghton Regis, and 

Leighton Linslade. 

2012/13 

(Tranche 2) 

Ampthill and Flitwick, 

Marston Vale, 

Shefford, Silsoe & Shillington, and 

Toddington, Harlington and Barton-le-Clay. 

2013/14 

(Tranche 3) 

Chiltern, 

Potton, and 

Haynes & Old Warden. 
 

17. The programmes of schemes to be delivered in 2014/15 for the Tranche 1 and 
Tranche 3 plans have previously been approved, with the exception of 
Leighton Linslade. The focus of this paper is therefore on Leighton 
Linslade and the Tranche 2 plans. The breakdown of funding for 2014/15 is 
set out in Table 2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 174



 Table 2: LTP Funding Allocations in 2014/15 

Area 2014/15 

Tranche 1  

(Arlesey & Stotfold) 

(Biggleswade & Sandy) 

(Leighton Linslade)  

(Dunstable & Houghton Regis) 

£534,200 

(£133,600) 

(£200,300) 

(£200,300) 

(£0) 

Tranche 2 

(Ampthill and Flitwick) 

(Marston Vale) 

(Shefford, Silsoe and Shillington) 

(Heath and Reach, Toddington and Barton le Clay) 

£597,800 

(£229,000) 

(£122,400) 

(£102,400) 

(£144,000) 

Tranche 3  

(Chiltern) 

(Potton) 

(Haynes and Old Warden) 

£203,500 

(£92,300) 

(£61,600) 

(£49,600) 

Rural Match Fund £376,000 

Local Safety Schemes  

(authority wide) 

£120,000 

 

Development Fund £50,000 

Total £1,882,000 

*Figures have been rounded 

Estimated Costs of Schemes  

18. It should be highlighted that advanced design works have not been undertaken 
for any of the schemes included within the programme. As such there may be 
instances where the actual spend diverges from the allocation. In such cases 
either the scope of the scheme will be amended or the excess funding will be 
allocated elsewhere within the Plan area following discussions with local 
members. This is the case with each of the LATPs.  

Leighton Linslade Local Area Transport Plan 

19. The Local Area Transport Plan for Leighton Linslade has an allocation of 
£200,300 for the 2014/15 financial year and a meeting was held with local 
members on 19 December 2013 to determine the schemes this funding should 
be allocated towards. 

20. The starting point for the discussions was the “long list” of schemes contained 
within the LATP, and prioritised through the Scheme Prioritisation Framework. 
This ranks schemes in terms of their suitability for implementation on the basis 
of their policy compliance, deliverability and value for money.  

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 175



21. Following this process the schemes detailed in Table 3 are earmarked for 
delivery in 2014/15: 

Table 3: Leighton Linslade LATP Programme for 2014/15 

Scheme Allocation 

Plan wide: Cycle improvement schemes prioritising the 
provision of a shared use path on Grovebury Road, a 
shared use path on Clipstone Brook and improved links 
between Pages Park and Sandhills Estate.  

£120,000 

 

Town centre: Environmental improvements to Leighton 
Buzzard town centre.  

£80,340 

 

Total £200,340 
 

Ampthill & Flitwick Local Area Transport Plan 

22. The Local Area Transport Plan for Ampthill and Flitwick has an allocation of 
£229,000 for the 2014/15 financial year and a meeting was held with local 
members on 9 July 2013 to determine the schemes this funding should be 
allocated towards.  

23. The starting point for the discussions was the “long list” of schemes contained 
within the LATP, and prioritised through the Scheme Prioritisation Framework. 
This ranks schemes in terms of their suitability for implementation on the basis 
of their policy compliance, deliverability and value for money.  

24. Following this process the schemes detailed in Table 4 are earmarked for 
delivery in 2014/15: 

Table 4: Ampthill and Flitwick LATP Programme for 2014/15 

Scheme Allocation 

Ampthill: Shared use footpath / cycleway between 
Redbourne School and the A507. 

£90,000 

Flitwick: Measures to deliver a 20mph scheme in Flitwick 
and Westoning. 

£109,000  

Ampthill: Improved crossing facilities on Church Street in 
Ampthill town centre. 

£30,000 

Total £229,000 
 

Marston Vale Local Area Transport Plan 

25. The Local Area Transport Plan for Marston Vale has an allocation of £122,400 
for the 2014/15 financial year and a meeting was held with local members on 4 
June 2013 to determine the schemes this funding should be allocated towards.  

26. The starting point for the discussions was the “long list” of schemes contained 
within the LATP, and prioritised through the Scheme Prioritisation Framework 
which ranks schemes in terms of their suitability for implementation in terms of 
their policy compliance, deliverability and value for money.  

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 176



27. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Following this process the schemes detailed in Table 5 are earmarked for 
delivery in 2014/15: 

Table 5: Marston Vale LATP Programme for 2014/15 

Scheme Allocation 

Plan wide: General bus stop improvements split 6 ways 
between the parishes of Marston Moretaine, Ridgmont, 
Woburn, Aspley Guise, Husborne Crawley and Brogborough 
(particularly Ridgmont Station) to provide either new bus 
shelters or smaller scale improvements. 

£60,000  

Woburn: Hockcliffe Road speed limit amendments and 
associated restrictions 

£17,400 

Cranfield: Pedestrian crossing (either at Portland Place or 
Crane Way, subject to local priority). 

£45,000 

Total £122,400 
 

Shefford, Silsoe and Shillington Local Area Transport Plan 

28. The Local Area Transport Plan for Shefford, Silsoe and Shillington has an 
allocation of £102,400 for the 2014/15 financial year and a meeting was held 
with local members on 13 November 2013 to determine the schemes this 
funding should be allocated towards.  

 

29. The starting point for the discussions was the “long list” of schemes contained 
within the LATP, and prioritised through the Scheme Prioritisation Framework 
which ranks schemes in terms of their suitability for implementation in terms of 
their policy compliance, deliverability and value for money.  

 

30. Following this process the schemes detailed in Table 6 are earmarked for 
delivery in 2014/15. 

Table 6: Shefford, Silsoe and Shillington LATP Programme for 2014/15 

Scheme Allocation 

Shefford: New pedestrian crossing on Old Bridge Way.  £65,000 

Campton: Traffic islands to protect turning traffic at the A507 / 
Greenway Campton junction. 

£34,000  

Gravenhurst: Design of School Safety Zone. £3,400  

Total £102,400 
 

Heath and Reach, Toddington and Barton le Clay Local Area Transport Plan 

31. The Local Area Transport Plan for Heath and Reach, Toddington and Barton 
le Clay has an allocation of £144,000 for the 2014/15 financial year and a 
meeting was held with local members on 16 December 2013 to determine the 
schemes this funding should be allocated towards.  

Agenda Item 13
Page 177



32. The starting point for the discussions was the “long list” of schemes contained 
within the LATP adopted in April 2012, and prioritised through the Scheme 
Prioritisation Framework which ranks schemes in terms of their suitability for 
implementation in terms of their policy compliance, deliverability and value for 
money.  

33. Following this process the schemes detailed in Table 7 are earmarked for 
delivery in 2014/15: 

Table 7: Heath and Reach, Toddington and Barton le Clay LATP 
Programme for 2014/15 

Scheme Allocation 

Plan wide: School Safety Zones at Stanbridge Lower 
School and Chalton Lower School. 

£129,000 

Plan wide: Bus stop improvements. £5,000 

Plan wide: Signage of village cycle networks. £10,000 

Total £144,000 
 

Rural Match Fund 

34. The rural match fund is a way through which local town and parish councils 
can fund transport schemes in their areas with the assistance of match funding 
from Central Bedfordshire Council. A total of £376,000 of the Integrated 
Transport Budget for 2014/15 has been allocated to this initiative.  

35. An email was sent to all town and parishes councils on 2 April 2013 inviting 
them to submit an application for match funding. As a result 20 applications 
were received.  

36. Following the assessment of these applications in terms of their feasibility and 
potential implementation costs, 17 schemes have been identified for delivery. 
A summary of these schemes and their location are detailed in Table 8.  

37. In total this process will draw in an estimated £108,000 in additional match 
funding, generating a total budget of around £484,000. [These schemes are 
subject to further liaison with Town and Parish Councils up until the end of 
February 2014]. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 178



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 8: Rural Match Funded Schemes for Delivery in 2014/15 

 Location Scheme 

1 Ampthill  Double yellow lines at various locations. 

2 Arlesey  HGV re-routing scheme [tbc].  

3 Aspley Guise Creation of safety zone close to Aspley Guise Lower 
School. 

4 Barton le 
Clay 

40mph buffer zone on approach to village. 

5 Biggleswade Raised zebra crossing on London Road. 

6 Flitton and 
Greenfield 

Pedestrian improvements. 

7 Harlington Raised zebra crossing outside Harlington Upper 
School. 

8 Henlow Round top hump on Church Road. 

9 Henlow Road markings on approach to A507 junction. 

10 Leighton Pedestrian improvements on approach to the Station. 

11 Maulden Parking restrictions. 

12 Northill Horse rider warning signs. 

13 Old Warden Signage improvements [tbc]. 

14 Slip End Integrated traffic calming and parking improvements. 

15 Stondon 20mph zone at Stondon Lower School. 

16 Toddington 20mph zone at Toddington St Georges Lower School. 

17 Westoning Speed reduction measures and parking provision. 
 

Local Safety Scheme Funding 

38. Improving the safety of our transport network is a high priority of the authority. 
Indeed it is a statutory duty for local authorities to seek to reduce the number of 
people killed or seriously injured, and for the fourth year in a row the LTP budget 
will be “top sliced” to fund road safety improvements across the Plan area. 

39. These improvements are identified through a well established prioritisation 
process that gives precedent to those locations at which the largest numbers 
of accidents occur. Some £120,000 is proposed for dedicated road safety 
spend in 2014/15, commensurate with previous years.  

Development Fund  

40. It is proposed to set aside £50,000 of the Integrated Transport Budget in 
2014/15 for a “development fund”. This is the first time in the four years of the 
LTP that such a fund has been earmarked and it is a response to issues 
encountered in the previous three years of the Plan. 

41. The intended role of the fund is to allow advanced design works and 
associated public consultation on smaller scale local schemes for 
implementation in 2015/16. 

Agenda Item 13
Page 179



42. This will ensure that there is greater certainly associated with future 
programme entries both in terms of their feasibility and costs, provide further 
confidence in the LATP process and ensure that schemes are in a position to 
be implemented from 1 April 2015. 

Conclusion and Next Steps 

43. Following the endorsement of the 2014/15 allocations by Executive, the 
authority will commence delivery of the programme of schemes within the 
LATPs from April 2014.  

 

Appendix: 

Appendix – Local Area Transport Plan boundaries  

 

Background papers:  

Local Transport Plan  

Agenda Item 13
Page 180



Appendix – Local Area Transport Plan Boundaries 
 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Meeting: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 27 February 2014 

Subject: Work Programme & Executive Forward Plan 

Report of: Richard Carr, Chief Executive 

Summary: The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted Committee 
work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Jonathon Partridge, Corporate Policy and Scrutiny Manager 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

The work programme of the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee will 
contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities.  Whilst there are no direct implications arising 
from this report the implications of proposals will be detailed in full in each report submitted 
to the Committee.  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. that the sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 (a) considers and approves the work programme attached, subject to any 
further amendments it may wish to make; 

 (b) considers the relevant items of the Executive Forward Plan; and 

 (c) considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work 
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in reviewing 
specific items. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 

1. Appended is the currently drafted work programme for the Committee.  

2. The Committee is now requested to consider the work programme attached and 
amend or add to it as necessary.  

Overview and Scrutiny Task Forces 

3. In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members may also wish to 
consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee itself (over one or a 
number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a Member Task Force to review 
an item in greater depth and report back its findings. 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 183



Executive Forward Plan 

4. Listed below are those items relating specifically to this Committee’s terms of 
reference contained in the latest version of the Executive’s Forward Plan to ensure 
Members are fully aware of the key issues Executive Members will be taking 
decisions upon in the coming months.  The full Executive Forward plan can be 
viewed on the Council’s website at the link at the end of this report. 

Ref  Issue Indicative Exec 
Meeting date 

1.  Central Beds Flood and Water Management Act (2010) Duties 18 March 2014 

2.  Arlesey Masterplan (Land at Chase Farm and Land West and 
North-East of High Street, Arlesey) 

18 March 2014 

3.  Leisure Strategy 18 March 2014 

4.  3 Budget Monitoring Reports 18 March 2014 

5.  Central Bedfordshire Design Guide 18 March 2014 

6.  Local Transport Plan Funding Allocations in 2014/15 18 March 2014 

7. * Waste Disposal Contracts 18 March 2014 

8.  Community Safety Partnership Plan and Priorities 18 March 2014 

9.  Quarter 3 Performance Report 18 March 2014 

10.  Planning Guidance for Solar Farms 18 March 2014 

11.  Central Bedfordshire Sustainable Drainage Systems Guidance 18 March 2014 

12.  Arlesey Phase 1 18 March 2014 

13.  SEMLEP Strategic Economic Plan 18 March 2014 

14. * Central Bedfordshire Development Strategy  22 April 2014 

15. * Community Infrastructure Levy 15 July 2014 

 

Those marked (*) are not presently on the Committee work programme 

Conclusion 

5. Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work programme, 
subject to any further amendments/additions they may wish to make and highlight 
those items within it where they may wish to establish a Task Force to assist the 
Committee in its work.  This will allow officers to plan accordingly but will not 
preclude further items being added during the course of the year if Members so wish 
and capacity exists. 

Appendix – Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme  

Background reports:  

The Executive Forward Plan (can be viewed at any time on the Council’s website) at the 
following link:- 
http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/modgov/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=577&RD=0  

Agenda Item 14
Page 184



NOT PROTECTED      Last Update:  03 February 2014  

Appendix A 
 

Work Programme for Sustainable Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 2013 - 2014 

 
 
 

Ref Indicative Overview & 
Scrutiny Meeting Date 

Report Title Report Description Comment 

1.  10 April 2014 South East Midlands Local 
Enterprise Partnership 
(SEMLEP)  

 Executive: 18 March 2014 

2.  10 April 2014 Solar Farm Guidance   Executive: TBC 

3.  10 April 2014 Draft Development Strategy  To consider the draft Development 
Strategy, which sets out the broad 
approach to new development across 
Central Bedfordshire to 2031, 
including new housing and 
employment targets and new large-
scale development sites. 

Executive: 22 April 2014 

4.  10 April 2014 Revenue and Capital Budget 
Monitoring Report (Quarter 3) 

To receive the Q3 revenue and capital 
budget for the Sustainable 
Communities directorate 

Executive: 18 March 2014 

5.  10 April 2014 Q3 Performance Report To receive the Q3 performance for the 
Sustainable Communities directorate 

Executive: 18 March 2014 

6.  08 May 2014 TBC   

7.  19 June 2014 TBC   

 

A
genda Item

 14
P

age 185



P
age 186

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes of the meeting on 22 January 2014

	10 Central Bedfordshire Design Guide
	Design Guide (Appendix A)
	Design Guide (Appendix B)
	Design Guide (Appendix C)
	Design Guide (Appendix D)

	11 Arlesey Masterplan
	Arlesey Masterplan (Appendix B)
	Arlesey Masterplan (Appendix C)

	12 Planning Guidance on Sustainable Drainage
	Planning Guidance on Sustainable Drainage (Appendix B)
	Planning Guidance on Sustainable Drainage (Appendix C)

	13 Local Area Transport Plans Programme 2014/15
	Local Area Transport Plans Programme (Appendix)

	14 Work Programme and Executive Forward Plan
	SCOSC Work Programme (Appendix)


